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Revamp of rural infrastructure 
aided by government 
funding is also expected 
to boost growth. Other 
initiatives such as 100% 
electrification of Indian 
villages, gainful employment 
during non-harvest periods 
under Mahatma Gandhi 
National Rural Employment 
Guarantee Act (MGNREGA), 
and affordable housing, 
are all set to herald rural 
resurgence. Most importantly, 
a burgeoning rural economy 
will channel newer, non-farm 
sources of income, which 
would help in reducing the 
volatility in rural cash flows. 

At Mahindra Finance, our two-
decade plus presence in rural 
and semi-urban India, enables 
us to feel and understand the 

A momentous 
opportunity 
to serve resurgent 
rural India

pulse of this vast geography. 
Today, we are witnessing signs 
of a resurgence that would be 
unleashed in rural India in the 
near future. With a diversified 
and bigger basket of service 
offerings, Mahindra Finance is 
set to capture the potential of 
this re-energised market. 

As an acknowledgement of this 
great revival, we dedicate our 
annual report of this year to the 
theme of a

Rural India is expected to lead the next 
phase of growth in the country. Budgetary 
fillips, in particular higher farm credit 
and interest subvention, have energised 
both the macro and micro drivers of rural 
growth and development.  

resurgent 
rural 
India.
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Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 30th Annual Report along with the Audited Accounts of your 
Company for the year ended March 31, 2017.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS
(Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars
For the year ended  

March 31
2017 2016

Income 174.23 149.20
Profit before Interest, Depreciation and Taxation 84.26 76.00
Depreciation 1.90 1.34
Profit before Taxation 82.36 74.66
Provision for Taxation:
Provision for Current Tax 29.05 26.96
Provision for Deferred Tax (0.15) (0.43)
Provision for Taxation 28.90 26.53
Profit after Taxation 53.46 48.13
Other Comprehensive Income (0.41) 0.36
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 53.05 48.49
Balance of Retained Earnings for prior years 185.32 140.71
Amount available for appropriation 238.37 189.20
Appropriations:
Dividend on Equity Shares (paid) 3.87 3.22
Tax on Dividend (paid) 0.78 0.66
Surplus Retained Earnings carried to Balance Sheet 233.72 185.32

Board’s Report to the Shareholders

2. DIVIDEND
  Your Directors recommend a dividend of Rs. 

17.50 per Equity Share on 25,77,320 Equity 
Shares of Rs.10 each, aggregating to Rs. 4.51 
crores (previous year Rs. 3.87 crores). The 
above dividend, if approved, will be paid to those 
Members whose names appear in the Register 
of Members as on the Record Date fixed for 
this purpose. The dividend including dividend 
distribution tax, surcharge and education cess 
will absorb a sum of Rs. 5.43 crores (as against 
Rs. 4.65 crores on account of dividend of Rs. 15 
per Equity Share, paid for the previous year).

3. RESERVES
  No amount is proposed to be transferred to 

General Reserve and an amount of Rs. 233.72 
crores is proposed to be retained in the statement 
of Profit and loss.

4. OPERATIONS
  The year ended March 31, 2017 marked the 13th 

year of successful insurance broking operations 
of your Company. In this journey of 13 years, your 

Company has been able to service over 8 million 
insurance cases, largely in the rural and semi-
urban markets in India. Your Company has been 
able to reach the benefit of insurance to over 
1,50,000 villages across India. Your Company 
endeavors to further increase insurance 
penetration in rural India as well as become a 
significant player in global insurance markets.

  During the year under review, your Company 
serviced approximately 1.6 million insurance 
cases, with a total of 1,591,796 cases for both 
Life and Non-Life Retail business. The customized 
Life insurance cover “Mahindra Loan Suraksha” 
(MLS) increased from 5,13,093 lives covered 
with a Sum Assured of Rs. 14,792.8 crores in 
the Financial Year 2015-16 to 5,82,949 lives 
covered with a Sum Assured of Rs.18,027.6 
crores in the Financial Year 2016-17. This 
is in spite of the general economic slowdown 
witnessed during the year having a cascading 
impact on the auto-manufacturing and auto 
financing industry. A substantial portion of MLS 
continues to be covered in the rural markets.
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  Your Company achieved a growth of 27% in 
Gross Premium facilitated for the Corporate 
and Retail business lines, increasing from Rs. 
1,238.6 crores in the Financial Year 2015-16 to 
Rs. 1,567.9 crores in the Financial Year 2016-
17. The Total Income increased by 17% from Rs. 
149.2 crores in the Financial Year 2015-16 to 
Rs. 174.2 crores in the Financial Year 2016-17. 
The Profit before Tax increased by 10% from Rs. 
74.7 crores to Rs. 82.4 crores, and the Profit 
after Tax increased by 9% from Rs. 48.5 crores 
to Rs. 53.1 crores during the same period. The 
Networth increased by 28% from Rs. 220.4 
crores in the Financial Year 2015-16 to Rs. 
268.8 crores in the Financial Year 2016-17.

5.  ACHIEVEMENTS
   Ranked amongst the Top 100 “India’s Best 

Companies to Work For 2016” by Great Place to 
Work® (GPTW) Institute in collaboration with The 
Economic Times, with #2 rank in the insurance 
industry.

6. SHARE CAPITAL
  During the year under review, the Company has 

neither issued shares with differential voting rights 
as to dividend, voting or otherwise, nor has issued 
any sweat equity. The Company has not formulated 
any Employees Stock Option Scheme during the 
year under review. There were no Shares having 
voting rights not exercised directly by the employees 
and for the purchase of which or subscription to 
which, loan was given by the Company.

  As on March 31, 2017, none of the Directors 
of the Company hold instruments convertible into 
Equity Shares of the Company.

7. DIRECTORS
  The composition of the Board of Directors of your 

Company is in conformity with the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from 
time to time. As on March 31, 2017, the 
Company has seven directors of which one is 
Managing Director, four are Non-Executive Non-

Independent Directors and two are Independent 
Directors. The Board reviews and approves 
strategy and oversees the actions and results of 
the management to ensure that the long term 
objectives of the enhancing stakeholders’ value 
are met. None of the Board of Directors holds 
directorships in more than 10 public companies. 
None of the directors are related to each other. 
Mr. V. Ravi (DIN: 00307328) retires by rotation 
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible offer himself for re-appointment. Mr. 
Nityanath Ghanekar (DIN: 00009725) and Ms. 
Anjali Raina (DIN: 02327927) were appointed 
as Independent Directors of the Company for a 
period of five years with effect from March 30, 
2015. These Independent Directors shall hold 
the office of directorship for a term of five years. 
None of the Independent Directors are due for 
reappointment.

8.  KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
  As at the date of this Report, the Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company, as envisaged under 
the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, are Dr. Jaideep Devare – Managing 
Director and Ms. Rupa Joshi – Company 
Secretary.

9.  BOARD MEETING AND ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING

The Board of Directors met five times in Financial Year 
2016-17 viz. April 15, 2016, July 13, 2016, October 
13, 2016, January 16, 2017, and March 2, 2017. 
The maximum interval between any two meetings did 
not exceed 120 days, as prescribed in the Companies 
Act, 2013. Necessary quorum was present for all 
the meetings. The Board of Directors have passed a 
Circular Resolution on dated January 31, 2017.

The names and categories of the Directors of the 
Company, their attendance at the Board Meetings 
held during the Financial Year 2016-17 and at the 
last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 
July 13, 2016 are as follows:

Names of Directors Category Attendance at the Board 
Meetings held during the 

Financial Year 2016-17

Attendance at the Last 
Annual General Meeting 

held on July 13, 2016
(Yes/ No/ N.A.)

Held Attended

Mr. Rajeev Dubey 
(Chairman)

Non-Executive, Non-Independent 5 5 Yes

Mr. Ramesh Iyer Non-Executive, Non-Independent 5 4 Yes
Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar Non-Executive, Independent 5 5 Yes
Mr. V. Ravi Non-Executive, Non-Independent 5 5 Yes
Ms. Anjali Raina Non-Executive, Independent 5 5 Yes
Mr. Hemant Sikka Non-Executive, Non-Independent 5 5 Yes
Dr. Jaideep Devare Non-Independent, Executive 5 5 Yes
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10.  MEETING OF INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTORS

  During the year 2016-17, one meeting of the 
Independent Directors was held on March 2, 
2017. The Independent Directors, inter-alia, 
reviewed the performance of non-independent 
directors, Chairman of the Company and the 
Board as a whole.

11. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
  The Company has several committees which are in 

compliance with the requirements of the relevant 
provisions of applicable laws and statutes.

  The Company has following Committees of the 
Board:

 i) Audit Committee

 ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

 iii) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

 i) Audit Committee
   As on March 31, 2017, the Audit Committee 

comprised of two Independent Directors 
and one Non-Executive Non-Independent 
Director. The Committee is comprised of 
Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar (Chairman) and 
Ms. Anjali Raina, Independent Directors and 
Mr. V. Ravi, Non-Executive Non-Independent 
Director.

   The Committee met five times during the 
year on April 15, 2016, July 13, 2016, 
October 13, 2016, January 16, 2017 and 
March 2, 2017.

   The attendance of the members of the Audit 
Committee at its meetings held during the 
Financial Year 2016-17 is given below:

Names of 
Members

Category Attendance at  
the Meetings

held during the 
Financial Year 

2016-17
Held Attended

Mr. Nityanath 
Ghanekar

Non- 
Executive, 
Independent

5 5

Ms. Anjali 
Raina

Non- 
Executive, 
Independent

5 5

Mr. V. Ravi Non-
Executive, 
Non-
Independent

5 5

    The Board has accepted all the 
recommendations made by the Audit 
Committee during the year. The Managing 
Director, Chief Internal Auditor of Mahindra 
& Mahindra Limited and Statutory Auditors 
are regularly invited to attend the Audit 
Committee Meetings. The Company 
Secretary is the Secretary to the Committee.

   Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar, Chairman of the 
Audit Committee, was present at the 29th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company 
held on July 13, 2016.

 ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee
   As on March 31, 2017, the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee comprised 
of two Independent Directors and two Non-
Executive Non-Independent Directors.

   The Committee comprises of Mr. Nityanath 
Ghanekar and Ms. Anjali Raina, Independent 
Directors and Mr. Rajeev Dubey and Mr. 
Ramesh Iyer, Non-Executive and Non-
Independent Directors of the Company.

   The Committee met three times during the 
year on April 15, 2016, July 13, 2016 and 
March 2, 2017.

   The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee inter alia recommends the 
appointment and removal of directors 
and carries out evaluation of performance 
of every director in accordance with the 
framework adopted by the Board. The 
Committee is also empowered to look into 
the entire gamut of remuneration package 
for the working Director(s) and revise their 
remuneration subject to limits approved by 
the shareholders.

   The attendance of the Members of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
at its meetings held during the Financial Year 
2016-17 is given below:

Names of 
Members

Category Attendance at  
the Meetings

held during the 
Financial Year 

2016-17
Held Attended

Mr. Rajeev 
Dubey

Non-
Executive, 
Non-
Independent

3 3
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Names of 
Members

Category Attendance at  
the Meetings

held during the 
Financial Year 

2016-17
Held Attended

Mr. Nityanath 
Ghanekar

Non- 
Executive, 
Independent

3 3

Mr. Ramesh 
Iyer

Non-
Executive, 
Non-
Independent

3 3

Ms. Anjali 
Raina

Non- 
Executive, 
Independent

3 3

 iii) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
   As on March 31, 2017, the Corporate 

Social Responsibility Committee comprised 
of one Independent Director and four Non-
Executive Non-Independent Directors. The 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is 
comprised of Mr. Rajeev Dubey, Mr. Ramesh 
Iyer, Mr. V. Ravi, Ms. Anjali Raina and Dr. 
Jaideep Devare.

   The Committee met thrice during the year 
on April 15, 2016, July 13, 2016 and 
January 16, 2017.

   The details of the meetings attended by the 
Committee Members are as follows:

Names of 
Members

Category Attendance at  
the Meetings

held during the 
Financial Year 

2016-17
Held Attended

Mr. Rajeev 
Dubey

Non-
Executive, 
Non-
Independent

3 3

Mr. Ramesh 
Iyer

Non-
Executive, 
Non-
Independent

3 2

Ms. Anjali 
Raina

Non- 
Executive, 
Independent

3 3

Mr. V. Ravi Non-
Executive, 
Non-
Independent

3 3

Dr. Jaideep 
Devare

Non-
Independent, 
Executive

3 3

   Your Company is in compliance with the 
statutory requirements in this regard. 
The Annual Report on the CSR activities 
undertaken by your Company in the Financial 
Year 2016-17 is appended as Annexure I to 
this Report.

12. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE 
BOARD

  The Companies Act, 2013 states that a formal 
annual evaluation needs to be made by the 
Board of its own performance and that of its 
committees and individual directors. Further, 
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, states 
that the performance evaluation of independent 
directors shall be done by the entire Board of 
Directors, excluding the director being evaluated.

  Well-defined and structured questionnaires 
are used in the evaluation process. These 
questionnaires were prepared after taking 
into consideration inputs received from the 
Directors and cover various aspects of the 
Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the 
composition of the board and its committees, 
board culture, areas of responsibility, execution 
and performance of specific duties, obligations, 
governance and compliance perspective, etc.

  The evaluation process involves self-evaluation 
by each of the Board Members and subsequent 
assessment by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and the Board of Directors based on 
the inputs received from all the Directors through 
the questionnaires.

  In a separate meeting on independent 
directors, performance of non-independent 
directors, performance of board as a whole and 
performance of the chairman was evaluated, 
taking into account views of executive directors 
and non-executive directors. The same was 
also discussed in the board meeting, at which 
the performance of the board, its committees 
and individual directors was also discussed. 
Performance evaluation of independent directors 
was done by the entire board excluding the 
independent directors being evaluated.

  In general, the Directors have expressed their 
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

13.  DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTORS

  The Company has received declarations from 
each Independent Director of the Company under 
section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
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that he/she meets the criteria of independence 
as prescribed under sub-section (6) of Section 
149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

14.  DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY 
STATEMENT

  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors 
confirm that:

 i.  In the preparation of the annual accounts 
for Financial Year ended March 31, 2017, 
the applicable accounting standards have 
been followed and there are no material 
departures in adoption of these standards;

 ii.  They have selected such accounting 
policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company at March 31, 2017 and of the 
profit of the Company for the year ended on 
that date;

 iii.  They have taken proper and sufficient care 
for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of 
this Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting 
fraud and other irregularities;

 iv.  They have prepared the annual accounts for 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2017 on a 
‘going concern’ basis;

 v.  They devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate 
and operating effectively.

15. COMPANY’S POLICY ON 
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, 
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
AND EMPLOYEES

  The Company has adopted the following policies 
as required under sub-section (3) of section 178 
of the Companies Act, 2013:

 i)  ‘Policy on Remuneration of Directors’ and

 ii)   ‘Remuneration Policy for Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMPs) and  Employees’.

   which includes the criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a director.

   The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee while recommending the 
appointment of Directors considers 
desirable qualifications which may 
amongst other things include professional 
qualifications, skills, professional experience, 
background and knowledge apart from the 
criteria of independence as prescribed 
under the Companies Act, 2013. The 
Policy on Remuneration of Directors 
and Remuneration Policy for KMPs and 
Employees of the Company is appended as 
Annexure III to this Report in accordance 
with the provisions of sub-section (4) of 
section 178 of the Act. There has been no 
change in the policy since the last fiscal year. 
The remuneration paid to the directors is as 
per the terms laid out in the Remuneration 
Policy of the Company.

16. CODES OF CONDUCT FOR 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

  The Board of Directors of the Company had 
adopted separate Codes of Conduct for Corporate 
Governance (“the Codes”) for its Directors and 
Senior Management and Employees. These 
Codes enunciate the underlying principles 
governing the conduct of the Company’s business 
and seek to reiterate the fundamental precept 
that good governance must and would always 
be an integral part of the Company’s ethos. 
The Company has for the year under review, 
received declarations under the Codes from the 
Board Members, the Senior Management and 
Employees of the Company affirming compliance 
with the respective Codes.

  The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct 
for its Independent Directors as laid down in the 
Companies Act, 2013. This code is available on 
the Company’s website.

17. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
  Through its various Corporate Social Responsibility 

(“CSR”) initiatives, the Mahindra Group is enabling 
entire communities to ‘RISE’. With a vision of 
transforming the lives of youth from socially 
weaker and economically disadvantaged sections 
of society, the Mahindra Group is committed to 
‘building possibilities’ to enable them to ‘RISE’ 
above their limiting circumstances by innovatively 
supporting them through programs in the 
domains of education, health and environment.

  The Company has duly constituted a CSR 
Committee in accordance with section 135 of 
the companies Act, 2013 to assist the Board 
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and the Company in fulfilling the corporate social 
responsibility objectives of the Company. The CSR 
Committee presently comprises of Mr. Rajeev 
Dubey (Chairman), Mr. Ramesh Iyer, Ms. Anjali 
Raina, Mr. V. Ravi and Dr. Jaideep Devare.

  During the year under review, your Company 
contributed Rs.136.75 Lakhs towards Corporate 
Social Responsibility to various institutions 
for charitable purposes. Your Company is in 
compliance with the Statutory Provisions in this 
regard.

  The CSR Policy of the Company is hosted 
on the Company’s website https://www.
mahindrainsurance.com/Social-Responsibility.
aspx and a brief outline of the CSR Policy and 
the CSR initiatives undertaken by the Company 
during the year as per annexure prescribed in 
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules, 2014 have been appended as 
Annexure I to this Report.

18.EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
  Pursuant to sub-section 3(a) of Section 134 and 

sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with Rule 12 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, 
an extract of the Annual Return as at March 31, 
2017 forms part of this Report and is appended 
as Annexure II.

19.PUBLIC DEPOSITS
  The Company has not accepted any deposits from 

the public or its employees during the year under 
review. No amount on account of principal or 
interest on deposits from public was outstanding 
as on the date of balance sheet.

20. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, 
GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

  The Company has advanced loans and advances 
in the nature of loans under Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the details of which are 
mentioned in the notes to the financial statements 
and forms part of this Report.

  Your Company has not made any loans/
advances and investments which are required 
to be disclosed in the annual accounts of the 
Company pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and 53(f) 
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 read with Schedule V, 
applicable to the parent Company.

21. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR 
ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED 
PARTIES

  All contracts / arrangements / transactions 
entered into by the Company during the Financial 
Year with related parties were in the ordinary 
course of business and on an arm’s length basis. 
None of the Non-Executive Directors has any 
pecuniary relationships or transactions vis-à-vis 
the Company.

  The particulars of material related party 
transactions referred to under section 188(1) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the 
prescribed form AOC -2 as Annexure V and the 
same forms part of this report.

22. MATERIAL CHANGES AND 
COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE 
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY

  There have been no material changes and 
commitments, affecting the financial position of 
the Company which have occurred between the 
end of the Financial Year of the Company to which 
the financial statements relate and the date of 
the Report.

23.  CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF 
BUSINESS

  There was no change in nature of business carried 
on by the Company during the year under review.

24.RISK MANAGEMENT
  The Company has a well-defined risk management 

framework in place. Your Company has established 
procedures to periodically review risk assessment 
and steps taken by it to mitigate these risks. The 
key business risks identified by the Company and 
its mitigation plans are as under:

 i) Competitive Risks
   Overall slowdown in economic activity could 

have an adverse effect on the financial condition 
and operational results of the Company.

   As the overall levels of economic activity 
increase, the demand for insurance generally 
rises, and vice-versa. This impacts both, the 
brokerage as well as fees, generated by the 
business. Softening of the insurance market 
i.e. downward trends in the year-over-year 
insurance premium charged by insurers to 
offer protection against the same risk, could 
adversely affect the business as a large 
portion of the earnings are brokerage which 
is determined as a percentage of premium 
charged to the customers.
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   Significant competitive pressures in each of 
the business lines

   The Company competes with a large number 
of insurance companies and other insurance 
intermediaries. Some of the competitors 
may have or may develop a lower cost 
structure, adopt or provide services that 
gain greater market acceptance. Large and 
well-established competitors may be able 
to respond to the need for technological 
changes and innovate faster, or price their 
services more aggressively. They may also 
compete hard for skilled professionals, 
finance acquisitions, fund internal growth 
and compete for customers. To respond 
to increased competition, we may have to 
lower the pricing of the services.

 ii) Legal and Regulatory Risks
   The Company is subject to professional 

indemnity claims made against it, as well 
as other legal proceedings, some of which, 
if determined against the Company, could 
have a material adverse effect on the 
financial condition or results of operations of 
a particular business line or the Company as 
a whole.

   The Company traditionally has procured, and 
intends to continue to procure, insurance 
to cover professional indemnity claims 
and other insurance to provide protection 
against certain claims or losses that arise in 
such matters.

   The business is subject to extensive 
regulation, which could reduce profitability, 
limit growth, or increase competition.

   The business is subject to extensive legal 
and regulatory oversight, including the IRDA 
(Insurance Brokers) Regulations, 2013 and 
the rules and regulations promulgated by 
the Insurance Regulatory and Development 
Authority of India (IRDAI) and a variety of other 
laws, rules and regulations. This legal and 
regulatory oversight could reduce profitability 
or limit growth by limiting or restricting the 
products or services the Company sells, by 
increasing the costs of legal and regulatory 
compliance, limiting the distribution methods 
by which it sells products and services, or 
capping the brokerage it can charge for 
the services, limiting the amount and form 
of compensation it can accept from the 
customers, insurers and third parties, or by 

subjecting the business to the possibility of 
legal and regulatory actions or proceedings.

   Though the Company employees and 
authorized representatives exercise due 
care so not to violate these laws and 
regulations, there can be no assurances as 
regards the same.

 iii) Operational and Commercial Risks
   The Company’s success depends on its 

ability to retain and attract experienced 
and qualified personnel, including the senior 
management and operating team and other 
professional personnel.

   The business depends, to a large 
extent, upon the members of the senior 
management team and senior operating 
team, who possess extensive knowledge and 
a deep understanding of the business and 
strategy. The unexpected loss of services 
of any of the senior executives could have 
a disruptive effect, thereby impacting ability 
to manage the business effectively till such 
time as an able replacement is in place. The 
Company is constantly working to retain and 
attract these professionals through various 
people development initiatives.

   Business performance and growth plans 
could be affected if the Company is not able 
to effectively apply technology in driving value 
for its customers through technology-based 
solutions or gain internal efficiencies through 
the effective application of technology and 
related tools. Conversely, investments in 
innovative technology-based solutions may 
fail to yield sufficient return to cover their 
investments.

   The Company’s success depends, in part, on 
its ability to apply and implement technology-
based solutions that anticipate and keep 
pace with rapid and continuing changes in 
customer preferences. Response to these 
preferences needs to be timely and cost-
effective. This also entails the business to 
incur considerable investment. In order to 
acquire and retain customers, the Company 
continuously strives to offer newer and cost-
effective technologies to its customers, 
ahead of its competitors.

   Other factors, outside of the Company’s 
control.
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   The Company has no control over premium 
rates. The brokerage rates, too, are capped 
by the current regulations.

   In addition to movements in premium rates, 
the ability to generate premium-based 
brokerage revenue may be challenged by:

   •  the level of compensation, as a 
percentage of premium, that insurers 
are willing to compensate brokers for 
placement activity, which in any case, is 
capped by the current regulations;

  •  competition from insurers seeking to 
sell their products directly to consumers 
without the involvement of an insurance 
broker;

  •  increasing willingness on the part of 
customers to "self-insure”, which would 
increase competition and put pressure 
on pricing;

  •  fluctuation in the need for insurance 
as the economic downturn continues, 
as customers prioritize their need 
and willingness to procure insurance 
accordingly.

25. AUDITORS
  The Board of Directors at its meeting held on April 

14, 2014 had appointed M/s. B. K. Khare and 
Co., as the Statutory Auditors of the Company 
for a period of 5 years from the conclusion of the 
Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on July 14, 
2014 till the conclusion of the thirty-second AGM 
of the Company to be held in the year 2019, 
subject to the ratification of their appointment by 
shareholders at every Annual General Meeting.

  As required under the provisions of Sections 139(1) 
read with 141 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Company has obtained a written certificate from 
M/s. B. K. Khare & Co., Chartered Accountants, 
to the effect that their ratification of appointment, 
if made, would be in conformity with the criteria 
specified in the said sections.

  Pursuant to the recommendation received from 
the Audit Committee, the Board has proposed 
the ratification of the appointment of M/s. B. 
K. Khare & Co., as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company, to the Shareholders at the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting for a period of one year.

26.  ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 
FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY

  The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as 
per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') and other 
relevant provisions of the Act.

  The Company's financial statements for and up to 
the year ended March 31, 2016 were prepared 
in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) and 
were in compliance with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
and the relevant provisions of the Act.

  These are the Company’s first financial 
statements prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (IndAS). The Company has 
applied IndAS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian 
Accounting Standards. An explanation of how 
transition to Ind AS has affected the previously 
reported financial position, financial performance 
and cash flows of the Company is provided in 
Note 29 to the financial statements.

27. COMMENTS ON AUDITORS’ REPORT
  There are no qualifications, reservations or 

adverse remarks or disclaimers made by M/s 
B. K. Khare & Co., Statutory Auditors, in their 
report. The Auditors’ Report is enclosed with the 
financial statements in this Annual Report.

28. HUMAN RESOURCES
  Your Company took a number of initiatives to 

strengthen human resources during the year.

  In pursuance of your Company’s commitment to 
develop and retain the best available talent, your 
Company has been sponsoring the employees 
for training programmes organized by reputed 
faculties and professional institutions for building 
capabilities thereby upgrading the skill, knowledge 
and expertise of the employees in different 
operational areas.

  Your Company continues to focus on building 
leadership capability and recognizing the team 
managers who provide a rewarding work 
environment for their teams.

  Your organization also understands its 
responsibility towards society at large and 
therefore engages its employees in volunteering 
and implementing various social initiatives.
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  Your company is the world’s first company in the 
Insurance Sector to achieve People-CMM Level 
3 certification by CMMI® Institute, USA. The 
organization’s focus on best practices has been 
driven by the desire and commitment to deliver a 
best-in-class service experience to your Company’s 
valued customers. Your company has endeavored 
to develop people capabilities to match and exceed 
customer expectations since the customers 
associated with your Company deserve the best.

  Your Company strongly believes in maintaining 
the dignity of all employees. Discrimination and 
harassment of any type are strictly prohibited. Your 
Company has taken the necessary steps to abide by 
all statutory compliances and enhance awareness 
w.r.t. provisions of the Sexual Harrassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules 
framed thereunder. During the year under review, 
there were no cases filed pursuant to the Act and 
Rules framed thereunder.

29. SUBSIDIARIES
  The Company does not have any subsidiary as 

at March 31, 2017 or during the Financial Year 
ended on that date.

30.  PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION 
OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, 
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO

  The particulars in respect of conservation 
of energy, technology absorption and foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo, as required under 
Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
is given in Annexure IV.

31.  DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL 
ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 
OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING 
THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND 
COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

  There are no significant and material orders 
passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunal 

which would impact the going concern status of 
the Company and its future operations.

32.  DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY 
OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 
WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

  Your Company has in place adequate system 
of internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements, commensurate with the 
size, scale and complexity of its operations. 
These systems provide a reasonable assurance 
in respect of providing financial and operational 
information, complying with applicable statutes, 
safeguarding of assets of the Company and 
ensuring compliance with corporate policies.

  Assessment of the internal financial controls 
environment of the Company was undertaken 
during the year which covered verification of 
entity level controls, process level controls and IT 
controls, identification, assessment and definition 
of key business processes and analysis of risk 
control matrices, etc. Reasonable Financial 
Controls are operative for all the business activities 
of the Company and no material weakness in the 
design or operation of any control was observed.

33. REPORTING OF FRAUDS
  There are no frauds on or by the Company 

which were required to be reported by the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company to the Central 
Government.

35. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
  Your Directors take this opportunity to express 

their deep sense of gratitude to the Insurance 
Regulatory and Development Authority of 
India (IRDAI) for their continuous support 
and guidance rendered to the Company. Your 
Directors would also like to thank Company’s 
employees, customers, vendors and investors 
for their continuous support. Your Directors truly 
appreciate and value the contributions made by 
each and every member of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Mumbai, April 17, 2017
Registered Office:
Mahindra Towers,
P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli,
Mumbai - 400018
CIN: U65990MH1987PLC042609
Tel: +91 22 66423800
Fax: +91 22 24915894
E-mail: insurance.care@mahindra.com
Website: www.mahindrainsurance.com

Rajeev Dubey
Chairman



11

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 R

ep
or

ts
Fi

na
nc

ia
l S

ta
te

m
en

ts

Board’s Report to the Shareholders

ANNEXURE I TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities as prescribed under section 135 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014

Annual CSR Report
1)  Brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy including 

overview of projects or programs proposed to be 
undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the 
CSR policy and projects or programs

  The objective of Company’s CSR policy is to 
continuously and consistently generate goodwill 
in communities where the Company operates or 
is likely to operate, initiate projects that benefit 
communities and encourage an increased 
commitment from employees towards CSR 
activities and volunteering.

  The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
(‘CSR Committee’) is responsible to formulate 
and recommend to the Board the CSR Policy 
indicating the activities falling within the purview of 
Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013, to be 
undertaken by the Company, to recommend the 
amount to be spent on CSR activities presented 
by the CSR Council (‘CSR Council’) and to monitor 
the CSR Policy periodically. The CSR Council will 
be supported by the CSR Secretariat at Head 
Office, for implementation of the approved 
projects. For achieving the CSR objectives through 
implementation of meaningful and sustainable 
CSR Projects, the CSR Committee will allocate 
for its Annual CSR Budget, 2% of the average 
profits of the Company made during the three 
immediately preceding Financial Years, calculated 
in accordance with the relevant Sections of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 
2014.

  The Company has identified following CSR Thrust 

areas for undertaking CSR projects or programs 
or activities in India. The actual distribution of the 
expenditure among these thrust areas will depend 
upon the local needs as may be determined by 
the need identification studies or discussions with 
local government/ Grampanchayat/ NGOs. The 
Company shall give preference to the local area 
and areas around which the Company operates.

 Thrust areas:

 a) Education
   Promoting education, including special 

education and employment enhancing 
vocation skills especially among children, 
women, elderly and the differently abled and 
livelihood enhancement projects.

 b) Health
   Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, 

promoting health care including preventive 
health care and sanitation and making 
available safe drinking water.

 c) Environment
   Ensuring environmental sustainability, 

ecological balance, protection of flora 
and fauna, animal welfare, agro forestry, 
conservation of natural resources and 
maintaining quality of soil, air and water.

 d) Others
   Any other activities within the purview 

of schedule VII of the Act that the CSR 
Committee of the Company may define from 
time to time.

CSR activities of the Company are carried through:

• K C Mahindra Education Trust

• Collaboration with other Companies undertaking projects/programs in CSR activities.

• Contribution / donation made to such other Organizations/ Institutions as may be permitted under the 
applicable laws from time-to-time.

• Directly by the Company for fulfilling its responsibilities towards various stakeholders.

The Company has framed a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and  
the same is placed on the Company’s website and the web link for the same is  
https://www.mahindrainsurance.com/Social-Responsibility.aspx
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2) Composition of the CSR Committee 1.  Mr. Rajeev Dubey (Chairman)
2.  Mr. Ramesh Iyer (Non-Executive & Non-

Independent Director)
3.  Mr. V. Ravi (Non-Executive &  

Non-Independent Director)
4.  Ms. Anjali Raina (Independent Director)
5.  Dr. Jaideep Devare (Managing Director)

3)  Average Net Profit of the Company for last 3  
Financial Years

Rs.6,808.23 Lakhs

4)  Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of this amount as in  
item 3 above)

Rs.136.16 Lakhs

5)  Details of CSR spent for the Financial Year: 2016-17

 a) total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 136.75 Lakhs

 b) Amount unspent, if any; Nil

 c)  Manner in which the amount spent during the 
Financial Year is detailed below

The details in which the amount is spent is 
given in Schedule A below

6)  In case the Company has failed to spend the two per 
cent of the average net profit of the last three Financial 
Years or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the 
reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report

N.A.

7)  The CSR Committee of the Company confirms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy 
is in compliance with the CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.
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ANNEXURE II TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FORM NO. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2017

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
i) CIN U65990MH1987PLC042609
ii) Registration Date 18/02/1987
iii) Name of the Company Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited
iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public Limited Company by Shares
v) Address of the Registered office and contact details Mahindra Towers, 4th Floor, P. K. Kurne Chowk,  

Worli, Mumbai - 400018.
Tel: +91 22 66423800; Fax: +91 22 24915894;
E-mail: insurance.care@mahindra.com
Website: www.mahindrainsurance.com

vi) Whether listed company Yes / No No

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and 
Transfer Agent, if any

___

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-
Sl. 
No.

Name and Description of
main products / services

NIC Code of the
Product/ service

% to total turnover  
of the Company

1. Insurance Broking 67200 100%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sr. 
No

Name and
Address of
the Company

CIN/GLN Holding/
Subsidiary/
Associate

% of shares
Held

Applicable Section

1. Mahindra & 
Mahindra Limited

L65990MH1945PLC004558 Ultimate Holding 
Company

85.00%* Section 2(46)

2. Mahindra & 
Mahindra Financial 
Services Limited

L65921MH1991PLC059642 Holding Company 85.00% Section 2(46)

* There is no direct shareholding in the Company by Mahindra & Mahindra Limited, the Ultimate Holding Company. Shares 
are held through Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited, subsidiary of Mahindra & Mahindra Limited.

IV.  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY)
 i) Category-wise Share Holding
Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held  
at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares held  
at the end of the year

% 
Change
during 

the 
year

Demat Physical Total % of
Total

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of
Total

Shares
A. PROMOTERS
1. INDIAN
 a) Individual/HUF - - - - - - - - -
 b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
 c) State Govt (s) - - - - - - - - -
 d) Bodies Corporate 21,90,692 30 21,90,722 85.00 21,90,692 30 21,90,722 85.00 -
 e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
 f) Any Other - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) (1):- 21,90,692 30 21,90,722 85.00 21,90,692 30 21,90,722 85.00 -
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Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held  
at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares held  
at the end of the year

% 
Change
during 

the 
year

Demat Physical Total % of
Total

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of
Total

Shares

2. FOREIGN
 a) NRIs - - - - - - - - - -
   Individuals - - - - - - - - -
 b) Other – - - - - - - - - -
  Individuals - - - - - - - - -
 c) Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - - -
 d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
 e) Any Other - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) (2):- - - - - - - - - -
Total shareholding of 
Promoter (A) = (A)
(1)+(A)(2)

21,90,692 30 21,90,722 85.00 21,90,692 30 21,90,722 85.00 -

B.  PUBLIC 
SHAREHOLDING

- - - - - - - - -

1. INSTITUTIONS - - - - - - - - -
 a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -
 b) Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -
 c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
 d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -
 e)  Venture Capital 

Funds
- - - - - - - - -

 f)  Insurance 
Companies

- - - - - - - - -

 g) FIIs - - - - - - - - -
 h)  Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds
- - - - - - - - -

 i) Others (specify) 3,86,598 - 3,86,598 15.00 3,86,598 - 3,86,598 15.00 -
Sub-total (B)(1):- 3,86,598 - 3,86,598 15.00 3,86,598 - 3,86,598 15.00 -
2. NON-INSTITUTIONS - - - - - - - - -
 a) Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - - -
  i) Indian - - - - - - - - -
  ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -
 b) Individuals - - - - - - - - -
  i)  Individual 

shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital 
upto Rs. 1 lakh

  ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 
excess of Rs. 1 
lakh

- - - - - - - - -

 c) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (B)(2):- - - - - - - - - -
Total Public 
Shareholding  
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

3,86,598 - 3,86,598 15.00 3,86,598 - 3,86,598 15.00 -

C  SHARES HELD BY 
CUSTODIAN FOR 
GDRS & ADRS

- - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) 25,77,290 30 25,77,320 100.00 25,77,290 30 25,77,320 100.00 -
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl.
No.

Shareholder’s
Name

Shareholding  
at the beginning of the year

Shareholding  
at the end of the Year % change

in share 
holding 

during the 
year

No. of
shares

% of
total 

shares 
of the 

Company

% of shares
pledged /

encumbered
to total 
shares

No. of
shares

% of
total 

shares 
of the 

Company

% of shares
pledged /

encumbered
to total 
shares

1. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services Limited

21,90,692 85.00 Nil 21,90,692 85.00 Nil –

2. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services  
Limited Jointly with  
Mr. Ramesh Iyer

5 – Nil 5 – Nil –

3. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services  
Limited Jointly with  
Mr. Rajeev Dubey

5 – Nil 5 – Nil –

4. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services  
Limited Jointly with  
Dr. Jaideep Devare

5 – Nil 5 – Nil –

5. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services  
Limited Jointly with  
Mr. S. Durgashankar

5 – Nil 5 – Nil –

6. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services  
Limited Jointly with  
Mr. Venkatraman Ravi

5 – Nil 5 – Nil –

7. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services  
Limited Jointly with  
Mr. Rajesh Vasudevan

5 – Nil 5 – Nil –

Total 21,90,722 85.00 NIL 21,90,722 85.00 NIL -

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. 
No.

Particulars

Shareholding  
at the beginning of the year

Cumulative shareholding
during the year

No. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company

No. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company

1. Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited along with joint holders

At the beginning of the year (As at April 1, 2016) 21,90,722 85.00 21,90,722 85.00

Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase/decrease (eg. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (As at March 31, 2017) 21,90,722 85.00 21,90,722 85.00

(iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs 
and ADRs):

Sl. 
No.

For each of the Top 10 Shareholders

Shareholding  
at the beginning of the year

Cumulative shareholding  
during the year

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company
1. Inclusion Resources Private Limited

At the beginning of the year (As at April 1, 2016) 3,86,598 15.00 3,86,598 15.00
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Sl. 
No.

For each of the Top 10 Shareholders

Shareholding  
at the beginning of the year

Cumulative shareholding  
during the year

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company
Date wise increase/decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (As at March 31, 2017) 3,86,598 15.00 3,86,598 15.00

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. 
No.

For each of the directors and KMP

Shareholding  
at the beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company

No. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company

1. Mr. Ramesh Iyer (jointly with Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited)

At the beginning of the year (As at April 1, 2016) 5 – 5 –

Date wise increase/decrease in shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (As at March 31, 2017) 5 – 5 –
2. Mr. V. Ravi (jointly with Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited)

At the beginning of the year (As at April 1, 2016) 5 – 5 –
Date wise increase/decrease in shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (As at March 31, 2017) 5 – 5 –
3. Mr. Rajeev Dubey

At the beginning of the year (As at April 1, 2016) 5 – 5 –
Date wise increase/decrease in shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (As at March 31, 2017) 5 – 5 –
4. Dr. Jaideep Devare

At the beginning of the year (As at April 1, 2016) 5 – 5 –
Date wise increase/decrease in shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (As at March 31, 2017) 5 – 5 –
5. Mr. Hemant Sikka

At the beginning of the year (As at April 1, 2016) Nil – Nil –
Date wise increase/decrease in shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (As at March 31, 2017) Nil – Nil –
6. Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar

At the beginning of the year (As at April 1, 2016) Nil – Nil –
Date wise increase/decrease in shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (As at March 31, 2017) Nil – Nil –
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Sl. 
No.

For each of the directors and KMP

Shareholding  
at the beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company

No. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company

7. Ms. Anjali Raina

At the beginning of the year (As at April 1, 2016) Nil – Nil –
Date wise increase/decrease in shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (As at March 31, 2017) Nil – Nil –
8. Ms. Rupa Joshi - Company Secretary

At the beginning of the year (As at April 1, 2016) Nil – Nil –
Date wise increase/decrease in shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (As at March 31, 2017) Nil – Nil –

V. INDEBTEDNESS
  Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Rs. in Lakhs

Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured  
Loans

Deposits
Total 

Indebtedness
INDEBTEDNESS AT THE BEGINNING  
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
i) Principal Amount – – – –
ii) Interest due but not paid – – – –
iii) Interest accrued but not due – – – –
 Total (i+ii+iii) – – – –
CHANGE IN INDEBTEDNESS  
DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
• Addition – – – –
• Reduction – – – –
 Net Change – – – –
INDEBTEDNESS AT THE END OF  
THE FINANCIAL YEAR
i) Principal Amount – – – –
ii) Interest due but not paid – – – –
iii) Interest accrued but not due – – – –
Total (i+ii+iii) – – – –

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Sl. 
no.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount

Managing 
Director

Dr Jaideep 
Devare

Whole time 
Director

Manager

1. Gross salary –
a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 

17(1) of the Income-tax Act,1961
111.22 – – 111.22

b)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961@

30.75 – – 30.75

 c)  Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of  
the Income-tax Act, 1961

NA – – NA

2. Stock Option NA – – NA
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3. Sweat Equity NA – – NA
4. Commission

- as % of profit
- others

NA – – NA

5. Others NA – – NA
Total (A) 141.97 – – 141.97
Ceiling as per the Act 5% of the Net Profits equivalent to Rs. 410.61 lakhs with 

respect to the ceiling for the Company applicable for the 
Financial Year covered by this Report.

@ Includes Perquisite Value of Stock Options of Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited for 8,336 Equity Shares of  
Rs. 2 each exercised during the Financial Year 2016-17.

B. Remuneration to other directors:
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars of Remuneration Total Amount
1. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar Ms. Anjali Raina
  Fee for attending board/ 

committee meetings
3.10 3.70 6.80

 Commission 5.00 5.00 10.00
 Others – – –
 Total (1) 8.10 8.70 16.80
2. OTHER NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
  Fee for attending board/ 

committee meetings
– – –

 Commission – – –
 Others – – –
 Total (2) – – –
 Total (B)=(1+2) 8.10 8.70 16.80
 Total Managerial Remuneration 8.10 8.70 16.80
 Overall Ceiling as per the Act 1% of the Net profits equivalent to Rs. 82.12 Lakhs with respect to the 

ceiling for the Company applicable for the Financial Year covered by this 
Report.

C.  Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / Manager / WTD:
                 (Rs. in Lakhs)

Sl.
No.

Particulars of remuneration
Key Managerial Personnel

CEO
Company Secretary@

Ms. Rupa Joshi
CFO Total

1. Gross salary -- 3.52 -- 3.52
a)  Salary as per provisions 

contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act,1961

-- -- -- --

b)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
of the Income-tax Act, 1961

-- -- -- --

c)  Profits in lieu of salary under 
section 17(3) of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961

-- -- -- --

2. Stock Option -- -- -- --
3. Sweat Equity -- -- -- --
4. Commission

– as % of profit
– others

-- -- -- --

5. Others -- -- -- --
Total -- 3.52 -- 3.52

@ Secretarial function covered under cost sharing arrangement.
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section of the 

Companies Act
Brief

Description
Details of 
Penalty/

Punishment/ 
Compounding 
fees imposed

Authority
[RD/NCLT/ 

COURT]

Appeal made,
if any (give 

details)

A. COMPANY

None
 Penalty
 Punishment
 Compounding
B. DIRECTORS

None
 Penalty
 Punishment
 Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

None
 Penalty
 Punishment
 Compounding

For and on behalf of the Board

 Rajeev Dubey
 Chairman

Mumbai, April 17, 2017
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Prelude
Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited (“Company”) is a 
composite insurance broking company registered with 
the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority 
of India (‘IRDAI’), and is engaged in providing direct 
insurance broking for Corporate and Retail customers 
and offers a range of products for the Non-Life and 
Life segments. The company is also engaged in the 
business of reinsurance broking wherein it caters to 
insurance requirements of insurance companies.

This Policy shall be effective from the Financial Year 
2014 - 15.

Intent of the Policy
The intent of the Remuneration Policy of Directors 
of the Company is to focus on enhancing the value 
and to attract and retain quality individuals with 
requisite knowledge and excellence as Executive and 
Non-Executive Directors for achieving objectives of 
the Company and to place the Company in a leading 
position.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) 
of the Board shall, while formulating the policy ensure 
that —

a)  the level and composition of remuneration is 
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 
motivate Directors of the quality required to run 
the company successfully;

b)  relationship of remuneration to performance 
is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks; and

c)  remuneration to Directors, key managerial 
personnel and senior management involves a 
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting 
short and long-term performance objectives 
appropriate to the working of the company and 
its goals.

While deciding the policy on remuneration of Directors 
the Committee may consider amongst other things, 
the duties and responsibilities cast by the Companies 
Act, 2013, various Codes of Conduct, Articles of 
Association, restrictions on the remuneration to 
Directors as also the remuneration drawn by Directors 
of other companies in the industry, the valuable 
contributions and inputs from Directors based on their 

knowledge, experience and expertise in shaping the 
destiny of the Company etc. The Policy is guided by a 
reward framework and set of principles and objectives 
as more fully and particularly envisaged under Section 
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and principles 
pertaining to qualifications, positive attributes, integrity 
and independence of Directors, etc.

Directors
The Managing Director is an executive of the Company 
and draws remuneration from the Company. The 
Non-Executive Chairman and Independent Directors 
may receive sitting fees for attending the meeting 
of the Board and the Committees thereof, if fixed by 
the Board of Directors from time to time subject to 
statutory provisions. The Non-Executive Chairman 
and Independent Directors would be entitled to the 
remuneration under the Companies Act, 2013. A 
Non-Executive Chairman and Non-Executive Non-
Independent Directors who receive remuneration 
from the holding company or a Group Company will 
not be paid any sitting fees or any remuneration. In 
addition to the above, the Directors are entitled for 
reimbursement of expenses incurred in discharge of 
their duties. Payment of Remuneration to Nominee 
Directors shall be governed by the agreement with 
the Financial Institution/Bank appointing the Nominee 
Director and by the Articles of Association of the 
Company.

The Managing Director and other eligible Director(s) 
as per extant statutory provisions may be granted 
Employees Stock Options, Stock Appreciation Rights 
or any other Share based Employee benefits pursuant 
to any scheme that may be approved by the Board of 
Directors and shareholders of the Company subject to 
such other approvals as may be required.

Non-Executive Directors may be paid remuneration 
either by way of monthly payment or at a specified 
percentage of net profits of the Company or partly 
by one way and partly by another, subject to the 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

The NRC while determining the remuneration shall 
ensure that the level and composition of remuneration 
to be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 
motivate the person to ensure the quality required to 
run the Company successfully. While considering the 
remuneration, the NRC shall also ensure a balance 
between fixed and performance-linked variable pay 

ANNEXURE III-A TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
POLICY ON REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
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reflecting short and long term performance objectives 
appropriate to the working of the Company and its 
goals.

The NRC shall consider that a successful 
Remuneration Policy must ensure that some part 
of the remuneration is linked to the achievement of 
corporate performance targets.

Managing Director/Executive Directors
The term of office and remuneration of Managing 
Director/Executive Directors are subject to the 
approval of the Board of Directors, Shareholders, 
Central Government and other Statutory Authorities 
as may be required and the limits laid down under the 
Companies Act, 2013 from time to time.

If, in any Financial Year, the Company has no profits 
or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay, 
subject to the requisite approvals, remuneration to its 
Managing Director/Executive Directors in accordance 
with the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

If any Managing Director/Executive Director draws or 
receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration 
any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed 
under the Companies Act, 2013 or without the prior 
sanction of the Central Government, where required, 
he/she shall refund such sums to the Company and 
until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the 
Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of 
such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the 
Central Government.

Remuneration of the Managing Director/Executive 
Directors reflects the overall remuneration philosophy 
and guiding principle of the Company. While 
considering the appointment and remuneration of 
Managing Director/Executive Directors, the NRC 
shall consider the industry benchmarks, merit and 
seniority of the person and shall ensure that the 
remuneration proposed to be paid is commensurate 
with the remuneration packages paid to similar senior 
level counterpart(s) in other companies.

Remuneration for Managing Director/Executive 
Director is designed subject to the limits laid down 
under the Companies Act, 2013 to remunerate 
them fairly and responsibly. The remuneration to the 
Managing Director/Executive Director comprises of 
salary, perquisites and performance based incentive 
apart from retirement benefits like Provident Fund, 
Superannuation, Gratuity, Leave Encashment, etc., as 
per Rules of the Company. Salary is paid within the 
range approved by the Shareholders. Increments are 
effective annually, as recommended / approved by the 

NRC/ Board. In terms of the shareholders' approval, 
the Commission may be paid to Managing Director 
in any Financial Year at a rate not exceeding 1/4% 
(one fourth percent) per annum of the profits of the 
Company computed in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as may be 
recommended by NRC and approved by the Board.

The total remuneration will have a flexible component 
with a bouquet of allowances to enable the Managing 
Director/Executive Director to choose the allowances 
as well as the quantum based on laid down limits as 
per Company policy. The flexible component can be 
varied only once annually.

The actual pay-out of variable component of 
the remuneration will be a function of individual 
performance as well as business performance. 
Business performance is evaluated using a Balanced 
Score Card (BSC) while individual performance is 
evaluated on Key Result Areas (KRA). Both the BSC 
and KRAs are evaluated at the end of the fiscal to arrive 
at the BSC rating of the business and performance 
rating of the individual.

Remuneration also aims to motivate the Personnel to 
deliver Company's key business strategies, create a 
strong performance-oriented environment and reward 
achievement of meaningful targets over the short and 
long-term.

The Managing Director/Executive Directors are 
entitled to customary non-monetary benefits such 
as company cars, health care benefits, leave travel, 
communication facilities, etc., as per policies of the 
Company. The Managing Director and Executive 
Directors are entitled to grant of Stock Options as per 
the approved Stock Options Schemes of the Company 
from time to time.

Disclosures
Information on the total remuneration of members 
of the Company's Board of Directors, Managing 
Director/Executive Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel/Senior Management Personnel may be 
disclosed in the Board’s Report as per statutory 
requirements laid down in this regard.
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ANNEXURE III-B TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
REMUNERATION POLICY FOR KMP’S AND EMPLOYEES

This Policy shall be effective from the Financial Year 
2014-15.

OBJECTIVE
To establish guidelines for remunerating employees 
fairly and in keeping with statutes.

DEFINITION(S)
“Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) as defined in 
section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013 means:

(i)  the Chief Executive Officer or the Managing 
Director or Manager;

(ii)  the Company Secretary;

(iii)  the Whole-time Director;

(iv)  the Chief Financial Officer; and

(v)  such other officer as may be prescribed.

STANDARD
The broad structure of compensation payable to 
employees is as under:

• Fixed pay which has components like basic salary 
& other allowances / flexi pay as per the grade 
where the employees can chose allowances from 
bouquet of options.

• Variable pay (to certain grades) in the form of 
annual / half yearly performance pay based on 
Key Result Areas agreed – as applicable.

• Incentives either monthly or quarterly based on 
targets in the lower grades.

• Retirals such as Provident Fund, Gratuity & 
Superannuation (for certain grades).

• Benefits such as Employee Stock Option scheme, 
car scheme, medical & dental benefit, loans, 
insurance, telephone reimbursements, etc., as 
per grades.

INCREMENTS
Salary increase is given to eligible employees based on 
position, performance & market dynamics as decided 
from time to time.

For and on behalf of the Board

 Rajeev Dubey
 Chairman

Mumbai, April 17, 2017
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 ANNEXURE IV TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Information pursuant to section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rule 8 (3) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY-
 (i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;

   The operations of your Company are not energy intensive. However, adequate measures have been 
initiated to reduce energy consumption

 (ii) the steps taken by the company for utilising alternate sources of energy – Nil

 Iiii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipments – Not Applicable

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION-
 (i) the efforts made towards technology absorption – None.

 (ii)  the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution – Not applicable.

 (iii)  in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the 
beginning of the Financial Year)
a) the details of technology imported

b) the year of import;

c) whether the technology been fully absorbed;

d)  if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken 
place, and the reasons thereof;

: None

: Not applicable

: Not applicable

: Not applicable

 (iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development – Nil.

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
 The information on foreign exchange earnings and outgo is furnished in the Notes to the Accounts.

For and on behalf of the Board

 Rajeev Dubey
 Chairman

Mumbai, April 17, 2017
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ANNEXURE V TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and  
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length 
transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis- Nil

2. Details of Material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis:

Sr. 
No.

Name (s) of the 
related party

Nature of 
relationship

Nature of 
Contracts/
arrangements/
transaction

Salient terms of the 
contracts or arrangements 
or transaction including the 
value, if any

Amount Date of 
approval by 
the Board

1 Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services 
Limited (MMFSL)

Holding 
Company

Income-Handling 
charges

Handling charges towards 
insurance related services 
provided to MMFSL on 
the vehicles financed and 
hypothecated in favour of 
MMFSL

26,29,97,350 –
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited

REPORT ON THE STANDALONE IND AS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.  We have audited the accompanying standalone 

Ind AS financial statements of Mahindra 
Insurance Brokers Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise the balance sheet as at March 
31, 2017, and the statements of profit and loss 
(including other comprehensive income), the 
statement of cash flows and the statement of 
changes in equity for the year then ended, and 
a summary of the significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as “standalone Ind AS financial 
statements”)

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY 
FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
2.  The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 

for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect 
to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS 
financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance 
including other comprehensive income, cash 
flows and changes in equity of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014(as amended). 
This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud  
or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
3.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 

these standalone Ind AS financial statements 
based on our audit. 

4.  We have taken into account the provisions of the 
Act, the accounting and auditing standards and 
matters which are required to be included in the 
audit report under the provisions of the Act and 
the Rules made thereunder.

5.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the standalone Ind 
AS financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

6.  An audit involves performing procedures to 
obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
the disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal 
financial control relevant to the Company’s 
preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by the Company’s 
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements.

7.  We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone 
Ind AS financial statements.

OPINION
8.  In our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements 
give the information required by the Act in the 
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manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, 
of the financial position of the company as at 
March 31, 2017 and its financial performance 
including other comprehensive income, its cash 
flows and the changes in equity for the year then 
ended on that date.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND 
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
9.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 

Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 
143 of the Act (the “Order”), and on the basis 
of such checks of the books and records of the 
Company as we considered appropriate and 
according to the information and explanations 
given to us, we give in the Annexure I a statement 
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

10.  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we 
report that:

 a.  we have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

 b.  in our opinion proper books of account 
as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books;

 c.  the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss, statement of Cash Flow and the 
statement of changes in equity dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books 
of account;

 d.  In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone 
Ind AS financial statements comply with 
the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as 
amended);

 e.  On the basis of written representations 
received from the directors as on March 
31, 2017 taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2017, from 
being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act.

 f.  With respect to the adequacy of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate 
report in Annexure II.

 g.  With respect to the other matters to be 
included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014(as amended), in our 
opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given  
to us:

  i.  The Company does not have any 
pending litigations which would impact 
its financial position.

  ii.  The Company does not have any long-
term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there are any 
material foreseeable losses that need 
provision.

  iii.  During the year, there were no amounts 
which were required to be transferred 
by the Company to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund.

  iv.  The company has provided requisite 
disclosures in the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements as to holdings as 
well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes 
during the period from 8th November, 
2016 to 30th December, 2016. Based 
on audit procedures and relying on the 
management representation, we report 
that the disclosures are in accordance 
with books of account maintained by the 
company and as produced by to us by 
the Management (Refer note 31).

For B. K. Khare and Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration Number 105102W

H. P. Mahajani
Place : Mumbai Partner
Date : April 17, 2017 Membership No. 030168
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Annexure I to the Auditor’s Report
Referred to in paragraph 9 of our report of even date on the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements of Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited for the year ended March 31, 2017

1.  (i)  The Company has maintained proper 
records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed 
assets.

 (ii)  The fixed assets of the Company have been 
physically verified by the Management during 
the year. The discrepancies noticed on such 
verification were not material and have been 
properly dealt with in the books of account. 
In our opinion, the frequency of verification is 
reasonable.

 (iii)  According to the information and explanation 
given to us, no immovable property is held by 
the Company in its own name.

2.  The Company is in the business of providing 
insurance broking services and consequently, 
does not hold any inventory. Therefore, the 
provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said order are not 
applicable to the Company.

3.  The Company has not granted any loans, 
secured or unsecured to companies, firms or 
other parties covered in the register maintained 
under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause (iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c)of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

4.  The Company has not granted any loans or made 
any investments, or provided any guarantees or 
security to the parties covered under Section 
185. In our opinion, and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has complied with the provisions of 
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in 
respect of the loans and investments made, and 
guarantees and security provided by it.

5.  The Company has not accepted any deposits from 
the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 
74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed 
there under to the extent notified. Therefore the 
provisions of Clause 3(v) of the Order are not 
applicable to the company.

6.  The Central Government of India has not specified 
the maintenance of cost records under   sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of 
the products of the Company.

7.  (i)  According to the records of the Company and 
information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is generally regular in depositing 
with the appropriate authorities undisputed 
statutory dues including Provident Fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, 
Sales Tax, Excise Duty, Service Tax, Customs 
Duty, Value Added Tax, and other statutory 
dues applicable to it with the concerned 
authorities. 

 (ii)  According to the information and explanations 
given to us, there are no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of Provident 
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income 
Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Excise Duty, 
Service Tax, Customs Duty and Value Added 
Tax that were outstanding, at the year-end 
for a period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable. 

 (iii)  According to the information and 
explanations given to us and records of the 
Company examined by us, there are no dues 
of Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Excise 
Duty, Customs Duty and Value Added Tax 
and cess which have not been deposited on 
account of any dispute.

8.  Based on the records examined by us and 
according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not borrowed 
any money from financial institution or banks or 
debenture holders during the year under audit. 

9.  In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, during the year, 
no term loans were obtained by the Company. 
During the year, there were no moneys raised by 
way of initial public offer or further public offer.

10.  During the course of our examination of the 
books and records of the Company, carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted 
auditing practices in India, and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, except 
for an instance aggregating Rs. 5.03 lakhs which 
was subsequently recovered from the employee, 
on the company by its officers or employees, we 
have neither come across any instance of fraud 
by the Company or on the Company by its officers 
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or employees, noticed or reported during the 
year, nor have we been informed of such case by 
the Management.

11.  The Company has paid/ provided for managerial 
remuneration in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 
197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

12.  As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the 
Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the 
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

13.  The Company has entered into transactions with 
related parties in compliance with the provisions 
of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details 
of such related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements as required under Accounting 
Standard (AS) 18, Related Party Disclosures 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read 
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014.

14.  The Company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or 

fully or partly convertible debentures during the 
year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of 
Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company.

15.  The Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions 
of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company.

16.  The Company is not required to be registered 
under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of 
Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company.

For B. K. Khare and Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration Number 105102W

H. P. Mahajani
Place : Mumbai Partner
Date : April 17, 2017 Membership No. 030168

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Annexure II to the Independent Auditor’s Report 
of even date on the Financial Statements of Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of Mahindra Insurance Brokers 
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in 
conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Company’s management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that operate 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to the Company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that

(1)  pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company;

(2)  provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of 
the company; and

(3)  Provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.
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INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL 
FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING
Because of the inherent limitations of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

OPINION
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based 
on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

For B. K. Khare and Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration Number 105102W

H. P. Mahajani
Place : Mumbai Partner
Date : April 17, 2017 Membership No. 030168
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Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2017

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
As at March 31

Note No. 2017 2016 2015
I ASSETS
1) Non-current assets

a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1  403.14  479.02  217.33 
b) Other Intangible Assets 2  23.54  -    -   
c)  Intangible Assets Under Development  58.21  28.57  -   
d) Financial Assets
 (i)  Investments 3  3,625.00  9,015.00  9,640.00 
 (ii)  Loans 4  13.87  2,014.66  853.28 
 (iii)  Other Financial Assets 5  156.61  113.59  103.81 
e) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 6  113.75  76.50  52.32 
f) Other Non-current Assets 7  3.45  7.25  -   
SUB-TOTAL  4,397.57  11,734.59  10,866.74 

2) Current assets
a) Financial Assets
 (i)  Investments 3  8,315.00  4,375.00  125.00 
 (ii)  Trade Receivables 8  2,669.28  2,212.76  1,325.73 
 (iii)  Cash and Cash Equivalents 9  374.06  303.12  166.35 
 (iv)  Loans 4  10,870.52  3,388.68  5,408.43 
 (v)  Other Financial Assets 5  2,355.89  1,921.22  872.48 
b) Other Current Assets 7  26.52  3.48  2.89 
SUB-TOTAL  24,611.27  12,204.26  7,900.88 
TOTAL ASSETS  29,008.84  23,938.85  18,767.62 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
a) Equity Share Capital 10  257.73  257.73  257.73 
b) Other Equity 11  26,619.58  21,780.06  17,319.23 
SUB-TOTAL  26,877.31  22,037.79  17,576.96 
LIABILITIES

1 Non-current liabilities
a) Provisions 12  184.77  133.81  104.96 
SUB-TOTAL  184.77  133.81  104.96 

2 Current liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
 (i) Trade Payables  -   -   -  
  a) Micro and small enterprises 13  -    -    -   
  b) Others 13  660.79  562.79  240.01 
 (ii) Other Financial Liabilities 14  34.36  22.37  -   
b) Provisions 12  1,085.38  1,068.80  761.58 
c) Other Current Liabilities 15  166.23  113.29  84.11 
SUB-TOTAL  1,946.76  1,767.25  1,085.70 
TOTAL  29,008.84  23,938.85  18,767.62 

The accompanying statement of accounting policies and notes 1 to 31 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
In terms of our report attached.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For B. K. Khare and Co. Rajeev Dubey Ramesh Iyer V Ravi Hemant Sikka
Chartered Accountants
FRN :105102W

Chairman Director Director Director

H.P. Mahajani Nityanath Ghanekar Anjali Raina Dr Jaideep Devare Rupa Joshi
Partner Director Director Managing Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 30168

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 17, 2017
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Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2017

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Note No.
Year ended March 31

2017 2016
Continuining Operations
I Revenue from operations 16  15,363.24  13,136.08 
II Other Income 17  2,060.23  1,783.71 
III Total Revenue (I+II)  17,423.47  14,919.79 
IV Expenses:

a) Employee benefit expense 18  6,262.09  5,007.71 
b) Depreciation and amortisation expense 1, 2  189.82  134.05 
c) Other expenses 19  2,735.74  2,312.14 
Total Expenses [(a)+(b)+(c)]  9,187.65  7,453.90 

V Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-IV)  8,235.82  7,465.89 
VI Exceptional Items  -    -   
VII Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI)  8,235.82  7,465.89 
VIII Tax Expense

1) Current tax 6  2,905.00  2,696.00 
2) Deferred tax 6  (15.36)  (43.04)
Total tax expense [(1)+(2)]  2,889.64  2,652.96 

IX Profit/(loss) after tax from continuing operations  
(VII-VIII)

 5,346.18  4,812.93 

X Discontinued Operations
1) Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations  -   -  
2) Tax Expense of discontinued operations  -   -  
Profit/(loss) after tax from discontinued operations  
[(1)+(2)]

 -    -   

XI Profit/(loss) for the period (IX-X]  5,346.18  4,812.93 
XII Other comprehensive income  (41.36)  35.66 

A (i) Items that will not be recycled to profit or loss
  a) Changes in revaluation surplus  -   -  
  a)  Remeasurements of the defined benefit  

liabilities/(asset) 
 (63.25)  54.53 

B (i)  Income tax on items that may be reclassified to 
profit or loss

 21.89  (18.87)

XIII Total comprehensive income for the period (XI+XII)  5,304.82  4,848.59 
XIV Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation):

1) Basic 20  205.83  188.13 
2) Diluted 20  205.83  188.13 

XV Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operation):
1) Basic 20
2) Diluted 20

XVI Earnings per equity share (for continuing and 
discontinued operations):
1) Basic 20  205.83  188.13 
2) Diluted 20  205.83  188.13 

The accompanying statement of accounting policies and notes 1 to 31 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
In terms of our report attached.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For B. K. Khare and Co. Rajeev Dubey Ramesh Iyer V Ravi Hemant Sikka
Chartered Accountants
FRN :105102W

Chairman Director Director Director

H.P. Mahajani Nityanath Ghanekar Anjali Raina Dr Jaideep Devare Rupa Joshi
Partner Director Director Managing Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 30168

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 17, 2017
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Cash Flow Statement
 for the year ended March 31, 2017

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Note No.
Year ended March 31

2017 2016
A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax for the year PL  8,235.82  7,465.89 
Adjustments for:
Investment income recognised in profit or loss  (2,060.23)  (1,783.71)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 19  4.23  2.63 
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables 8  4.57  18.39 
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets 1 & 2  189.82  134.05 

 6,374.21  5,837.25 
Movements in working capital:
Increase in trade and other receivables  (461.09)  (905.42)
(Increase)/decrease in other assets  (168.75)  (4.72)
Decrease in trade and other payables  109.99  345.15 
Increase/(decrease) in provisions  255.92  234.50 
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities  52.94  29.18 

 (210.99)  (301.31)
Cash generated from operations  6,163.22  5,535.94 
Income taxes paid  (3,106.19)  (2,594.43)
Net cash generated by operating activities  3,057.03  2,941.51 

B CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 5  1,625.56  734.97 
Amounts advanced to related parties  (5,425.00)  (3,625.00)
Repayments by related parties  1,450.00  900.00 
Payments for property, plant and equipment  (166.09)  (399.18)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1  13.83  0.80 
Payments for intangible assets  (19.09)  (28.57)
Net cash (used in)/generated by investing activities  (2,520.79)  (2,416.98)

C CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid to owners of the Company  (465.30)  (387.76)
Net cash used in financing activities  (465.30)  (387.76)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  70.94  136.77 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  303.12  166.35 
Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash  
held in foreign currencies

– –

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  374.06  303.12 

In terms of our report attached.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For B. K. Khare and Co. Rajeev Dubey Ramesh Iyer V Ravi Hemant Sikka
Chartered Accountants
FRN :105102W

Chairman Director Director Director

H.P. Mahajani Nityanath Ghanekar Anjali Raina Dr Jaideep Devare Rupa Joshi
Partner Director Director Managing Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 30168

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 17, 2017
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Cash Flow Statement & Notes

1. COMPANY OVERVIEW
  Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited is a Public 

Limited Company incorporated and domiciled 
in India. The Company’s registered office is at 
Mumbai, Maharashtra, India. These financial 
statements correspond to the stand alone 
financial statements of the Company. The 
Company is primarily involved in the business of 
rendering insurance broking services.

  The immediate parent Company is Mahindra & 
Mahindra Financial Services Limited and ultimate 
parent Company is Mahindra & Mahindra Limited, 
a company incorporated in Mumbai, India.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
a.  Statement of compliance and basis of 

preparation
  These financial statements have been prepared 

in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and 
other relevant provisions of the Act.

  The Company’s financial statements upto and for 
the year ended 31 March 2016 were prepared 
in accordance with the Standards notified under 
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2006, notified under Section 133 of the Act and 
other relevant provisions of the Act.

  These are the Company’s first financial statements 
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS). The Company has applied Ind 
AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting 
Standards. An explanation of how transition to Ind 
AS has affected the previously reported financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows of 
the Company is provided in Note 29.

  The financial statements were authorised for 
issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 
April 17, 2017 .

b. Functional and presentation currency
  These financial statements are presented in 

Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Company’s 
functional currency. All amounts are rounded-off 
to the nearest Lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

c. Basis of measurement
  The financial statements have been prepared on 

the historical cost basis except for the following 
items:

Items Measurement basis
–  Certain financial 

assets and 
liabilities which are 
generally derivative 
instruments

Fair value

–  Net defined benefit 
(asset) / liability

Fair value of plan assets 
less present value of defined 
benefit obligations

d. Use of judgements and estimates
  In preparing these financial statements, 

management has made judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the  application of the 
Company’s accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
estimates are recognised prospectively.

 Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
  Following are areas that involved a higher degree 

of judgement or complexity in determining the 
carrying amount of some assets and liabilities. 
Detailed information about  each of these estimates 
and judgements that have a significant risk of 
resulting in material adjustment in the year ending 
March 31, 2017 is included in relevant notes.

 –  Estimation of current tax expense and payable

 –  Estimated useful life of property, plant and 
equipments

 – Estimated useful life of intangible assets

 – Estimation of define benefit obligation

 – Impairment of trade receivables

 –  Recognition of revenue under perecentage 
completion method

  Estimates and judgements are continually 
evaluated. They are based on historical experience 
and other factors, including expectations of future 
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events  that  may have a financial impact on the 
Company and that  are believed  to be reasonable 
under the circumstances.

 Judgements
  In following areas judgements are made in applying 

accounting policies that have the most significant 
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial 
statements. Detailed information about each of 
these areas is included in relevant notes.

e. Measurement of fair values
  A number of the Company’s accounting policies 

and disclosures require the measurement of fair 
values, for both financial and non-financial assets 
and liabilities.

  The Company’s has established policies and 
procedures with respect to the measurement of 
fair values. The Financial Controller and person 
entrusted has overall responsibility for overseeing 
all significant fair value measurements, including 
Level 3 fair values, including assessments that 
these valuations meet the requirements of Ind 
AS. Significant valuation issues are reported to 
audit committee.

  Fair values are categorised into different levels in 
a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in 
the valuation techniques as follows:

 –  Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active 
markets for identical assets and liabilities.

 –  Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices 
included in Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

 –  Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that 
are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs).

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a. Business combination :
  Business combinations that occurred prior to 

1 April 2015
  In respect of such business combinations, 

goodwill represents the amount recognised under 
Company’s previous accounting framework under 
Indian GAAP and is adjusted for reclassification of 
certain intangibles. All Indian GAAP balances are 
carried forward with minimal adjustments.

  Business combinations that occurred on or 
after 1 April 2015

  The Company accounts for all business 
combinations (other than common control 
business combinations) using the acquisition 
method when control is transferred to the 
Company. The consideration transferred for the 
business combination is generally measured at 
fair value as at the date the control is acquired 
(acquisition date), as are the net identifiable 
assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested 
annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain 
purchase is recognised in OCI and accumulated 
in equity as a capital reserve if there exists clear 
evidence of underlying reasons for classifying 
the business combination as resulting in bargain 
purchase; otherwise the gain is recognised directly 
in equity as capital reserve. Transaction costs are 
expensed as incurred, except to the extent related 
to the issue of debt and equity securities.

  Any contingent consideration is measured at fair 
value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation 
to pay contingent consideration that Contingent 
meets the definition of a financial instrument is 
classified as equity, then it is not remeasured 
subsequently and settlement is accounted 
within equity. Other contingent consideration is 
subsequently remeasured at fair value at each 
reporting date and changes in fair value of the 
contingent consideration are recognised in profit 
or loss.

 Common control business combinations
  Business combinations arising from transfers 

of interest in entities that are under control of 
the shareholder that controls the Company are 
accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred 
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period 
presented or, if later, at the date that common 
control was established. The comparative 
financial statements are restated. The assets 
and liabilities acquired are recognised at their 
carrying amounts. The identity of the reserves 
is preserved and they appear in Company’s 
financial statements in the same form in which 
they appeared in the financial statements of the 
acquired entity. The difference, if any, between 
the consideration and the amount of share 
capital of the acquired entity is transferred to 
capital reserve and is presented separately from 
other capital reserves.
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b. Foreign currency :
  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated 

into the functional currency using the exchange 
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses resulting from the 
settlement of such transactions and from the 
translation of monetary assets  and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies at year end 
exchange rates  are generally recognised in profit  
or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate 
to qualifying cash flow hedges.

  Foreign exchange differences regarded as an 
adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in 
the statement of profit and loss, within finance 
costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses 
are presented in the statement of profit and loss 
on a net basis within  other gains/(losses).

  Non-monetary items  that  are measured at fair 
value in a foreign currency are translated using 
the exchange rates  at the date when the fair 
value was determined. Translation differences 
on assets  and liabilities carried at fair value are 
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. 
For example, translation differences on non- 
monetary assets  and liabilities such as equity 
instruments held at fair value through profit  or 
loss are recognised in profit  or loss as part  
of the fair value gain or loss and translation 
differences on non-monetary assets  such 
as equity investments classified  as FVOCI are 
recognised in other comprehensive income.

c. Revenue Recognition :
  Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 

consideration received or receivable. Amount 
disclosed as revenue are exclusive of service tax 
and net of revenue on policy cancellations and 
endorsements.

 Rendering of services
  Brokerage Income, Handling Charges & Broker 

Retainer Fees is accounted for net of service 
tax amount on rendition of services. Brokerage 
income is recognised on receiving details of 
the policy issued by the insurance company 
or receipt of brokerage whichever is earlier.  
The Company recognises revenue from 
rendering of services in proportion to the stage 
of completion of the transaction at the reporting 

date. The stage of completion is assessed based 
on surveys of work performed.

 Dividend and interest income
  Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only 

when the right to receive payment is established, 
it is probable that the economic benefits 
associated with the dividend will flow to the 
Company, and the amount of the dividend can be 
measured reliably.

  Interest income is recognised when it is probable 
that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the amount of income can be measured 
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time 
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding 
and at the effective interest rate applicable, 
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts through the expected life of 
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying 
amount on initial recognition.

  Interest income is recognised using effective 
interest method when it is probable that the 
economic benefits associated with the interest 
will flow to the Company, and the amount of the 
interest can be measured reliably. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated 
future cash receipts through the expected life of 
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount 
of a financial asset.  When  calculating the 
effective interest rate, the Company estimates 
the expected cash flows by considering all the 
contractual terms of the financial instrument but 
does not consider the expected credit losses.

d. Government grants:
  Grants from the government are recognised 

at their fair value where there is a reasonable 
assurance that the grant will be received and the 
Company will comply with all attached conditions. 
The benefit of a government loan at a below-market 
rate of interest is treated as a government grant, 
measured as the difference between proceeds 
received and the fair value of the loan based on 
prevailing market interest rates.

  Government grants relating to income are 
deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over 
the period necessary to match them with the 
costs that they are intended to compensate and 
presented within other income.
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  Government grants relating to purchase of 
assets are included in non-current liabilities as 
deferred income and are credited to profit or loss 
on a straight-line basis over the expected useful 
lives of the related assets and presented within 
other income.

e. Employee benefits:
 Short-term employee benefits
  Short-term employee benefits are expensed 

as the related service is provided. A liability is 
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if 
the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation to pay this amount as a result of 
past service provided by the employee and the 
obligation can be estimated reliably.

 Post-employment obligations
  The Company operates the following post-

employment schemes:

 –  defined benefit plans  such as gratuity, 
pension, and

 –  defined contribution plans such as provident 
fund.

 Gratuity and pension obligations
  The liability or asset recognised in the balance 

sheet in respect of defined benefit pension and 
gratuity plans is the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting 
period less the fair value of plan assets. The 
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by 
actuary using the projected unit credit  method. 
The present value of the defined benefit obligation 
is determined by discounting the estimated future 
cash outflows  by reference to market yields at 
the end of the reporting period on government 
bonds that  have terms approximating to the 
terms of the related obligation.

  The net interest cost is calculated by applying the 
discount rate to the net balance of the defined 
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. 
This cost is included in employee benefit expense 
in the statement of profit and loss.

  Remeasurement gains and losses arising from 
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in the period in 
which they occur, directly  in other comprehensive 

income. They are included in retained earnings in 
the statement of changes in equity and in the 
balance sheet.

 Defined contribution plans
  Obligations for contributions to defined contribution 

plans are expensed as the related service is 
provided. Prepaid contributions are recognised as 
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a 
reduction in future payments is available.

 Other long-term employee benefits
  The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-

term employee benefits is the amount of future 
benefit that employees have earned in return for 
their service in the current and prior periods. 
That benefit is discounted to determine its 
present value. Remeasurements are recognised 
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

 Share-based payment arrangements
  Share-based compensation benefits are provided 

to employees via the Company’s Employee Option 
Plan and share-appreciation rights.

f. Borrowing Costs:
  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the 

acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of 
those assets, until such time as the assets are 
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

  Interest income earned on the temporary 
investment of specific borrowings pending their 
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from 
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

  All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit 
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

g. Leasing :
  Leases are classified as finance leases whenever 

the terms of the lease transfer substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. 
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

  Certain arrangements conveys a right to use 
an asset in return for a payment or series of 
payments. At inception of the arrangement, 
the Company determines whether such an 
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arrangement is or contains a lease. A specific 
asset is the subject of a lease if fulfillment of the 
arrangement is dependent on the use of that 
specified asset. An arrangement conveys the 
right to use the asset if the arrangement conveys 
to the Company the right to control the use of the 
underlying asset.

  At inception or upon reassessment of the 
arrangement, the Company separates payments 
and other consideration required by such an 
arrangement into those for the lease and those 
for other elements on the basis of their relative 
fair values. The lease component is accounted 
as per Company’s accounting policy on leasing 
transactions. If the Company concludes for a 
finance lease that it is impracticable to separate 
the payments reliably, an asset and a liability are 
recognised at an amount equal to the fair value of 
the underlying asset. Subsequently the liability is 
reduced as payments are made and an imputed 
finance charge on the liability is recognised using 
the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. If the 
Company concludes for an operating lease that 
it is impracticable to separate the payments and 
other consideration into those for the lease and 
those for other elements, all payments under the 
arrangement are treated as lease payments.

 The Company as lessor
  Amounts due from lessees under finance leases 

are recognised as receivables at the amount 
of the Company’s net investment in the leases. 
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting 
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic 
rate of return on the Company’s net investment 
outstanding in respect of the leases.

  Rental income from operating leases is 
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term 
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred 
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease 
are added to the carrying amount of the leased 
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term.

 The Company as lessor
  Assets held under finance leases are initially 

recognised as assets of the Company at their 
fair value at the inception of the lease or, if 

lower, at the present value of the minimum 
lease payments. The corresponding liability to 
the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a 
finance lease obligation.

  Lease payments are apportioned between 
finance expenses and reduction of the lease 
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of 
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
Finance expenses are recognised immediately in 
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable 
to qualifying assets, in which case they are 
capitalised in accordance with the Company’s 
general policy on borrowing costs. Contingent 
rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods 
in which they are incurred.

  Operating lease payments are recognised as an 
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term, except where another systematic basis 
is more representative of the time pattern in 
which economic benefits from the leased asset 
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under 
operating leases are recognised as an expense in 
the period in which they are incurred.

h. Taxation :
  Income tax expense comprises current tax and 

deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss 
except to the extent that it relates to a business 
combination or to an item recognised directly in 
equity or in other comprehensive income.

 Current tax
  Current tax comprises expected tax payable on 

the taxable income or loss for the year and any 
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in 
respect of previous years. The Company’s current 
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of 
the reporting period.

  Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are 
offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to 
set off the recognised amounts and it is entended 
to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net 
basis or simultaneously.

 Deferred tax
  Deferred tax is recognised on temporary 

differences between the carrying amounts of 
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assets and liabilities in the financial statements 
and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax 
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 
generally recognised for all deductible temporary 
differences to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profits will be available against which 
those deductible temporary differences can be 
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are not recognised if the temporary difference 
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a 
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a 
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit 
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred 
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary 
difference arises from the initial recognition of 
goodwill.

  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is 
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to 
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

  Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured 
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period in which the liability is settled or the asset 
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the end of the reporting period.

  The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and 
assets reflects the tax consequences that would 
follow from the manner in which the Company 
expects, at the end of the reporting period, 
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its 
assets and liabilities.

 Current and deferred tax for the year
  Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit 

or loss, except when they relate to items that 
are recognised in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity, in which case, the current 
and deferred tax are also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity 
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax 
arises from the initial accounting for a business 
combination, the tax effect is included in the 
accounting for the business combination.

i. Property, plant and equipment:
 Recognition and measurement
  All the items classified under property, plant and 

equipment are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any accumulated impairment 
losses, except for freehold land which are stated 
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 

  Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment 
comprises its purchase price, including import 
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after 
deducting trade discounts and rebates, any 
directly attributable cost of bringing the item to 
its working condition for its intended use and 
estimated cost of dismantling and removing the 
items and restoring the site on which it is located.

  The cost of self-constructed item of property, 
plant and equipment comprises the cost of 
materials and direct labour, any other costs 
directly attributable to bringing the assets to 
a working condition for their intended use, the 
costs of dismantling and removing the items and 
restoring the site on which they are located and 
capitalised borrowing costs.

  When significant parts of an item of property, 
plant and equipment have different useful lives, 
they are depreciated for as separate items (major 
components) of property, plant and equipment.

  Gains and losses on disposal of an item of 
property, plant and equipment are determined by 
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the 
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment 
and are recognised net within other expenses in 
profit or loss.

 Subsequent costs
  The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, 

plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying 
amount of the item if it is probable that the 
future economic benefits embodied within the 
part will flow to the Company, and its cost can 
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the 
replaced part is derecognised.

 Depreciation
  Depreciation is calculated on cost of items 

of property, plant and equipment less their 
estimated residual values over their estimated 
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useful lives using straight-line method and is 
generally recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss. Leased assets are depreciated over the 
shorter of the lease term and their useful lives 
unless it is reasonably certain that the Company 
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease 
term. Freehold land is not depreciated.

  The estimated useful lives of items of property, 
plant and equipment for the current and 
comparative periods are as follows:

Class of asset
Year ended 31 March

2017 2016
Plant and equipment 
(including Computers)

2-25 years 2-25 years

Office equipments 2-10 years 2-10 years
Furniture and fixtures 2-10 years 2-10 years
Vehicles 2-10 years 2-10 years

  Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual 
values are reviewed at each Financial Year-
end and adjusted if appropriate. The effect of 
change in estimate of useful life is accounted on 
prospective basis

j. Investment Property
 Recognition and measurement
  Investment property is property held either to 

earn rental income or for capital appreciation or 
for both. Upon initial recognition, an investment 
property is measured at cost. Subsequent 
to initial recognition, investment property is 
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

 Subsequent costs
  The cost of replacing a part of an item of 

investment property is recognised in the carrying 
amount of the item if it is probable that the 
future economic benefits embodied within the 
part will flow to the Company, and its cost can 
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the 
replaced part is derecognised.

 Depreciation
  Investment properties are depreciated using 

the straight-line method over their  estimated 
useful lives. Investment properties generally have 
a useful life of 25-40  years. Depreciation is 
calculated on cost of investment property less 
its estimated residual values over their its useful 

lives using straight-line method and is generally 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

  The estimated useful lives of Investment Property 
for the current and comparative periods are as 
follows:

Class of asset
Year ended 31 March

2017 2016
Buildings 15-50 15-50

  Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual 
values are reviewed at each Financial Year-
end and adjusted if appropriate. The effect of 
change in estimate of useful life is accounted on 
prospective basis.

k. Intangible Assets :
 Goodwill
  Goodwill arising on business combination is 

initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, 
goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated 
impairment losses.

  In respect business combinations that occurred 
prior to 1 April 2015, goodwill represents the 
amount recognised under Company’s previous 
accounting framework under Indian GAAP and is 
adjusted for reclassification of certain intangibles.

 Intangible assets acquired separately
  Intangible assets acquired separately are initially 

measured at cost. Such intangible assets with 
finite useful lives are subsequently measured 
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation 
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their 
estimated useful lives. 

  Internally-generated intangible assets - 
research and development

  Expenditure on research activities is recognised 
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

  Development expenditure is capitalised as part 
of the cost of the resulting intangible asset only 
if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the 
product or process is technically and commercially 
feasible, future economic benefits are probable, 
and the Company intends to and has sufficient 
resources to complete development and to use or 
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sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognised in profit 
or loss as incurred. The expenditure capitalised 
includes the cost of materials, direct labour, 
overhead costs that are directly attributable to 
preparing the asset for its intended use, and 
capitalised borrowing costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, the asset is measured at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated 
impairment losses, on the same basis as 
intangible assets with finite useful lives that are 
acquired separately.

  Intangible assets acquired in a business 
combination

  Intangible assets acquired on or after April 1, 
2015 in a business combination and recognised 
separately from goodwill are initially recognised 
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is 
regarded as their cost).

  Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible 
assets acquired in a business combination are 
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and any accumulated impairment losses, on the 
same basis as intangible assets with finite useful 
lives that are acquired separately.

 Subsequent costs
  Subsequent expenditure is recognised in the 

carrying amount of the intangible asset only 
when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates 
and its cost can be measured reliably. All other 
expenditure, including expenditure on internally 
generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in 
profit or loss as incurred.

 Amortisation
  Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful 

lives is calculated on cost of intangible assets 
less their estimated residual values over their 
estimated useful lives using straight-line method 
and is generally recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss.

  The estimated useful lives for the current and 
comparative periods are as follows:

Class of asset
Year ended 31 March

2017 2016
Computer software 1-3 years 1-3 years

  Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual 
values are reviewed at each Financial Year-
end and adjusted if appropriate. The effect of 
change in estimate of useful life is accounted on 
prospective basis.

 Derecognition of intangible assets
  An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, 

or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses 
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, 
measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of 
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when 
the asset is derecognised.

l.  Impairment of assets other than financial 
assets :

  Impairment of tangible and intangible assets 
other than goodwill

  The Company reviews the carrying amounts of its 
tangible and intangible assets at the end of each 
reporting period, to determine whether there is 
any indication that those assets have impaired. 
If any such indication exists, the recoverable 
amount of the asset is estimated in order to 
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if 
any). Where it is not possible to estimate the 
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the 
Company estimates the recoverable amount 
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset 
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent 
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate 
assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated 
to the smallest group of cash-generating units 
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation 
basis can be identified.

  Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and 
intangible assets not yet available for use are 
tested for impairment at least annually, and 
whenever there is an indication that the asset 
may be impaired.

  Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value 
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the 
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risks specific to the asset for which the estimates 
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

  If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its 
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the 
asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to 
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

  When an impairment loss subsequently 
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset 
(or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the 
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but 
so that the increased carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating 
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment 
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

 Impairment of goodwill
  For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill 

is allocated to each of the Company’s cash-
generating units (or groups of cash-generating 
units) that is expected to benefit from the 
synergies of the business combination.

  A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has 
been allocated is tested for impairment annually, 
or more frequently when there is an indication 
that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable 
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its 
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated 
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets 
of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount 
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for 
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. 
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not 
reversed in subsequent periods.

  On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, 
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in 
the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

m. Provisions :
  Provisions are recognised when the Company 

has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the 
Company will be required to settle the obligation, 

and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation.

  The amount recognised as a provision is the 
best estimate of the consideration required to 
settle the present obligation at the end of the 
reporting period, taking into account the risks 
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 
Provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate 
that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is 
recognised as finance cost.

  When some or all of the economic benefits 
required to settle a provision are expected to 
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is 
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received and the amount 
of the receivable can be measured reliably.

n. Financial instruments :
 Recognition and initial measurement
  Financial assets and financial liabilities are 

recognised when the Company becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

  Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially 
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities 
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities 
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to 
or deducted from the fair value of the financial 
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, 
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets 
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

 Classification and subsequent measurement
 Financial assets
  On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified 

as measured at.

 – Amortised cost;

 – FVOCI - debt investment;

 – FVOCI - equity investment;

 – FVTPL
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  Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent 
to their initial recognition, except if and in the 
period the Company changes its business model 
for managing financial assets.

  A financial asset is measured at amortised cost 
if it meets both of the following conditions and is 
not designated as at FVTPL:

 –  the financial asset is held within a business 
model whose objective is to hold financial 
assets in order to collect contractual cash 
flows; and

 –  the contractual terms of the financial asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest 
on the principal amount outstanding.

  A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it 
meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL:

 –  the financial asset is held within a business 
model whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
financial assets; and

 –  the contractual terms of the financial asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest 
on the principal amount outstanding.

  On initial recognition of an equity investment 
that is not held for trading, the Company 
may irrevocable elect to present subsequent 
changes in the investment’s fair value in other 
comprehensive income (designated as FVOCI 
- equity investment). This election is made on 
investment-by-investment basis.

  All financial asset not classified as measured 
at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above 
are measured at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVTPL). This includes all derivative financial 
assets. On initial recognition, the Company 
may irrevocably designate a financial asset 
that otherwise meets the requirements to be 
measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as 
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly 
reduces accounting mismatch that would 
otherwise arise.

  Financial assets: Subsequent measurement 
and gains and losses

  Financial assets at amortised cost are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using effective interest method. The amortised 
cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest 
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and 
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any 
gain and loss derecognition is recognised in profit 
or loss.

  Debt investment at FVOCI are are subsequently 
measured at fair value. Interest income under 
effective interest method, foreign exchange gains 
and losses and impairment are recognised in 
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are 
recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and 
losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to 
profit or loss.

  Equity investment at FVOCI are are subsequently 
measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised 
as income in profit or loss unless the dividend 
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost 
of the investment. Other net gains and losses 
are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to 
profit or loss.

  Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently 
measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, 
including any interest or dividend income, are 
recognised in profit or loss.

 Financial liabilities
  Financial liabilities are classified as measured at 

amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is 
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-
trading or it is a derivative or it is designated as 
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at 
FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains 
and losses, including any interest expense, are 
recognised in profit or loss. The dividends on 
mandatorily redeemable preference shares are 
recognised in profit or loss as interest expense. 
Other financial liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. Interest expense and foreign 
exchange gains and losses are recognised in 
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition 
is also recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes

  Refer policy on hedge accounting for financial 
liabilities designated as hedging instruments.

 Derecognition
 Financial assets
  The Company derecognises a financial asset 

when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the 
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a 
transaction in which substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset 
are transferred or in which the Company neither 
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of ownership and does not retain 
control of the financial asset.

  If the Company enters into transactions whereby 
it transfers assets recognised on its balance 
sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, 
the transferred assets are not derecognised.

 Financial liabilities
  The Company derecognises a financial liability 

when its contractual obligations are discharged 
or cancelled, or expire.

  The Company also derecognises a financial 
liability when its terms are modified and the cash 
flows under the modified terms are substantially 
different. In this case, a new financial liability 
based on the modified terms is recognised at 
fair value. The difference between the carrying 
amount of the financial liability extinguished and 
the new financial liability with modified terms is 
recognised in profit or loss.

 Offsetting
  Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset 

and the net amount presented in the balance 
sheet when, and only when, the Company 
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off 
the amounts and it intends either to settle them 
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously.

  Derivative financial instruments and hedge 
accounting

  The Company holds derivative financial 
instruments to hedge its foreign currency 
and interest rate risk exposures. Derivatives 

embedded in non-derivative host contracts that 
are not financial assets within the scope of Ind 
AS 109 are treated as separate derivatives when 
their risks and characteristics are not closely 
related to those of the host contracts and the 
host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

  Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are 
measured at fair value, and changes therein are 
generally recognised in profit or loss.

  The Company designates certain derivatives 
as hedging instruments to hedge the variability 
in cash flows associated with highly probable 
forecast transactions arising from changes in 
foreign exchange rates and interest rates.

  At inception of designated hedging relationships, 
the Company documents the risk management 
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. 
The Company also documents the economic 
relationship between the hedged item and the 
hedging instrument, including whether the 
changes in cash flows of the hedged item and 
hedging instrument are expected to offset each 
other.

 Cash flow hedges
  The effective portion of changes in the fair value 

of derivatives that are designated and qualify 
as cash flow hedges is recognised in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated under 
the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. The 
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss. and is 
included in the ‘Other expenses’ line item.

  Amounts previously recognised in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity 
relating to (effective portion as described above) 
are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods 
when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

  However, when the hedged forecast transaction 
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset 
or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses 
previously recognised in other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in equity are removed 
from equity and included in the initial measurement 
of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-
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financial liability. This transfer does not affect 
other comprehensive income. Furthermore, if 
the Company expects that some or all of the loss 
accumulated in other comprehensive income will 
not be recovered in the future, that amount is 
immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

  The Company discontinues hedge accounting only 
when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof) 
ceases to meet the qualifying criteria. This 
includes instances when the hedging instrument 
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. The 
discontinuation is accounted for prospectively. Any 
gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in equity at that time 
remains in equity and is recognised when the 
forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in 
profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is 
no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss 
accumulated in equity is recognised immediately 
in profit or loss.

o.  Impairment of financial instruments 
  The Company recognises a loss allowance for 

expected credit losses (ECL) on:

 –  Financial assets measured at amortised 
cost;

 –  Financial assets measured at FVOCI - debt 
investments;

  The Company always recognises lifetime ECL for 
trade receivables. The expected credit losses 
on these financial assets are estimated using 
a provision matrix based on the Company’s 
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for 
factors that are specific to the debtors, general 
economic conditions and an assessment of both 
the current as well as the forecast direction of 
conditions at the reporting date, including time 
value of money where appropriate.

  For all other financial instruments, the Company 
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been 
a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk 
on the financial instrument has not increased 
significantly since initial recognition, the Company 
measures the loss allowance for that financial 
instrument at an amount equal to 12 month ECL. 
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should 

be recognised is based on significant increases in 
the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since 
initial recognition.

  Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses 
that will result from all possible default events 
over the expected life of a financial instrument. 
12 month ECL represents the portion of lifetime 
ECL that is expected to result from default events 
on a financial instrument that are possible within 
12 months after the reporting date.

  When determining whether credit risk of a 
financial asset has increased significantly since 
initial recognition and when estimating expected 
credit losses, the Company considers reasonable 
and supportable information that is relevant 
and available without undue cost or effort. 
This includes both quantitative and qualitative 
information and analysis, including on historical 
experience and forward-looking information.

  Loss allowances for financial assets measured 
at amortised cost are deducted from the gross 
carrying amount of the assets. For debt securities 
at FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in OCI 
and carrying amount of the financial asset is not 
reduced in the balance sheet.

 Write-off 
  The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is 

written off (either partially or in full) to the extent 
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. 
This is generally the case when the Company 
determines that the debtor does not have 
assets or sources of income that could generate 
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts 
subject to the write- off. However, financial 
assets that are written off could still be subject 
to enforcement activities under the Company’s 
recovery procedures, taking into account legal 
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made 
are recognised in profit or loss.

p.  Financial liabilities and equity instruments:
 Classification as debt or equity
  Debt and equity instruments issued by the 

Company are classified as either financial liabilities 
or as equity in accordance with the substance of 
the contractual arrangements and the definitions 
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes

 Equity instruments
  An equity instrument is any contract that 

evidences a residual interest in the assets of an 
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity 
instruments issued by Company are recognised 
at the proceeds received. Transaction costs of an 
equity transaction are recognised as a deduction 
from equity.

 Compound financial instruments
  The component parts of compound instruments 

(convertible notes) issued by the Company are 
classified  separately as financial liabilities and 
equity in accordance with the substance of the 
contractual arrangements and the definitions 
of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 
A conversion option that will be settled by the 
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another 
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s 
own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

  At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability 
component is estimated using the prevailing 
market interest rate for similar non-convertible 
instruments. This amount is recorded as a 
liability on an amortised cost basis using the 
effective interest method until extinguished 
upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity 
date. Interest related to the financial liability is 
recognised in profit or loss (unless it qualifies for 
inclusion in the cost of an asset).

  Conversion option classified as equity is 
determined by deducting the amount of the liability 
component from the fair value of the compound 
instrument as a whole. This is recognised and 
included in equity, net of income tax effects, and 
is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the 
conversion option classified as equity will remain 
in equity until the conversion option is exercised, 
in which case, the balance recognised in equity 
will be transferred to [share premium/other 
equity [describe]]. Where the conversion option 
remains unexercised at the maturity date of the 
convertible instrument, the balance recognised 
in equity will be transferred to [retained profits/
other equity [describe]]. No gain or loss is 
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or 
expiration of the conversion option.

  Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the 
convertible notes are allocated to the liability and 

equity components in proportion to the allocation 
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating 
to the equity component are recognised directly 
in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability 
component are included in the carrying amount 
of the liability component and are amortised 
over the lives of the convertible notes using the 
effective interest method.

 Effective interest method
  The effective interest method is a method 

of calculating the amortised cost of a debt 
instrument and of allocating interest income 
over the relevant period. The effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts (including all fees and points 
paid or received that form an integral part of 
the effective interest rate, transaction costs 
and other premiums or discounts) through the 
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where 
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying 
amount on initial recognition.

  Income is recognised on an effective interest 
basis for debt instruments other than those 
financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest 
income is recognised in profit or loss and is 
included in the “Other income” line item

 Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
  On initial recognition, the Group can make 

an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to present the subsequent 
changes in fair value in other comprehensive 
income pertaining to investments in equity 
instruments. This election is not permitted if 
the equity investment is held for trading. These 
elected investments are initially measured at fair 
value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they 
are measured at fair value with gains and losses 
arising from changes in fair value recognised in 
other comprehensive income and accumulated 
in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through 
other comprehensive income’. The cumulative 
gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on 
disposal of the investments

 A financial asset is held for trading if:

 •  it has been acquired principally for the 
purpose of selling it in the near term; or
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 •  on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio 
of identified financial instruments that the 
Group manages together and has a recent 
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

 •  it is a derivative that is not designated and 
effective as a hedging instrument or a 
financial guarantee.

  Financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVTPL)

  Investments in equity instruments are classified 
as at FVTPL, unless the Group irrevocably elects 
on initial recognition to present subsequent 
changes in fair value in other comprehensive 
income for investments in equity instruments 
which are not held for trading (see note above).

  Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised 
cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are 
measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments 
that meet the amortised cost criteria or the 
FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL 
are measured at FVTPL.

  A financial asset that meets the amortised cost 
criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI 
criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon 
initial recognition if such designation eliminates 
or significantly reduces a measurement or 
recognition inconsistency that would arise from 
measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the 
gains and losses on them on different bases. The 
Group has not designated any debt instrument as 
at FVTPL

  Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair 
value at the end of each reporting period, with 
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement 
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or 
loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates 
any dividend or interest earned on the financial 
asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line 
item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is 

recognised when the Group’s right to receive 
the dividends is established, it is probable that 
the economic benefits associated with the 
dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does 
not represent a recovery of part of cost of the 
investment and the amount of dividend can be 
measured reliably

  Financial guarantee contracts:
  A financial guarantee contract is a contract that 

requires the issuer to make specified payments to 
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a 
specified debtor fails to make payments when due 
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. 
Financial guarantee contracts issued by a 
Company are initially measured at their fair 
values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are 
subsequently measured at the higher of:

 •  the amount of loss allowance determined in 
accordance with impairment requirements 
of Ind AS 109; and

 •  the amount initially recognised less, when 
appropriate, the cumulative amount of 
income recognised in accordance with the 
principles of Ind AS 18.

 Fair value hedges
  Changes in fair value of the designated portion of 

derivatives that qualify as fair value hedges are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
immediately, together with any changes in the 
fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are 
attributable to the hedged risk.

q. Segment Reporting
  Operating Segments are reported consistently 

with the internal reporting provided to the 
Managing Director. The highest decision making 
executive is responsible for allocating resources to 
and assessing the performance of the operating 
segments. The highest decision making body is 
Managing Director.
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Notes

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

 Rs. in Lakhs

Description of Assets
Plant and 

Equipment - 
Freehold

Office 
Equipment

Furniture 
and Fixtures

Vehicles Total

Note 1 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
I. Gross Carrying Amount
 Balance as at 1 April 2016  392.37  59.95  40.66  334.53  827.51
 Additions 12.12  10.29 22.15  85.34  129.90
 Disposals 1.56 – –  42.06  43.62
 Balance as at 31 March 2017  402.93  70.24  62.81  377.81  913.79
II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
 Balance as at 1 April 2016  173.97  27.59  11.26  135.67  348.49
 Depreciation expense for the year  85.46  11.59  5.26  85.40  187.71
 Eliminated on disposal of assets  0.87 – –  24.68  25.55
 Balance as at 31 March 2017  258.56  39.18  16.52  196.39  510.65
III. Net carrying amount (I-II)  144.37  31.06  46.29  181.42  403.14

 Rs. in Lakhs

Description of Assets
Plant and 

Equipment - 
Freehold

Office 
Equipment

Furniture 
and Fixtures

Vehicles Total

I. Gross Carrying Amount
 Balance as at 1 April 2015  182.26  35.42  11.17  236.53  465.38
 Additions  213.61  24.53  29.49  131.55  399.18
 Disposals  3.50 – –  33.55  37.05
 Balance as at 31 March 2016  392.37  59.95  40.66  334.53  827.51
II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
 Balance as at 1 April 2015  126.80  18.77  5.85  96.63  248.05
 Depreciation expense for the year  49.39  8.82  5.41  70.43  134.05
 Eliminated on disposal of assets  2.22 – –  31.39  33.61
 Balance as at 31 March 2016  173.97  27.59  11.26  135.67  348.49
III. Net carrying amount (I-II)  218.40  32.36  29.40  198.86  479.02

 Rs. in Lakhs

Description of Assets
Plant and 

Equipment - 
Freehold

Office 
Equipment

Furniture 
and Fixtures

Vehicles Total

I. Gross Carrying Amount
 Balance as at 1 April 2014  137.23  22.17  11.16  130.99  301.55
 Additions  45.84  13.24 –  105.54  164.62
 Disposals  0.79 – – –  0.79
 Balance as at 31 March 2015  182.28  35.41  11.16  236.53  465.38
II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
 Balance as at 1 April 2014  67.06  13.61  4.55  24.61  109.83
 Depreciation expense for the year  60.32  5.15  1.30  72.02  138.79
 Eliminated on disposal of assets  0.57 – – –  0.57
 Balance as at 31 March 2015  126.81  18.76  5.85  96.63  248.05
III. Net carrying amount (I-II)  55.47  16.65  5.31  139.90  217.33
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 Rs. in Lakhs

Description of Assets Computer Software Total
Note 2 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
I. Gross Carrying Amount
 Balance as at 1 April 2016 – –
 Additions from separate acquisitions  25.65  25.65
 Balance as at 31 March 2017  25.65  25.65
II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
 Balance as at 1 April 2016 – –
 Amortisation expense for the year  2.11  2.11
 Balance as at 31 March 2017  2.11  2.11
III. Net carrying amount (I-II)  23.54  23.54

 Rs. in Lakhs

Description of Assets Computer Software Total
I. Intangible Assets
 Cost

 Balance as at 1 April 2015 – –
 Additions from separate acquisitions – –
 Balance as at 31 March, 2016 – –
II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
 Balance as at 1 April 2015 – –
 Amortisation expense for the year – –
 Balance as at 31 March, 2016 – –
III. Net carrying amount (I-II) – –

Other adjustments during the year comprise of interest capitalised.

 Rs. in Lakhs

Particular

As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016 As at 1 April 2015

 QTY  Amounts  Amounts  QTY  Amounts  Amounts  QTY  Amounts  Amounts

 Current  Non Current  Current  Non Current  Current  Non Current

Note 3 INVESTMENTS
Amortised Cost
Investments Carried at 
Amortised Cost

Other Investment (Fixed 
Deposit with Mahindra 
& Mahindra Financial 
Services Limited)

8,315 3,625 4,375 9,015 125 9,640

Total Investments Carried 
at Amortised Cost

8,315 3,625 4,375 9,015 125 9,640

Total Investments 8,315 3,625 4,375 9,015 125 9,640
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Notes

 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

 As at 31 March  As at 1 April
2017 2016 2015

 Current  Non- 
Current

 Current  Non- 
Current

 Current  Non- 
Current

Note 4 LOANS
a) Loans to related parties
 - Unsecured, considered good  10,550.00  -  3,125.00  2,000.00  5,200.00  825.00
TOTAL (B) 10,550.00  -  3,125.00  2,000.00  5,200.00  825.00
b) Other Loans
 - Unsecured, considered good
  -  Other loans and advances 

[Advance payment of tax  
(net of provisions)]

 -  12.81  -  -  -  -

  - Others  320.52  1.06  263.68  14.66  208.43  28.28
TOTAL (C)  320.52  13.87  263.68  14.66  208.43  28.28
GRAND TOTAL 10,870.52  13.87  3,388.68  2,014.66  5,408.43  853.28

Refer Note 21 for disclosures related to credit risk, impairment under expected credit loss model and related financial instrument disclosures.

 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

 As at 31 March  As at 1 April
2017 2016 2015

 Current  Non- 
Current

 Current  Non- 
Current

 Current  Non- 
Current

Note 5 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Financial assets at amortised cost
Interest Accrued but not due  2,355.89  -  1,921.22  -  872.48  -
Security Deposits  -  96.61  -  53.59  -  43.81
Bank Deposit with more than  
12 months maturity

 -  60.00  -  60.00  -  60.00

TOTAL  2,355.89  156.61  1,921.22  113.59  872.48  103.81

The Bank Deposit with more than 12 months maturity is under lien to the IRDAI as per the IRDAI (Insurance Brokers) Regulations 2013.

 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
Year ended March 31

2017 2016
Note 6 CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX
a) Income Tax recognised in profit or loss
Current Tax:
In respect of current year 2,905.00 2,696.00

2,905.00 2,696.00
Deferred Tax:
 In respect of current year origination and reversal of temporary differences (15.36) (43.04)

(15.36) (43.04)
Total income tax expense on continuing operations 2,889.64 2,652.96
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 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
Year ended

31 March 2017
Year ended

31 March 2016

b) Income tax recognised in other Comprehensive income
Current Tax
 Deferred tax related to items recognised in other comprehensive income 
during the year:
 Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations  (21.89)  18.87
Total  (21.89)  18.87
Classification of income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

 Income taxes related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  (21.89)  18.87

 Income taxes related to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -  -

Total  (21.89)  18.87

 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
Year ended

31 March 2017
Year ended

31 March 2016
c)  Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit 

multiplied by Company’s domestic tax rate:
Profit before tax from continuing operations  8,235.82  7,465.89
Income tax expense calculated at 34.608% (2016: 34.608%)  2,850.25  2,583.80
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profit  173.46  197.83
Effect of tax incentives and concessions  
(research and development and other allowances)

 (118.71)  (85.63)

 2,905.00  2,696.00
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax of 
prior years

 -  -

Income tax expense recognised In profit or loss from continuing operations  2,905.00  2,696.00

There is no change in the tax rate from that in the previous year.

 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

For the Year ended 31 March 2017
Opening 
Balance

Recognised 
in profit and 

Loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Closing 
Balance

Note 6 CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX
i) Movement in deferred tax balances
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Property, Plant and Equipment  (13.21)  (9.60)  -  (22.81)

 (13.21)  (9.60)  -  (22.81)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Employee Benefits  49.79  4.18  21.89  75.86
Provisions  13.50  1.58  -  15.08

 63.29  5.76  21.89  90.94
Net Tax Asset (Liabilities)  76.50  15.36  21.89  113.75
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Notes

 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

For the Year ended 31 March 2016
Opening 
Balance

Recognised 
in profit and 

Loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Closing 
Balance

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Property, Plant and Equipment  (10.79)  (2.42)  -  (13.21)

 (10.79)  (2.42)  -  (13.21)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Employee Benefits  34.52  34.14  (18.87)  49.79 
Provisions  7.01  6.49  -    13.50 

 41.53  40.63  (18.87)  63.29 
Net Tax Asset (Liabilities)  52.32  43.05  (18.87)  76.50 

 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

For the Year ended 31 March 2015
Opening 
Balance

Recognised 
in profit and 

Loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Closing 
Balance

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Property, Plant and Equipment  21.06  (26.46)  -  (5.40)

 21.06  (26.46)  -  (5.40)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Employee Benefits  27.79  12.12  -    39.91 
Provisions  4.98  2.03  -    7.01 

 32.77  14.15  -    46.92 
Net Tax Asset (Liabilities)  11.71  40.61  -    52.32 

 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

 As at 31 March  As at 1 April
2017 2016 2015

 Current  Non- 
Current

 Current  Non- 
Current

 Current  Non- 
Current

Note 7 OTHER ASSETS
a)  Advances other than capital 

advances
  i)  Earnest Money Deposit  0.10  -    -    -    -    -   
  ii)  Other assets  26.42  -    3.48  -    2.89  -   
  iii)  Gratuity Plan Assets  -    3.45  -   7.25  -   -  
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS  26.52 3.45 3.48 7.25 2.89  -   
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 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

 As at 31 March  As at 1 April
2017 2016 2015

 Current  Non- 
Current

 Current  Non- 
Current

 Current  Non- 
Current

Note 8 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables
a) Unsecured, considered good  2,669.28  -    2,212.76  -    1,325.73  -   
b) Doubtful  43.59  -    39.02  -    20.63  -   
Less: Allowance for Credit Losses  43.59  -    39.02  -    20.63  -   
TOTAL  2,669.28  -  2,212.76  -    1,325.73  -   
Of the above, trade receivables from:
 - Related Parties  1,084.68  -    818.61  -    487.73  -  
 - Others  1,584.60  -    1,394.15  -    838.00  -  
TOTAL  2,669.28  -    2,212.76  -    1,325.73  -   

Refer Note 21  for disclosures related to credit risk, impairment of trade receivables under expected credit loss model and related disclosures.

 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
As at 31 March As at 31 March As at 1 April

2017 2016 2015
Note 9 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and cash equivalents
a) Balances with banks  372.07  301.22  165.00 
b) Cash on hand  1.99  1.90  1.35 
Total Cash and cash equivalent 374.06 303.12 166.35

 Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars
Note 10 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
a) Equity share capital
As at 1 April 2015  257.73 
Changes in equity share capital during the year  -   
As at 31 March 2016  257.73 
Changes in equity share capital during the year  -   
As at 31 March 2017  257.73 

 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

 As at 31 March  As at 1 April
2017 2016 2015

No. of 
shares

` lakhs No. of 
shares

` lakhs No. of 
shares

` lakhs

Note 10 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised: 
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each with 
voting rights

 35,00,000  350.00  35,00,000  350.00  35,00,000  350.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid:
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each with 
voting rights

 25,77,320  257.73  25,77,320  257.73  25,77,320  257.73 

TOTAL 25,77,320 257.73 25,77,320 257.73 25,77,320  257.73 
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
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Notes

Note 10 - EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (CONTD.)

i) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period.

Particulars Opening 
Balance

Fresh  
Issue

Bonus ESOP Other Changes 
(give details)

Closing 
Balance

a)  Equity Shares with Voting rights*
Year Ended 31 March 2017
No. of Shares  25,77,320  -  -  -  -  25,77,320
Amount  257.73  -  -  -  -  257.73
Year Ended 31 March 2016
No. of Shares  25,77,320  -  -  -  -  25,77,320
Amount  257.73  -  -  -  -  257.73
Year Ended 1 April 2015
No. of Shares  25,77,320  -  -  -  -  25,77,320
Amount  257.73  -  -  -  -  257.73

*Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity 
share is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend 
proposed by Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. 
Further, the Board of Directors may also announce an interim dividend which would need to be confirmed by 
the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the shareholders 
are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in 
proportion to their shareholdings.

ii)  Details of shares held by the holding company, the ultimate holding company, their subsidiaries and 
associates:

Particulars
No. of Shares

Equity Shares with 
Voting rights

Equity Shares with 
Differential Voting rights

Others

As at 31 March 2017
Mahindra and Mahindra Financial Services Limited, 
the Holding Company

21,90,722  -  -

As at 31 March 2016
Mahindra and Mahindra Financial Services Limited, 
the Holding Company

21,90,722  -  -

As at 1 April 2015
Mahindra and Mahindra Financial Services Limited, 
the Holding Company

21,90,722  -  -

iii) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Class of Shares/Name of 
Shareholder 

As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016 As at 1 April 2015
Number of 

shares held
% holding in 
that class of 

shares 

Number of 
shares held

% holding in 
that class of 

shares 

Number of 
shares held

% holding in 
that class of 

shares

Equity shares with voting rights
Mahindra and Mahindra Financial 
Services Limited

 21,90,722 85%  21,90,722 85%  21,90,722 85%

Inclusion Resource Pte Limited  3,86,598 15%  3,86,598 15%  3,86,598 15%
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Note 10 - EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (CONTD.)
iv)  Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received 

in cash, bonus shares and shares bought back for the period of 5 years immediately preceding the balance sheet date:

Particulars  
Aggregate number of shares

As at 31 March As at 31 March As at 1 April
2017 2016 2015

Equity shares with voting rights
a)  Fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without 

payment being received in cash
 -  -  -

b) Fully paid up by way of bonus shares  -  20,00,000  20,00,000
c) Shares bought back  -  -  -
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Notes

 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

 As at 31 March  As at 1 April
2017 2016 2015

 Current  Non- 
Current

 Current  Non- 
Current

 Current  Non- 
Current

Note 12 PROVISIONS
a) Provision for employee benefits
 - Long-term Employee Benefits  1,085.38  184.77  880.42  133.81  674.77  104.96 
b) Other Provisions
 -  Provision for tax  

(net of advance tax paid)
 -    -    188.38  -    86.81  -   

Total Provisions  1,085.38  184.77  1,068.80  133.81  761.58  104.96 

 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

 As at 31 March  As at 1 April
2017 2016 2015

 Current  Non- 
Current

 Current  Non- 
Current

 Current  Non- 
Current

Note 13 TRADE PAYABLES
Trade payable - Micro and small 
enterprises

 -   -   -   -   -   -  

Trade payable - Other than micro  
and small enterprises

 -    -    562.79  -    240.01  -   

Total Trade Payables  660.79  -    562.79 -  240.01 -

 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
 As at 31 March  As at 1 April

2017 2016 2015
Note 14 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Other Financial Liabilities Measured at  
Amortised Cost
Current
i) Other liabilities
 1) Creditors for capital supplies/services 34.36  22.37  -   
 2) Retention Money  -   -    -   
Total Other Financial Liabilities  34.36  22.37  -   

 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

 As at 31 March  As at 1 April
2017 2016 2015

 Current  Non- 
Current

 Current  Non- 
Current

 Current  Non- 
Current

Note 15 OTHER LIABILITIES
Statutory dues
 -  Taxes payable (other than income 

taxes)
 63.25  -   28.60  -   37.07  -  

 -  Employee Recoveries and Employer 
Contributions

 102.98  -    84.69  -    47.04  -   

Total Other Liabilities  166.23  -    113.29 -  84.11 -
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The following is an analysis of the company’s revenue for the year from continuing operations.
 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
As at 31 March As at 31 March

2017 2016
Note 16 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Revenue from rendering of services  15,363.24  13,136.08 
Total Revenue from Operations  15,363.24  13,136.08 

 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
As at 31 March As at 31 March

2017 2016
Note 17 OTHER INCOME
Interest Income
- On Financial Assets at Amortised Cost  2,060.23  1,783.71 
Total Other Income  2,060.23 1783.71

 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
As at 31 March As at 31 March

2017 2016
Note 18 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
a) Salaries and wages, including bonus  5,669.34  4,372.00 
b) Contribution to provident and other funds  267.40  200.37 
c) Gratuity Expenses  45.54  113.14 
d) Share based payment transactions expenses
 1) Equity-settled share-based payments  118.58  203.78 
 2) Cash-settled share-based payments  -    -   
e) Staff welfare expenses  161.23  118.42 
Total Employee Benefits Expense  6,262.09  5,007.71 

Equity-settled share-based payments    
In respect of the Cash-settled share-based payments, Employee Stock Options (ESOS) of the ultimate holding 
company Mahindra & Mahindra Limited and the holding company Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services 
Limited (MMFSL) are issued to eligible employees of the Company. The Company makes the necessary payment 
to the respective Ultimate holding company and holding company.

 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
As at 31 March As at 31 March

2017 2016
Note 19 OTHER EXPENSES
a) Power & Fuel  56.02  49.41 
b) Rent including lease rentals  334.68  271.15 
c) Rates and taxes  6.90  8.47 
d) Insurance  220.23  183.88 
e) Postage, Telephone and Communication  195.10  126.05 
f) Software Charges  6.63  23.61 
g) Repairs and maintenance - Others  22.42  46.39 
h) Administration Support Charges  149.08  131.72 
i) Manpower Contracting Charges  197.56  29.44 
j) Advertisement  0.45  7.44 
k) Miscellaneous expenses  643.97  413.74 
l) Sales promotion expenses  82.86  58.71 
m) Travelling and Conveyance Expenses  559.88  587.87 
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes

 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
As at 31 March As at 31 March

2017 2016
n)  Expenditure on corporate social responsibilty (CSR) under section 135 of 

the Companies Act, 2013.
 136.75  120.16 

o) Provision for doubtful trade and other receivables, loans  4.57  18.39 
p) Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses  11.91  11.23 
 i) As Auditors  7.54  7.25 
 ii) For Taxation matters  2.51  2.50 
 iii) For Other services  1.56  1.40 
 iv) For reimbursement of expenses  0.30  0.08 
q) Other expenses
 i) Legal and other professional costs  106.73  224.48 
Total Other Expenses  2,735.74  2,312.14 

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
For the year ended March 31

2017 2016
Note 20 EARNINGS PER SHARE

 Per Share  Per Share
Basic Earnings per share
From continuing operations  205.83  188.13
From discontinuing operations  -  -
Total basic earnings per share  205.83  188.13
Diluted Earnings per share
From continuing operations  205.83  188.13
From discontinuing operations  -  -
Total diluted earnings per share  205.83  188.13

Basic earnings per share
The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per 
share are as follows:

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
For the year ended March 31

2017 2016
Profit / (loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company  5,304.82  4,848.59
Less: Preference dividend and tax thereon  -  -
Profit / (loss) for the year used in the calculation of basic earnings per 
share

 5,304.82  4,848.59

Profit for the year on discontinued operations used in the calculation of  
basic earnings per share from discontinued operations

 -  -

Profits used in the calculation of basic earnings per share from  
continuing operations

 5,304.82  4,848.59

Weighted average number of equity shares (nos)  25,77,320  25,77,320
Earnings per share from continuing operations - Basic (`)  205.83  188.13

Diluted earnings per share
The diluted earnings per share has been computed by dividing the Net profit after tax available for Equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares, after giving dilutive effect of the outstanding 
Warrants, Stock options and Convertible bonds for the respective periods, if any.

Note 19 - OTHER EXPENSES (CONTD.)
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Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
For the year ended March 31

2017 2016
Profit/(loss) for the year used in the calculation of basic earnings per share  5,304.82  4,848.59
Add: Adjustments, if any  -  -
Profit/(loss) for the year used in the calculation of diluted earnings per 
share

 5,304.82  4,848.59

Profit for the year on discontinued operations used in the calculation of 
diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations

 -  -

Profits used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share from  
continuing operations

 5,304.82  4,848.59

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share reconciles to 
the weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share as follows:

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
For the year ended March 31

2017 2016
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of  
Basic EPS

 25,77,320  25,77,320

Add: Effect of Warrants, if any  -  -
ESOPs, if any  -  -
Convertible bonds, if any  -  -
Others if any  -  -
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of  
Diluted EPS

 25,77,320  25,77,320

Note 21 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Capital management

The company’s capital management objectives are:

- to ensure the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

-  to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with the 
level of risk.

The company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents 
as presented on the face of the statement of financial position. The Company is subject to minimum capital 
requirements as stipulated by the IRDAI (Insurance Brokers) Regulations, 2013.

The company sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing structure, i.e. equity and financial 
liabilities. The company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in 
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

 Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
 As at 31 March  As at 1 April

2017 2016 2015
Equity 26,877.31 22,037.79 17,576.96
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (374.06) (303.12) (166.35)

26,503.25 21,734.67 17,410.61
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Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities

As at 31 March 2017
 Amortised 

Costs 
 FVTPL  FVOCI  Total

Non-current Assets
Investments  3,625.00  3,625.00
Loans  13.87  13.87
Other Financial Assets
- Non Derivative Financial Assets  156.61  156.61
Current Assets
Investments  8,315.00  8,315.00
Trade Receivables  2,669.28  2,669.28
Other Bank Balances  374.06  374.06
Loans  10,870.52  10,870.52
Other Financial Assets
- Non Derivative Financial Assets  2,355.89  2,355.89
- Derivative Financial Assets  -  -
Current Liabilities
Trade Payables  660.79  660.79
Other Financial Liabilities
- Non Derivative Financial Liabilities  34.36  34.36

As at 31 March 2016
 Amortised 

Costs 
 FVTPL  FVOCI  Total

Non-current Assets
Investments  9,015.00  9,015.00 
Loans  2,014.66  2,014.66 
Other Financial Assets
- Non Derivative Financial Assets  113.59  113.59 
Current Assets
Investments  4,375.00  4,375.00 
Trade Receivables  2,212.76  2,212.76 
Other Bank Balances  303.12  303.12 
Loans  3,388.68  3,388.68 
Other Financial Assets
- Non Derivative Financial Assets  1,921.22  1,921.22 
Current Liabilities
Trade Payables  562.79  562.79 
Other Financial Liabilities
- Non Derivative Financial Liabilities  22.37  22.37 
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As at 1 April 2015
 Amortised 

Costs 
 FVTPL  FVOCI  Total

Non-current Assets
Investments  9,640.00  9,640.00 
Loans  853.28  853.28 
Other Financial Assets
- Non Derivative Financial Assets  103.81  103.81 
Current Assets
Investments  125.00  125.00 
Trade Receivables  1,325.73  1,325.73 
Other Bank Balances  166.35  166.35 
Loans  5,408.43  5,408.43 
Other Financial Assets
- Non Derivative Financial Assets  872.48  872.48 
Current Liabilities
Trade Payables  240.01  240.01 

Financial Risk Management Framework

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. In order 
to manage the aforementioned risks, the Company operates a risk management policy and a program that 
performs close monitoring of and responding to each risk factors.

CREDIT RISK
(i) Credit risk management

Credit risk arises when a counterparty defaults on its contractual obligations to pay resulting in financial loss to 
the Company.

Trade receivables consist of institutional customers, largely insurance companies. The Company deals only with 
those insurance companies who have obtained an acceptable level of credit rating. The Company does not have 
significant credit risk exposure to any single external counterparty. Out of total outstanding 41% of the debtors 
are pertaining to group companies.

The credit risk on liquid funds invested in Fixed Deposits with companies and Intercorporate Deposits is limited 
because the counterparties are group companies.

The Company applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses prescribed by Ind AS 109, 
which permits the use of the expected loss provision for all trade receivables. The company has computed 
expected credit losses based on a provision matrix which uses historical credit loss experience of the Company and 
individual receivable specific provision where applicable. Forward-looking information (including macroeconomic 
information) has been incorporated into the determination of expected credit losses.

There is no change in estimation techniques or significant assumptions during the reporting period.

The loss allowance provision is determined as follows:

As at 31 March 2017
Not due Less than 6 

months past due
More than 6 

months past due
Total

Expected loss rate  - 0.5% 70.0%
Gross carrying amount  - 2,669.28 43.59 2,712.87
Loss allowance provision  - 13.08 30.51 43.59
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As at 31 March 2016
Not due Less than 6 

months past due
More than 6 

months past due
Total

Expected loss rate 0.5% 70.0%
Gross carrying amount  - 2,212.76 39.02 2,251.78
Loss allowance provision  - 11.71 27.31 39.02

As at 1 April 2015
Not due Less than 6 

months past due
More than 6 

months past due
Total

Expected loss rate 0.5% 70.0%
Gross carrying amount  - 1,325.73 20.63 1,346.36
Loss allowance provision  - 6.19 14.44 20.63

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision for Trade Receivables

Rs. in Crores

Particulars
For the year ended March 31

2017 2016
Balance as at beginning of the year  39.02  20.63
Impairment losses recognised in the year based on lifetime expected  
credit losses
- On receivables originated in the year  4.57  18.39
Impairment losses recognised in the year based on 12 month  
expected credit losses
- On receivables originated in the year  -  -
Balance at end of the year  43.59  39.02

The loss allowance provision has changed during the period due to delays in recovery of brokerage on insurance 
contracts brokered.

LIQUIDITY RISK

(i) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established 
an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short, medium and 
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining 
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and 
actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities 
with agreed repayment periods. The amount disclosed in the tables have been drawn up based on the 
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required 
to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.

Particulars Less than  
1 Year

1-3 Years 3 Years to  
5 Years

5 years and  
above

INR INR INR INR
Non-derivative financial liabilities
31-Mar-17
Non-interest bearing  34.36  -  -  -
Total  34.36  -  -  -
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Particulars Less than  
1 Year

1-3 Years 3 Years to  
5 Years

5 years and  
above

INR INR INR INR

31-Mar-16
Non-interest bearing  22.37  -  -  -
Total  22.37  -  -  -

1-Apr-15
Non-interest bearing  -  -  -  -
Total  -  -  -  -

(iii) Financing arrangements

The Company does not feel the need to have any borrowing facilities at this stage.

(iv) Maturities of financial assets

The following table details the Company’s expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The table has 
been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that 
will be earned on those assets. The inclusion of information on non-derivative financial assets is necessary in 
order to understand the Company’s liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and 
liability basis.

Particulars Less than  
1 Year

1-3 Years 3 Years to  
5 Years

5 years and  
above

INR INR INR INR
Non-derivative financial assets
31-Mar-17
Non-interest bearing  2,355.89  96.61  -    -   
Fixed interest rate instruments  -    60.00  -    -   
Total  2,355.89  156.61  -    -   

31-Mar-16
Non-interest bearing  1,921.22  53.59  -    -   
Fixed interest rate instruments  -    60.00  -    -   
Total  1,921.22  113.59  -    -   

1-Apr-15
Non-interest bearing  872.48  43.81  -    -   
Fixed interest rate instruments  -    60.00  -    -   
Total  872.48  103.81  -    -   

MARKET RISK
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other 
price risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within 
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The Company invests in fixed rate instruments taking into 
account the current liquidity requirements. All such transactions are carried out within the guidelines set by the 
Board of Directors.

There has been no significant changes to the company's exposure to market risk or the methods in which they 
are managed or measured.

Currency Risk
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange 
rate fluctuations arise. The Company's / Company's exposure to currency risk relates primarily to the Company's 
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operating activities in reinsurance broking when transactions are denominated in a different currency from the 
Company's functional currency.

The Company mitigates its foreign currency risk by entering into reinsurance contracts wherein the risk is to the 
account of the cedant insurers or the reinsurers.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary 
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows.

Particulars Currency 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15
Trade Receivables USD  -  -  -

EUR  -  -  -
GBP  -  -  -

Trade Payables USD  -  -  -
EUR  -  -  -
GBP  -  -  -

Foreign Currency Sensitivity
In management’s opinion, any sensitivity analysis is not representative of the inherent foreign exchange risk 
because the exposure is to the account of the cedant insurer or reinsurer.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of long-term as well as short-term 
fixed deposits with companies as well as intercorporate deposits.

Interest rate sensitivity
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on exposure to interest rate for non-derivative 
instruments at the end of reporting period. 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion 
of loans given and investments in fixed deposits effected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s 
profit before tax is affected through the impact on fixed rate investments and interest bearing loans as follows:

Rs. in Lakhs
Currency Increase / decrease 

in basis points
Effect on profit 

before tax
31-Mar-17 INR +50 73.36

INR -50 -73.36
31-Mar-16 INR +100 135.94

INR -100 -135.94

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently 
observable market environment, showing a significantly higher volatility than in prior years.
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Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Carrying
amount

Fair value
Carrying
amount

Fair value
Carrying
amount

Fair value

Note 22 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Financial assets
Financial assets carried at Amortised 
Cost
– Loans to related parties 10,550.00 10,550.00  5,125.00  5,125.00  6,025.00  6,025.00
–  Trade and other receivables  2,669.28  2,669.28  2,212.76  2,212.76  1,325.73  1,325.73
– Loans/lease receivables  334.39  334.39  278.34  278.34  236.71  236.71
– Other financial assets  2,512.50  2,512.50  2,034.81  2,034.81  976.29  976.29
– Fixed Deposits with Companies 11,940.00 11,940.00 13,390.00 13,390.00  9,765.00  9,765.00
Total 28,006.17 28,006.17 23,040.91 23,040.91 18,328.73 18,328.73
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities held at amortised 
cost
– Trade and other payables  660.79  660.79  698.45  698.45  324.12  324.12
Total  660.79  660.79  698.45  698.45  324.12  324.12

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets
Financial assets carried at Amortised Cost
– Loans to related parties  -  10,550.00  -  10,550.00
– Trade and other receivables  -  2,669.28  -  2,669.28
– Loans/lease receivables  -  334.39  -  334.39
– Other financial assets  -  2,512.50  -  2,512.50
– Fixed Deposits with companies  -  11,940.00  -  11,940.00
Total  -  28,006.17  -  28,006.17
Financial liabilities
Financial Instruments not carried at Fair Value
– Trade and other payables  -  660.79  -  660.79
Total - 660.79 - 660.79

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets
Financial assets carried at Amortised Cost
– Loans to related parties  -    5,125.00  -    5,125.00 
– Trade and other receivables  -    2,212.76  -    2,212.76 
– Other financial assets  -    2,099.93  -    2,099.93 
– Fixed Deposits with companies  -    13,390.00  -    13,390.00 
Total  -  22,827.69  -  22,827.69 
Financial liabilities
Financial Instruments not carried at Fair Value 
– Trade and other payables  -    887.25  -    887.25 
Total -  887.25 -  887.25 
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Fair value hierarchy as at 1 April 2015
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets
Financial assets carried at Amortised Cost
– Loans to related parties  -  6,025.00  -  6,025.00
– Trade and other receivables  -  1,325.73  -  1,325.73
– Other financial assets  -  1,049.12  -  1,049.12
– Fixed Deposits with companies  -  9,765.00  -  9,765.00
Total  -  18,164.85  -  18,164.85
Financial liabilities
Financial Instruments not carried at Fair Value
– Trade and other payables  -  427.22  -  427.22
Financial lease payables - - -
Total -  427.22 -  427.22

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 2 categories above have been 
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with 
the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties. In the opinion 
of the management, the difference between the carrying value of the above stated financial assets and liabilities 
is not materially different from their fair value . Accordingly, the fair value and carrying amount are the same.

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
For the year ended  

31 March
For the year ended  

31 March
For the year ended  

1 April
2017 2016 2015

Note 23 LEASES
Details of leasing arrangements
As Lessee
Operating Lease
The Company has entered into operating lease 
arrangements for certain facilities and office 
premises. The leases are non-cancellable and are 
for a period of 2 to 5 years and may be renewed 
for a further period of 3 to 5 years based on mutual 
agreement of the parties. The lease agreements 
provide for an increase in the lease payments by 15 
% every 2.5 to 3 years.
Future Non-Cancellable minimum lease 
commitments 
not later than one year  31.77  -    -   
later than one year and not later than five years  59.56  52.11  -   
later than five years  -    -    -   
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit  
and Loss
Minimum Lease Payments 334.68 271.15  -  

Note 24 - SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company has determined the operating segment based of structure of reports reviewed by the Strategic 
Management Council. For management purposes, the Company is organised into a single business unit and has 
only one reportable segment namely “Insurance Broking services”. The geographical segment is based on the 
location of client, whether in India or outside India. The Strategic Management Council of the Company monitors 
the operating results of its business unit for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and 
performance assessment.
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Rs. in Lakhs
Geographic information Year Ended 31 

March 2017
Year Ended 31 

March 2016
Revenue from external customers
India  17,346.34  14,697.86
Outside India  77.13  221.93
Total revenue per statement of profit or loss  17,423.47  14,919.79

All Non-current operating assets comprising property, plant and equipment, investment properties and intangible 
assets, if any are located in India.

Revenue from major products and services
The following is an analysis of the Company’s revenue from continuing operations from its major products and 
services:

Rs. in Lakhs
Year Ended 31 

March 2017
Year Ended 31 

March 2016
Insurance Broking and auxillary activities  17,423.47  14,919.79 
Total  17,423.47  14,919.79 

Revenues from transactions with a single external customer amounts to 10% or more of the entity’s revenues.

Note 25 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a) Defined Contribution Plan
The Company’s contribution to Provident Fund and 
Superannuation Fund aggregating Rs. 234.48 lakhs  
(F-2016 : Rs.177.32 lakhs) has been recognised 
in the Statement of Profit or Loss under the head 
Employee Benefits Expense.

(b) Defined Benefit Plans:
Gratuity
The Company operates a gratuity plan covering 
qualifying employees. The benefit payable is the 
greater of the amount calculated as per the Payment 
of Gratuity Act, 1972 or the Company scheme 
applicable to the employee. The benefit vests upon 
completion of five years of continuous service and 
once vested it is payable to employees on retirement 
or on termination of employment. In case of death 
while in service, the gratuity is payable irrespective of 
vesting. The Company makes annual contribution to 
the group gratuity scheme administered by the Life 
Insurance Corporation of India through its Gratuity 
Trust Fund.

Through its defined benefit plans the Company is 
exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of 
which are detailed below:

Asset volatility
The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate 
set with references to government bond yields; if plan 

assets under perform compared to the government 
bonds discount rate, this will create or increase a 
deficit. The defined benefit plans hold a significant 
proportion of equity type assets, which are expected to 
outperform government bonds in the long-term while 
providing volatility and risk in the short-term.

As the plans mature, the Company intends to reduce 
the level of investment risk by investing more in assets 
that better match the liabilities.

However, the Company believes that due to the long-
term nature of the plan liabilities and the strength of 
the supporting group, a level of continuing equity type 
investments is an appropriate element of the Company’s 
long term strategy to manage the plans efficiently.

Changes in bond yields
A decrease in government bond yields will increase 
plan liabilities, although this is expected to be partially 
offset by an increase in the value of the plans’ bond 
holdings and interest rate hedging instruments.

Inflation risk
Some of the Company’s pension obligations are linked 
to inflation, and higher inflation will lead to higher 
liabilities (although, in most cases, caps on the level of 
inflationary increases are in place to protect the plan 
against extreme inflation). The plans hold a significant 
proportion of assets in index linked gilts, together with 
other inflation hedging instruments and also assets 
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The significant actuarial assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Valuation as at
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 1-Apr-15

Discount rate(s) 7.36% 8.00% 8.00%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 5% 5% 5%
Attrition Rate Attrition rate of 13% up 

to the age of 35, 8% 
up to age of 45 and 6% 

thereafter

Attrition rate of 1% up 
to the age of 30 Years

Attrition rate of 1% up 
to the age of 30 Years

Defined benefit plans – as per actuarial valuation on 31st March, 2017
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
Funded Plan 

Gratuity 
2017 2016

Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect of these defined benefit 
plans are as follows:
Service Cost
Current Service Cost  46.12  111.90 
Past service cost and (gains)/losses from settlements  63.25  (54.53)
Net interest expense  (0.58)  1.24 
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss  108.79  58.61 
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability
Return on plan assets (excluding amount included in net interest expense) – –
Actuarial gains and loss arising from changes in financial assumptions – –
Actuarial gains and loss arising from experience adjustments  63.25  (54.53)
Others (describe) – –
Componenets of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income  63.25  (54.53)
Total
I. Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet as at 31st March
1. Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 31st March  292.76  190.82 
2. Fair value of plan assets as at 31st March  296.21  198.07 
3. Surplus/(Deficit)  (3.45)  (7.25)
4. Current portion of the above  50.55  23.61 
5. Non current portion of the above  242.21  167.21 

II. Change in the obligation during the year ended 31st March
1. Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year  190.82  121.18 
2.  Add/(Less) on account of Scheme of Arrangement/Business Transfer - -
3. Expenses Recognised in Profit and Loss Account
   -  Current Service Cost  46.12  111.90 
  -  Past Service Cost -  -
  -  Interest Expense (Income)  15.27  12.21 

which are more loosely correlated with inflation. 
However an increase in inflation will also increase the 
deficit to some degree.

Life expectancy
The majority of the plan’s obligations are to provide 

benefits for the life of the member, so increases 
in life expectancy will result in an increase in the 
plan’s liabilities. This is particularly significant in the 
Company's defined benefit plans, where inflationary 
increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in life 
expectancy.
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Particulars
Funded Plan 

Gratuity 
2017 2016

II. Change in the obligation during the year ended 31st March (Contd.)
4.  Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
  Remeasurement gains/(losses)
  -  Actuarial Gain (Loss) arising from:
   i.  Demographic Assumptions - -
   ii.  Financial Assumptions  51.63  (51.68)
   iii.  Experience Adjustments - -
5.  Benefit payments  (11.08)  (2.79)
6.  Others (Specify)
7.  Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year  292.76  190.82 

III.  Change in fair value of assets during the year ended 31st March
1.  Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year  198.07  137.05
2.  Add/(Less) on account of Scheme of Arrangement/Business Transfer - -
3.  Expenses Recognised in Profit and Loss Account
  - Expected return on plan assets  15.85  10.96
4. Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
 Remeasurement gains/(losses)
  - Actual Return on plan assets in excess of the expected return  (11.62)  2.85
  - Others (specify) - -
5. Contributions by employer (including benefit payments recoverable)  104.99  50.00
6. Benefit payments  (11.08)  (2.79)
7. Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  296.21  198.07 

IV. The Major categories of plan assets
 - Insurer managed funds 100% 100%

V. Actuarial assumptions
1. Discount rate 7.36% 8.00%
2. Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00%
3. Attrition rate 13% up to the age 

of 35, 8% up to 
age of 45 and 6% 

thereafter

1% up to the age of 
30 Years
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The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Rs. in Lakhs

Principal assumption
Changes in 
assumption

Impact on defined benefit obligation
Increase in 
assumption

Decrease in 
assumption

Discount rate 2017 1% -3.41 3.47
2016 1%
2015 1%

Salary growth rate 2017 1% 2.53 -2.55
2016 1%
2015 1%

Life expectancy 2017 +/- 1 year Negligible Negligible
2016 +/- 1 year Negligible Negligible
2015 +/- 1 year Negligible Negligible

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions 
constant. In practice this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When 
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method 
(present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of 
the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the Balance 
sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analyses did not change compared to 
previous period.

The Company expects to contribute Rs. 125 lakhs to the gratuity trusts during the next financial year of 2018.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:   
Rs. in Lakhs

2017 2016 2015
Within 1 year  24.40  23.78  19.50
1 - 2 year  30.30  0.33  0.29
2 - 3 year  36.73  0.34  0.30
3 - 4 year  43.73  0.31  0.26
4 - 5 year  51.84  0.27  0.22
5 - 10 years

The Company’s policy is driven by considerations of maximizing returns while ensuring credit quality of the debt 
instruments. The asset allocation for plan assets is determined based on investment criteria prescribed under 
the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961, and is also subject to other exposure limitations. The Company evaluates 
the risks, transaction costs and liquidity for potential investments. To measure plan asset performance, the 
Company compares actual returns for each asset category with published benchmarks.

VIII. Experience Adjustments :
Period Ended

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Gratuity

1. Defined Benefit Obligation 292.76 190.82 121.18 84.19 65.80
2. Fair value of plan assets 296.21 198.07 137.05 96.01 68.01
3. Surplus/(Deficit) (3.45) (7.25) (15.87) (11.82) (2.21)
4.  Experience adjustment on plan liabilities  

[(Gain)/Loss] 
51.64 (51.67) (44.44) (45.30) (27.86)

5.  Experience adjustment on plan assets 
[Gain/(Loss)] 

(15.85) 2.85 (10.16) (2.17) (0.10)
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The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the average long term rate of return expected on 
investments of the fund during the estimated term of obligation.

The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the employee benefits expense 
in profit or loss of the expense for the year.

Note 26 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Name of the parent Company : Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited
Name of the Ultimate parent Company : Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
Name of the Fellow subsidiaries : Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited
 : Mahindra Integrated Business Solutions Limited
 : Mahindra First Choice Wheels Limited
Key Management Personnel : Dr Jaideep Devare, Managing Director
 : Rupa Joshi, Company Secretary

Details of transaction between the Company and its related parties are disclosed below:

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars For the year 

ended
Parent Company 

and Ultimate 
Parent company

KMP of the 
Company

Fellow 
subsidiaries

Nature of transactions with Related 
Parties
Purchase of property and other assets 
including intangibles

31-Mar-17  10.48 -  10.50
31-Mar-16  17.19 - -

Rendering of services 31-Mar-17  2,629.97 - -
31-Mar-16  2,092.44 - -

Receiving of services 31-Mar-17  274.21  127.09  120.86
31-Mar-16  343.39  106.46 -

Interest Income 31-Mar-17  1,462.15 -  589.78
31-Mar-16  1,363.13 -  411.71

Loans given (including Fixed Deposits & 
Intercorporate Deposits placed during the 
year)

31-Mar-17  11,450.00 -  8,350.00
31-Mar-16  11,250.00 -  2,200.00

Loans taken (including Fixed Deposits 
matured & Intercorporate Deposits 
withdrawn during the year)

31-Mar-17  13,625.00 -  2,200.00
31-Mar-16  8,275.00 -  2,450.00

Dividend Paid 31-Mar-17  328.61 - -
31-Mar-16  273.84 - -

Rs. in Lakhs
Nature of Balances with Related Parties Balance as on Parent Company 

and Ultimate 
Parent company

KMP of the 
Company

Other related 
parties

Trade payables 31-Mar-17  56.93 -  11.03
31-Mar-16  72.03 - -

Loans & advances given (including Fixed 
Deposits and Intercorporate Deposits placed)

31-Mar-17  12,140.00 -  10,350.00
31-Mar-16  14,315.00 -  4,200.00

Other balances (including Trade Receivables 
and Interest Accrued)

31-Mar-17  3,018.11 -  341.67
31-Mar-16  2,519.19 -  154.93
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Notes

Compensation of key managerial personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key managerial personnel during the year was as follows:

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended 31 March Year Ended 31 March

2017 2016
Short-term employee benefits  127.09  106.46
Post-employment benefits1 - -
Other long-term benefits1 - -
Termination benefits  -  -
Share-based payment2 - -

1 Figures not available separately for gratuity and leave encashment.

2 Included in the Stock Option Charge paid to parent company for its Stock Options granted to Key Managerial Personnel.

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the remuneration committee having regard 
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

Note 27 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for) 
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
As at 31 March As at 31 March As at 1 April 

2017 2016 2015
Contingent liabilities  -  -  -

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
As at 31 March As at 31 March As at 1 April 

2017 2016 2015
Commitments 
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 
executed on capital account and not provided for:

- - -

Commitments for the acquisition of intangible assets  43.95  21.13  -

Note 28 - EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no reportable events occurred after the balance sheet but before the approval of financial statements 
by board of directors.

Note 29 - FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF IND-AS
First Time Ind AS Adoption reconciliations
(i) Reconciliation of Total Equity as at 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2015:

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
As at 31 March As at 1 April 

2016 2015
Equity as reported under previous GAAP  21,572.49  17,189.20 

Ind AS: Adjustments increase (decrease):
Dividends not recognised as liability until declared  465.30  387.76 

 -    -   
Equity as reported under IND AS  22,037.79  17,576.96 



76 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Annual Report 2016 - 17

(ii) Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 March 2016:

Rs. in Lakhs

PARTICULARS
Year Ended 31 March

2016
Profit or Loss as per previous GAAP  7,520.42 
Ind AS: Adjustments increase (decrease):
Employee future benefits – actuarial gains and losses (Net of Tax)  (54.53)
Total adjustment to profit or loss  (54.53)
Profit or Loss under Ind AS  7,465.89 
Other comprehensive income  -   
Total comprehensive income under Ind AS  7,465.89 

Note: No statement of comprehensive income was produced under previous GAAP. Therefore the reconciliation starts with profit under previous 

GAAP.

(iii) Material adjustments to the Statement of Cash Flows:

Rs. in Lakhs

PARTICULARS
Year ended 31 March 2016

Previous GAAP Ind AS Adjustments Ind AS
Net cash flows from operating activities  2,941.51  -    2,941.51 
Net cash flows from investing activities  (2,416.99)  -    (2,416.99)
Net cash flows from financing activities  (387.75)  -    (387.75)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  136.77  -    136.77 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  166.34  -    166.34 
Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash 
held in foreign currencies

 -    -    -   

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  303.11  -    303.11 

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2016 and  1 April 2015 for the purpose of Statement of Cash 
flows under Ind AS

Rs. in Lakhs

PARTICULARS
As at 31 March As at 1 April 

2016 2015
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Statement of Cash flows 
as per Previous GAAP

 303.11  166.34 

Other adjustments (if any)  -    -   
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Statement of Cash flows 
as per Ind AS

 303.11  166.34 

Note 30 - ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dividend
In respect of the current year, the directors propose that a dividend of Rs.17.50 per share be paid on equity 
shares on July 17, 2017. This equity dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General 
Meeting and has not been included as a liability in these consolidated financial statements. The proposed equity 
dividend is payable to all shareholders on the Register of Members on June 16, 2017. The total estimated 
equity dividend to be paid is Rs.451.03 lakhs. The payment of this dividend is estimated to result in payment 
of dividend tax of Rs.91.82 lakhs @ 20.358% on the amount of dividends grossed up for the related dividend 
distribution tax.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes

Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
31 March 31 March

2017 2016
(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to MSME suppliers as on  -  -
(ii) Interest due on unpaid principal amount to MSME suppliers as on  -  -
(iii)  The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the 

MSME suppliers beyond the appointed day 
 -  -

(iv)  The amount of interest due and payable for the year (without adding the interest 
under MSME Development Act)

 -  -

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as on  -  -
(vi)  The amount of interest due and payable to be disallowed under Income Tax Act, 

1961
 -  -

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on 
the basis of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Rs. in Lakhs

Expenditure in foreign currency on account of
For the year ended 31 March

2017 2016
Professional and consultation fees 0.86 79.06
Other matters 40.96 56.16

Rs. in Lakhs

Earnings in foreign exchange
For the year ended 31 March

2017 2016
Other income - Reinsurance brokerage and Consultancy Fees Income 77.13 221.93

Rs. in Lakhs
Amounts remitted in foreign currency during the year on account of 
dividend

For the year ended 31 March
2017 2016

Amount of dividend remitted in foreign currency 57.99 48.32
Total number of non-resident shareholders to whom the dividends were 
remitted in foreign currency

1 1

Total number of shares held by them on which dividend was due 3,86,598 3,86,598
Year to which the dividend relates FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15

The financial statements of Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited were approved by the Board of Directors and 
authorised for issue on April 17, 2017.

Note 31 - DISCLOSURE ON SPECIFIED BANK NOTES (SBNS)

During the year, the Company had specified bank notes or other denomination note as defined in the MCA 
notification G.S.R. 308(E) dated March 31, 2017 on the details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and 
transacted during the period from November 8, 2016 to December, 30 2016, the denomination wise SBNs 
and other notes as per the notification is given below:

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
SBNs Other 

denomination 
notes

Total

Closing Cash In Hand As On 08.11.2016  1.11  0.32  1.43
(+) Permitted Receipts  -  2.90  2.90
(-) Permitted Payments  -  2.84  2.84
(-) Amount Deposited In Banks  1.11  -  1.11
Closing Cash In Hand As On 30.12.2016  -  0.38  0.38
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Board’s Report to the Shareholders 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Tenth Report together with the audited Financial Statements of 
your Company for the year ended 31st March, 2017.

FINANCIAL RESULTS 
Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Particulars 
For the year ended 31

March, 2017 March, 2016
Total Income 70,336.89 49,544.73
Less : Expenses: 
Employee Benefits Expense 12,847.83 9,218.31
Finance Costs 29,794.38 21,332.05
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 528.04 343.34
Other Expenses 14,476.38 8981.39
Total Expenses 57,646.63 39,875.09
Profit Before Tax 12,690.26 9,669.64
Less : Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax 5,260.00 3,818.00
(2) Deferred Tax (824.50) (488.29)
(3) (Excess)/Short Provision for Income Tax – earlier years (45.79) 71.90
Profit /(Loss) for the year 8,300.55 6,268.03
Profit / (Loss) brought forward from previous year 7,841.82 3,898.79
Amount available for Appropriation 16,142.37 10,166.82
Appropriations:
Special Reserve 3,300.00 2,300.00
Additional Special Reserve (u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987) 25.00 25.00
Dividend on Equity Shares *1,060.21 -
Income-tax on dividend *215.83 -
Balance as at the end of the year 11,541.33 7,841.82

* Provision for the dividend on Equity Shares and Income-tax on proposed dividend for F.Y. 2016-17 will be made upon the 
approval of the dividend by Shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. This is in compliance with the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, vide its Notification No. 
G.S.R.364 (E) dated 30th March, 2016. The dividend and tax on dividend in appropriations above pertains to F.Y. 2015-16, 
paid during the year under consideration.

Company continued its focus on serving customers 
in rural India. Majority of the loans disbursed were 
to customers in villages with an average annual 
household income of less than Rs. 1.50 Lakhs. During 
the year under consideration, around 1,72,000 
households were given home loans (in addition to 
around 3,88,000 existing households as on 31st 
March, 2016). Your Company has been expanding its 
geographical presence to provide affordable services 
for rural households.

During the year under consideration, operations were 
strengthened in the states of Maharashtra, Gujarat, 
Rajasthan, Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh, Telangana, 
Chhattisgarh, Kerala, Karnataka, Madhya Pradesh, 
Uttar Pradesh and Bihar.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
During the year under consideration, the Board of 
Directors approved ‘fit & proper policy’ for Directors 

There have been no material changes and 
commitments, affecting the financial position of the 
Company which occurred between the end of the 
Financial Year 2016-17 and the date of this Report. 

OPERATIONS
During the year under consideration, the total income 
was Rs. 703.37 crores as against Rs. 495.45 crores 
for the Financial Year 2015-16, registering a growth of 
42 percent over the previous year. Profit before tax was 
31 percent higher at Rs. 126.90 crores as compared 
to Rs. 96.70 crores for the previous year. Profit after 
tax was 32 percent higher at Rs. 83.01 crores as 
compared to Rs. 62.68 crores for the previous year.

Your Company has disbursed loans aggregating to  
Rs. 2,116.21 crores (previous year Rs. 1,552.48 
crores) achieving a growth of 36 percent over the 
previous year. The outstanding loan portfolio as at 31st 
March, 2017 stood at Rs. 4,823.55 crores. Your 
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and framed internal guidelines for Corporate 
Governance in pursuance of the provisions of 
Housing Finance Companies – Corporate Governance 
(National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016 issued 
by the National Housing Bank vide Notification no. 
NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated 9th 
February, 2017. As required under the provisions of 
the said directions, internal guidelines on Corporate 
Governance framed by the Board are available on 
the web site of the Company at the following link:  
http://www.mahindrahomefinance.com/pdf/
internal_guidelines_corporate_governance.pdf

Pursuant to aforesaid directions, declarations in 
the prescribed format have been received from all 
Directors and a Deed of Covenants, as prescribed 
under the said directions has been signed by all 
directors and the Company.

A management discussion and analysis, as required 
under the aforesaid directions of the National Housing 
Bank, is given below.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND 
ANALYSIS
a) Industry Structure and developments
  A report published by KPMG (“Decoding Housing 

for All by 2022”), pegs the 2012 shortage of 
Housing units in India at 5.9 crore units (and 
projects it to increase to 11 crore units by 
2022). Of this, the shortage in rural areas is 4 
crore units (projected to increase to 6.4 crore 
units by 2022) while the shortage in urban areas 
is placed at 1.9 crore units (projected to increase 
to 4.6 crore units by 2022). Moreover 95 
percent of the housing shortage in urban areas is 
within the Economically Weaker Sections (EWS) 
/ Lower Income Group (LIG) segments defined 
as households at the Bottom of the Economic 
Pyramid with annual household incomes of less 
than 3 lakhs (EWS) or 6 lakhs (LIG).

  Recognizing this issue, the Government of India 
has set up an ambitious goal of “Housing For All 
by 2022”, supported by schemes like Pradhan 
Mantri Awas Yojana (Urban) [PMAY-U] and the 
recently announced Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana 
(Gramin) [PMAY-G], which offer incentive and 
subsidies to eligible beneficiaries from these 
underserved segments of the society. Since 
the large unmet demand for housing is unlikely 
to be met without adequate housing finance 
assistance, all such subsidies are being routed 
through formal financial institutions like Banks 
and Housing Finance Companies. Your Company 
is uniquely positioned to help in addressing this 
crying social need because of the reach and 

more importantly, the knowledge your Company 
has acquired about the customer segment the 
Company serves. Your Company will continue 
to focus on serving the underserved rural 
customers and grow the business. In addition, 
your Company will now begin focusing on the 
affordable housing segment in smaller towns and 
cities as well, given the large market opportunity 
and its experience in serving customers with 
incomplete income documentation and no credit 
history. The Government’s focus on this segment 
and the large unmet demand would combine to 
make this initiative develop into another growth 
engine for the Company. 

b) Opportunities and Threats
 Opportunities
 • Govt. thrust on housing.

 • Large untapped market.

 • Digitization – external and internal.

 • Improving rural infrastructure.

 Threats
 •  Market disruption through technology and/

or new innovative business models.

 • Competition / new entrants. 

c) Segment-wise or product-wise performance
  The Company does not have segments and 

operates only in one segment. The performance 
of the Company is covered above in the paragraph 
‘operations’.

d) Outlook
  With the thrust of the Government on affordable 

housing and the ambitious target of ‘housing 
for all by 2022’, the outlook for the industry is 
buoyant. With the innate business strengths 
of the Company like Pedigree / Brand Image, 
Strong Balance Sheet, Reach, Customer base, 
trained and dedicated work force and insight of 
the market it serves, the Company is in a position 
to capitalize on favourable conditions and drive 
growth. 

e) Risks and concerns
 • People intensive nature of the industry.

 • Agriculture / Weather Cycle dependent.

 • No or limited banking habits of customers.

f) Internal control systems and their adequacy
  The Company has in place an adequate internal 

control system to safeguard all assets and 
ensure operational excellence. It also has a 
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team of Internal Auditors to conduct internal 
audit. Independent audit firms ensure that 
all transactions are correctly authorized and 
reported. The internal audit reports are discussed 
with the management and reviewed by the Audit 
Committee of the Board of Directors. The Audit 
Committee also reviews the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control 
environment and monitors the implementation 
of audit recommendations. Wherever deemed 
necessary, internal control systems are 
strengthened and corrective actions initiated.

g)  Discussion on financial performance with 
respect to operational performance

  The financial and operational performance is 
elaborated above in the paragraphs ‘Financial 
Results’ and ‘Operations’.

h)  Material developments in Human Resources / 
Industrial Relations front, including number of 
people employed

  There were no material developments in Human 
Resource / Industrial Relations front during the 
year under consideration. The Company had 
6,238 employees as at 31st March, 2017.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
The Company proposes to transfer an amount of Rs. 
33.25 crores to the Statutory Reserves. No amount 
is proposed to be transferred to General Reserve.

DIVIDEND
Your Directors recommend a dividend of Re. 1.50 
per Equity Share on 9,51,32,166 Equity Shares of 
the face value of Rs. 10 each, aggregating to Rs. 
1717.52 lakhs (including Dividend Distribution Tax).

The above dividend, if approved, will be paid to those 
Members whose names appear in the Register of 
Members as on the Record Date fixed for this purpose.

The dividend, including Dividend Distribution Tax, 
surcharge and education cess, will absorb a sum 
of Rs. 17.18 crores [as against Rs. 12.76 crores 
(including tax) on account of dividend of Re. 1.40 per 
Equity Share, paid for the previous year].

FINANCE
During the year under consideration, your Company was 
sanctioned Term Loans amounting to Rs. 550 crores 
from banks for tenures of three to five years.

As on 31st March, 2017, outstanding borrowings 
from Banks stood at Rs. 2,502.20 crores (of Long 
Term Loans) and outstanding borrowings from National 
Housing Bank amounted to Rs. 137.06 crores.

During the year under consideration, your Company 
has raised an amount of Rs. 122.00 crores by issue 
of 1220 Unsecured Subordinated Redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of Rs. 10,00,000 
each for cash at par on a Private Placement basis.

During the year under consideration, your Company 
has raised an amount of Rs. 463.50 crores by issue 
of 4635 Secured Subordinated Redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of Rs. 10,00,000 
each for cash at par on a Private Placement basis, 
including zero coupon bonds.

The Company has been regular in repayment of its 
borrowings and payment of interest due thereon. 
There were no NCDs which have not been claimed 
by the investors or not paid by the Company after the 
date on which the NCDs became due for redemption.

LISTING
During the year under consideration, your Company’s 
Secured NCDs have been listed on the BSE Limited and 
the Company has paid the requisite listing fees in full.

CREDIT RATING
During the year under consideration, India Rating & 
Research Private Limited has reaffirmed the rating 
to the Company’s Bank facilities, Non-Convertible 
Debentures and Subordinated Debt as ‘IND AA+/
stable’ outlook and ‘IND A1+’ rating to the Commercial 
Paper Issued by the Company.

Credit Analysis & Research Limited has assigned the ‘CARE 
AA+/stable’ rating to the Company’s Non-Convertible 
Debentures and reaffirmed the rating as ‘CARE AA+/
stable’ to the Subordinated Debt of the Company.

CRISIL has upgraded its rating on long-term debt 
instrument to ‘CRISIL AA+/Stable’ from ‘CRISIL AA-/
Stable’ and reaffirmed the rating as ‘CRISIL A1+’ to 
the Commercial Paper Issued by the Company.

ACHIEVEMENTS
Your Company achieved People Capability Maturity 
Model (PCMM) Level 3 rating during the year under 
consideration. The PCMM framework assesses the 
management and development of human assets 
of the organization through a detailed audit of 22 
processes across 5 maturity levels. Widely used in 
the IT services and BPO industry, your Company has 
adopted this framework given the manpower intensity 
of it’s business model. The Level 3 rating is on the 
scale of 5 levels and has been achieved in the very 
first assessment year.

During the year under consideration, your Company 
and its unique business model and strategy was 
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also showcased in a book on business strategy titled 
“Riding the Tiger – How to Execute Business Strategy 
in India”.

SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under consideration, 1,94,02,985 
Equity Shares of the face value of Rs. 10 each were 
allotted to the existing Shareholders of the Company 
on a Rights basis for cash at a premium of Rs. 57 per 
Equity Share aggregating to Rs. 129,99,99,995. Your 
Company has utilised the issue proceeds to augment 
its capital base, meet its capital requirements and 
for other general corporate purposes. Post allotment 
of Equity Shares as aforesaid, the issued, subscribed 
and paid-up Share Capital of the Company stands at 
Rs. 95.13 crores comprising of 9,51,32,166 Equity 
Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up. 

During the year under consideration, the Company 
has neither issued shares with differential voting 
rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise, nor has 
issued sweat equity. 

During the year under consideration, an Employee 
Stock Option Scheme (the Scheme) was approved by 
the Board of Directors for the employees, as defined 
under the Scheme, upon the recommendation of 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The 
Scheme is proposed to be administered through a 
trust to be created for the purpose. The Scheme is 
subject to the approval of Shareholders.

There were no Shares having voting rights not 
exercised directly by the employees and for the 
purchase of which or subscription to which, loan was 
given by the Company.

As on 31st March, 2017, none of the Directors of 
the Company holds instruments convertible into Equity 
Shares of the Company.

DEPOSITORY SYSTEM
Your Company’s Equity Shares are available for 
dematerialisation through National Securities 
Depository Limited. As on 31st March, 2017, all 
the Equity Shares of your Company were held in 
dematerialised form except 12 shares held in physical 
form by the nominees of Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services Limited, the Holding Company.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY
Consequent upon the allotment of Equity Shares 
on a Rights basis, the paid-up Share Capital of the 
Company has increased to Rs. 95.13 crores as on 
31st March, 2017  from Rs. 75.73 crores as on 
31st March, 2016. The securities premium account 
has also been credited with Rs. 110.60 crores.

As a result of the increased Net Worth, the Capital to 
Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR) of your Company enhanced 
to 30.54 percent as on 31st March, 2017 which is 
well above the 12 percent CRAR prescribed by the 
National Housing Bank.

NON-PERFORMING ASSETS AND 
PROVISIONS FOR CONTINGENCY
Your Company scrupulously adheres to the prudential 
guidelines for Non-Performing Assets (NPAs) issued by 
the National Housing Bank under its Housing Finance 
Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010, as amended 
from time to time. Your Company has made adequate 
provision for the assets on which installments are 
overdue for more than 90 days and on other assets, 
as required. Inclusion of Housing Finance Companies 
with an asset size of Rs. 500 crores and above under 
the Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial 
Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 
2002 (SARFAESI Act) will give a boost to the recovery 
efforts and reduce asset quality problems in future.

INSPECTION BY NATIONAL HOUSING 
BANK (NHB)
During the year under consideration, NHB has carried 
out the Inspection of your Company for the financial 
position as at 31st March, 2016. Inspection report 
for the financial position as on 31st March, 2015, 
received during the year under consideration, did 
not find any major deficiencies/short comings in the 
functioning of the company. The report was reviewed 
by the Audit committee and the Board of Directors 
and management compliance reply on action taken/
proposed to be taken was submitted to NHB.

INSURANCE PROTECTION TO 
BORROWERS
Your Company has tied up with Kotak Mahindra Old 
Mutual Life Insurance Limited, HDFC Standard Life 
Insurance Company Limited and Cholamandalam MS 
General Insurance Company Limited for insurance 
of its housing loan products alongwith life insurance 
called ‘Sampoorna Suraksha Plan’ which covers the 
borrowers of the Company.

DIRECTORS
Pursuant to the provisions of section 152 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Ramesh Iyer, Non-Executive 
Non-Independent Director of the Company retires by 
rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment.

None of the Independent Directors are due for re-
appointment.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
During the year under consideration, Ms. Arnavaz 
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M. Pardiwalla, resigned as the Company Secretary 
and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. The 
resignation was effective from 14th July, 2016.

The Board of Directors, on  the recommendation 
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
appointed Mr. Navin Joshi as the Company Secretary 
& Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from 
14th July, 2016.

Mr. Anuj Mehra, Managing Director, Mr. Dharmesh 
Vakharia, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Navin Joshi, 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer are the 
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as per 
the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
The composition of the Board of Directors of your 
Company is in conformity with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to 

time. The Company has a Non-Executive Chairman, 
a Managing Director, three Non-Executive Non-
Independent Directors (including a Nominee Director 
appointed by National Housing Bank) and three 
Independent Directors. The Board reviews and 
approves strategy and oversees the actions and 
results of management to ensure that the long term 
objectives of enhancing stakeholders’ value are met.

Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting 
During the Financial Year 2016-17, the Board of 
Directors met five times on 15th April, 2016, 14th 
July, 2016, 14th October, 2016, 13th January, 
2017 and 2nd March, 2017.

The names and categories of the Directors of the 
Company, their attendance at the Board Meetings 
held during the Financial Year 2016-17 and at the last 
Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held 
on 14th July, 2016 as well as at the adjournment 
thereof on 12th August, 2016, are as follows:

Names of Directors Category

Attendance at the 
Board Meetings held 
during F.Y. 2016-17

Attendance at the last 
Annual General Meeting 

(Yes / No)

Held Attended AGM on 
14th July, 

2016

Adjourned 
AGM on 12th 
August, 2016

Mr. Ramesh Iyer (Chairman) Non-Executive 
Non-Independent Director

5 5 Yes Yes

Mr. Anuj Mehra
(Managing Director)

Executive Director 5 5 Yes Yes

Mr. V. Ravi Non-Executive 
Non-Independent Director

5 5 Yes Yes

Mr. K. Chandrasekar Non-Executive 
Non-Independent Director

5 4 Yes No

Mr. K. Chakarvarthy
(Nominee of National Housing Bank)

Non-Executive 
Non-Independent Director

5 4 No No

Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar Independent Director 5 4 Yes Yes

Mrs. Anjali Raina Independent Director 5 5 Yes Yes

Dr. Narendra Mairpady Independent Director 5 5 Yes No

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
The Independent Directors met once during the year 
under consideration. The Meeting was conducted 
without the presence of the Chairman, the Managing 
Director, the Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors 
and the Chief Financial Officer.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
(a) AUDIT COMMITTEE
  Your Company has an adequately qualified and 

experienced Audit Committee. As on 31st 
March, 2017, the Audit Committee comprised 
of four Non-Executive Directors of which three 
are Independent Directors. The Committee 

comprises of Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar (Chairman), 
Mrs. Anjali Raina and Dr. Narendra Mairpady, 
all Independent Directors and Mr. V. Ravi, Non-
Executive Non-Independent Director. 

  The terms of reference of the Audit Committee 
are as follows:

 a)  To recommend appointment, remuneration 
and terms of appointment of auditors and 
internal auditors of the Company;

 b)  To review and monitor the auditor’s 
independence and performance, and 
effectiveness of audit process;
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 c)  To examine the quarterly and annual financial 
statements and the auditor’s report thereon;

 d)  To approve or subsequently modify transactions 
of the Company with Related Parties;

 e)  To scrutinize inter-corporate loans and 
investments;

 f)  To undertake valuation of undertakings 
or assets of the Company, wherever it is 
necessary;

 g)  To evaluate Internal Financial Controls and 
risk management systems;

 h)  To monitor the end use of funds raised 
through public offers and related matters;

 i)  To formulate the scope, functioning, 
periodicity and methodology for conducting 
the internal audit, in consultation with the 
Internal Auditor;

 j)  To discharge from time to time such 
other acts, duties and functions as may 
be assigned by the Board of Directors or 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 
or any other applicable law and Rules made 
thereunder.

  The Audit Committee met five times during the 
year under consideration on 15th April, 2016, 
14th July, 2016, 14th October, 2016, 13th 
January, 2017 and 2nd March, 2017. 

  The attendance of the Members of the Audit 
Committee at its Meetings held during the 
Financial Year 2016-17 is given below:

Names of 
Members

Category
Audit Committee 

Meetings

Held Attended

Mr. Nityanath 
Ghanekar
(Chairman)

Independent 
Director

5 4

Mrs. Anjali 
Raina

Independent 
Director

5 5

Dr. Narendra 
Mairpady 

Independent 
Director

5 5

Mr. V. Ravi Non-Executive 
Non-
Independent 
Director

5 5

  The Board has accepted all the recommendations 
made by the Audit Committee during the year 
under consideration. The Chairman of the 

Board, Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer, 
Chief Internal Auditor of Mahindra & Mahindra 
Limited and Statutory Auditors are regularly 
invited to attend the Audit Committee Meetings. 
The Company Secretary is the Secretary to the 
Committee.

  Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar, Chairman of the Audit 
Committee, was present at the 9th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company held on 14th 
July, 2016 as well at its adjournment on 12th 
August, 2016.

(b)  NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE

  As on 31st March, 2017, the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee of the Board 
of  Directors comprised of four members viz. 
Mr. Ramesh Iyer and Mr. K. Chandrasekar, 
Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors and 
Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar and Mrs. Anjali Raina, 
Independent Directors. The Committee met 
four times during the year under consideration 
on 15th April, 2016, 13th July, 2016, 13th 
January, 2017 and 2nd March, 2017. The 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
inter alia, recommends the appointment and 
removal of Directors and carries out evaluation 
of performance of every Director in accordance 
with the framework adopted by the Board. 
The Committee is also empowered to look into 
the entire gamut of remuneration package 
for the working Director(s) and revise their 
remuneration, subject to limits approved by the 
Shareholders, and formulate and administer the 
Employee Stock Option Plan.

  The attendance of the Members of Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee at its Meetings 
held during the Financial Year 2016-17 is given 
below:

Names of 
Members

Category

Nomination and 
Remuneration 

Committee Meetings 
Held Attended

Mr. Ramesh 
Iyer

Non-Executive 
Non-
Independent 
Director

4 4

Mr. K. 
Chandrasekar

Non-Executive 
Non-
Independent 
Director

4 2

Mr. Nityanath 
Ghanekar

Independent 
Director

4 3

Mrs. Anjali 
Raina

Independent 
Director

4 4
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(c) ASSET LIABILITY COMMITTEE
  The Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) of the 

Board of Directors comprises of Mr. Ramesh 
Iyer (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. K. 
Chandrasekar and Mr. V. Ravi, Non-Executive 
Non-Independent Directors. During the year 
under consideration, the ALCO Committee met 
twice, on 15th April, 2016 and 13th October, 
2016. The Committee oversees the Asset 
Liability Management system of the Company.

  The attendance of the Members of ALCO 
Committee at its Meetings held during the 
Financial Year 2016-17 is given below:

Names of 
Members

Category
ALCO Committee 

Meetings
Held Attended

Mr. Ramesh 
Iyer
(Chairman) 

Non-Executive 
Non- 
Independent 
Director

2 2

Mr. V. Ravi Non-Executive 
Non- 
Independent 
Director

2 2

Mr. K. 
Chandrasekar

Non-Executive 
Non- 
Independent 
Director

2 2

(d)  CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
COMMITTEE

  The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
Committee has been constituted by the Board 
of Directors to formulate and recommend to 
the Board a CSR Policy indicating the activities 
to be undertaken by the Company in compliance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
(the Act) and the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The CSR 
Committee, inter alia, allocates the amount of 
expenditure to be incurred by the Company on 
CSR activities as enumerated in Schedule VII to the 
Act and monitors the CSR Policy of the Company 
periodically. The CSR Policy of the Company is 
displayed on the website of the Company at the 
web-link: http://www.mahindrahomefinance.
com/csr-policy.php

  Mr. Ramesh Iyer, Chairman and Non-Executive 
Non-Independent Director is the Chairman 
of the Committee. Mr. K. Chandrasekar and 
Mr. V. Ravi, Non-Executive Non-Independent 
Directors, Mr. Anuj Mehra, Managing Director 
and Mrs. Anjali Raina, Independent Director 
are the other Members of the Committee. 
During the year under consideration, the CSR 

Committee met twice, on 15th April, 2016 and  
14th October, 2016. 

  The attendance of the Members of CSR 
Committee at its Meetings held during the 
Financial Year 2016-17 is given below:

Names of 
Members

Category

CSR Committee 
Meetings

Held Attended

Mr. Ramesh 
Iyer
(Chairman)

Non-Executive 
Non-
Independent 
Director

2 2

Mr. V. Ravi Non-Executive 
Non-
Independent 
Director

2 2

Mr. K. 
Chandrasekar

Non-Executive 
Non-
Independent 
Director

2 2

Mrs. Anjali 
Raina

Independent 
Director

2 2

Mr. Anuj 
Mehra

Managing 
Director

2 2

  During the year under consideration, your 
Company spent Rs. 178.09 Lakhs towards CSR 
activities pertaining to eradicating hunger and 
poverty and promoting education for the girl 
child and financial literacy amongst children and 
women.

  Your Company is in compliance with the statutory 
requirements in this regard.

  The Annual Report on the CSR activities 
undertaken by your Company in the Financial 
Year 2016-17 is appended as Annexure I to this 
Report. 

(e) RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
  During the year under consideration, a Risk 

Management Committee was formed by the 
Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions 
of Notification no. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/
MD&CEO/2016 dated 9th February, 2017, vide 
which the National Housing Bank notified Housing 
Finance Companies – Corporate Governance 
(National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016. 

  As on 31st March, 2017, the Risk Management 
Committee comprised of four Non-Executive 
Directors, of which three are Independent 
Directors. The Committee comprises of  
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Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar (Chairman), Mrs. Anjali 
Raina and Dr. Narendra Mairpady, all Independent 
Directors and Mr. V. Ravi, Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director.

  The Committee was formed by the Board of 
Directors at its Meeting held on 2nd March, 
2017. No Meeting of the Committee was held 
during the year under consideration.

  The terms of reference of the Committee are as 
follows:

 a)  The Risk Management Committee shall 
manage the integrated risk, inform the Board 
about the progress made in implementing 
a risk management system and review 
periodically the Risk Management Policy and 
strategy followed by the Company.

 b)  The Chief Financial Officer of the Company 
shall apprise the Risk Management 
Committee and the Board of the major risks 
as well as the movement in the profile of 
the high risk category, the root causes of 
risks and their impact, key performance 
indicators, risk management measures 
and the current controls being exercised to 
mitigate these risks.

 c)  The Risk Management Committee shall 
perform such other duties, as are required 
to be performed by the Committee, under 
the applicable laws, Guidelines and NHB 
Directions.

  Besides the above Statutory Committees, the 
Board of Directors also has following Committees:

 a) Loans & Investment Committee.

 b)  Committee of Directors for allotment of 
Debentures.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE 
BOARD
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, the Board of Directors has carried out an 
annual evaluation of its own performance and that of 
its Committees as well as performance of Directors 
individually. 

Well-defined and structured questionnaires were 
used in the evaluation process, covering various 
aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy 
of composition of the Board and its Committees, 

Board culture, areas of responsibility, execution 
and performance of specific duties, obligations, 
governance and compliance perspective. Evaluation 
was carried out based on feedback received from 
Directors.

A separate exercise was carried out by the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee to evaluate performance 
of individual Directors. Performance evaluation 
of Independent Directors was carried out by the 
entire Board excluding the Director being evaluated. 
Performance evaluation of Non-Independent Directors 
and the Board, as a whole, was carried out by 
Independent Directors. Performance evaluation of the 
Chairman was carried out by Independent Directors, 
after taking into account views of Executive and 
Non-Executive Directors. Directors have expressed 
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

DECLARATIONS GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTORS
The Company has received declarations from all 
Independent Directors confirming that they fulfil the 
criteria of independence as prescribed under sub-
section (6) of section 149 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

COMPANY’S POLICIES ON DIRECTORS’ 
APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION
The Company has adopted following policies, as 
required under sub-section (3) of section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013:

(i)  Policy to determine qualifications, positive 
attributes and independence of Directors 
and evaluation of the Board, Committees and 
individual Directors;

(ii) Policy on Remuneration of Directors; and 

(iii)  Remuneration Policy for Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMPs) and Employees. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee while 
recommending appointment of Directors, considers 
desirable qualifications which may, amongst other 
things, include professional qualifications, skills, 
professional experience, background and knowledge, 
apart from the criteria of independence as prescribed 
under the Companies Act, 2013.

The Policy on Remuneration of Directors and 
Remuneration Policy for KMPs and Employees of the 
Company is appended as Annexure II to this Report 
in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (4) of 
section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION
Disclosures pursuant to section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are as under:

1  The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of employees of the 
Company for the Financial Year 2016-17:

Name of the Director Category Ratio of the remuneration 
of each Director to median 
remuneration of employees

Mr. Ramesh Iyer (Chairman) Non-Executive Non-Independent Director NIL*
Mr. V. Ravi Non-Executive Non-Independent Director NIL*
Mr. K. Chandrasekar Non-Executive Non-Independent Director NIL*
Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar Independent Director 5.43X
Mrs. Anjali Raina Independent Director 6.21X
Dr. Narendra Mairpady Independent Director 5.36X
Mr. K. Chakravarthy Non-Executive Non-Independent Director  

(Nominee of National Housing Bank)
NIL*

Mr. Anuj Mehra Managing Director 137.14X

  *  Mr. Ramesh Iyer, Mr. V. Ravi, Mr. K. Chandrasekar and Mr. K. Chakravarthy, do not receive any remuneration from 
the Company.

2  The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company 
Secretary during the Financial Year 2016-17:

Name of the Director /KMP Category Percentage increase in 
Remuneration

Mr. Ramesh Iyer (Chairman) Non-Executive Non-Independent Director NIL(1)

Mr. V. Ravi Non-Executive Non-Independent Director NIL(1)

Mr. K. Chandrasekar Non-Executive Non-Independent Director NIL(1)

Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar Independent Director (2.56)
Mrs. Anjali Raina Independent Director 10.13
Dr. Narendra Mairpady Independent Director 58.56
Mr. K. Chakravarthy Non-Executive Non-Independent Director

(Nominee of National Housing Bank)
NIL(1)

Mr. Anuj Mehra Managing Director (1.84)
Mr. Dharmesh Vakharia Chief Financial Officer 7.40
Mr. Navin Joshi(2) Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

64.97(3)
Ms. Arnavaz M. Pardiwalla(2) Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

(1)  Mr. Ramesh Iyer, Mr. V. Ravi, Mr. K. Chandrasekar and Mr. K. Chakravarthy do not receive any remuneration from 
the Company.

(2)  Ms. Arnavaz M. Pardiwalla resigned as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer with effect from 14th July, 
2016. Mr. Navin Joshi has been appointed as the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer with effect from 14th 
July, 2016.

(3)  Secretarial function is covered under the cost sharing arrangement with the Holding Company.

3  The percentage increase in the median 
remuneration of employees in the Financial 
Year:

  9.80 percent considering employees who were 
in employment for the whole of the Financial Year 
2015-16 and 2016-17.

4  The number of Permanent employees on the 
rolls of Company as on 31st March, 2017:

  As on 31st March, 2017, there were 6,238 
permanent employees on the rolls of the 
Company.

5  Average percentile increase already made in the 
salaries of employees other than the Managerial 
Personnel in the last Financial Year i.e. 2016-
17 and its comparison with the percentile 
increase in the managerial remuneration and 
justification thereof and point out if there are 
any exceptional circumstances for increase in 
the managerial remuneration:

  For employees other than Managerial Personnel 
who were in employment for the whole of 
the Financial Year 2015-16 and 2016-
17, the average increase is 9.92 percent.  
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The managerial remuneration has decreased by  
1.84 percent. The increase in the remuneration 
of the non-managerial personnel is in accordance 
with the performance appraisal based on the Key 
Result Areas (KRAs) and the overall performance 
of the Company. The remuneration of the Key 
Managerial Personnel and Directors is based on 
the approved Remuneration Policy. There were 
no exceptional circumstances for increase in 
managerial remuneration.

6  Affirmation that the remuneration is as per 
the Remuneration Policy of the Company:

  The remuneration paid/payable is as per the Policy 
on Remuneration of Directors and Remuneration 
Policy for Key Managerial Personnel and 
Employees, adopted by the Company.

  Mr. Anuj Mehra, Managing Director of the 
Company, does not receive any remuneration or 
commission from the Holding Company. However, 
the Managing Director has been granted stock 
options under the Employees’ Stock Option Scheme 
of the Holding Company, Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services Limited, and has exercised the 
stock options during the year under consideration, 
which were granted in earlier year(s).

  Details of employee remuneration as required 
under the provisions of section 197(12) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
5(2) and 5(3) of Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 are available at the Registered office of 
the Company during working hours, 21 days 
before the Annual General Meeting and shall be 
made available to any shareholder on request. 
Such details are also available on your Company’s 
website and cab be accessed at the web-link: 
http://www.mahindrahomefinance.com/
annual-reports.php

  None of the employees is a relative of any Director 
of the Company. 

  None of the employees holds, either by himself 
or along with his spouse or dependent children, 
more than two percent of the Equity Shares of 
the Company.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND TRAINING
Your Company took a number of initiatives to 
strengthen human resources during the year under 
consideration. In pursuance of the Company’s 
commitment to develop and retain the best available 
talent, the Company has been sponsoring the 
employees for training programmes organized by 
reputed faculties and professional institutions for 
building capabilities thereby upgrading the skill and 

knowledge of the employees in different operational 
areas. Constant endeavours are being made to offer 
professional growth opportunities and recognitions to 
employees, apart from imparting required training.

The Company has also conducted various engagement 
surveys to understand the engagement levels across 
employees for devising various policies which has 
helped in boosting employee morale and engagement 
levels. The Company had 6,238 employees as at 31st 
March, 2017.

Your Company strongly believes in maintaining 
the dignity of all its employees irrespective of their 
gender or seniority. Discrimination and harassment 
of any type are strictly prohibited. The Company 
has taken necessary steps to enhance awareness 
amongst its employees in respect of provisions of 
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 
and the Rules framed thereunder. The Company has 
in place the Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) to 
redress complaints regarding sexual harassment and 
an appropriate policy to prevent sexual harassment 
which covers all employees of the Company.

During the year under consideration, the Company 
has not received any complaint on sexual harassment.

CODES OF CONDUCT FOR CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE
The Company has adopted Codes of Conduct for 
Corporate Governance (“the Codes”) for its Directors 
and Senior Management and Employees. These 
Codes enunciate the underlying principles governing 
the conduct of the Company’s business and seek 
to reiterate the fundamental precept that good 
governance must and, would always be, an integral 
part of the Company’s ethos.

The Company has, for the year under consideration, 
received declarations under the Codes from the Board 
Members, Senior Management and Employees of the 
Company affirming compliance with the respective Codes.

AUDITORS
Statutory Auditors
Messrs. B. K. Khare & Co., Chartered Accountants, 
[ICAI Firm Registration No.105102W] the retiring 
Auditors of the Company, complete their term as 
Statutory Auditors, as provided under the relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 
made thereunder, at the conclusion of the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of the Company.

The Board has placed on record its sincere appreciation 
for the services rendered by Messrs. B. K. Khare & 
Co., as Statutory Auditors of the Company.
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The Board of Directors, upon the recommendation of 
the Audit Committee, has approved and recommended 
to members, appointment of Messrs. B S R & Co. 
LLP [ICAI Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-
100022] as Statutory Auditors for a period of five 
years i.e. from the conclusion of the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 
the year 2022. 

As required under the provisions of section 139(1) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has 
received a written consent from B S R & Co. LLP to 
their appointment and a Certificate, to the effect that 
their appointment, if made, would be in accordance 
with the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed 
thereunder and that they satisfy the criteria provided 
in section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 4(1) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014.

The Auditor’s Report is unmodified and does not contain 
any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Secretarial Auditor
Messrs. KSR & Co Company Secretaries LLP are 
the Secretarial Auditors of the Company and conduct 
the Secretarial Audit of the Company, pursuant 
to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 
In accordance with the provisions of sub-section (1) 
of section 204, the Secretarial Audit Report for the 
Financial Year 2016-17 furnished by the Secretarial 
Auditor is appended to this Report as Annexure III.

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any 
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

During the year under consideration, the Statutory 
Auditors and Secretarial Auditor have not reported 
to the Audit Committee, any instances of frauds 
committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees, 
under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
details of which needs to be mentioned in this Report.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOLLOWED 
BY THE COMPANY 
The Financial Statements of the Company have been 
prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) and 
comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and 
the relevant provisions of the Act and the Guidelines 
issued by National Housing Bank.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to sub-section 3(a) of section 134 and sub-
section (3) of section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of the 
Annual Return as at 31st March, 2017 is appended 
to this Report as Annexure IV.

VIGIL MECHANISM
The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all 
its business activities and has established a Vigil 
Mechanism for Directors and Employees to report 
their genuine concerns. 

As per the Whistle Blower Policy of the Company, 
Employees are free to report illegal or unethical 
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation 
of the Company’s Codes of Conduct or Corporate 
Governance Policies or any improper activity, to 
the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board 
of Directors or Chairman of the Company or the 
Corporate Governance Cell. 

Under the Whistle Blower Policy, confidentiality of those 
reporting violation(s) is protected and they are not 
subjected to any discriminatory practices. No personnel 
have been denied access to the Audit Committee.

The Whistle Blower Policy of the Company is available 
on the website of the Company at the Web-link: 
http://www.mahindrahomefinance.com/whistle-
blower-policy.php

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM
Your Company has in place an adequate internal 
control system to safeguard all assets and ensure 
operational excellence. It also has a team of Internal 
Auditors to conduct internal audit. Independent 
audit firms ensure that all transactions are correctly 
authorised and reported. The Internal Audit reports 
are discussed with the Management and reviewed 
by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. 
The Audit Committee also reviews the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control 
environment and monitors the implementation of audit 
recommendations. Wherever deemed necessary, 
internal control systems are strengthened and 
corrective actions initiated. 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM
Your Company has in place, adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements, 
commensurate with the size, scale and nature of its 
operations.

During the year under consideration, such controls 
were tested and no reportable material weaknesses 
in the design or operation were observed.

RISK MANAGEMENT 
Risk Management is an integral part of the Company’s 
business strategy. The Company has adopted a 
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Risk Management Policy and has a well-defined risk 
management framework in place. Your Company has 
established procedures to periodically place before the 
Board risk assessment and minimisation procedures 
being followed by the Company and steps taken by it to 
mitigate risks. The risk management process is governed 
by an enterprise wide risk management framework.

Your Company has in place a Risk Management Committee 
comprising of the Managing Director and Senior 
Executives of the Company to manage the integrated 
risk and inform the Audit Committee from time to time 
the progress made in putting in place a progressive risk 
management system followed by the Company.

During the year under consideration, a Risk 
Management Committee of the Board has also been 
constituted pursuant to NHB regulations.

The key business risks identified by the Company and 
its mitigation plans are as under:

1.  Credit Risk: Credit Risk is inherent to any lending 
business and the Company also faces this risk. 
To mitigate this, the Company has put in place 
stringent lending norms, has developed metrics 
to evaluate customer’s income and insists on a 
thorough field investigation to check the viability 
of lending to a customer.

2.  People Risk: The Company’s business model is 
highly people centric and the Company’s employees 
are its biggest strength. Retention of employees is 
hence a key focus area. Extensive training, team 
building and employee engagement initiatives have 
been adopted to mitigate this risk. The Company 
follows a policy of hiring locally. This ensures 
employees appreciate local conditions which in turn 
ensures superior productivity while taking credit 
decisions and also while servicing customers.

3.  Environmental Risk: Cash flows of a large 
number of the Company’s customers depend on 
agriculture. Environmental factors affecting crops 
(yields and/or prices) impact the customer’s 
ability to repay. The Company mitigates this risk 
through a policy of geographical hedging. The 
Company engages with its customers through 
regular follow-up and close monitoring.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, your Directors, based on 
the representations received from the Operating 
Management and after due enquiry, confirm that:

i.  In the preparation of the annual accounts 
for Financial Year ended 31st March, 2017, 
applicable accounting standards have been 

followed and there are no material departures in 
adoption of these standards. 

ii.   The Directors have selected such accounting 
policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st 
March, 2017 and of the profit of the Company 
for the year ended on that date.

iii.   The Directors have taken proper and sufficient 
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities.

iv.  The Directors have prepared the annual accounts 
for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2017, 
on a ‘going concern’ basis.

v.   The Directors have laid down Internal Financial 
Controls to be followed by the Company and that 
such Internal Financial Controls are adequate 
and have been operating effectively.

vi.  The Directors have devised proper systems to 
ensure compliance with provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and 
operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES 
OR INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 
Sub-section (4) of Section 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 stipulates that companies shall disclose 
in the financial statements, full particulars of loans 
made and guarantees given or securities provided 
and the purpose for which the loan or guarantee or 
security is proposed to be utilized by the recipient 
of the loan or guarantee or security. However, sub-
section (11) of the said section 186 exempts Housing 
Finance Companies from making such disclosure in 
the financial statements for the loans granted and /
or guarantees /securities provided by such Housing 
Finance companies in the ordinary course of business. 
No investments were made by the Company during 
the year under consideration.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR 
ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED 
PARTIES 
All contracts/arrangements/ transactions entered 
into by the Company with Related Parties during the 
Financial Year 2016-17 were in the ordinary course 
of business and on an arm’s length basis. Pursuant to 
section 134(3)(h) read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, there are no transactions to 
be reported under section 188(1) of the Companies 
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Act, 2013. None of the Non-Executive Directors has 
any pecuniary relationships or transactions vis-à-vis 
the Company.

The Policy on Related Party Transactions, as approved 
by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of 
the Company, is appended to this Report as Annexure 
VI. The same is also uploaded on the website of the 
Company and can be accessed at the following web link: 
http://www.mahindrahomefinance.com/pdf/
MRHFL_Related_Party_Transactions_%20Policy.pdf

PARTICULARS REGARDING 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, 
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, AND 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO
The particulars in respect of conservation of energy, 
technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings 
and outgo, as required under section 134(3)(m) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(3) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided in 
Annexure V, appended to this Report. 

SUBSIDIARIES
The Company did not have any subsidiary as on 31st 
March, 2017 or during the Financial Year ended on 
that date.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS 
There was no change in the nature of business 
carried on by the Company during the year under 
consideration. 

PUBLIC DEPOSITS AND LOANS/
ADVANCES
The Company has not accepted deposits from 
the public or its employees during the year under 
consideration. There were no unclaimed Deposits or 
interest thereon or unpaid dividend due for transfer 
to Investor Education and Protection Fund, during the 
year under consideration.

The Company has not made any loans/advances in 
the nature of loans which are otherwise required to 
be disclosed in the Annual Accounts of the Company 
pursuant to Regulation 53 (f) read with paragraph A 
of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS 
PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 
COURTS
There were no significant and material orders passed 
by the Regulators/Courts/Tribunals which would 
impact the going concern status and Company’s 
operations in future.

GENERAL INFORMATION
The half yearly Financial Results of the Company are 
furnished to the Stock Exchange in accordance with 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and are published in the Free Press Journal/
Business Standard in English and also communicated 
to the Debenture holders every six months through 
a half yearly communiqué. Official news releases, 
including the half-yearly results, are also disseminated 
on the Company’s website.

As prescribed under Regulation 53(e) of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
details of the Debenture Trustees are given below :

Axis Trustee Services Limited 
Axis House, 2nd Floor, 
Wadia International Centre, 
Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, 
Mumbai – 400 025. 
Telephone : (022) 2425 5215/16 
Fax : (022) 2425 4200 
E mail : debenturetrustee@axistrustee.com

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record 
their sincere appreciation for the support received 
from National Housing Bank, Company’s customers, 
Bankers, Investors and Shareholders during the year 
under consideration. Your Directors also acknowledge 
the hard work, dedication and commitment of 
employees.

For and on behalf of the Board

Ramesh Iyer 

Chairman

Registered Office: 
Mahindra Towers, 
P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, 
Mumbai - 400 018.

CIN: U65922MH2007PLC169791 
Tel.: 91 22 6652 3500;  
Fax: 91 22 2497 2741  
E-mail: customercare.mrhfl@mahfin.com 
Website: www.mahindrahomefinance.com

17th April, 2017
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Board’s Report to the Shareholders

1.  A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, 
including overview of projects or programs 
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to 
the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or 
programs:

  With a vision of transforming the lives of 
youth from socially weaker and economically 
disadvantaged sections of society, the Mahindra 
Group is committed to ‘building possibilities’ 
to enable them to ‘RISE’ above their limiting 
circumstances. Your Company believes in the 
transformation of Indian villages into socially 
stimulating, self-sustaining, growth-oriented 
communities for a good quality life. To achieve 
this transformation, it is necessary to empower 
these communities in all possible aspects for a 
bright future. Empowering them is the key not 
only to the well-being of individuals, families and 
rural communities, but also to overall economic 
productivity of the Country.

  The Company has duly constituted a CSR 
Committee in accordance with section 135 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 to assist the Board 
and the Company in fulfilling the corporate social 
responsibility objectives of the Company. 

  As a part of its commitment to Corporate 
Social Responsibility, during the year under 
consideration, your Company has implemented 
projects for victims of Tamil Nadu Flood, Financial 

literacy amongst students and community. The 
Company also continued its support to Nanhi Kali, 
the flagship programme of the K.C. Mahindra 
Education Trust (KCMET), which supports the 
education of the disadvantaged girl child.

  The detailed CSR Policy is hosted on the 
Company’s website at the following link:

  http://www.mahindrahomefinance.com/csr-
policy.php

2.  The Composition of the CSR Committee :  
Mr. Ramesh Iyer (Chairman), Mr. K. Chandrasekar, 
Mr. V. Ravi, Mr. Anuj Mehra and Mrs. Anjali Raina.

3.  Average net profit of the Company for last 
three financial years : Rs. 8,827.43 Lakhs

4.  Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the 
amount at item 3 above) : Rs. 176.55 Lakhs

5.  Details of CSR amount spent during the 
Financial Year 2016-17 

 (a)  Total amount spent during the Financial 
Year: Rs. 178.09 Lakhs

 (b)  Amount unspent, if any: NIL

 (c)  Manner in which the amount spent during 
the Financial Year: As detailed below.

ANNEXURE I TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities as prescribed under Section 135 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

SR. 
No

CSR Project or Activity 
identified

Sector 
in which 
the 
Project 
is 
covered 
(Notes)

Projects or programs 
(1) Local Area or 
other 
(2) Specify the state 
or district where 
projects or programs 
were undertaken

Amount 
outlay 
(Budget) 
projects 
or 
programs 
wise

Amount 
spent on the 
project or 
programs 
(1) Direct 
 &
(2) Overhead

Cumulative 
expenditure 
upto the 
reporting 
period

Amount 
spent: 
Directly or 
Through 
Implementing 
Agency

1 Supporting the PM’s 
Clean India Campaign 
by building toilets & 
creating awareness 
about Sanitation & 
Cleanliness

(i) Aurangabad 
(Maharashtra)

21.41 22.95 22.95 Habitat for 
Humanity

2 Supporting education 
of underprivileged girls 
through project ‘Nanhi 
Kali’

(ii) Nasik (Maharashtra), 
Ratlam (Madhya 
Pradesh), Varanasi 
(Uttar Pradesh)

100.19 100.19 100.19 K.C. 
Mahindra 
Education 
Trust
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Amount in Rs. Lakhs

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

SR. 
No

CSR Project or Activity 
identified

Sector 
in which 
the 
Project 
is 
covered 
(Notes)

Projects or programs 
(1) Local Area or 
other 
(2) Specify the state 
or district where 
projects or programs 
were undertaken

Amount 
outlay 
(Budget) 
projects 
or 
programs 
wise

Amount 
spent on the 
project or 
programs 
(1) Direct 
 &
(2) Overhead

Cumulative 
expenditure 
upto the 
reporting 
period

Amount 
spent: 
Directly or 
Through 
Implementing 
Agency

3 Sensitizing community 
on cashless methods of 
transaction

(ii) Maharashtra, Gujarat, 
Rajasthan, Madhya 
Pradesh, Tamil Nadu, 
Chhattisgarh, Andhra 
Pradesh 

25.00 25.00 25.00 Mahindra 
Foundation

4 Donating a school bus 
to provide convenience 
to female students to 
reach college campus 
from remote areas 

(ii) Palanpur (Gujarat) 12.95 12.95 12.95 Banaskantha 
District 
Kelavani 
Mandal

5 Education Support 
to Schools & 
underprivileged 
students 

(ii) Mumbai 
(Maharashtra)

1.00 1.00 1.00 Shree 
Harihar Putra 
Bhajan Samaj

6 Providing financial 
support for protection 
of national heritage 

(iii) Amritsar (Punjab) 1.00 1.00 1.00 The Team 
Work Fine 
Arts Society 

7 Providing waterwheels 
to address the issue of 
safe water availability

(iv) Latur District 
(Maharashtra)

15.00 15.00 15.00 Habitat for 
Humanity

Notes:
(i)  Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting health care including preventive health care and 

sanitation including contribution to the Swach Bharat Kosh set-up by the Central Government for the 
promotion of sanitation and making available safe drinking water.

(ii)  Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills especially 
among children, women, elderly, and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects.

(iii)  Protection of national heritage, art & culture.

(iv) Rural development projects.

6.   In case the Company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the last three 
financial years or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount 
in its Board report : N.A.

7.  The CSR Committee of the Company hereby confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR 
Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

For Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited For and on behalf of the Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee of Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited 

Anuj Mehra Ramesh Iyer
Managing Director Chairman of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
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Board’s Report to the Shareholders

Prelude
The Company is a housing finance company registered 
with the National Housing Bank, and is engaged in 
providing Home Loans primarily in rural and semi-
urban areas for construction or purchase of a new 
property or for repairs, modernization or extension of 
an existing home. 

This Policy shall be effective from the financial year 
2014 - 15.

Intent of the Policy 
The intent of the Remuneration Policy of Directors 
of Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited (“the 
Company”) is to focus on enhancing the value and 
to attract and retain quality individuals with requisite 
knowledge and excellence as Executive and Non-
Executive Directors for achieving objectives of the 
Company and to place the Company in a leading 
position. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) 
of the Board shall, while formulating the policy ensure 
that —

a)  the level and composition of remuneration is 
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 
motivate Directors of the quality required to run 
the company successfully;

b)  relationship of remuneration to performance 
is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks; and

c)  remuneration to Directors, key managerial 
personnel and senior management involves a 
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting 
short and long-term performance objectives 
appropriate to the working of the company and 
its goals.

While deciding the policy on remuneration of 
Directors, the Committee may consider amongst 
other things, the duties and responsibilities cast 
by the Companies Act, 2013, various Codes of 
Conduct, Articles of Association, restrictions on the 
remuneration to Directors as also the remuneration 
drawn by Directors of other companies in the industry, 
the valuable contributions and inputs from Directors 
based on their knowledge, experience and expertise 
in shaping the destiny of the Company etc. The Policy 

is guided by a reward framework and set of principles 
and objectives as more fully and particularly envisaged 
under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and principles pertaining to qualifications, positive 
attributes, integrity and independence of Directors 
etc.

Directors
The Managing Director is an executive of the Company 
and draws remuneration from the Company. The 
Non-Executive Chairman and Independent Directors 
may receive sitting fees for attending the meeting 
of the Board and the Committees thereof, if fixed by 
the Board of Directors from time to time subject to 
statutory provisions. The Non-Executive Chairman 
and Independent Directors would be entitled to the 
remuneration under the Companies Act, 2013. 
A Non-Executive Non-Independent Director who 
receives remuneration from the Holding Company 
or a Group Company will not be paid any sitting fees 
or any remuneration. In addition to the above, the 
Directors are entitled for reimbursement of expenses 
incurred in discharge of their duties. Payment of 
Remuneration to Nominee Directors shall be governed 
by the agreement with the Financial Institution/Bank 
appointing the Nominee Director and by the Articles 
of Association of the Company.

The Managing Director and other eligible Director(s) 
as per extant statutory provisions may be granted 
Employees Stock Options, Stock Appreciation Rights 
or any other Share based Employee benefits pursuant 
to any scheme that may be approved by the Board of 
Directors and shareholders of the Company subject to 
such other approvals as may be required. 

Non-Executive Directors may be paid remuneration 
either by way of monthly payment or at a specified 
percentage of net profits of the Company or partly 
by one way and partly by another, subject to the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The NRC while determining the remuneration shall 
ensure the level and composition of remuneration to 
be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 
motivate the person to ensure the quality required to 
run the Company successfully. While considering the 
remuneration, the NRC shall also ensure a balance 
between fixed and performance-linked variable pay 
reflecting short and long term performance objectives 
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

ANNEXURE II TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
POLICY ON REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
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The NRC shall consider that a successful 
Remuneration Policy must ensure that some part 
of the remuneration is linked to the achievement of 
corporate performance targets.

Managing Director/Executive Directors
The term of office and remuneration of Managing 
Director/Executive Directors are subject to the 
approval of the Board of Directors, shareholders, 
and Central Government, as may be required and 
the limits laid down under the Companies Act, 2013, 
from time to time.

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits 
or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay, 
subject to the requisite approvals, remuneration to its 
Managing Director/Executive Directors in accordance 
with the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

If any Managing Director/Executive Director draws or 
receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration 
any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed 
under the Companies Act, 2013 or without the prior 
sanction of the Central Government, where required, 
he/she shall refund such sums to the Company and 
until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the 
Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of 
such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the 
Central Government.

Remuneration of the Managing Director/Executive 
Directors reflects the overall remuneration philosophy 
and guiding principle of the Company. While 
considering the appointment and remuneration of 
Managing Director/Executive Directors, the NRC 
shall consider the industry benchmarks, merit and 
seniority of the person and shall ensure that the 
remuneration proposed to be paid is commensurate 
with the remuneration packages paid to similar senior 
level counterpart(s) in other companies.

Remuneration for Managing Director / Executive 
Director is designed subject to the limits laid down 
under the Companies Act, 2013 to remunerate 
them fairly and responsibly. The remuneration to the 
Managing Director / Executive Director comprises of 
salary, perquisites and performance based incentive 
apart from retirement benefits like Provident Fund, 
Superannuation, Gratuity, Leave Encashment etc., as 
per the Rules of the Company. Salary is paid within 
the range approved by the Shareholders. Increments 
are effective annually, as recommended / approved 
by the NRC / Board. In terms of the shareholders’ 
approval, the Commission may be paid to Managing 
Director in any Financial Year at a rate not exceeding 

th% (one fourth percent) per annum of the profits 

of the Company computed in accordance with the 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as 
may be recommended by the NRC and approved by 
the Board.

The total remuneration will have a flexible component 
with a bouquet of allowances to enable the Managing 
Director/Executive Director to choose the allowances 
as well as the quantum based on laid down limits as 
per the Company policy. The flexible component can 
be varied only once annually.

The actual pay-out of variable component of 
the remuneration will be a function of individual 
performance as well as business performance. 
Business performance is evaluated using a Balanced 
Score Card (BSC) while individual performance is 
evaluated on Key Result Areas (KRAs). Both the 
BSC and KRAs are evaluated at the end of the fiscal 
year to arrive at the BSC rating of the business and 
performance rating of the individual.

Remuneration also aims to motivate the Personnel to 
deliver Company’s key business strategies, create a 
strong performance-oriented environment and reward 
achievement of meaningful targets over the short and 
long-term.

The Managing Director/Executive Directors are 
entitled to customary non-monetary benefits such 
as company cars, health care benefits, leave travel, 
communication facilities etc., as per the policies of 
the Company. The Managing Director and Executive 
Directors are entitled to grant of Stock Options as per 
the approved Stock Options Schemes of the Company 
from time to time.

Disclosures 
Information on the total remuneration of members 
of the Company’s Board of Directors, Managing 
Director/Executive Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel/Senior Management Personnel may be 
disclosed in the Board’s Report as per statutory 
requirements laid down in this regard.

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR KEY 
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND 
EMPLOYEES
This Policy shall be effective from the financial year 
2014 - 15.

Objective
To establish guidelines for remunerating employees 
fairly and in keeping with Statutes.

Definition(s)
“Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) as defined in 
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Board’s Report to the Shareholders

section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013 means:

(i)  the Chief Executive Officer or the Managing 
Director or Manager;

(ii)  the Company Secretary;

(iii)  the Whole-time Director;

(iv)  the Chief Financial Officer; and 

(v)  such other officer as may be prescribed.

Standard
The broad structure of compensation payable to 
employees is as under:

•  Fixed pay which has components like basic salary 
& other allowances / flexi pay as per the grade 
where the employees can choose allowances 
from bouquet of options.

•  Variable pay (to certain grades) in the form of 
annual / half yearly performance pay based on 
Key Result Areas agreed – as applicable.

•  Incentives, either monthly or quarterly, based on 
targets in the lower grades.

•  Retirals such as Provident Fund, Gratuity & 
Superannuation (for certain grades).

•  Benefits such as Employee Stock Option Scheme, 
car scheme, medical & dental benefit, loans, 
insurance etc. as per grades.

Increments
Salary increase is given to eligible employees based on 
position, performance & market dynamics as decided 
from time to time.

For and on behalf of the Board 

Ramesh Iyer
Chairman

Mumbai, 17th April, 2017
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To, 
The Members, 
Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited, 
Mahindra Towers, P.K. Kurne Chowk, Worli,  
Mumbai- 400 018.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the 
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Mahindra 
Rural Housing Finance Limited (hereinafter called 
“the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted 
for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017 
in a manner that provided us reasonable basis 
for evaluating the corporate conduct / statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

On the basis of the above and on our verification 
of documents, books, papers, minutes, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company and also the information provided by 
the Company, its officers, agents and authorised 
representatives during the conduct of the Audit, 
We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company 
has, during the period covered under the Audit as 
aforesaid, complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has 
proper Board processes and compliance mechanism 
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 
the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2017 according to the provisions of: 

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made 
there under.

(ii)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 
2008.

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations 
and Bye-Laws framed there under.

(iv)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 
and the Rules made there under.

(v)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding Companies Act and 
dealing with client. 

(vi)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (to the extent applicable to 
debt listed securities). 

(vii)  The National Housing Bank Act, 1987.

(viii)  The Housing Finance Companies (NHB) 
Directions, 2010.

(ix)  The Housing Finance Companies Issuance of Non-
Convertible Debentures on Private Placement 
basis (NHB) Directions, 2014.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses of the following:

(i)  the Secretarial Standards 1 & 2 issued by The 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

(ii)  Listing Agreement for debt securities entered 
into with BSE Limited in respect of privately 
placed non-convertible debentures issued by the 
Company.

Based on the information and explanation provided, 
the Company had no transactions during the period 
covered under the Audit requiring the compliance of 
the provisions of:

a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009.

b)  The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 
and the Rules and Regulations made there 
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, 
Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings.

We further report that 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly 
constituted with the proper balance of Executive 
Director, Non-Executive Directors and Independent 
Directors. There was no change in the composition 
of the Board of Directors during the period covered 
under the Audit.

Adequate notice and detailed notes on Agenda were 
given to all Directors at least seven days in advance to 
schedule the Board Meetings. There exists a system 

ANNEXURE III TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]  

For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2017
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Board’s Report to the Shareholders

for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the Agenda items before the Meeting 
and for meaningful participation at the Meeting.

Majority decision is carried through and recorded 
as part of the minutes. We understand that there 
were no dissenting members’ views requiring to be 
captured in the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems 
and processes in the Company commensurate with 
the size and operations of the Company to monitor 
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the period covered 
under the Audit, the Company has made the following 
specific actions having a major bearing on the 
company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred 
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, referred to above:

a)  During the year under review, the Company has 
raised an amount of Rs. 122.00 crores by issue 

of 1220 Unsecured Subordinated Redeemable 
Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of Rs. 
10,00,000 each for cash at par on a Private 
Placement basis. The Company has also raised 
an amount  of  Rs. 463.50 crores  by issue 
of 4635 Secured Subordinated Redeemable 
Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of Rs. 
10,00,000 each for cash at par on a Private 
Placement basis, including zero coupon bond.

b)  During the year the Company has issued and 
allotted 1,94,02,985 Equity Shares of Rs.10 
each for cash at a premium of Rs.57 per Equity 
Share on a rights basis, aggregating to Rs. 
129,99,99,995 /-.

For KSR & Co Company Secretaries LLP

 C.V.Madhusudhanan
Place: Coimbatore  Partner
Date: 7th April, 2017  (FCS: 5367; CP: 4408)

KSR/CBE/M179/024/2017-18

To

The Members, 
Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited 
Mahindra Towers, P.K. Kurne Chowk, Worli,  
Mumbai- 400 018.

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be 
read along with this letter. 

1.  Maintenance of secretarial record is the 
responsibility of the management of the company. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2.  We have followed the audit practices and 
processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness 
of the contents of the Secretarial records. The 
verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. 
We believe that the processes and practices, 

we followed provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

3.  We have not verified the correctness and 
appropriateness of financial records and Books 
of Accounts of the company.

4.  The compliance of the provisions of Corporate 
and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of management. 
Our examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis.

5.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an 
assurance as to the future viability of the company 
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the 
company. 

For KSR & Co Company Secretaries LLP

 C.V.Madhusudhanan
Place: Coimbatore  Partner
Date: 7th April, 2017  (FCS: 5367; CP: 4408)
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I.  REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS 
i. CIN U65922MH2007PLC169791
ii. Registration Date 9th April, 2007
iii. Name of the Company Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited
iv. Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public Limited Company
v. Address of the Registered office and 

contact details
Mahindra Towers,
P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli,
Mumbai - 400018.
Tel.: +91 22 6652 3500  
Fax: +91 22 2497 2741
Email: customercare.mrhfl@mahfin.com
Website: www.mahindrahomefinance.com 

vi. Whether listed company Yes / No Yes. As per Section 2 (52) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is 
considered as a listed Company as its Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) 
are listed on the BSE Limited.

vii. Name, Address and Contact details of 
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Unit : Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited 
Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot No 31 & 32 
Gachibowli, Financial District, 
Nanakramguda, Serilingampally 
Hyderabad – 500 032.
Email : einward.ris@karvy.com
Tel. No.: 040 67162222
Toll Free No.: 1800-345-4001 
Fax No. : 040 23001153.

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 
Sl. 
No.

Name and Description of
main products / services

NIC Code of the
Product/ service

% to total turnover of the
Company

1. Housing Finance 65923 100.0

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
Sl. 
No.

Name and Address
of the Company

CIN/GLN Holding / 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of 
shares held

Applicable 
Section

i. Mahindra & Mahindra Limited 
Gateway Building,
Apollo Bunder,
Mumbai – 400 001.

L65990MH1945PLC004558 Ultimate Holding 
Company

 87.50* 2(46)

ii. Mahindra & Mahindra Financial 
Services Limited 
Gateway Building,
Apollo Bunder,
Mumbai – 400 001.

L65921MH1991PLC059642 Holding Company 87.50 2(46)

*  There is no direct shareholding in the Company by Mahindra & Mahindra Limited, the Ultimate Holding Company. Shares 
are held through Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited, subsidiary of Mahindra & Mahindra Limited. 

ANNEXURE IV TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
FORM NO. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
As on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017  

[Pursuant to section 92(3) and Rule 12(1) of the Companies  
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
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IV.  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE 
OF TOTAL EQUITY)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of shareholders
No. of Shares held at the 

beginning of the year
No. of Shares held 

at the end of the year
% 

change 
during 

the 
year

Demat Physical Total % of 
total 

shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
total 

shares
A. PROMOTERS 
(1) INDIAN 
 a) Individual/HUF - - - - - - - - -
 b) Central Govt. - - - - - - - - -
 c) State Govt.(s) - - - - - - - - -
 d) Bodies Corp. 5,75,19,991 87,43,052 6,62,63,043 87.50 8,32,40,643 12 8,32,40,655 87.50 0.00
 e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
 f) Any Other - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A)(1) 5,75,19,991 87,43,052 6,62,63,043 87.50 8,32,40,643 12 8,32,40,655 87.50 0.00
(2) FOREIGN 
 a) NRIs - Individuals - - - - - - - - -
 b) Other – Individuals - - - - - - - - -
 c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -
 d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
 e) Any Other - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A)(2) - - - - - - - - -
Total shareholding of 
Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)

5,75,19,991 87,43,052 6,62,63,043 87.50 8,32,40,643 12 8,32,40,655 87.50 0.00

B.  PUBLIC 
SHAREHOLDING 

1. INSTITUTIONS 
 a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -
 b) Banks / FI 82,17,134 12,49,004 94,66,138 12.50 1,18,91,511 - 1,18,91,511 12.50 0.00
 c) Central Govt. - - - - - - - - -
 d) State Govt.(s) - - - - - - - - -
 e) Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -
 f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -
 g) FIIs - - - - - - - - -
 h)  Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds 
- - - - - - - - -

 i)  Others - Qualified 
Foreign Investor

- - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (B)(1) 82,17,134 12,49,004 94,66,138 12.50 1,18,91,511 - 1,18,91,511 12.50 0.00
2.  NON-INSTITUTIONS 
a) Bodies Corp. 
 i) Indian - - - - - - - - -
 ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -
b) Individuals
 i)  Individual 

shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
up to Rs. 1 lakh 

- - - - - - - - -

 ii)  Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
in excess of Rs. 1 
lakh 

- - - - - - - - -

c)  Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (B)(2) - - - - - - - - -
Total Public Shareholding 
(B) = (B)(1)+(B)(2)

82,17,134 12,49,004 94,66,138 12.50 1,18,91,511 - 1,18,91,511 12.50 0.00

C.  SHARES HELD BY 
CUSTODIAN FOR GDRS 
& ADRS 

- - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) 6,57,37,125 99,92,056 7,57,29,181 100.00 9,51,32,154 12 9,51,32,166 100.00 0.00
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl. 
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year

Shareholding at the end of the year % 
change 

in share-
holding 
during 

the year

No. of 
Shares

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

No. of Shares % of 
total 

Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

1. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services 
Limited 

6,62,63,031 87.50 Nil 8,32,40,643 87.50 Nil 0.00

2. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services 
Limited Jointly with  
Mr. Ramesh Iyer 

2 0.00 Nil 2 0.00 Nil 0.00

3. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services 
Limited Jointly with  
Mr. Venkatraman Ravi 

2 0.00 Nil 2 0.00 Nil 0.00

4. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services 
Limited Jointly with  
Mr. Ravi Kulkarni

2 0.00 Nil 2 0.00 Nil 0.00

5. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services 
Limited Jointly with  
Mr. Anuj Mehra

2 0.00 Nil 2 0.00 Nil 0.00

6. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services 
Limited Jointly with 
Mr. Rajesh Vasudevan

2 0.00 Nil 2 0.00 Nil 0.00

7. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services 
Limited Jointly with  
Mr. Dinesh Prajapati

2 0.00 Nil 2 0.00 Nil 0.00

TOTAL 6,62,63,043 87.50 Nil 8,32,40,655 87.50 Nil 0.00

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
Particulars Shareholding at the beginning of 

the year (As on 1st April, 2016)
Cumulative Shareholding during 

the year (from 1st April, 2016 to 
31st March, 2017)

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares of the 

Company
Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited 
alongwith joint holders
At the beginning of the year 6,62,63,043 87.50 6,62,63,043 87.50
Date wise increase / decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment 
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

On 16h March, 2017, 1,69,77,612 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each at 
a premium pf Rs. 57 per Equity Share were allotted on a Right basis to 
Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited.

Increase in Shareholding of Promoters is on account of allotment of Equity 
Shares on a Right basis, as mentioned above. 

At the end of the year (as on 31st March, 2017) 8,32,40,655 87.50 8,32,40,655 87.50
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(iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs 
and ADRs)

For Each of the Top 10 
Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year (As on 1st April, 2016)

Cumulative Shareholding during the 
year (from 1st April, 2016 to 31st 

March, 2017)
No. of Shares % of total Shares 

of the Company
No. of Shares % of total Shares 

of the Company
National Housing Bank
At the beginning of the year  
(as on 1st April, 2016)

94,66,138 12.50 94,66,138 12.50

Date wise increase / decrease 
in Shareholding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase / 
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 
bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

On 16th March, 2017, 24,25,373 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of 
Rs. 57 per Equity Share were allotted on a Rights basis to National Housing Bank.

Increase in shareholding of National Housing Bank is on account of allotment of 
Equity Shares on a Rights basis, as mentioned above.

At the end of the year
(as on 31st March, 2017)

1,18,91,511 12.50 1,18, 91,511 12.50

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Sl. 
No.

For each of the directors and KMP Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year (As 

on 1st April, 2016)

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year (from  
1st April, 2016 to  
31st March, 2017)

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company
1. Mr. Ramesh Iyer - Chairman (jointly with Mahindra & 

Mahindra Financial Services Limited)
At the beginning of the year (as on 1st April, 2016) 2 0.00 2 0.00
Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (as on 31st March, 2017) 2 0.00 2 0.00
2. Mr. V. Ravi - Director (jointly with Mahindra & Mahindra 

Financial Services Limited)
At the beginning of the year (as on 1st April, 2016) 2 0.00 2 0.00
Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (as on 31st March, 2017) 2 0.00 2 0.00
3. Mr. K. Chandrasekar – Director

At the beginning of the year (as on 1st April, 2016) Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00
Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (as on 31st March, 2017) Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00
4. Mr. K. Chakravarthy – Director (Nominee of National 

Housing Bank)
At the beginning of the year (as on 1st April, 2016) Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00
Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (as on 31st March, 2017) Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00
5. Mr. Nityanath Ghanekar – Director

At the beginning of the year (as on 1st April, 2016) Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00
Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (as on 31st March, 2017) Nil 0.00 Nil
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Sl. 
No.

For each of the directors and KMP Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year (As 

on 1st April, 2016)

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year (from  
1st April, 2016 to  
31st March, 2017)

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company
6. Mrs. Anjali Raina – Director

At the beginning of the year (as on 1st April, 2016) Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00
Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (as on 31st March, 2017) Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00
7. Mr. Anuj Mehra – Managing Director, Key Managerial 

Personnel (jointly with Mahindra & Mahindra Financial 
Services Limited)
At the beginning of the year (as on 1st April, 2016) 2 0.00 2 0.00
Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (as on 31st March, 2017) 2 0.00 2 0.00
8. Dr. Narendra Mairpady – Director 

At the beginning of the year (as on 1st April, 2016) Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00
Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (as on 31st March, 2017) Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00
9. Mr. Dharmesh Vakharia – Chief Financial Officer, Key 

Managerial Personnel 
At the beginning of the year (as on 1st April, 2016) Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00
Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (as on 31st March, 2017) Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00
10. Mr. Navin Joshi– Company Secretary, Key Managerial 

Personnel (Appointed as the Company Secretary with effect 
from 14th July, 2016)
At the beginning of the year (as on 1st April, 2016) Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00
Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (as on 31st March, 2017) Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00
11. Ms. Arnavaz M. Pardiwalla – Company Secretary, Key 

Managerial Personnel (Ceased to be the Company 
Secretary with effect from 14th July, 2016)
At the beginning of the year (as on 1st April, 2016) Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00
Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

No change

At the end of the year (as on 31st March, 2017) Nil 0.00 Nil 0.00
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V.  INDEBTEDNESS – 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment 

 Amount in Rs. Lakhs
Particulars Secured Loans

excluding 
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the Financial Year
i)  Principal Amount 2,31,056.01 35,611.50 NIL 2,66,667.51
ii) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL
iii) Interest accrued but not due 923.45 1,053.55 NIL 1,977.00
Total (i+ii+iii) 2,31,979.46 36,665.05 NIL 2,68,644.51
Change in Indebtedness during the Financial Year 
Addition 5,24,002.63 2,31,364.41 NIL 7,55,367.04
Reduction 4,32,331.59 2,06,965.05 NIL 6,39,296.64
Net Change 91,671.04 24,399.36 NIL 1,16,070.40
Indebtedness at the end of the Financial Year 
i) Principal Amount 321,705.76 59,450.00 NIL 381,155.76
ii) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL
iii) Interest accrued but not due 1,944.74 1,614.41 NIL 3,559.15
Total (i+ii+iii) 3,23,650.50 61,064.41 NIL 3,84,714.91

VI.  REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Amount in Rs. Lakhs
Sl.
no.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager
Mr. Anuj Mehra,

Managing Director 
1. Gross salary 

(a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 143.14
(b)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 48.70*
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 NIL

2. Stock Option NIL
3. Sweat Equity NIL
4. Commission 

-  as % of profit NIL
-  others NIL

5. Others (medical reimbursement) 0.15
Total (A) 191.99
Ceiling as per the Act 5% of the Net Profits equivalent 

to Rs. 949.53 Lakhs with respect 
to the ceiling for the Company 
applicable for the financial year 
covered by this Report.

*Includes perquisite value of Stock options granted by Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited (Holding Company).
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B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS: 
 Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Sl.
no.

Particulars of Remuneration Names of Directors Total 
Amount 

1. Independent Directors Mr.  
Nityanath 
Ghanekar

Mrs.  
Anjali  
Raina

Dr. 
Narendra 
Mairpady

Fee for attending Board / Committee Meetings 2.60 3.70 2.50 8.80
Commission 5.00 5.00 5.00 15.00
Other NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (1) 7.60 8.70 7.50 23.80

2. Other Non-Executive Directors Mr. 
Ramesh 

Iyer

Mr. K. 
Chandrasekar

Mr. K. 
Chakravarthy

Mr. V. Ravi Total 
Amount

Fee for attending Board / Committee Meetings NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Others NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (2) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (B)=(1+2) NIL 7.60 8.70 7.50 23.80
Overall Ceiling as per the Act (%) 1% of the Net Profits equivalent to Rs. 189.91 Lakhs with respect to 

the ceiling for the Company applicable for the financial year covered by 
this Report.

Total Managerial Remuneration (A+B) 215.79

C.  REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER / WTD: 

Amount in Rs. Lakhs
Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
Chief Financial 

Officer
(Mr. Dharmesh 

Vakharia)

Company 
Secretary

Total Amount

1. Gross salary 
(a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 

Income-tax Act, 1961
72.66 9.75 82.41

(b)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 12.72(1) NIL 12.72(1)

(c)  Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income-
tax Act, 1961

NIL NIL NIL

2. Stock Option NIL NIL NIL
3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL
4. Commission 

- as % of profit 
- others 

NIL NIL NIL

5. Others (medical reimbursement) 0.15 NIL 0.15
Total 85.53 9.75(2) 95.28

(1) Includes perquisite value of Stock options granted by Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited (Holding Company).

(2)  Secretarial function covered under cost sharing agreement with Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited (Holding 
Company). 
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES : 

Type Section of the 
Companies Act

Brief
Description

Details of 
Penalty / 

Punishment/ 
Compounding 
fees imposed

Authority
[RD / NCLT/ 

COURT]

Appeal made, if 
any (give details)

A. COMPANY

None

 Penalty 

 Punishment

 Compounding 

B. DIRECTORS

 Penalty 

 Punishment

 Compounding 

C.  OTHER OFFICERS IN 
DEFAULT

 Penalty 

 Punishment

 Compounding 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Ramesh Iyer
Chairman 

Mumbai, 17th April, 2017
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(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

 (i)  The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy : 
   The operations of your Company are not energy intensive. However, adequate measures have been 

initiated to reduce energy consumption.

 (ii)  The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: 
   The operations of your Company are not energy intensive. 

 (iii)  The capital investment on energy conservation equipments: Nil

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

 (i)  The efforts made towards technology absorption : Not Applicable

 (ii)  The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution : Not Applicable

 (iii)  in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the 
beginning of the Financial Year): Not Applicable

  (a) Details of Technology Imported 

  (b) Year of Import 

  (c) Whether the Technology been fully absorbed

  (d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof

 (iv)  Your Company has not incurred any expenditure on Research and Development during the year 
under consideration.

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

  The information on Foreign Exchange Outgo is furnished in the Notes to Accounts. There were no Foreign 
Exchange Earnings during the year under consideration.

For and on behalf of the Board 

Ramesh Iyer
Chairman 

Mumbai, 17th April, 2017

ANNEXURE V TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
The particulars in respect of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings 
and Outgo, as required under sub-section (3) (m) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
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1. Prelude
  Mahindra Rural Housing Finance limited 

(MRHFL) is a Housing Finance company 
registered with the National Housing Bank, and 
is engaged in providing home loans primarily 
in rural and semi-urban areas. As part of its 
business activities, the Company deals with 
entities which are related parties.

  The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) places a 
lot of emphasis on Related Party Transactions. 
Provisions of the Act along with the relevant 
Rules governing Related Party Transactions 
have come into effect from April 1, 2014. 

  Section 177(4) of the Act deals with approval 
or any subsequent modification of transactions 
of the Company with related parties by the 
Audit Committee. 

  All Related Party Transactions pursuant to 
section 188 of the Act which are not in the 
ordinary course of business and / or not on 
an Arms’ length basis require prior approval 
of the Board and if such transactions cross 
the threshold limits prescribed under the Act, 
such transactions also require the approval 
of shareholders of the Company by ordinary 
resolution and the Related Parties with whom 
transactions are being entered shall abstain 
from voting on such resolution(s).

  It also requires specified related party 
transactions to be disclosed in the Board’s 
Report along with the justification for entering 
into such transactions.

  As per the requirements of Notification No. 
NHB. HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 issued 
by the National Housing Bank (NHB) vide 
which the NHB notified the Housing Finance 
Companies – Corporate Governance (National 
Housing Bank) Directions, 2016, the company 
shall disclose the policy on dealing with Related 
Party Transactions on its website and also in 
the Annual Report. 

2. Intent of the Policy
  The Objective of this policy is to set out (a) 

the materiality thresholds for related party 
transactions and (b) the manner of dealing 

with the transactions between the Company 
and its related parties based on the Act, 
and any other laws and regulations as may 
be applicable to the Company; and (c) lay 
down the guiding principles and mechanism 
to ensure proper approval, disclosure and 
reporting of transactions as applicable, 
between the Company and any of its related 
parties in the best interest of the Company and 
its stakeholders. 

3. Applicability and Legal Framework
  This Policy on Related Party Transactions shall 

be governed by the Act read with Rules made 
thereunder, as may be in force from time to 
time and regulations, if any, of NHB in this 
regard. Any references to statutory provisions 
shall be construed as references to those 
provisions as amended or re-enacted or as 
their application is modified by other statutory 
provisions (whether before or after the date 
hereof) from time to time and shall include any 
provisions of which they are re-enactments 
(whether with or without modification).

4. Definitions
 (i)  “Arm’s Length basis” means a transaction 

between two related parties that is 
conducted as if they were unrelated, so that 
there is no conflict of interest. [Explanation 
(b) to Section 188(1) of the Act]. 

 (ii)  “Associate Company” shall be as defined 
in the Act and the applicable Accounting 
Standards issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

 (iii)  “Audit Committee” means the Audit 
Committee constituted by the Board of 
Directors of the Company in accordance 
with section 177 of the Act.

 (iv)  “Board of Directors” or “Board” means 
the Board of Directors of MRHFL, as 
constituted from time to time.

 (v)  “Company” or “MRHFL” means Mahindra 
Rural Housing Finance Limited.

 (vi)  “Control” shall have the same meaning as 
defined in the Act.

ANNEXURE VI TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
Policy on Related Party Transactions
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 (vii)  “Key Managerial Personnel in relation 
to a Company, shall be as defined in the 
Act.

 (viii)  “Ordinary course of business” would 
include usual transactions, customs and 
practices undertaken by the Company 
to conduct its business operations 
and activities and all such activities 
which the Company can undertake as 
per its Memorandum and Articles of 
Association.

 (ix)  “Related Party”, for the purpose of this 
Policy, with reference to the Company, shall 
mean a Related Party as defined in Section 
2(76) of the Act. 

 (x)  “Related Party Transaction” means 
specified transaction mentioned in clause 
(a) to (g) of sub-section (1) of Section 188 
of the Act .

 (xi)  “Relatives” with reference to any person 
shall have the meaning as defined in Section 
2(77) of the Act read with Clause 4 of 
The Companies (Specification of Definition 
details) Rules, 2014 from time to time.

 (xii)  A “transaction” with a related party 
shall be construed to include single 
transaction or a group of transactions 
in a contract.

  Any other term not defined herein shall have 
the same meaning as defined in the Act, the 
Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 or 
any other applicable law or regulation.

5. Policy on Related Party Transactions
  All Related Party Transactions (before being 

entered into) must be reported to the Audit 
Committee for its approval in accordance with 
this Policy.

  The Audit Committee shall periodically review 
this Policy and may recommend amendments 
to this Policy from time to time as it deems 
appropriate.

5.1  Identification of potential related parties and 
transactions

  Every Director and Key Managerial Personnel 
will be responsible for providing a declaration 
containing the following information to the 
Company Secretary on an annual basis and 
whenever there is a change in the information 
provided:

 1. Names of his / her Relatives;

 2.  Partnership firms in which he / she or his 
/ her Relative is a partner;

 3.  Private Companies in which he / she or his 
/ her relative is a member or Director;

 4.  Public Companies in which he / she is a 
Director and holds along with his/her 
Relatives more than 2% of paid up share 
capital;

 5.  Any Body Corporate whose Board of 
Directors, Managing Director or Manager 
is accustomed to act in accordance with 
his / her advice, directions or instructions; 
and

 6.  Persons on whose advice, directions or 
instructions, he / she is accustomed 
to act (other than advice, directions or 
instructions obtained from a person in 
professional capacity).

  Each director and Key Managerial Personnel 
is responsible for providing Notice to the 
Company Secretary of any potential Related 
Party Transaction, including any additional 
information about the transaction that the 
Board/Audit Committee may request, for 
being placed before the Audit Committee and 
the Board. 

  It will be the responsibility of the Directors 
and KMPs to keep the Company updated 
immediately if there is a change in any of the 
declarations provided at the beginning of the 
year. 

5.2  Approval of Related Party Transactions
5.2.1 Prior approval of Audit Committee 
  All Related Party Transactions of the Company, 

as prescribed under the Act, shall require 
prior approval of Audit Committee, whether 
at a meeting or by way of a Resolution by 
circulation.

  The approval of the Audit Committee will be 
sought in the following manner:

 a)  All Related Party Transactions will be 
submitted to the Audit Committee for 
prior approval irrespective of whether such 
transactions are in the ordinary course of 
business and / or at arm’s length or not.
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 b)  Where the Company has entered into 
a master agreement with a related 
party, which stipulates details of every 
transaction like nature of the transaction, 
basis of pricing, credit terms etc., the prior 
approval once given by the Audit Committee 
would suffice and Audit Committee would 
only note the transactions that are entered 
into pursuant to such master agreement 
and will not require any further approval 
of the Audit Committee unless there is 
any change in the terms of the master 
agreement.

  The Audit Committee may grant omnibus 
approval for Related Party Transactions 
proposed to be entered into by the Company 
subject to the following conditions:

 a)  The Audit Committee shall, after obtaining 
the approval of the Board of Directors, 
specify the criteria for granting the omnibus 
approval in line with the Policy on Related 
Party Transactions of the Company and 
such approval shall be applicable in respect 
of transactions which are repetitive in 
nature.

 b)  The criteria for making the omnibus 
approval shall include the following which 
shall be approved by the Board:-

  i.  Maximum value of the transactions, in 
aggregate, which can be allowed under 
the omnibus route in a year.

  ii.  The maximum value per transaction 
which can be allowed.

  iii.  Extent and manner of disclosures to be 
made to the Audit Committee at the 
time of seeking omnibus approval.

  iv.  Review, at such interval as the Audit 
Committee may deem fit, of the related 
party transaction entered into by the 
Company pursuant to each of the 
omnibus approval made.

  v.  Transactions which cannot be subject 
to the omnibus approval by the Audit 
Committee.

   The Audit Committee shall consider the 
following factors while specifying the criteria 
for making omnibus approval, namely:-

  a.  Repetitiveness of the transactions (in 
past or in future).

  b.  Justification for the need of omnibus 
approval.

 c)  The Audit Committee shall satisfy itself on 
the need for omnibus approval and that 
such approval is in the interest of the 
Company.

 d)  Such omnibus approval shall specify (i) 
the name/s of the related party/ies (ii) 
nature and duration of transaction /period 
of transaction (iii) maximum amount of 
transaction that can be entered into, (iv) the 
indicative base price/current contracted 
price and the formula for variation in the 
price if any and (v) such other conditions as 
the Audit Committee may deem fit.

   Provided that where the need for Related 
Party Transaction cannot be foreseen and 
aforesaid details are not available, Audit 
Committee may grant omnibus approval for 
such transactions subject to their value not 
exceeding Rs. one crore per transaction.

   The Audit Committee shall review on a 
quarterly basis, the details of Related Party 
Transactions entered into by the Company 
pursuant to each of the omnibus approval 
given.

   Such omnibus approval shall be valid for a 
period not exceeding one financial year and 
shall require fresh approval after the expiry 
of one financial year.

   Such omnibus approval shall not be made 
for transactions in respect of selling 
or disposing of the undertaking of the 
Company.

   Any member of the Audit Committee who 
has a potential interest in any Related 
Party Transaction will not remain present 
at the Meeting when such Related Party 
Transaction is considered. 

   Prior approval of the Audit Committee 
and Approval of the Shareholders for all 
Related Party Transactions shall not be 
applicable for transactions entered into 
between a holding company and its wholly-
owned subsidiary whose accounts are 
consolidated with such holding company 
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and placed before the shareholders at the 
general meeting for approval.

5.2.2.  Prior approval of Board of Directors under 
the Act

  Transactions with the related parties within the 
scope of Section 188 of the Act, which are 
either not in the Ordinary Course of Business 
or are not at Arm’s Length basis or both 
shall require prior approval of the Board of 
Directors. 

  Where any Director is interested in any 
contract or arrangement with a related party, 
such Director shall not be present at the 
meeting during discussions on the subject 
matter of the resolution relating to such 
contract or arrangement.

5.2.3 Shareholders’ approval requirements
  If the following transactions are likely to exceed 

the thresholds prescribed under the Act, the 
same will require prior approval of the Board of 
Directors and the Shareholders:

 a)  Not in the ordinary course of business but 
at arm’s length; or

 b)  In the ordinary course of business but not 
at arm’s length; or

 c)  Not in the ordinary course of business and 
not at arm’s length basis.

  No member of the Company shall vote on 
Ordinary Resolution if such a member is a 
related party in the context of the contract or 

arrangement which is being considered under 
the Act. 

  Where any contract or arrangement is 
entered into by a director or any other 
employee, without obtaining the consent of the 
Board or approval by an Ordinary Resolution 
in the general meeting under sub-section (1) 
and if it is not ratified by the Board or, as 
the case may be, by the shareholders at a 
meeting within three months from the date 
on which such contract or arrangement was 
entered into, such contract or arrangement 
shall be voidable at the option of the Board 
and if the contract or arrangement is with a 
related party or any director, or is authorised 
by any other director, the directors concerned 
shall indemnify the company against any loss 
incurred by it (Section 188).

  Approval of the shareholders in case of the 
transactions of which the value crosses the 
threshold limits prescribed under the Act, 
shall not be applicable for transactions entered 
into between a holding company and its 
wholly owned subsidiary whose accounts are 
consolidated with such holding company and 
placed before the shareholders at the general 
meeting for approval.

6. Disclosures
  a)  This Policy shall be hosted on the Company’s 

website at www.mahindrhomefinance.com 
and also disclosed in the Annual Report.

 b)  The Annual Report shall contain details of 
all transactions with related parties.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Mahindra Rural Housing Finance 
Limited

Report on the Financial Statements
1.  We have audited the accompanying financial 

statements of Mahindra Rural Housing Finance 
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 
balance sheet as at March 31, 2017, and 
the statements of profit and loss and cash 
flow for the year then ended, and a summary 
of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial 
Statements
2.  The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 

for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect 
to the preparation of these financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance and cash 
flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
(as amended). This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
3.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 

these financial statements based on our audit. 

4.  We have taken into account the provisions of the 
Act, the accounting and auditing standards and 
matters which are required to be included in the 

audit report under the provisions of the Act and 
the Rules made thereunder.

5.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

6.  An audit involves performing procedures to 
obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
the disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to the 
Company’s preparation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of the accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of the accounting 
estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.

7.  We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial 
statements.

Opinion
8.  In our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid financial statements give the 
information required by the Act in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India of the state of affairs of the Company as 
at March 31, 2017, and its profit and its cash 
flows for the period from April 1, 2016 to March 
31, 2017.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements
9.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 

Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government 

Independent Auditor’s Report
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of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 
143 of the Act (the “Order”), and on the basis 
of such checks of the books and records of the 
Company as we considered appropriate and 
according to the information and explanations 
given to us, we give in the Annexure I a statement 
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

10.  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we 
report that:

 a.  we have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

 b.  in our opinion proper books of account 
as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books;

 c.  the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss and Cash Flow dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of 
account;

 d.  in our opinion, the aforesaid financial 
statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of 
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

 e.  on the basis of written representations 
received from the directors as on March 
31, 2017 taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2017, from 
being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act.

 f.  with respect to the adequacy of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate 
report in Annexure II.

 g.  with respect to the other matters to be 
included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014(as amended), in our 
opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to 
us:

  i.  The Company has disclosed the impact 
of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its financial statements 
– Refer Note 14 to the financial 
statements.

  ii.  The Company does not have any long-
term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there are any 
material foreseeable losses that need 
provision.

  iii.  During the year, there were no amounts 
which were required to be transferred 
by the Company to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund.

  iv.  The Company has provided requisite 
disclosures in its financial statements 
as to holdings as well as dealings 
in Specified Bank Notes during the 
period from 8th November, 2016 
to 30th December, 2016. Based on 
audit procedures and relying on the 
management representation we report 
that disclosures are in accordance 
with books of account maintained by 
the company and as prescribed by the 
management – Refer Note [2.15]

For B. K. Khare& Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration Number 105102W

Shirish Rahalkar
Partner

Membership Number: 111212

Mumbai, April 17, 2017
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Annexure I to the Auditor’s Report
Referred to in paragraph 9 of our report of even date on the standalone financial statements 
of Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited for the year ended March 31, 2017

I. (a)  The Company has maintained proper 
records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed 
assets.

 (b)  The fixed assets are physically verified by the 
Management according to a programme of 
phased verification, which, in our opinion, 
is reasonable having regard to the size of 
the Company and the nature of its assets.  
Pursuant to the programme, a portion of 
the fixed assets has been physically verified 
by the Management during the year and no 
material discrepancies have been noticed in 
respect of assets verified during the year.

 (c)  According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, 
the title deeds of immovable properties are 
held in the name of the Company.

II.  The Company is in the business of providing 
housing finance and consequently, does not hold 
any inventory. Hence, para 3(ii) of the Order is 
not applicable to the company.

III.  There are no companies, firms or other parties 
covered in the register maintained under section 
189 of Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, para 
3(iii) (a), (b) & (c) of the Order is not applicable to 
the company.

IV.  The Company has not granted any loans or made 
any investments, or provided any guarantees or 
security to the parties covered under Section 
185 and Section 186. Therefore, para 3(iv) of 

the Order is not applicable to the company.

V.  The Company has not accepted any deposits from 
the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 
75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there 
under to the extent notified. Therefore, para 3(v) 
of the Order is not applicable to the company.

VI.  The Central Government has not prescribed 
the maintenance of cost records under section 
148(1) of the Act, for any of the services 
rendered by the Company.

VII. (a)  According to the records of the Company and 
information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues including provident fund, 
employees’ state insurance, income tax, 
service tax, duty of customs, value added 
tax, cess and other applicable statutory 
dues with the appropriate authorities.

 (b)  According to the information and explanations 
given to us, there are no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of Provident 
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income 
tax, Service Tax, duty of customs  and Value 
Added Tax and other material statutory dues 
that were outstanding, at the year-end for 
a period of more than six months from the 
date they became payable. 

 (c)  except for the following cases, there are no 
disputed dues of income tax or service tax 
or duty of customs or value added tax which 
have not been deposited with the relevant 
authority.

Name of Statute Nature of dues Amt in Rs.  Period to which 
amount relates

Forum where 
pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 37,75,670 A.Y. 2012-13 CIT(A)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 5,41,775 A.Y. 2013-14 CIT(A)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 22,54,929 A.Y. 2014-15 CIT(A)

VIII.  On the basis of examination of relevant records 
and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of any dues from financial institution 
or bank or debenture holders as at the Balance 
Sheet date.

IX.  In our opinion and according to the information 

and explanations given to us, during the year, 
the term loans were applied for the purposes for 
which they were obtained. During the year, there 
were no moneys raised by way of initial public 
offer or further public offer.

X.  Except for 28 cases of frauds aggregating 
Rs.36.04 Lakhs which were noticed by the 
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management and informed to us, we have 
neither come across any instance of fraud by the 
Company or on the Company by its officers or 
employees, noticed or reported during the year, 
nor have we been informed of such case by the 
Management.

XI.  On the basis of examination of relevant records 
and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has paid or provided 
managerial remuneration in accordance with the 
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions 
of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the 
Companies Act, 2013.

XII.  The Company is not a ‘Nidhi Company’, therefore, 
para 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

XIII.  The Company has entered into transactions with 
related parties in compliance with the provisions 
of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details 
of such related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the financial statements as required 
under Accounting Standard (AS) 18, Related 
Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

XIV.  The Company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or fully 

or partly convertible debentures during the year 
under audit, therefore, para 3(xiv) of the Order is 
not applicable to the company.

XV.  During the course of our examination of the 
books and records of the Company, carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted 
auditing practices in India, and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons 
connected with him.  Accordingly, the provisions 
of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company.

XVI.  The Company is not required to be registered 
under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of 
Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company.

For B. K. Khare& Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration Number 105102W

Shirish Rahalkar
Partner

Membership Number: 111212

Mumbai, April 17, 2017

Annexure II to the Independent Auditor’s Report 
of even date on the Financial Statements of Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of Mahindra Rural Housing Finance 
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in 
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities 

include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that operate 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to the Company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to 
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the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that 

(1)  pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company;

(2)  provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of 
the company; and 

(3)  Provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 
an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls 
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B. K. Khare& Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration Number 105102W

Shirish Rahalkar
Partner

Membership Number: 111212

Mumbai, April 17, 2017
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Balance Sheet
As at March 31, 2017

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.
This is the Balance Sheet referred in our report of even date.

For B. K. Khare & Co.  Ramesh Iyer  Nityanath Ghanekar  Anjali Raina  V. Ravi 
Chartered Accountants
FRN :105102W

Chairman Director Director Director

Shirish Rahalkar   K. Chakravarthy  K. Chandrasekar  M. Narendra  Anuj Mehra 
Partner Director Director Director  Managing Director 
Membership No. 111212

Navin Joshi  Dharmesh Vakharia 
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 
Date  : 17th April 2017
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Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
As at March 31

Note No. 2017 2016
I. EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1) Shareholders' funds

a) Share Capital 1  9,513.22  7,572.92 
b) Reserves and Surplus 2  38,074.99  20,003.78 

 47,588.21  27,576.70 
2) Non-Current Liabilities

a) Long Term Borrowings 3 2,44,049.75 2,04,106.47
b) Long Term Provisions 4  6,279.52  3,491.23 

2,50,329.27 2,07,597.70
3) Current Liabilities

a) Short Term Borrowings 5  62,729.30  36,649.45 
b) Trade Payables 6
 i) Micro & Small Enterprises  -    -   
 ii) Other than Micro and Small Enterprises  3,400.50  2,012.11 
c) Other Current Liabilities 7 1,18,745.55  51,086.63 
d) Short Term Provisions 8  8,695.82  5,201.38 

1,93,571.17  94,949.57 
TOTAL 4,91,488.65 3,30,123.97

II. ASSETS
1) Non-Current Assets

a) Fixed Assets 9
 i) Tangible Assets  1,526.36  1,046.06 
 ii) Intangible assets  32.53  -   
 iii) Capital work-in-progress  6.58  -   
b) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 10  1,408.39  583.89 
c) Long Term Loans and Advances 11 3,64,996.50 2,47,715.80

3,67,970.36 2,49,345.75
2) Current Assets

a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 12  1,622.45  1,127.21 
b) Short Term Loans and Advances 13 1,21,895.84 79,651.01

1,23,518.29 80,778.22
TOTAL 4,91,488.65 3,30,123.97
Summary of significant accounting policies and notes to 
the financial statements

I & II
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The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Statement of Profit & Loss.
This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred in our report of even date.

For B. K. Khare & Co.  Ramesh Iyer  Nityanath Ghanekar  Anjali Raina  V. Ravi 
Chartered Accountants
FRN :105102W

Chairman Director Director Director

Shirish Rahalkar   K. Chakravarthy  K. Chandrasekar  M. Narendra  Anuj Mehra 
Partner Director Director Director  Managing Director 
Membership No. 111212

Navin Joshi  Dharmesh Vakharia 
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 
Date  : 17th April 2017

Balance Sheet | Statement of Profit and Loss

Statement of Profit and Loss
For the year ended March 31, 2017

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Note No.
Year ended March 31

2017 2016
I. Revenue from Operations 15 70,333.57 49,536.90
II. Other Income 16 3.32 7.83
III. Total Revenue (I + II) 70,336.89 49,544.73
IV. Expenses:

Employee Benefits Expense 17 12,847.83 9,218.31
Finance Costs 18 29,794.38 21,332.05
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 19 528.04 343.34
Loan Provisions and Write Offs 20 7,125.55 3,873.47
Other Expenses 21 7,350.83 5,107.92
Total Expenses 57,646.63 39,875.09

V Profit Before Tax (III - IV) 12,690.26 9,669.64
VI Tax expense:

(1) Current Tax 5,260.00 3,818.00
(2) Deferred Tax (824.50) (488.29)
(3)  (Excess) / Short Provision for Income Tax - earlier 

years
(45.79) 71.90

4,389.71 3,401.61
VII Profit / (Loss) for the year (V - VI) 8,300.55 6,268.03
VIII Earnings per Equity Share (Rupees) : 

(Face value - Rs. 10/- per share)
(1) Basic 10.84 9.53
(2) Diluted 10.84 9.53
Summary of significant accounting policies and notes 
to the financial statements

I & II
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Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
Year ended March 31

2017 2016

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxes and contingencies and exceptional items 12,690.26 9,669.64
Add/(Less) : 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 528.04 343.34
Loss/ (profit) on sale of fixed assets 1.25 4.13
Provision for Non Performing Assets 5,537.93 3,112.64
General Provision for Standard Assets 545.36 422.75
Operating profit before working capital changes 19,302.84 13,552.50
Less: (Increase) / decrease in loans and advances (1,59,254.27) (1,17,127.48)
Add : Increase in current liabilities 20,789.75 9,786.92
Cash generated from /(used in) operations (1,19,161.68) (93,788.06)
Advance taxes paid (5,222.33) (3,963.31)
Net Cash Generated from/ (Used In) Operating Activities (A) (1,24,384.01) (97,751.37)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets / Software (1,330.77) (785.05)
Sale of fixed assets 10.81 8.76
Net Cash Generated from/ (Used In) Investing Activities (B) (1,319.96) (776.29)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of Equity Shares (net of issue expenses) 12,987.00 3,992.82
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 1,15,800.00 80,700.00
Repayment of long-term borrowings (27,391.60) (17,524.83)
Increase / (Decrease) in short-term borrowings (net) 26,079.85 32,525.21
Dividend paid on equity shares (1,060.21) (854.58)
Tax on equity dividend paid (215.83) (173.99)
Net Cash Generated from/ (Used In) Financing Activities (C) 1,26,199.21 98,664.63
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 495.24 136.97
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,127.21 990.24
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note no. 12) 1,622.45 1,127.21

Note : The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect method’ as set out in Accounting Standard-3 
‘Cash Flow Statement’
For B. K. Khare & Co.  Ramesh Iyer  Nityanath Ghanekar  Anjali Raina  V. Ravi 
Chartered Accountants
FRN :105102W

Chairman Director Director Director

Shirish Rahalkar   K. Chakravarthy  K. Chandrasekar  M. Narendra  Anuj Mehra 
Partner Director Director Director  Managing Director 
Membership No. 111212

Navin Joshi  Dharmesh Vakharia 
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 
Date  : 17th April 2017



119

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 R

ep
or

ts
Fi

na
nc

ia
l S

ta
te

m
en

ts

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Cash Flow Statement and Notes

NOTE I 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE 
ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31ST, 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
1.1 Basis for preparation of financial statements:
  The financial statements have been prepared 

in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (IGAAP) under the 
historical cost convention as a going concern 
and on accrual basis and in accordance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as 
amended).

  All assets and liabilities have been classified as 
current and non – current as per the Company’s 
normal operating cycle and other criteria set 
out in the Schedule III of the Companies Act, 
2013. Based on the nature of services and 
their realization in cash and cash equivalents, 
the company has ascertained its operating 
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current – 
noncurrent classification of assets and liabilities.

  Further, the Company follows prudential norms 
for Income Recognition, Assets classification 
and provisioning for Non-performing Assets 
as well as contingency provision for Standard 
Assets as prescribed by The National Housing 
Bank for Housing Finance Companies.

1.2 Use of estimates
  The preparation of financial statements requires 

the management to make estimates and 
assumptions considered in the reported amount 
of assets and liabilities (including contingent 
liabilities) as on the date of financial statements 
and the reported income and expenses during 
the reporting period. Management believes 
that the estimates used in the preparation 
of the financial statements are prudent and 
reasonable. Actual results could differ from 
these estimates. Any revision to accounting 
estimates is recognized prospectively in current 
and future periods.

1.3 Revenue Recognition
 a. General:
   The Company follows the accrual method of 

accounting for its income and expenditure 
except delayed payment charges, service 
charges and fee based income which on 
account of uncertainty of ultimate collection 
are accounted on receipt basis. 

   Further, in accordance with the guidelines 
issued by The National Housing Bank for 
Housing Finance Companies, income 
on business assets classified as Non-
Performing Assets, is recognized on receipt 
basis. Unrealised interest recognized as 
income in the previous period is reversed 
in the month in which the loan is classified 
as Non-performing.

 b. Income from Loans
  i.  Interest Income from loan transactions 

is accounted for by applying the 
interest rate implicit in such contracts.

  ii.  Service charges and documentation 
charges and other fees on loan 
transactions are recognized at the 
commencement of the contract.

 c. Income From Investments:
  i.  Dividend from investments is 

accounted for as income when the 
right to receive dividend is established.

  ii.  Interest income is accounted on 
accrual basis.

1.4  Fixed assets, Depreciation and Amortization
 a. Tangible Assets:
   Tangible assets are stated at cost of 

acquisition (including incidental expenses), 
less accumulated depreciation. Assets 
held for sale or disposals are stated at 
the lower of their net book value and net 
realizable value.

 b.  Depreciation on Tangible Assets
   Depreciation on fixed assets is charged on 

the basis of the useful life of the assets as 
specified in Schedule II to The Companies 
Act, 2013 except for:
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  i.  Vehicles used by employees are 
depreciated over the maximum period 
of 48 months based on the useful life 
of vehicle for the Company.

  ii.  Assets costing less than Rs.5,000/- 
are fully depreciated in the period of 
purchase.

 c. Intangible assets:
   Intangible assets are stated at cost less 

accumulated amortization and impairment 
loss, if any.

 d. Amortization of Intangible assets:
   Intangible assets comprises of computer 

software which is amortized over the 
estimated useful life. The maximum period 
for such amortization is taken as 36 
months based on management`s estimates 
of useful life. 

1.5  Foreign exchange transactions and 
translations :

 a. Initial recognition:
   Transactions in foreign currencies are 

recognised at the prevailing exchange rates 
between the reporting currency and a foreign 
currency on the transaction dates.

 b. Conversion
  i.  Foreign currency monetary assets and 

liabilities at the year-end are translated 
at the year-end exchange rates and 
the resultant exchange differences 
are recognised in the Statement of 
profit and loss.

  ii.  Non-monetary items, which are 
measured in terms of historical Cost 
denominated in a foreign currency, are 
reported using the exchange rate at the 
date of the transaction. Non-monetary 
items, which are measured at fair value 
or other similar valuation denominated 
in a foreign currency, are translated 
using the exchange rate at the date 
when such value was determined.

 c. Exchange differences
   The Company accounts for exchange 

differences arising on translation/
settlement of foreign currency monetary 
items as below:

  i.  Realized gains and losses on settlement 
of foreign currency transactions are 
recognised in the Statement of profit 
and loss.

  ii.  Foreign currency monetary assets and 
liabilities at the year-end are translated 
at the year-end exchange rates and 
the resultant exchange differences 
are recognised in the Statement of 
profit and loss.

1.6 Investments
  Investments held as long-term investments are 

carried at cost comprising of acquisition and 
incidental expenses less permanent diminution 
in value, if any. Investments other than long-
term investments are classified as current 
investments and valued at cost or fair value 
whichever is less.

  Provision for diminution in value of investments 
is made if management perceives that there is 
permanent diminution in value of investments 
or in accordance with the norms prescribed by 
National Housing Bank and Accounting Standard 
on ‘Accounting for Investments’ (AS 13) notified by 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

1.7 Loan against assets
  Loan against assets are stated at agreement 

value net of installments received less 
unmatured finance charges.

1.8 Share issue expenses
  Expenses incurred in connection with fresh issue 

of share capital are adjusted against Securities 
premium reserve in the year in which they are 
incurred.

1.9 Lease
  Lease rentals in respect of assets taken on 

operating lease arrangements are recognized 
as per the terms of the lease.

1.10 Earnings Per Share
  Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing 
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes

the net profit or loss for the period attributable 
to equity shareholders by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining 
the Company’s earnings per share is the net 
profit for the period after deducting preference 
dividends and any attributable tax thereto for 
the period. The weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the period and 
for all periods presented is adjusted for events, 
such as bonus shares, sub-division of shares 
etc. that have changed the number of equity 
shares outstanding, without a corresponding 
change in resources. For the purpose of 
calculating diluted earnings per share, the 
net profit or loss for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during the period 
is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

1.11 Current and Deferred Tax
  Tax expense for the period, comprising current 

tax and deferred tax, are included in the 
determination of the net profit or loss for the 
period. Current tax is measured at the amount 
expected to be paid to the tax authorities in 
accordance with the provisions of the Income 
Tax Act, 1961.

  Deferred tax on timing differences, being 
the difference between taxable income and 
accounting income that originate in one period 
and are capable of reversal in one or more 
subsequent periods is accounted for using the 
tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively 
enacted as on the balance sheet date. Deferred 
tax assets arising on account of unabsorbed 
depreciation or carry forward of tax losses are 
recognised only to the extent that there is virtual 
certainty supported by convincing evidence that 
sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which such deferred tax assets can 
be realised. Other deferred tax assets are 
recognised only when there is a reasonable 
certainty of their realisation.

1.12 Employee Benefits
 a. Contribution to provident fund
   Company’s contribution paid/payable 

during the year to provident fund and 

labour welfare fund are recognised in the 
Statement of profit and loss.

 b. Gratuity
   The Company provides for the gratuity, a 

defined benefit retirement plan covering 
all employees. The plan provides for lump 
sum payments to employees upon death 
while in employment or on separation from 
employment after serving for the stipulated 
period mentioned under ‘The Payment 
of Gratuity Act, 1972’. The Company 
accounts for liability of future gratuity 
benefits based on an external actuarial 
valuation on projected unit credit method 
carried out for assessing liability as at the 
reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are 
immediately taken to the Statement of 
profit and loss and are not deferred.

 c. Superannuation
   The Company makes contribution to 

the Superannuation scheme, a defined 
contribution scheme, administered by Life 
Insurance Corporation of India, which are 
charged to the Statement of profit and 
loss. The Company has no obligation to the 
scheme beyond its monthly contributions.

 d.  Leave encashment / compensated 
absences / sick leave

   The Company provides for the encashment 
/ availment of leave with pay subject to 
certain rules. The employees are entitled to 
accumulate leave subject to certain limits 
for future encashment / availment. The 
liability is provided based on the number 
of days of unutilized leave at each balance 
sheet date on the basis of an independent 
actuarial valuation.

1.13 Borrowing cost
  Borrowing costs are charged to the Statement 

of profit and loss. Ancillary expenditure 
incurred in connection with the arrangement of 
borrowings is amortized over the tenure of the 
respective borrowings. 

1.14 Impairment of assets
  The carrying value of assets/cash generating 

units at each balance sheet date are reviewed 
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for impairment. If any indication of impairment 
exists, the recoverable amount of such assets 
is estimated and impairment is recognised, if 
the carrying amount of these assets exceeds 
their recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is the greater of the net selling price 
and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at 
by discounting the future cash flows expected 
to arise from the continuing use of an asset 
and from its disposal at the end of its useful life 
to their present value based on an appropriate 
discount factor.

1.15  Provisions for non performing assets (NPA)
  Housing loans are classified into “Performing” 

and “Non Performing” assets in terms of 
guidelines laid down by the National Housing 
Bank. The provisioning policy of the Company 
covers the minimum provisioning required as 
per the NHB guidelines.

1.16  Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
  Provisions are recognised when there is a 

present obligation as a result of a past event, 
it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and there is a reliable 
estimate of the amount of the obligation.

  Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is 
a possible obligation arising from past events, 
the existence of which will be confirmed only 
by the occurrence or non occurrence of one 
or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the company or a present 
obligation that arises from past events where 
it is either not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle or a reliable 
estimate of the amount cannot be made.
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Notes

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Rs. in Lakhs  

Particulars
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 1 SHARE CAPITAL:
Authorised Capital :
10,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 10,000.00 10,000.00
Issued Capital :
9,51,32,166 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 9,513.22 7,572.92
(Previous Period 7,57,29,181 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up )
Subscribed and  Paid-up Capital :
9,51,32,166 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 9,513.22 7,572.92
(Previous Period 7,57,29,181 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up )
Total 9,513.22 7,572.92

Other Quantitative Information
Rs. in Lakhs 

Particulars
As at March 31
2017 2016

a) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares :
 Balance at the beginning of the year 7,57,29,181 6,57,37,137
 Issue of Rights Shares 1,94,02,985 99,92,044
 Balance at the end of the period 9,51,32,166 7,57,29,181
b) Reconciliation of Equity Shares - in Value 
 Balance at the beginning of the year 7,572.92 6,573.71
 Add: Issue of Rights Shares
 (Equity Share 1,94,02,985 @ Rs. 10/- Each) 1,940.30 999.21
  In previous year issue made for Right Shares 
 (Equity Share 99,92,044 @ Rs. 10/- Each)
 Balance at the end of the period 9,513.22 7,572.92
c)  Number of Equity Shares held by holding company or ultimate holding 

company including shares held by its subsidiaries / associates -
 Holding Company: Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited 8,32,40,655 6,62,63,043
 (including 6 shares held jointly with nominees)
 Percentage of Holding (%) 87.50% 87.50%
d) Shareholders Holding more than 5 % Shares :
 Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited 8,32,40,655 6,62,63,043
 Percentage of holding (%) 87.50% 87.50%
 National Housing Bank 1,18,91,511 94,66,138
 Percentage of holding (%) 12.50% 12.50%
 
e) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
  The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is 

entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the board of directors and approved by the shareholders in the 
annual general meeting is paid in Indian rupees. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will 
be the entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution 
will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 2 RESERVES AND SURPLUS:
Securities Premium Reserve: 
Balance as at the beginning of the year 5,992.03 2,998.42
Add :  Received during the year on account of fully paid up shares 11,059.70 2,997.61
Less : Deduction during the year in respect of shares issue expenses 13.00 4.00
Net balance as at the end of the year 17,038.73 5,992.03
Statutory Reserve :
(As per Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987)  
{refer note no 22}

Balance as at the beginning of the year 5,879.93 3,554.93
Add : Transfer from surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss 3,325.00 2,325.00
Less: Deduction during the year - -
Balances as at the end of the year 9,204.93 5,879.93

General Reserve :
Balance as at the beginning of the year 290.00 290.00
Add : Transfer from surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss - -
Less: Deduction during the year - -
Balances as at the end of the year 290.00 290.00
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss :
Balance as at the beginning of the year 7,841.82 3,898.79
Add : Profit for the current period transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss 8,300.55 6,268.03

16,142.37 10,166.82
Less : Appropriations :
Special Reserve 3,300.00 2,300.00
Additional Special Reserve 25.00 25.00
Dividend On Equity Shares (refer Note No. 2.12) 1,060.21 -
Corporate Dividend Tax on Equity Shares 215.83 -

4,601.04 2,325.00
Balances as at the end of the year 11,541.33 7,841.82
Total 38,074.99 20,003.78
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Notes

 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 3 LONG TERM BORROWINGS :
a) Secured - 
 Term Loans : 
 - from banks {refer note no 23 (i)} 1,70,205.56 1,80,220.47
 - from National Housing Bank {refer note no 23 (ii)} 8,394.19 15,186.00
 Non Convertible Debentures {refer note no 23 (iii)} 46,350.00 -
Total 2,24,949.75 1,95,406.47
b) Unsecured - 
 Unsecured bonds (Subordinate Debt )  {refer note no 24 (i)} 18,900.00 6,700.00
 Loans and Advances from related parties (ICDs)  {refer note no 24 (ii)} 200.00 2,000.00
Total 19,100.00 8,700.00
Total (a+b) 2,44,049.75 2,04,106.47

 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 4 LONG TERM PROVISIONS :
Provision for employee benefits {refer note no 2.8} 189.25 98.93
Provision for Non performing assets {refer note no 3.8.1} 4,725.29 2,448.91
Provision for Standard assets {refer note no 3.8.1} 1,364.98 943.39
Total 6,279.52 3,491.23

 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 5 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS :
a) Secured - 
 Loans from banks { refer note 25} 10,450.00 13,300.00
 Cash Credit facilities with banks { refer note 25} 15,979.30 1,094.45
Total 26,429.30 14,394.45
b) Unsecured - 
 Loans and Advances from related parties (ICDs)  {refer note no 24 (ii)} 16,300.00 2,255.00
 Commercial paper (CPs) {refer note no 26} 20,000.00 20,000.00
Total 36,300.00 22,255.00
Total 62,729.30 36,649.45
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 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 6 TRADE PAYABLES :
a) Finance
 Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises - -
 Other Outstanding dues 2,761.67 1,712.91
b) Expenses and Others
 Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises - -
 Other Outstanding dues 638.83 299.20
Total 3,400.50 2,012.11

 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 7 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES :
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt
Secured
Term Loans : 
- From banks {refer note no 23 (i)} 65,014.92 15,145.61
- From National Housing Bank {refer note no 23 (ii)} 5,311.81 6,109.49

70,326.73 21,255.10
Unsecured
Loans and Advances from related parties (ICDs)  {refer note no 24 (ii)} 4,050.00 4,656.50

4,050.00 4,656.50
Interest Accrued but not due on Borrowings 3,559.15 1,977.00
Credit balances in Current Accounts with banks as per books 38,673.76 21,884.83
Insurance Premium Payable 1,808.63 1,086.57
Statutory & Other Liabilities 327.28 226.63
Total 1,18,745.55 51,086.63

 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 8 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS :
Provision for Employee Benefits {refer note no 2.8} 1,455.40 1,338.15
Others
Provision for Non Performing Assets {refer note no 3.8.1} 6,711.66 3,450.11
Provision for Standard assets {refer note no 3.8.1} 394.78 271.01
Provision for tax (net of advance tax) 133.98 142.11
Total 8,695.82 5,201.38
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 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 10 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET) :
a) Deferred tax assets
 Provision for Non Performing Assets 3,680.18 2,060.77
 Provision on Standard Assets 609.02 422.89
  Difference between written down value of books of account and 

Income Tax Act, 1961
93.30 56.61

 Other Disallowances 156.08 49.70
(a) 4,538.58 2,589.97

b) Deferred tax liabilities

 Special Reserve 3,130.19 2,006.08
(b) 3,130.19 2,006.08

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 1,408.39 583.89

 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 11 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES :
Unsecured, Considered good unless otherwise stated :
Capital Advances 365.45 94.19
Deposits for Office Premises / Others 132.96 105.52
Other Loans and Advances
- Employee Loans & Advances 2.47 12.17
- Prepaid Expenses 2,289.46 33.90

Loans against Assets - Housing Loans (Secured)
- Loans against Assets - Housing Loans (Secured - Considered good) 3,38,017.72 2,35,536.20
- Loans against Assets - Housing Loans (Secured - Non Performing Assets) 23,182.95 11,628.36
Loans against Assets - Others (Secured)
- Loans against Assets - Others (Secured - Considered good) 1,000.34 304.63
- Loans against Assets - Others (Secured - Non Performing Assets) 5.15 0.83
Total 3,64,996.50 2,47,715.80

 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 12 CASH AND BANK BALANCE :
Cash and Cash Equivalents :
Balance with Banks in Current Accounts 922.22  610.79 
Cash on Hand 700.23  516.42 
Total 1,622.45  1,127.21 
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes

 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 13 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES:
Unsecured, Considered good unless otherwise stated :
Loans against Assets - Housing Loans (Secured)
- Loans against Assets - Housing Loans (Secured - Considered good) 95,966.30 66,810.78
- Loans against Assets - Housing Loans (Secured - Non Performing Assets) 23,424.56 12,055.79
Loans against Assets - Others (Secured)
- Loans against Assets - Others (Secured - Considered good) 311.68 114.41
- Loans against Assets - Others (Secured - Non Performing Assets) 17.43 0.99
Loans and Advances - Personal Loan
- Personal Loans (Considered good) 425.32 -
- Personal Loans (Non Performing Assets) 3.15 -
Other Loans and Advances
- Employee Loans & Advances 61.28 37.31
- Prepaid Expenses 1,658.01 609.46
- Other Short Term Advances 3.42 6.65
Deposits for Office Premises / Others 24.69 15.62
Total 1,21,895.84 79,651.01

 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 14 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT 
NOT PROVIDED FOR) AND CHANGES IN PROVISIONS:

I Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for) :
 (a)  Legal suits filed by customers in Consumer Forums and civil courts 

claiming compensation from the company
4.64 10.04

 (b) Demand against the company not acknowledged as debts - Income Tax 60.98 37.76
Total 65.62 47.80
II Commitments :
 (a)  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 

account
243.22 29.01

Total 243.22 29.01
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to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Annual Report 2016 - 17

 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 15 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS :
a) Interest Income
 Income from Loans 64,275.73 45,058.64
 Others (Employee Loans,etc) 1.45 2.65

64,277.18 45,061.29
b) Other Financial Services
 Service Charges and Other Fees on loan transactions 6,056.39 4,475.61

6,056.39 4,475.61
Total (a + b) 70,333.57 49,536.90

 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 16 OTHER INCOME :
Other non-operating income 3.32 7.83
Total 3.32 7.83

 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 17 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES :
Salary, Bonus and Incentives  11,458.09  8,281.59 
Contribution to Provident Funds and other funds  972.05  602.97 
Employee Stock Compensation Costs {refer note no 2.11}  88.88  113.98 
Staff Welfare Expenses  328.81  219.77 
Total  12,847.83  9,218.31 

 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 18 FINANCE COST :
Interest Expense 29,545.20 21,177.80
Other Borrowing Costs 249.18 154.25
Total 29,794.38 21,332.05

 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 19 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE:
Depreciation on Tangible Assets  527.11  343.34 
Amortization of intangibe assets  0.93  -   
Total  528.04  343.34 
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes

 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 20 LOAN PROVISIONS AND WRITE OFFS :
Provision for Non Performing Assets (net) 5,537.93 3,112.64
General Provision on Standard Assets 545.36 422.75
Bad Debts and Write Offs 1,042.26 338.08
Total 7,125.55 3,873.47

 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 21 OTHER EXPENSES:
Electricity Charges 65.11 41.23
Rent 291.21 198.21
Repairs & Maintenance -
- Buildings 165.50 83.93
- Others 12.28 10.00
Insurance 351.97 234.72

Rates & Taxes, excluding taxes on income 44.06 37.21

Directors' sitting fees and commission 23.80 20.43

Commission & Brokerage 38.93 0.33

Legal & Professional Charges 788.90 459.39

Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 2,392.89 1,730.92

Administration Support Charges 511.41 427.33
Loss on Sale / Disposal of Owned Assets 1.25 4.13
Payments to the Auditor  -
- Audit fees 7.51 7.53
- Taxation matters 1.61 5.62
- Other Services 8.15 5.04
- Reimbursement of expenses 0.34 0.02
CSR Expenditure (including donations) {refer note no 2.5} 178.29 109.63
General and Administrative Expenses 2,467.62 1,732.25
Total 7,350.83 5,107.92



132 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
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 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 22 MOVEMENT OF STATUTORY RESERVE:
(As per Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987)
(In compliance with NHB Notification No. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/
MD&CEO/2016)
Balance at the beginning of the period
a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 60.00 35.00
b)  Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken 

into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of 
the NHB Act, 1987

5,819.93 3,519.93

Total 5,879.93 3,554.93
Addition/Appropriation/Withdrawal during the period
Add: a) Amount Transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 25.00 25.00
  b)  Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 

taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under 
Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

3,300.00 2,300.00

Less: a)  Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the 
NHB Act 1987

- -

  b)  Amount withdrawn from the  Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of 
Income Tax Act, 1961 which has been taken into account for the 
purposes of provision u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

- -

Balance at the end of the period
a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 85.00 60.00
b)  Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken 

into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of 
the NHB Act, 1987

9,119.93 5,819.93

Total 9,204.93 5,879.93
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes

 NOTE 23  (I)  SECURED - LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Secured Term Loans from Banks
(Secured by exclusive charge on receivables under loan contracts and book debts to the extent of 100% of 
outstanding secured loans)

 Rs. in Lakhs 
As on 31st March 2017

Particulars
Rate Range (a) Long Term (b) Current 

Maturities
Total

1) Repayable on maturity :
 a) Maturity beyond 3 years 8.40% - 8.75% 25,000.00 - 25,000.00
 b) Maturing  between 1 year to 3 years 8.75% - 9.70% 30,000.00 - 30,000.00
 c) Maturing within 1 year 8.65% - 9.70% - 45,000.00 45,000.00
Total repayable on maturity 55,000.00 45,000.00 1,00,000.00
2) Repayable in installments :
 i) Quarterly :
  a) Maturity beyond 3 years 8.15% 3,055.56 - 3,055.56
  b) Maturing  between 1 year to 3 years 8.15% 8,333.33 - 8,333.33
  c) Maturing within 1 year 8.15% - 4,298.25 4,298.25
Total 11,388.89 4,298.25 15,687.14
 ii) Half-Yearly :
  a) Maturity beyond 3 years 8.75% 6,666.67 - 6,666.67
  b) Maturing  between 1 year to 3 years 8.75% 10,000.00 - 10,000.00
  c) Maturing within 1 year 8.75% - 6,666.67 6,666.67
Total 16,666.67 6,666.67 23,333.34
 iii) Yearly :
  a) Maturity beyond 3 years 8.20% - 9.30% 31,300.00 - 31,300.00
  b) Maturing  between 1 year to 3 years 8.20% - 9.63% 55,850.00 - 55,850.00
  c) Maturing within 1 year 9.25% - 9.63% - 9,050.00 9,050.00
Total 87,150.00 9,050.00 96,200.00
Total repayable on installments 1,15,205.56 20,014.92 1,35,220.48
Total (1+2) 1,70,205.56 65,014.92 2,35,220.48



134 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Annual Report 2016 - 17

Rs. in Lakhs
As on 31st March 2016

Particulars
Rate Range (a) Long Term (b) Current 

Maturities
 Total 

1) Repayable on maturity :
 a) Maturity beyond 3 years 9.65% - 9.75% 25,000.00 - 25,000.00
 b) Maturing  between 1 year to 3 years 9.65% - 9.70% 55,000.00 - 55,000.00
 c) Maturing within 1 year - - - -
Total repayable on maturity 80,000.00 - 80,000.00
2) Repayable in installments :
 i) Quarterly :
  a) Maturity beyond 3 years 9.30% 3,888.89 - 3,888.89
  b) Maturing  between 1 year to 3 years 9.30% 6,798.25 - 6,798.25
  c) Maturing within 1 year 9.30% - 9.71% - 5,912.28 5,912.28
Total 10,687.13 5,912.28 16,599.42
 ii) Half-Yearly :
  a) Maturity beyond 3 years 9.70% 3,333.33 - 3,333.33
  b) Maturing  between 1 year to 3 years 9.70% 10,000.00 - 10,000.00
  c) Maturing within 1 year 9.70% - 4,733.33 4,733.33
Total 13,333.33 4,733.33 18,066.66
 iii) Yearly :
  a) Maturity beyond 3 years 9.34% - 9.63% 45,100.00 - 45,100.00
  b) Maturing  between 1 year to 3 years 9.34% - 9.63% 31,100.00 - 31,100.00
  c) Maturing within 1 year - - 4,500.00 4,500.00
Total 76,200.00 4,500.00 80,700.00
Total repayable on installments 1,00,220.47 15,145.61 1,15,366.08
Total (1+2) 1,80,220.47 15,145.61 1,95,366.08

 NOTE 23  (II) SECURED TERM LOANS FROM NHB
(Secured by exclusive charge on receivables under loan contracts and book debts to the extent of 100% of outstanding 
secured loans)

 Rs. in Lakhs 

As on 31st March 2017

Particulars
Rate Range (a) Long Term (b) Current 

Maturities
Total

1) Repayable in installments :
 i) Quarterly :
  a) Maturity beyond 3 years 7.65%-9.30% 2,054.80 - 2,054.80
  b) Maturing  between 1 year to 3 years 7.65%-9.30% 6,339.39 - 6,339.39
  c) Maturing within 1 year 7.65%-9.70% - 5,311.81 5,311.81
Total 8,394.19 5,311.81 13,706.00

Rs. in Lakhs
As on 31st March 2016

Particulars
Rate Range (a) Long Term (b) Current 

Maturities
 Total 

1) Repayable in installments :
 i) Quarterly :
  a) Maturity beyond 3 years 8.85% - 9.55% 5,322.88 - 5,322.88
  b) Maturing  between 1 year to 3 years 8.85% - 9.70% 9,863.12 - 9,863.12
  c) Maturing within 1 year 6.00% - 10.15% - 6,109.49 6,109.49
Total 15,186.00 6,109.49 21,295.49
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes

 NOTE 23  (III) SECURED NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES #
(Secured by pari passu charges on office premise and exclusive charge on receivables under loan contracts, owned assets 
and book debts to the extent of 100% of outstanding secured debentures)

 Rs. in Lakhs 

As on 31st March 2017

Particulars
Rate Range (a) Long Term (b) Current 

Maturities
Total

1) Repayable on maturity :
 a) Maturity beyond 3 years (Listed) 8.10%-8.90%  22,350.00  -    22,350.00 
 b) Maturing between 1 year to 3 years (Listed) 7.90% - 8.74%  24,000.00 -  24,000.00 
 c) Maturing within 1 year - - - -
Total  46,350.00  -    46,350.00 

Rs. in Lakhs
As on 31st March 2016

Particulars
Rate Range (a) Long Term (b) Current 

Maturities
 Total 

1) Repayable on maturity :
 a) Maturing within 1 year - - - -
Total - - -

# The funds raised by the Company during the year by issue of Secured Non Convertible Debentures/Bonds 
were utilised for the purpose intended i.e. towards lending, financing, to refinance the existing indebtedness of 
the Company or for long-term working capital, in compliance with applicable laws.

 NOTE 24  (I) UNSECURED BORROWINGS
Subordinated Debts (Long Term)

 Rs. in Lakhs 

As on 31st March 2017

Particulars
Rate Range (a) Long Term (b) Current 

Maturities
Total

1) Repayable on maturity :
 a) Maturity beyond 3 years (Listed) 8.40%-9.50% 18,200.00 - 18,200.00
 b) Maturing  between 1 year to 3 years 11.00% 700.00 - 700.00
 c) Maturing within 1 year - - - -
Total repayable on maturity 18,900.00 - 18,900.00

Rs. in Lakhs
As on 31st March 2016

Particulars
Rate Range (a) Long Term (b) Current 

Maturities
 Total 

1) Repayable on maturity :
 a) Maturity beyond 3 years (Listed) 9.25% - 9.50%  6,000.00  -    6,000.00 
 b) Maturing  between 1 year to 3 years 11.00%  700.00  -    700.00 
 c) Maturing within 1 year -  -    -    -   
Total repayable on maturity  6,700.00  -    6,700.00 
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 NOTE 24  (II) INTER - CORPORATE DEPOSITS (ICD)
 Rs. in Lakhs 

As on 31st March 2017

Particulars
Rate Range (a) Long 

Term
 (b) Short 

Term 
(c) Current 
Maturities

Total

1) Repayable on maturity :
 a) Maturity beyond  3 years - - - - -
 b) Maturing  between 1 year to 3 years 8.55% 200.00 - - 200.00
 c) Maturing within 1 year 7.60%-9.80% - 16,300.00 4,050.00 20,350.00
Total repayable on maturity 200.00 16,300.00 4,050.00 20,550.00

Rs. in Lakhs
As on 31st March 2016

Particulars
Rate Range (a) Long 

Term
 (b) Short 

Term
(c) Current 
Maturities

 Total 

1) Repayable on maturity :
 a) Maturity beyond 3 years - - - - -
 b) Maturing between 1 year to 3 years 9.80% 2,000.00 - - 2,000.00
 c) Maturing within 1 year 8.50%-10.50% - 2,255.00 4,656.50 6,911.50
Total repayable on maturity 2,000.00 2,255.00 4,656.50 8,911.50

 NOTE 25  SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Secured Short Term Loans / Cash Credit from Banks
(Secured by exclusive charge on receivables under loan contracts and book debts to the extent of 100% of 
outstanding secured loans)

 Rs. in Lakhs 
As on 31st March 2017

Particulars Rate Range (a) Long Term  (b) Short Term Total

1) Repayable on maturity :
 a) Maturing within 1 year 7.90%-10.50% - 26,429.30 26,429.30
Total - 26,429.30 26,429.30

Rs. in Lakhs
As on 31st March 2016

Particulars Rate Range (a) Long Term  (b) Short Term  Total 

1) Repayable on maturity :
 a) Maturing within 1 year 9.10%-10.75% - 14,394.44 14,394.44
Total - 14,394.44 14,394.44

 NOTE 26  UNSECURED COMMERCIAL PAPER BORROWINGS
 Rs. in Lakhs 

As on 31st March 2017

Particulars Rate Range (a) Long Term  (b) Short Term Total

1) Repayable on maturity :
 a) Maturing within 1 year 7.30%-7.60% - 20,000.00 20,000.00
Total - 20,000.00 20,000.00

Rs. in Lakhs
As on 31st March 2016

Particulars Rate Range (a) Long Term  (b) Short Term  Total 

1) Repayable on maturity :
 a) Maturing within 1 year 8.90% - 9.40%  -    20,000.00  20,000.00 
Total  -    20,000.00  20,000.00 
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes

NOTE II
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS:
A.  General Disclosures:
2.1 As per Section 29C (i) of the National Housing 
Bank Act, 1987, the company is required to transfer 
at least 20% of its net profits every year to a reserve 
before any dividend is declared. For this purpose 
a Special Reserve created by the company under 
Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is 
considered to be an eligible transfer. The company has 
transferred an amount to Special Reserve in terms 
of Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 
and Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 
1987, as amended, at year end. The company does 
not anticipate any withdrawal from Special Reserve in 
foreseeable future.

2.2 The company has considered an amount of 5% 
of its computed total income, as per Section 36(1)
(viia) as an eligible deduction. A deferred tax liability 
has been created on the said deduction.

2.3 The company is not required to make provision 
for diminution in value of investments, as per NHB 

norms, as the company does not hold any investment.

2.4 The company has not granted any loans or 
advances against collateral of gold jewellery.

2.5 During the year ended the company has 
incurred CSR expenses of Rs. 178.09 Lakhs (Previous 
year Rs. 109.43 Lakhs) as per the requirement of 
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The said 
expenditure represents contribution made to trusts 
which are engaged in the activity prescribed under the 
said section read with Schedule VII to the Act.

2.6 Bad Debts and Write offs includes loss on 
termination of Rs. 94.15 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 
48.53 Lakhs) which mainly represents shortfall on 
settlement of certain contracts. There is a Bad Debts 
recovery of Rs. 9.37 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 12.07 
Lakhs) in current year.

2.7 In the opinion of the Board, Current assets, 
Loans and Advances are of the values stated, if 
realized, in the ordinary course of business.

2.8 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:
Defined Benefit Plans - As per Actuarial Valuation on March 2017

Rs. in Lakhs

 
 

 
 

Gratuity (Funded) 
Sick leave  

(Non-funded) 
Privilege leave  
(Non-funded) 

Mar-17 Mar-16 Mar-17 Mar-16 Mar-17 Mar-16

I. Expense recognised in the Statement 
of Profit & Loss Account  for the year 
ending 31st Mar 2017

           

1 Current service cost 67.88 131.19 17.17 23.55 110.46 188.79

2 Interest cost 10.53 8.77 1.87 1.20 8.93 8.93

3  Expected return on plan assets (8.66) (9.26) - - - -

4 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 57.96 (92.03) 2.88 (13.97) 26.55 (168.05)

5  Adjustment due to change in opening 
balance of Plan assets

17.19 - - - - -

6 Total expenses 144.90 38.67 21.92 10.78 145.94 29.67

II. Net asset/(liability) recognised in the 
Balance Sheet as at 31st Mar 2017

1  Present Value of Defined Benefit 
obligation as at  
31st Mar

257.66 131.66 45.30 23.38 246.04 111.66

2  Fair value of plan assets as at 31st 
Mar

144.97 125.44 - - - -

3  Funded status (surplus/(deficit)) (112.69) (6.22) (45.30) (23.38) (246.04) (111.66)

4  Net asset/(liability) as at 31st Mar (112.69) (6.22) (45.30) (23.38) (246.04) (111.66)
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Rs. in Lakhs

 
 

 
 

Gratuity (Funded) 
Sick leave  

(Non-funded) 
Privilege leave  
(Non-funded) 

Mar-17 Mar-16 Mar-17 Mar-16 Mar-17 Mar-16

III. Change in the obligations during the 
year ending 31st Mar 2017

1  Present Value of Defined Benefit 
obligation at the beginning of the year

131.66 91.92 23.38 12.60 111.66 92.52

2 Current service cost 67.88 131.19 17.17 23.55 110.46 188.79

3 Interest cost 10.53 8.77 1.87 1.20 8.93 8.93

4 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 57.96 (92.03) 2.88 (13.97) 26.55 (168.05)

5 Benefits paid (10.37) (8.19) - - (11.56) (10.53)

6  Present Value of Defined Benefit 
obligation at the end of the year

257.66 131.66 45.30 23.38 246.04 111.66

IV. Change in the fair value of plan assets 
during the year ending 31st Mar 2017

1  Fair value of plan assets at the 
beginning of the year

125.44 90.86 - - - -

2  Expected return on plan assets 8.66 9.26 - - - -

3 Contributions by employer 38.43 33.51 - - - -

4 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses - - - - - -

5 Actual Benefits paid (10.37) (8.19) - - - -

6  Adjustment due to change in opening 
balance of Plan assets

(17.19) - - - - -

7  Fair value of plan assets at the end 
of the year

144.97 125.44 - - - -

V. Major category of plan assets as a 
percentage of total plan

  Funded with LIC 100% 100% - - - -

  Others

VI. Actuarial Assumptions

1 Discount Rate 7.36% 
p.a.

8.00% 
p.a.

7.36% 
p.a.

8.00% 
p.a.

7.36% 
p.a.

8.00% 
p.a.

2  Expected Rate of return on plan 
assets

8.00% 
p.a.

8.00% 
p.a.

- - - -

3 Rate of Salary increase 5.00 % 
p.a.

5.00 % 
p.a.

5.00 % 
p.a.

5.00 % 
p.a.

5.00 % 
p.a.

5.00 % 
p.a.

4 In-service Mortality Indian 
Assured 

lives 
Mortality 

(2006-08) 
Ultimate

Indian 
Assured 

lives 
Mortality 

(2006-08) 
Ultimate
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Experience Adjustments:
 
 

 
 

Year Ending
Mar-13 Mar-14 Mar-15 Mar-16 Mar-17

1 Defined Benefit obligation at end of the year 39.60 60.14 91.92 131.66 257.66
2 Plan assets at the end of year 35.88 48.93 90.86 125.44 144.97
3 Funded Status Surplus/ (Deficit) (3.72) (11.21) (1.06) (6.22) (112.69)
4 Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (gain)/loss (6.77) (10.35) (20.08) (30.71) 21.08
5 Experience adjustments on plan assets gain/(loss) - - - - -

2.9 The company’s main business is to provide loans 
for purchase or construction of residential houses. 
All the other activities of the company revolve around 
the main business. As such, there are no separate 
reportable segments as per the Accounting Standard 
on Segment Reporting (AS-17).

2.10 Earnings per share as required by Accounting 
Standard-20 (AS-20) read with the Guidance note on 
“Accounting for employee share based payments” is 
as follows:

Particulars March 2017 March 2016

Net Profit after tax (Rs. In Lakhs) 8,300.55 6,268.03
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each – Basic  
(In Lakhs) 

765.80 657.92

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each – Diluted  
(In Lakhs)

765.80 657.92

Basic Earnings Per Share (Rs.) 10.84 9.53
Diluted Earnings Per Share (Rs.) 10.84 9.53

2.11 The company has incurred a cost of Rs. 86.82 
Lakhs (previous year Rs. 113.98 Lakhs) towards ESOP 
granted to its employees by Mahindra and Mahindra 
Financial Services Limited (MMFSL) and Rs. 2.06 
Lakhs (previous year Rs. NIL) towards ESOP granted 
to its employees by Mahindra & Mahindra Limited.

2.12 The Board of Directors have recommended 
a dividend of Rs. 1.50 per share on 9,51,32,166 
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each for the financial 
year. The dividend payout shall absorb a sum of Rs. 

1,717.52 Lakhs (including Dividend Distribution 
Tax). The company has complied with the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules 2016, 
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, vide its 
Notification No. G.S.R.364 (E) dated 30th March, 
2016.

2.13 The company has incurred an expenditure in 
Foreign Currency towards:
•  Foreign Travel 

Expenses
Rs. 2.25 Lakhs (previous year 
Rs. 2.93 Lakhs)

2.14 Related Party Disclosure as per Accounting Standard 18 and in compliance with NHB Notification  
no. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated, February 9th, 2017: 

List of the related parties which have transactions with our Company during the Year:

Ultimate Holding Company Mahindra and Mahindra Limited
Holding Company Mahindra and Mahindra Financial Services Limited
Fellow subsidiary Companies : Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited

Mahindra First Choice Services Limited
  NBS International Limited 

Mahindra Asset Management Company Private Limited
Mahindra Integrated Business Solutions Private Limited

Key Management Personnel Mr. Anuj Mehra (Managing Director)
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Rs. In Lakhs 

Sr. 
No.

Nature of 
transactions  

Holding 
Companies 

Fellow 
Subsidiary 
Companies 

Key 
Management 

Personnel 
1 Expenses      

Interest Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited 213.44 - -
  (567.27) - -
  Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited - 589.78 -
  - (411.71) -
  Mahindra AMC Private Limited - 310.25 -
  - (2.79) -
Other Expenses Mahindra & Mahindra Limited 209.26 - -
    (15.56) - -
  Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited 588.01 - -
    (493.73) - -
  Mahindra First Choice Services Limited - 1.28 -
    - (0.83) -
  NBS International Limited - 0.15 -
    - (0.03) -
  Mahindra Integrated Business Solutions Private 

Limited
- 102.55 -

  - (14.88) -
  Mahindra Holidays & Resorts India Limited - - -
    - (2.24) -
Employee 
Remuneration

Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited 86.82 - -
(113.98) - -

  Mahindra & Mahindra Limited 2.06 - -
  - - -
  Mr. Anuj Mehra - - 191.99
    - - (195.58)

2 Equity Shares 
(Including 
Premium)

Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited 11,375.00 - -

    (3,497.22) - -
3 Purchase of 

Fixed Assets 
(including 
CWIP & Capital 
Advance)

Mahindra & Mahindra Limited 111.92 - -
  (54.71) - -
Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited 13.98 - -
  - - -
NBS International Limited - 3.27 -
  - - -

4 Dividend  
Dividend paid – 
for previous year 
(FY15-16)

Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited 927.68 - -
  (747.76) - -

5 Finance Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited - 8,350.00 -
Inter Corporate 
Deposits taken

  - - -
Mahindra AMC Private Limited - 200.00 -
  - (55.00) -

Inter Corporate 
Deposits repaid

Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited 4,656.50 - -
  - - -

  Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited - 2,200.00 -
    - (250.00) -
  Mahindra AMC Private Limited - 55.00 -
    - - -
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to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes

Rs. In Lakhs 

Sr. 
No.

Nature of 
transactions  

Holding 
Companies 

Fellow 
Subsidiary 
Companies 

Key 
Management 

Personnel 
6 Balances at the 

end of the Year
 

Unsecured 
Subordinate 
Debts placed 
(including 
interest accrued)

Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited 700.57 - -
  (700.76) - -
Mahindra AMC Private Limited - 4,856.15 -

Inter Corporate 
Deposits 
outstanding 
(including 
interest accrued 
but not due)

Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited - - -
  (5,189.14) - -

  Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited - 10,674.66 -
    - (4,347.05) -
  Mahindra AMC Private Limited - 214.55 -
    - (57.51) -
  Payables Mahindra & Mahindra Limited 180.79 - -
      (10.34) - -
    Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited 95.91 - -
      (66.57) - -
    Mahindra Insurance Brokers Limited - 17.01 -
      - (7.88) -
    Mahindra First Choice Services Limited - - -
      - (0.65) -
    Mahindra Integrated Business Solutions Private 

Limited 
- 5.80 -

    - (0.74) -

 Notes: 
 i) Figures in bracket represent corresponding figures of previous year.

2.15 Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes (SBNs)
Pursuant to Notification No. G.S.R. 308 (E) dated March 30, 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
requiring the Companies to disclose the details of Specified Bank Notes (SBNs) held and transacted during the 
period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016, the company provides here below the required details:

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars
SBNs * Other 

Denomination 
Notes

Total

Closing Cash in hand as on November 8th, 2016 390.05 49.57 439.62
 + Permitted receipts - 7,707.93 7,707.93
 - Permitted payments - 1.89 1.89
- Amount deposited in Banks 390.05 7,483.12 7,873.17
Closing Cash in hand as on December 30th, 2016 - 272.49 272.49

* For the purpose of this clause, the term “Specified Bank Notes” shall have the same meaning provided in the 
Notification of the Government of India, in the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs number S.O. 
3407(E), dated the 8th November, 2016.

2.16 Based on and to the extent of the information received by the company from the suppliers during the year 
regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) 
and relied upon by the auditors, there  are no amounts due to MSME as at March 31st, 2017. 

The relevant particulars as at the year-end as required under the MSMED Act are furnished here below:
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Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars March-17 March-16
a) Principal amount due and remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the year end - -
b) Interest accrued and due to suppliers on the above amount as at the year end - -
c) Interest paid to suppliers in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act - -
d)  Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day, 

during the year
- -

e) Interest paid to suppliers (other than Section 16 of the MSMED Act) - -
f)  Interest due and payable to suppliers for payments already made (for the 

period of delay, if any)
- -

g) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the year end - -
h)  Further interest due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date 

when the interest due as above are actually paid to the small enterprises
- -

B. Additional Disclosures as prescribed by National Housing Bank (NHB) vide Notification No. NHB.HFC.
CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated February 9th, 2017.
3.1 CAPITAL 

Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars March 2017 March 2016
(i) CRAR (%) 30.5% 23.6%
(ii) CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 21.3% 18.3%
(iii) CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) 9.3% 5.3%
(iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier - II Capital 18,900 6,700
(v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments Nil Nil

3.2 INVESTMENTS
The company has not made any investments during the 
current year or previous year and hence the provisions 
of point no. 3.3, Annexure 4 of NHB Notification No. 
NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated February 
9th, 2017 is not applicable to the company.

3.3 DERIVATIVES
The company has not entered into any derivatives during 
the current year or previous year and hence the provisions 
of point no. 3.4, Annexure 4 of NHB Notification No. 

NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated February 
9th, 2017 is not applicable to the company.

3.4 SECURITIZATION
The company has not entered into any transactions of 
securitization / assignment during the current year 
or previous year and hence the provisions of point 
no. 3.5, Annexure 4 of NHB    Notification No. NHB.
HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated February 9th, 
2017 is not applicable to the company.

3.5 ASSETS LIABILITY MANAGEMENT
Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars

Upto 
31 days 

(one 
month)

Over 1 
month 

& up 
to 2 

months

Over 2 
months 

& up 
to 3 

months

Over 3 
months 

& up 
to 6 

months

Over 6 
months 
& up to 
1 year

Over 1 
year & up 
to 3 years

Over 3 
years & 
up to 5 

years

Over 5 
years & 
up to 7 

years

Over 7 
years 
& up 

to 10 
years

Over 10 
years

Total

Liabilities                      
Deposits - - - - - - - - - - -
Borrowings from 
Bank

41,577 18,914 965 12,762 45,233 1,26,502 68,077 - - - 3,14,030

Market Borrowings 5,975 6,200 10,500 375 17,300 24,900 21,350 - 19,200 - 1,05,800
Foreign Currency 
Liabilities

- - - - - - - - - - -

                       
Assets                      
Advances 10,132 7,345 7,177 24,652 47,452 1,62,581 1,39,429 52,209 12,701 23,214 4,86,892
Investments - - - - - - - - - - -
Foreign Currency 
Assets

- - - - - - - - - - -
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3.6 EXPOSURE

3.6.1 Exposure to real estate sector
Rs. In Lakhs

Category March 2017 March 2016
a) Direct Exposure    

(i) Residential Mortgages -    
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be 
occupied by the borrower or that is rented;

4,81,926 3,26,452

Of the above Individual housing loan upto Rs.15 lakh 4,72,623 3,21,573
(ii) Commercial Real Estate -

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, 
retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family residential 
buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse 
space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc.). 
Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits

Nil Nil

(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised 
exposures -
a) Residential Nil Nil
b) Commercial Real Estate Nil Nil

b) Indirect Exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and 
Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)

Nil Nil

3.6.2 The company does not have any exposure 
towards capital market and hence the provisions of 
point no. 3.7.2 Annexure 4 of NHB Notification No. 
NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated February 
9th, 2017 is not applicable to the company.

3.6.3 The company has not financed any parent 
company products and hence the provisions of point 
no. 3.7.3, Annexure 4 of NHB Notification No. NHB.
HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated February 9th, 
2017 is not applicable to the company.

3.6.4 The company has not exceeded the prudential 
exposure limits w.r.t. Single Borrower Limit (SBL)/
Group Borrower Limit (GBL) and hence the provisions 
of point no. 3.7.4, Annexure 4 of NHB Notification 
No. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated 
February 9th, 2017 is not applicable to the company.

3.6.5 The company has not given any unsecured 
advances against collateral of rights, licenses, 
authorisations, etc. and hence the provisions of point 
no. 3.7.5, Annexure 4 of NHB Notification No. NHB.
HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated February 9th, 
2017 is not applicable to the company.

3.7 MISCELLANEOUS

3.7.1 The company has not obtained registration 
from any Financial sector regulator other than 
National Housing Bank.

3.7.2 No Penalty has been imposed on the company 
by National Housing Bank.

3.7.3 Related Party Policy :
All Contracts / arrangements/transactions entered 
into by the Company during the Financial Year with 
related parties were in the ordinary course of business 
and on an arm’s length basis. 

Pursuant to section 134(3)(h) read with Rule 8(2) of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, there are 
no transactions to be reported under Section 188(1) 
of The Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the 
disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required 
under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 
in Form AOC 2 is not applicable.

The Policy on Related Party Transactions as approved 
by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors 
of the company is uploaded on the website of the 
company and same can be accessed on the web link: 
www.mahindrahomefinance.com. The same also 
forms a part of Boards report to the Shareholders.
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3.7.4 Rating assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migration of rating during the year.
During the year under review, India Rating & Research Private Limited has reaffirmed the rating to the Company’s 
Bank facilities, Non-Convertible Debentures and Subordinated Debt as ‘IND AA+’with stable outlook and ‘IND 
A1+’ rating to the Commercial paper issued by the company.

Credit Analysis & Research Limited has assigned the ‘CARE AA+/stable’ rating to the Company’s Non-Convertible 
Debentures and reaffirmed the rating as ‘CARE AA+/stable’ to the Subordinated Debt of the company.

CRISIL has upgraded its rating on long-term debt instrument to ‘CRISIL AA/+Stable’ from ‘CRISIL AA/-Stable’ 
and reaffirmed the rating as ‘CRISIL A1+’ to the Commercial paper issued by the company.

3.7.5 Remuneration of Independent Directors
Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars of Remuneration Names of Directors

Independent Directors  
Mr. Nityanath 

Ghanekar
Mrs. Anjali 

Raina
Mr. Narendra 

Mairpady
Total

Fee for attending Board / Committee Meetings  2.60 3.70 2.50 8.80
Commission 5.00 5.00 5.00 15.00
Other NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total 7.60 8.70 7.50 23.80

3.8  OTHER DISCLOSURES
3.8.1 Provisions and Contingencies

Rs. In Lakhs
Breakup of “Provisions & Contingencies” shown under the head Expenditure in 
Statement of Profit and Loss

March 2017 March 2016

1. Provisions for depreciation on Investment -  -
2. Provision made towards Income Tax 4,389.71 3,401.61
3. Provision towards NPA 5,537.93 3,112.64
4. Provision for Standard Assets (with details like teaser loan, CRE, CRE-RH etc.) 545.36 422.75
5. Other Provision and Contingencies (with details) - -

The company has complied with norms prescribed under Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010 
for recognizing Non-performing Assets in preparation of accounts. 



145

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 R

ep
or

ts
Fi

na
nc

ia
l S

ta
te

m
en

ts

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes

Rs. In Lakhs

Breakup of Loan & Advances and Provisions 
thereon

Housing Non Housing
March 2017 March 2016 March 2017 March 2016

Standard Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount 4,33,984.02 3,02,346.98 5,909.62 1,239.66
b) Provisions made 1,736.05 1,209.42 23.71 4.98
Sub-Standard Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount 28,442.88 14,346.37 22.35 1.82
b) Provisions made 4,891.47 2,554.84 3.70 0.27
Doubtful Assets - Category -I
a) Total Outstanding Amount 10,887.42 5,382.39 0.23 -
b) Provisions made 3,161.04 1,556.53 0.06 -
Doubtful Assets - Category -II
a) Total Outstanding Amount 6,863.88 3,706.45 - -
b) Provisions made 2,964.21 1,538.43 - -
Doubtful Assets - Category -III
a) Total Outstanding Amount 296.11 117.18 3.15 -
b) Provisions made 296.11 117.18 3.15 -
Loss Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount 117.22 131.76 - -
b) Provisions made 117.22 131.76 - -
TOTAL
a) Total Outstanding Amount 4,80,591.53 3,26,031.13 5,935.35 1,241.48
b) Provisions made 13,166.10 7,108.17 30.62 5.25

Loan receivable includes Rs. 11,097.45 Lakhs outstanding towards financing of insurance as of March 31st 
2017 and Rs. 7,720.20 Lakhs as of March 31st 2016.

The company has made adequate provision for Non Performing Assets identified, in accordance with the 
Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010. As per the practice consistently followed, the Company 
has also made additional provision on prudential basis. The cumulative additional provision made by the company 
as on 31st March 2017 is Rs. 1,216.22 Lakhs (31st March 2016 is Rs. 612.67 Lakhs).

In line with Notification No. NHB.HFC.DIR.3/CMD/2011 issued by National Housing Bank, the company has 
made a provision @ 0.40 % on outstanding Standard Assets.

In accordance with Accounting Standard 29 (AS-29) “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, 
the following are the details of the movement in provisions for the year ending March 31st  2017:

Rs. in Lakhs
Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets) March 2017 March 2016
a) Opening Balance 5,899.02 2,786.38
b) Provisions made during the year 5,966.88 3,245.95
c) Write-off of short provision/write-back of excess provisions (428.95) (133.31)
d) Closing Balance 11,436.95 5,899.02

Rs. in Lakhs
Movement of provisions for Standard assets March 2017 March 2016
a) Opening Balance 1,214.40 791.65
b) Provisions made during the year 545.36 422.75
c) Closing Balance 1,759.76 1,214.40
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3.8.2 Draw Down from Reserves
The company has not withdrawn any amount from any reserve in the current year or in the previous year.

3.8.3  Concentration of Public Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs
3.8.3.1 The company is non deposit accepting Housing Finance Company, hence there are no public 
deposits and hence the provisions of point no. 5.3.1, Annexure 4 of NHB Notification No. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/
MD&CEO/2016 dated February 9th, 2017 is not applicable to the company.

3.8.3.2 Concentration of Loans & Advances
Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars March 2017 March 2016
Total Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers 591.44 564.28
Percentage of Loans & Advances to Twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the HFC 0.12% 0.17%

3.8.3.3 Concentration of all Exposure (Including off-balance sheet exposure)
Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars March 2017 March 2016
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 633.50 591.50
Percentage of Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total Exposure of 
the HFC on borrowers / customers

0.12% 0.12%

3.8.3.4 Concentration of NPAs
Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars March 2017 March 2016
Total Exposure to top ten NPA accounts 222.96 145.73

3.8.3.5 Sector – wise NPAs

Sr. 
No.

Sector 
Percentage of NPAs to Total 

Advances in that sector
A. Housing Loans:  
1 Individuals 9.70%
2 Builders/Project Loans Nil
3 Corporates Nil
4 Others (specify) Nil
B. Non-Housing Loans:  
1 Individuals 1.46%
2 Builders/Project Loans Nil
3 Corporates Nil
4 Others (specify) Nil
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes

3.8.4 Movement of NPAs
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars March 2017 March 2016
(I) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 7.47% 5.55%
(II) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
 a) Opening Balance 23,685.97 12,265.28
 b) Additions during the year 26,534.34 13,422.70
 c) Reductions during the year 3,587.06 2,002.01
 d) Closing Balance 46,633.25 23,685.97
(III) Movement of Net NPAs
 a) Opening Balance 17,786.95 9,478.90
 b) Additions during the year 20,567.46 10,176.75
 c) Reductions during the year 3,158.11 1,868.70
 d) Closing Balance 35,196.30 17,786.95
(IV) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
 a) Opening Balance 5,899.02 2,786.38
 b) Provisions made during the year 5,966.88 3,245.95
 c) Write-off of short provision/write-back of excess provisions (428.95) (133.31)
 d) Closing Balance 11,436.95 5,899.02

3.8.5 Overseas Assets
The company does not own any overseas asset and hence the provisions of point no. 5.5, Annexure 4 of 
NHB Notification No. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated February 9th, 2017 is not applicable to the 
Company.

3.8.6 The Company does not have any of balance sheet SPVs sponsored and hence the provisions of point no. 
5.6, Annexure 4 of NHB Notification No. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated February 9th, 2017 is 
not applicable to the Company.

3.9 Disclosure of Complaints
3.9.1 Customers Complaints
Particulars March 2017 March 2016
a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year Nil Nil
b) No. of complaints received during the year 9 6
c) No. of complaints redressed during the year 9 6
d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year Nil Nil

3.10 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever found necessary, to conform to 
current year’s classification.

Signatures to Notes 1 to 26

For B. K. Khare & Co.  Ramesh Iyer  Nityanath Ghanekar  Anjali Raina  V. Ravi 
Chartered Accountants
FRN :105102W

Chairman Director Director Director

Shirish Rahalkar   K. Chakravarthy  K. Chandrasekar  M. Narendra  Anuj Mehra 
Partner Director Director Director  Managing Director 
Membership No. 111212

Navin Joshi  Dharmesh Vakharia 
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 
Date  : 17th April 2017
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Board’s Report to the Shareholders

To,
The Members of
Mahindra Asset Management Company Private Limited

Your Directors are pleased to present their Fourth Report together with the Financial Statements of your 
Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2017.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended  

March 31
2017 2016

Total Revenue 881.14 119.58
Less : Employee  benefits expense 1,401.08 357.00
   Depreciation and Amortisation expense 52.32 3.57
   Other expenses 1,475.09 204.03
Total Expenses 2,928.50 564.60
Profit /(Loss) Before Tax (2,047.36) (445.02)
Less : Tax expense
   1) Current Tax 0.00 0.00
   2) Deferred Tax 0.00 0.00
Profit /(Loss) for the year 
Profit / (Loss) brought forward from previous years

(2,047.36)
(451.29)

(445.02) 
(6.27)

Transfer to Reserves – –

DIVIDEND
 In view of the losses incurred by the Company, your 
Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year 
under consideration.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
 In view of the losses incurred by the Company for 
the year under consideration, no amount has been 
transferred to reserves.

OPERATIONS
 Your Company was incorporated with an objective to 
act as investment managers, consultants, advisors 
for mutual funds, unit trusts, venture capital funds, 
etc. On 4th February, 2016, your Company received 
license from the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (SEBI) to act as an Investment Manager for the 
schemes of Mahindra Mutual Fund. Your Company 
received approval for six products during the year 
2016-17. Of these six products, your Company 
launched the following four products in the market:

i.  Mahindra Liquid Fund (an open-ended liquid 
scheme);

ii.  Mahindra Mutual Fund Kar Bachat Yojana (an 

ope-ended ELSS scheme investing in equity 
securities);

iii.  Mahindra Mutual Fund Dhan Sanchay Yojana (an 
open-ended equity scheme investing in equity 
securities, equity derivatives and debt securities); 
and

iv.  Mahindra Mutual Fund Alp Samay Bachat Yojana 
(an open-ended income scheme investing in debt 
securities).

 In addition to the above schemes, your Company also 
received approval for Mahindra Mutual Fund Badhat 
Yojana (an open-ended equity scheme investing in equity 
securities) as well as Mahindra Mutual Fund Bal Vikaas 
Yojana (an open-ended balanced scheme investing in a 
mix of equity and debt securities). Your Company had 
spent the first quarter of the year in testing its systems 
and procedures, opening new offices as well as 
recruitment of additional personnel to prepare for the 
launch of the schemes. Your Company has opened six 
branches during the year and hired close to one hundred 
employees across the country. The Assets Under 
Management in these four schemes were Rs. 2,050 
crores in the month of March 2017. Of these assets,  
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Rs. 319 crores were in the two equity schemes. 
Your Company has empanelled more than 4,100 
distributors and opened 37,814 investor accounts in 
these schemes. During the next year, your Company 
will continue to expand its product range as well as 
increase its engagement activities with the distributors 
and customers via new offices and employees across 
the country. Your Company managed to achieve a 
market share of 0.1 percent and was placed at the 31st 
rank among the 42 Asset Management Companies.

Your Directors would like to present the overview of 
the Economy and Financial Markets in general and the 
Mutual Fund Industry in particular.

Indian Economy
 The year 2016-17 was marked by several historic 
economic policy developments.

 A constitutional amendment paving the way for the 
Goods and Services Tax (GST) and withdrawal/
demonetisation of specified bank notes, affecting 86 
percent of the currency in circulation, were indeed 
transformational economic events during the year.

 The second advance estimate of Gross Domestic 
Product (GDP) released by the Central Statistics 
Office in February, 2017 estimated the real GDP 
growth (constant 2011-12 prices) in 2016-17 at 
7.10 percent (7.90 percent in 2015-2016) and also 
a sharp deceleration in Gross Value Added (GVA) with 
real GVA (at basic prices) growing at 6.70 percent 
against 7.80 percent in 2015-2016.

 Inflation measured by Consumer Price Index (CPI) 
remained benign, averaging around 4.50 percent 
during the year and the exchange rate measured 
against the US Dollar strongly appreciated in the last 
quarter and closed at around 64.85 appreciating by 
around 2 percent on a yea-on- year basis. The country 
also witnessed strong Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) 
flows during the year which led to this appreciation.

 The year also witnessed some strong policy initiatives. 
Codification of institutional arrangement of the 
monetary policy framework with the Reserve Bank of 
India (RBI), some changes in Bankruptcy Code and a 
stronger legal basis for Aadhar.

Equity Markets
 It was a year of highs. The S&P BSE Sensex ended the 
year with gains of 16.90 percent to close at 29,620 
while the NIFTY 50 closed with gains of 18.50 percent 
to close at 9,173. The S&P BSE midcap index rallied 
much more than the frontline indices and closed 
higher by around 33 percent during the year.

 The strong rally was led predominantly by metals, 
commodities and energy sectors while the banks and 
financial sector also had a handsome contribution to 
this rise. The IT services sector and the pharmaceutical 
sector witnessed a weak bias during the year. The 
year also witnessed strong institutional flows with 
Foreign Institutional Investors (FIIs) investing record 
inflows of around Rs. 55,700 crores.

 India, with her strong macroeconomic fundamentals and 
a stable political economy, continues to be a preferred 
destination for FIIs within the emerging market bucket. 
With retail financial savings in the form of mutual fund 
inflows too flowing into the equity markets, the equity 
indices are expected, amidst volatility, to remain strong.

Fixed Income Markets
 The RBI cut the benchmark repo rate by 50 basis 
points (bps) during the financial year. However the 
RBI, in its February, 2017 monetary policy, shifted its 
stance to “Neutral” from the earlier “Accommodative” 
bias. The twin events of BREXIT and demonetisation 
led to a rally in the benchmark 10 year gilt prices and 
it’s yield touched a low of 6.20 percent during the 
financial year. However, as the RBI shifted its stance 
of monetary policy (highlighting inflationary biases), the 
yield of the 10 year security edged higher and closed 
at 6.70 percent, lower by around 80 bps for the year.

Global Events
 Two Global events dominated the year: Great Britain’s 
exit from the European Union (and the event called 
BREXIT thereafter) and the election of Mr. Donald 
Trump as the US President.

 While BREXIT initially caused some sell off in the equity 
markets and drop in bond yields, the markets quickly 
shrugged off the event. Mr. Trump’s election and his 
intended policy focus on infrastructure development, 
immigration, healthcare and taxes provided a leg-up 
to the equity markets. The US Federal Reserve too 
raised its Fed Funds target rate range by 50 bps 
during the year and the US 10 year gilt hardened by 
around 60 bps to close at 2.40 percent.

Overview of the Mutual Fund Industry
 The Mutual Fund Industry continued its robust growth 
during F.Y. 2016-17. The Assets Under Management 
(AUM) as on 31st March, 2017 were Rs 17.54 lakh 
crores compared to Rs 12.32 lakh crores as on 31st 
March, 2016. Assets grew by 42 percent during the 
year. Assets have grown almost 300 percent over the 
last five years. During these five years, investors have 
reduced their preference for close-ended schemes and 
have moved their assets into open-ended schemes. 
The proportion of assets in close-ended schemes has 
declined to 10 percent from 23 percent over the last 
five years.
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 Net flows into mutual funds during the year were 
Rs 3.43 lakh crores showing a sharp jump of 255 
percent over the previous year. Inflows into balanced 
schemes have grown by 185 percent over the last 
year. Further, inflows into debt and liquid schemes also 
grew substantially over the last year and accounted 
for the major increase in net inflows over the last year.

 The top ten players lost market share during this 
year. Their combined share of total assets fell to 74 
percent from 79.5 percent last year.

 The Mutual Fund Industry has been showing robust 
growth over the last five years. In spite of this growth, 
mutual fund penetration continues to remain low 
in terms of number of unique household accounts. 
Therefore, the potential for future growth is quite high 
and the industry will continue to attract new households 
from the smaller towns and cities as well as urban 
centres. Your Company aims to reach customers in 
the smaller towns by leveraging the Mahindra brand 
as well as distribution reach of its parent, Mahindra 
& Mahindra Financial Services Limited. Your Company 
will also leverage the traditional distributors of mutual 
fund products viz banks, national distributors as well 
as individual distributors to welcome new customers 
to the Mahindra family.

SHARE CAPITAL
 During the year under consideration, the Authorised 
Share Capital of your Company was increased from 
Rs.76,00,00,000 (Rupees Seventy-Six Crores) 
divided into 7,60,00,000 (Seven Crores Sixty Lakhs) 
Equity Shares of Rs.10 (Rupees Ten) each to Rs 
110,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred and Ten 
crores) divided into 11,00,00,000 (Eleven Crores) 
shares of Rs. 10 (Ten) each. The increase in the 
Authorised Share Capital was pursuant to the approval 
of the Members granted at the Extraordinary General 
Meeting held on 21st July, 2016.

 During the year under consideration, 3,04,50,000 
(Three Crores Four Lakhs Fifty Thousand) Equity Shares 
of Rs. 10 each aggregating to Rs. 30,45,00,000 
(Rupees Thirty Crores Forty Five Lakhs) were issued 
and allotted for cash at par on a Rights basis to the 
existing Shareholders of the Company. Post allotment 
of Equity Shares as aforesaid, the issued, subscribed 
and paid-up Share Capital of the Company stands at  
Rs. 91,00,00,000 (Rupees Ninety One Crores) 
comprising of 9,10,00,000 (Nine Crores Ten Lakhs) 
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up.

 During the year under consideration, the Company has 
neither issued shares with differential voting rights 
as to dividend, voting or otherwise nor has issued 
any sweat equity. The Company has not formulated 

any Employees’ Stock Option Scheme during the year 
under consideration. There were no Shares having 
voting rights not exercised directly by the employees 
and for the purchase of which or subscription to 
which, loan was given by the Company.

 As on 31st March, 2017, none of the Directors of 
the Company hold instruments convertible into Equity 
Shares of the Company.

DIRECTORS
 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. V. Ravi (DIN:00307328), 
Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of the 
Company retires by rotation at the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on 14th 
July, 2017 and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

 The Central Government, vide their order dated 21st 
June, 2016, granted approval to the appointment 
of Mr. Ashutosh Bishnoi as the Managing Director 
& Chief Executive Officer for a period of 3 years with 
effect from 12th October, 2015 to 11th October, 
2018 for a total remuneration of Rs. 1,20,00,000 
(Rupees One Crore Twenty Lakhs only) per annum, for 
the period of 3 years mentioned above.

 However, the Central Government, vide its notification 
dated 12th September, 2016, amended the 
provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 
2013, by replacing the existing section II with the 
new section II. As per part B of the new section II, 
even if, in any financial year, during the currency 
of the tenure of a managerial person, a company 
has no profits or its profits are inadequate, still no 
approval of the Central Government is necessary for 
payment of remuneration to a managerial person, if 
such managerial person fulfills the criteria mentioned 
in the said notificiation. Mr. Ashutosh Bishnoi fulfilled 
the prescribed criteria and hence, considering his 
acumen, experience and expertise and also his 
contribution as the Managing Director and Chief 
Executive Officer of the Company, the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, at its Meeting held 
on 21st September, 2016, recommended to the 
Board the revision in the remuneration payable 
to Mr. Ashutosh Bishnoi. The Board of Directors, 
approved the revision in the remuneration of  
Mr. Ashutosh Bishnoi, subject to the approval of the 
shareholders. The shareholders at their Extraordinary 
General Meeting held on 17th October, 2016, 
approved the revision in the remuneration of Mr. 
Ashutosh Bishnoi, as recommended by the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and approved by the 
Board of Directors.
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
 Mr. Rajesh Vasudevan resigned as the Chief Financial 
Officer of the Company with effect from 6th June, 
2016.

 Mr. Sanjay Parikh was appointed as the Chief Financial 
Officer of the Company with effect from 14th June, 
2016.

 Mr. Abhijeet Gogate resigned as the Company 
Secretary with effect from 6th June, 2016.

 Mr. Basavraj Loni was appointed as the Company 
Secretary of the Company with effect from 14th June, 
2016.

 Mr. Ashutosh Bishnoi, Managing Director & Chief 
Executive Officer; Mr. Sanjay Parikh, Chief Financial 
Officer and Mr. Basavraj Loni, Company Secretary are 
the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as per 
the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
 The composition of the Board of Directors of your 
Company is in conformity with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time. 
The Company has a Non-Executive Non-Independent 
Chairman, a Managing Director and two Independent 
Directors. The Board reviews and approves strategy 
and oversees the actions and results of management 
to ensure that the long term objectives of enhancing 
stakeholders’ value are met. 

None of the Independent Directors are due for re-
appointment. None of the Directors hold directorships 
in more than 10 public companies. None of the 
Directors are related to each other.

Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting
 During the Financial Year 2016-17, the Board of 
Directors met seven times: on 12th April, 2016, 
14th June, 2016, 12th July, 2016, 21st September, 
2016, 17th October, 2016, 19th December, 2016 
and 12th January, 2017.

The names and categories of the Directors of the Company, their attendance at the Board Meetings held during 
the Financial Year 2016-17 and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on 12th July, 
2016, are as follows:

Names of Directors Category Attendance at the board 
Meetings held during the 

financial year 2016-17

Attendance at the Last 
Annual General Meeting 
held on 12th July, 2016

(Yes/ No/ N.A.)
Held Attended

Mr. V. Ravi (Chairman) Non-Executive  
Non-Independent
Director

7 7 Yes

Mr. Ashutosh Bishnoi
(Managing Director &  
Chief Executive Officer)

Executive Director 7 7 Yes

Mr. Gautam Divan Independent Director 7 7 Yes
Mr. Sethu Gururajan Independent Director 7 7 Yes

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
a) Audit Committee
  As on 31st March, 2017, the Audit Committee 

comprised of two Independent Directors and 
one Non-Executive Non-Independent Director. 
The Committee is comprised of Mr. Gautam 
Divan (Chairman) and Mr. Sethu Gururajan, both 
Independent Directors and Mr. V. Ravi, Non-
Executive Non-Independent Director.

  The Audit Committee met five times during the 
year under consideration: on 12th April, 2016, 
12th July, 2016, 17th October, 2016, 19th 
December, 2016 and 12th January, 2017. All 
the members of the Committee were present at 
the said Meetings of the Audit Committee. All the 

recommendations made by the Audit Committee 
have been accepted by the Board.

  The terms of reference of the Audit Committee 
are as follows:

 i)  To recommend the appointment, 
remuneration and terms of appointment of 
auditors of the company;

 ii)  To review and monitor the auditor’s 
independence, performance and effectiveness 
of audit process;

 iii)  To meet the Internal Auditors and the 
Statutory Auditors periodically and to 
discuss the scope of audit, observations of 
the Auditors and other related matters;
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 iv)  To have discussion with the Internal Auditors 
periodically about internal control systems 
and to ensure compliance of internal control 
systems;

 v)  Examination of the financial statement and 
the auditor’s report thereon;

 vi)  Approval or any subsequent modification of 
transactions of the Company with related 
parties;

 vii)  Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and 
investments;

 viii)  Valuation of undertakings or assets of the 
Company, wherever it is necessary;

 ix)  Evaluation of internal financial controls and 
risk management systems; and

 x)  Monitoring the end use of funds raised 
through public offers and related matters, 
wherever it is necessary.

b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee
  As on 31st March, 2017, the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee comprised of two 
Independent Directors and one Non-Executive 
Non-Independent Director.

  The Committee comprises of Mr. Sethu 
Gururajan (Chairman) and Mr. Gautam Divan, 
both Independent Directors and Mr. V. Ravi, Non-
Executive and Non-Independent Director.

  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
met thrice during the year under consideration: 
on 12th April, 2016, 14th June, 2016 and 
21st September, 2016. All the members of the 
Committee were present at the said Meetings of 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

  The terms of reference of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee are as follows:

 a)  To identify persons who are qualified to 
become directors and who may be appointed 
in senior management in accordance with 
the criteria to be laid down, recommend to 
the Board their appointment and removal;

 b)  To carry out evaluation of every director’s 
performance;

 c)  To formulate the criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a director and recommend to 
the Board a policy relating to the remuneration 
for the directors, key managerial personnel 
and other employees. While formulating the 
policy, the Committee shall ensure that—

  i)  the level and composition of 
remuneration is reasonable and 
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate 
directors of the quality required to run 
the Company successfully;

  ii)  relationship of remuneration to 
performance is clear and meets 
appropriate performance benchmarks; 
and

  iii)  remuneration to directors, key 
managerial personnel and senior 
management involves a balance between 
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short 
and long-term performance objectives 
appropriate to the working of the 
Company and its goals.

 d)  To govern, administer, control and manage 
from time to time the schemes for rewarding 
employees by way of stock options, stock 
appreciation rights or in such other manner 
as may be determined by the appropriate 
authority from time to time;

 e)  To discharge from time to time such 
other acts, duties and functions as may 
be assigned by the Board of Directors or 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 
or any other applicable law and Rules made 
thereunder.

   The Company has adopted the Policy to 
determine qualifications, positive attributes 
and independence of Directors and evaluation 
of the Board, Committees and individual 
Directors; the ‘Policy on Remuneration of 
Directors’ and ‘Remuneration Policy for Key 
Managerial Personnel and Employees’ as 
required under sub-section (3) of Section 
178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
‘Policy on Remuneration of Directors’ and 
‘Remuneration Policy for Key Managerial 
Personnel and Employees’ of the Company 
are appended as Annexure I to this Report 
in accordance with the provisions of sub-
section (4) of Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

   Besides the aforesaid Board Committees, 
the Company also has an Investment 
Committee, a Valuation Committee, an 
Anti-Money Laundering Committee and a 
Risk Management Committee. These are 
the committees of management formed in 
compliance of SEBI Regulations applicable to 
the Asset Management Companies.
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PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE 
BOARD
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, the Board has adopted the Evaluation 
Framework and carried out an annual performance 
evaluation of its own performance, the performance 
of directors individually as well as the evaluation of the 
working of Committees of the Board.

Well-defined and structured questionnaires were 
prepared after taking into consideration inputs 
received from the Directors, covering various aspects 
of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the 
composition of the Board and its Committees, 
Board culture, areas of responsibility, execution 
and performance of specific duties, obligations, 
governance and compliance perspectives etc.

The evaluation process involves self-evaluation by 
the Board members and subsequent assessment by 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
the Board of Directors based on the inputs received 
from all the Directors through the questionnaires. 
In general, the Directors have expressed their 
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

DECLARATIONS BY INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTORS
The Company has received declarations from the 
Independent Directors confirming that they fulfil the 
criteria of independence as prescribed under sub-
section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
The Independent Directors met once during the year 
under consideration. The meeting was conducted in an 
informal manner without the presence of the Managing 
Director, the Non-Executive Non-Independent Director 
and any of the Key Managerial Personnel.

 PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION
Being an unlisted company, provisions of Rule 5 of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of the Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not 
applicable to your Company.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to sub-section 3(a) of Section 134 and sub-
section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of the 
Annual Return as at 31st March, 2017 forms part of 
this Report and is appended as Annexure II.

HUMAN RESOURCES
Your Company strongly believes in maintaining the 

dignity of all its employees, irrespective of their gender 
or seniority. Discrimination and harassment of any 
type are strictly prohibited. The Company has taken 
the necessary steps to enhance awareness amongst 
its employees in respect of the provisions of the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules 
framed thereunder. During the year, the Company has 
not received any complaints of sexual harassment.

As on 31st March, 2017, the Company had 96 
permanent employees.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE
The Company has adopted Code of Conduct for 
Corporate Governance (“the Code”) for its Senior 
Management and Employees. The Code enunciates 
the underlying principles governing the conduct of 
the Company’s business and seeks to reiterate the 
fundamental precept that good governance must, and 
would always, be an integral part of the Company’s 
ethos.

During the year under consideration, the Company 
adopted the Code of Conduct for the Directors of the 
Company. Declarations have been received from the 
Directors towards the compliance with the provisions 
of the Code of Conduct for Directors, for the financial 
year 2016-17.

AUDITORS

Statutory Auditors
Messrs. B. K. Khare & Co., Chartered Accountants 
[ICAI Firm Registration No. 105102W], hold the 
office of the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a 
period of 5 years from the conclusion of the Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) held on 7th August, 2014 till 
the conclusion of the Sixth AGM of the Company to 
be held in the year 2019. The appointment is subject 
to the ratification by shareholders at every Annual 
General Meeting.

As required under the provisions of Section 139(1) 
read with Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Company has obtained a written certificate from 
Messrs. B. K. Khare & Co., Chartered Accountants, 
to the effect that their appointment as the Statutory 
Auditors, if ratified by shareholders, would be in 
conformity of the criteria specified in the said Sections.

Pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, the Board of Directors recommend 
to shareholders, ratification of the appointment of 
Messrs. B. K. Khare & Co., Chartered Accountants 
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company from the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting (fourth AGM) till 
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the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (fifth 
AGM) of the Company.

The Report of Statutory Auditors forms part of this 
Annual Report. There is no qualification, reservation or 
adverse remark in the Auditors’ Report.

 During the year under consideration, there were no 
frauds on or by the Company which were required to 
be reported by the Statutory Auditors of the Company 
to the Central Government.

Secretarial Auditor
 The Board of Directors of the Company, at their 
Meeting held on 19th December, 2016, appointed 
M. Siroya & Company, Company Secretaries (CP 
No. 4157), to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the 
Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014. In accordance with the 
provisions of sub-section (1) of Section 204, the 
Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year 2016-
17 furnished by the Secretarial Auditor is appended 
to this Report as Annexure III.

 The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any 
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOLLOWED 
BY THE COMPANY
The Financial Statements of the Company have been 
prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) and 
comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 and the relevant provisions of the Act.

 INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM
Your Company has in place, adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements, 
commensurate with the size, scale and nature of its 
operations.

The Management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal controls for financial reporting. 
The effectiveness of the internal control systems of the 
Company pertaining to financial reporting is reviewed 
by the Statutory Auditors and the Audit Committee 
to ensure that Financial Statements of the Company 
present a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Company.

During the year, such controls were tested and no 
reportable material weaknesses in the design or 
operation were observed.

INTERNAL AUDITORS
Messrs. HARIBHAKTI & CO. LLP, Chartered Accountants 
are the Internal Auditors of the Company in compliance 
with the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. The report(s) of the Internal Auditors 
are reviewed by the Audit Committee and wherever 
deemed necessary, the systems are strengthened and 
corrective actions taken.

 PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, 
SECURITIES, INVESTMENTS
During the year under consideration, the Company 
invested in the Non-Convertible Debentures of 
Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited, a fellow 
subsidiary. The details of the investments are provided 
in the notes to the account at an appropriate place. 
The investments were within the limits pre-approved 
by the shareholders at their Extraordinary General 
Meeting held on 17th October, 2016.

The Company has not made any loan / advance in 
the nature of loan which is otherwise required to be 
disclosed in the annual accounts of the Company, the 
Holding Company (Mahindra & Mahindra Financial 
Services Limited) or the ultimate Holding Company 
(Mahindra & Mahindra Limited), pursuant to the 
provisions of Regulation 34(3) of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read 
with schedule V annexed to the said Regulations.

 DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY 
STATEMENT
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that:

i.  In the preparation of the annual accounts for 
the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2017, 
the applicable accounting standards have been 
followed and there are no material departures in 
adoption of these standards.

ii.  The Directors have selected such accounting 
policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st 
March, 2017 and of the loss of the Company for 
the year ended on that date.

iii.  The Directors have taken proper and sufficient 
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities.

iv.  The Directors have prepared the annual accounts 
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for Financial Year ended 31st March, 2017 on a 
‘going concern’ basis.

v.  The Directors have devised proper systems to 
ensure compliance with provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and 
operating effectively.

 PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR 
ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED 
PARTIES REFERRED TO IN  
SECTION 188(1)
Pursuant to provisions of Section 134(3)(h) read with 
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 
the related party transactions have been disclosed in 
the relevant notes to the Accounts.

 MATERIAL CHANGES AND 
COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE 
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
There have been no material changes and 
commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company which have occurred between the end of the 
Financial Year of the Company to which the financial 
statements relate and the date of this Report.

 PARTICULARS REGARDING 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, 
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, AND 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS  
AND OUTGO
The particulars in respect of conservation of energy, 
technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings 
and outgo, as required under Section 134(3)(m) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure IV.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
A Risk Management Policy for the Asset Management 
Business is approved by the Board of Directors and 
is in place. The Risk Management Committee has 
implemented a risk management framework and will 
ensure its ongoing implementation.

SUBSIDIARIES
The Company did not have any subsidiary as on 31st 
March, 2017 nor during the Financial Year ended on 
that date.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any deposits from 
public or its employees during the year under 
consideration. The Company did not have any deposits 
falling under Rule 2(i)(c) of the Companies (Acceptance 
of Deposits) Rules, 2014, during the year under 
consideration. There were no deposits which were not 
in compliance with the requirements of Chapter V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

 SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS 
PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 
COURTS
There are no significant material orders passed by 
the Regulators / Courts which would impact the 
going concern status of the Company and its future 
operations.

GENERAL
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting 
is required in respect of the following items as, 
during the year under consideration, there were no 
transactions/ events pertaining to these items and / 
or they were not applicable:

•  Change in the nature of business carried out by 
the Company during the year under consideration.

•  Payment of Remuneration or Commission to the 
Managing Director or the Whole Time Director of 
the Company from its Holding Company or from 
any of its subsidiaries.

•  Details about the policy developed and 
implemented by the Company on Corporate Social 
Responsibility initiative taken during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board

V. Ravi
Chairman

Registered Office:
4th Floor, A - Wing, 
Mahindra Towers, Dr. G M Bhosale Marg,
P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli
Mumbai – 400018.
CIN : U65900MH2013PTC244758
Tel. : 91 22 6652 6000 Fax: 91 22 2498 4170
E-mail: mamc@mahindra.com
Website: www.mahindramutualfund.com

Mumbai, April 15, 2017
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ANNEXURE I TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
Policy on Remuneration of Directors and Remuneration Policy for  

Key Managerial Personnel and Employees of the Company

POLICY ON REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Prelude
The Company is engaged as an investment manager 
to Mahindra Mutual Fund.

This Policy shall be effective from the Financial Year 
2015 - 16.

Intent of the Policy
The intent of the Remuneration Policy of Directors 
of Mahindra Asset Management Company Private 
Limited (“the Company”) is to focus on enhancing the 
value and to attract and retain quality individuals with 
requisite knowledge and excellence as Executive and 
Non-Executive Directors for achieving objectives of 
the Company and to place the Company in a leading 
position.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) 
of the Board shall, while formulating the policy ensure 
that —

a)  the level and composition of remuneration is 
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 
motivate Directors of the quality required to run 
the company successfully;

b)  relationship of remuneration to performance 
is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks; and

c)  remuneration to Directors, key managerial 
personnel and senior management involves a 
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting 
short and long-term performance objectives 
appropriate to the working of the company and 
its goals.

While deciding the policy on remuneration of Directors, 
the Committee may consider, amongst other things, 
the duties and responsibilities cast by the Companies 
Act, 2013, various Codes of Conduct, Articles of 
Association, restrictions on the remuneration to 
Directors as also the remuneration drawn by Directors 
of other companies in the industry, the valuable 
contributions and inputs from Directors based on their 
knowledge, experience and expertise in shaping the 
destiny of the Company etc. The Policy is guided by a 
reward framework and set of principles and objectives 
as more fully and particularly envisaged under Section 
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and principles 

pertaining to qualifications, positive attributes, integrity 
and independence of Directors etc.

Directors
The Managing Director /Executive Director is an 
executive of the Company and draws remuneration 
from the Company. The Non-Executive and Independent 
Directors may receive sitting fees for attending the 
meetings of the Board and the Committees thereof, 
if fixed by the Board of Directors from time to time 
subject to statutory provisions.

The Non-Executive and Independent Directors would 
be entitled to the remuneration under the Companies 
Act, 2013. A Non-Executive Non-Independent Director 
who receives remuneration from the Holding Company 
or a Group Company will not be paid any sitting fees 
or any remuneration. In addition to the above, the 
Directors are entitled for reimbursement of expenses 
incurred in discharge of their duties. Payment of 
Remuneration to Nominee Directors, if any, shall 
be governed by the agreement with the Financial 
Institution/Bank appointing the Nominee Director and 
by the Articles of Association of the Company.

The Managing Director /Executive Director and 
other eligible Director(s) as per extant statutory 
provisions may be granted Employees Stock Options, 
Stock Appreciation Rights or any other Share based 
Employee benefits pursuant to any scheme that may be 
approved by the Board of Directors and Shareholders 
of the Company subject to such other approvals as 
may be required.

Non-Executive Directors may be paid remuneration 
either by way of monthly payment or at a specified 
percentage of net profits of the Company or partly 
by one way and partly by another, subject to the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The NRC while determining the remuneration 
shall ensure that the level and composition of 
remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, 
retain and motivate the persons to ensure the quality 
required to run the Company successfully. While 
considering the remuneration, the NRC shall also 
ensure a balance between fixed and performance-
linked variable pay reflecting short and long term 
performance objectives appropriate to the working 
of the Company and its goals.
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The NRC shall consider that a successful 
Remuneration Policy must ensure that some part 
of the remuneration is linked to the achievement of 
corporate performance targets.

Managing Director /Executive Director
The term of office and remuneration of Managing 
Director/Executive Director are subject to the 
approval of the Board of Directors, Shareholders and 
the Central Government, as may be required, and 
the limits laid down under the Companies Act, 2013, 
from time to time.

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits 
or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay, 
subject to the requisite approvals, remuneration to its 
Managing Director/Executive Director in accordance 
with the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

If any Managing Director /Executive Director draws or 
receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration 
any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed 
under the Companies Act, 2013 or without the prior 
sanction of the Central Government, where required, 
he/she shall refund such sums to the Company and 
until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the 
Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of 
such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the 
Central Government.

Remuneration of the Managing Director/Executive 
Director reflects the overall remuneration philosophy 
and guiding principle of the Company. While 
considering the appointment and remuneration of 
Managing Director/Executive Director, the NRC shall 
consider the industry benchmarks, merit and seniority 
of the person and shall ensure that the remuneration 
proposed to be paid is commensurate with the 
remuneration packages paid to similar senior level 
counterpart(s) in other companies.

Remuneration for Managing Director/Executive 
Director is designed subject to the limits laid down 
under the Companies Act, 2013, to remunerate 
them fairly and reasonably. The remuneration to the 
Managing Director/Executive Director comprises of 
salary, perquisites and performance based incentive 
apart from retirement benefits like Provident Fund, 
Superannuation, Gratuity, Leave Encashment etc., as 
per the Rules of the Company. Salary is paid within the 
range approved by the Shareholders. Increments are 
effective annually, as recommended / approved by the 
NRC/ Board. In terms of the Shareholders’ approval, 
the Commission may be paid to Managing Director / 

Executive Director in any Financial Year at a rate not 
exceeding 1/4% (one fourth percent) per annum of 
the profits of the Company computed in accordance 
with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 as may be recommended by NRC and approved 
by the Board.

The total remuneration will have a flexible component 
with a bouquet of allowances to enable the Managing 
Director/Executive Director to choose the allowances 
as well as the quantum based on laid down limits as 
per the Company policy. The flexible component can 
be varied only once annually.

The actual pay-out of variable component of 
the remuneration will be a function of individual 
performance as well as business performance. 
Business performance is evaluated using a Balanced 
Score Card (BSC) while individual performance is 
evaluated on Key Result Areas (KRAs). Both the 
BSC and KRAs are evaluated at the end of the fiscal 
year to arrive at the BSC rating of the business and 
performance rating of the individual.

Remuneration also aims to motivate the Personnel to 
deliver Company’s key business strategies, create a 
strong performance-oriented environment and reward 
achievement of meaningful targets over the short and 
long-term.

The Managing Director/Executive Director is entitled 
to customary non-monetary benefits such as company 
car, health care benefits, leave travel, communication 
facilities, etc., as per the policies of the Company. The 
Managing Director / Executive Director is entitled 
to grant of Stock Options as per the approved Stock 
Options Schemes of the Company from time to time.

Disclosures
Information on the total remuneration of members of 
the Company’s Board of Directors, Managing Director 
/Executive Director and Key Managerial Personnel/
Senior Management Personnel may be disclosed in 
the Board’s Report as per statutory requirements laid 
down in this regard.

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR KEY 
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND 
EMPLOYEES
This Policy shall be effective from the Financial Year 
2015 - 16.

Objective
To establish guidelines for remunerating employees 
fairly and in keeping with Statutes.
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Definition(s)
“Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) as defined in 
section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013 means:

i)  the Chief Executive Officer or the Managing 
Director or Manager;

ii) the Company Secretary;

iii) the Whole-time Director;

iv) the Chief Financial Officer; and

v) such other officer as may be prescribed.

Standard
The broad structure of compensation payable to 
employees is as under:

• Fixed pay which has components like basic salary 
& other allowances / flexi pay as per the grade 

where the employees can choose allowances 
from bouquet of options.

• Variable pay (to certain grades) in the form of 
annual / half yearly performance pay based on 
Key Result Areas agreed – as applicable.

• Incentives, either monthly or quarterly, based on 
targets in the lower grades.

• Retirals such as Provident Fund, Gratuity & 
Superannuation (for certain grades).

• Benefits such as Employee Stock Option Scheme, 
car scheme, medical & dental benefit, loans, 
insurance etc. as per grades.

Increments
Salary increase is given to eligible employees based on 
position, performance & market dynamics as decided 
from time to time.
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ANNEXURE II TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
FORM NO. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2017

[Pursuant to section 92(3) and Rule 12(1) of the Companies  
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
i) CIN U65900MH2013PTC244758
ii) Registration Date 20th June, 2013
iii) Name of the Company Mahindra Asset Management Company Private Limited
iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public Limited Company (being a subsidiary of a Public 

Limited Company)
v) Address of the Registered office and contact details 4th Floor, A - Wing, Mahindra Towers, Dr. G M Bhosale 

Marg, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai – 400018.
Tel. : 91 22 6652 6000 Fax: 91 22 2498 4170

vi) Whether listed company Yes / No No
vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and 

Transfer Agent, if any
N.A.

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 percent or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-
Sl. 
No.

Name and Description of
main products / services

NIC Code of the
Product/ service

% to total turnover  
of the Company

1. Investment  Management 66301 100

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sr. 
No

Name and Address of
the Company

CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/
Associate

% of shares
Held

Applicable 
Section

1. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Limited
Gateway Building,  
Apollo Bunder,  
Mumbai  - 400 001

L65990MH1945PLC004558 Ultimate Holding 
Company

100* Section 2(46)

2. Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services Limited
Gateway Building,  
Apollo Bunder,  
Mumbai  - 400 001

L65921MH1991PLC059642 Holding Company 100 Section 2(46)

*  There is no direct Shareholding in the Company by Mahindra & Mahindra Limited, the Ultimate Holding Company. Shares 
are held through Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited, Subsidiary of Mahindra & Mahindra Limited.

IV.  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY)
 i) Category-wise Share Holding
Category of  
Shareholders

No. of Shares held  
at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares held  
at the end of the year

% 
Change
during 

the year
Demat Physical Total % of

Total
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of
Total

Shares
A. PROMOTERS
1. INDIAN
 a) Individual/HUF - - - - - - - - -
 b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
 c) State Govt (s) - - - - - - - - -
 d) Bodies Corporate - 6,05,50,000 6,05,50,000 100 - 9,10,00,000 9,10,00,000 100 -
 e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
 f) Any Other - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) (1) - 6,05,50,000 6,05,50,000 100 - 9,10,00,000 9,10,00,000 100 -
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Category of  
Shareholders

No. of Shares held  
at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares held  
at the end of the year

% Change
during the 

year
Demat Physical Total % of 

Total
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of
Total

Shares
2. FOREIGN
 a) NRIs - Individuals - - - - - - - - -
 b) Other - Individuals - - - - - - - - -

 c) Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - - -
 d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
 e) Any Other - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) (2) - - - - - - - - -
Total shareholding of 
Promoter (A) =  
(A) (1) + (A) (2)

- 6,05,50,000 6,05,50,000 100 - 9,10,00,000 9,10,00,000 100 -

B.  PUBLIC 
SHAREHOLDING

1. INSTITUTIONS
 a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -

 b) Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -
 c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
 d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -
 e)  Venture Capital 

Funds
- - - - - - - - -

 f)  Insurance 
Companies

- - - - - - - - -

 g) FIIs - - - - - - - - -
 h)  Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds
- - - - - - - - -

 i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (B) (1) - - - - - - - - -
2. NON-INSTITUTIONS

 a) Bodies Corporate
  i) Indian - - - - - - - - -
  ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -
 b) Individuals
  i)  Individual 

shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital  
upto Rs. 1 lakh

- - - - - - - - -

  ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital  
in excess of  
Rs. 1 lakh

- - - - - - - - -

 c) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (B) (2) - - - - - - - - -
Total Public 
Shareholding  
(B) = (B) (1) + (B) (2)

- - - - - - - - -

C  SHARES HELD BY 
CUSTODIAN FOR 
GDRs & ADRs

- - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) - 6,05,50,000 6,05,50,000 100 - 9,10,00,000 9,10,00,000 100 -

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Sl.
No.

Shareholder’s
Name

Shareholding  
at the beginning of the year

Shareholding  
at the end of the Year % change

in share 
holding 

during the 
year

No. of
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

% of shares
pledged /

encumbered
to total 
shares

No. of
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

% of shares
pledged /

encumbered
to total 
shares

1. Mahindra & Mahindra Financial 
Services Limited

6,05,49,998 100 - 9,09,99,998 100 - -

2. Mahindra & Mahindra Financial 
Services Limited Jointly with  
Mr. Ramesh Iyer

1 - - 1 - - -
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Sl.
No.

Shareholder’s
Name

Shareholding  
at the beginning of the year

Shareholding  
at the end of the Year % change

in share 
holding 

during the 
year

No. of
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

% of shares
pledged /

encumbered
to total 
shares

No. of
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

% of shares
pledged /

encumbered
to total 
shares

3. Mahindra & Mahindra Financial 
Services Limited Jointly with  
Mr. V. Ravi

1 - - 1 - - -

Total 6,05,50,000 100 - 9,10,00,000 100 - -

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
Sl. 
No.

Particulars Shareholding  
at the beginning of the year

Cumulative shareholding
during the year

No. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company

No. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company

1. Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited  
along with joint holders
At the beginning of the year 6,05,50,000 100 6,05,50,000 100
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc.)

Reason for 
increase / 

decrease

Date No. of shares % increase/ 
decrease

Allotment on a 
Rights basis

29.08.2016 1,54,50,000 Nil

Allotment on a 
Rights basis

16.03.2017 1,50,00,000 Nil

Total - 3,04,50,000 Nil
At the end of the year 9,10,00,000 100 9,10,00,000 100

(iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs 
and ADRs)

Sl. 
No.

For each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding  
at the beginning of the year

Cumulative shareholding  
during the year

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company
At the beginning of the year

Not Applicable

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):
At the End of the year (or on the date of 
separation, if separated during the year)

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Sl. 
No.

For each of the directors and KMP Shareholding  
at the beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company

No. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company

1. Mr. V. Ravi - Director (jointly with Mahindra &  
Mahindra Financial Services Ltd.)
At the beginning of the year 1 - 1 -
Date wise Increase /Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for increase 
/decrease (e.g. allotment /transfer /bonus/ 
sweat equity etc):

No change

At the End of the year 1 - 1 -
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Sl. 
No.

For each of the directors and KMP Shareholding  
at the beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company

No. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company

2. Mr. Ashutosh Bishnoi –  
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc):

No Change

At the End of the year - - - -
3. Mr. Gautam Divan – Director

At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc):

No Change

At the End of the year - - - -
4. Mr. Sethu Gururajan – Director

At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc):

No Change

At the End of the year - - - -
5. Mr. Rajesh Vasudevan– Chief Financial Officer (1)

At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc):

No Change

At the End of the year - - - -
6. Mr. Abhijeet Gogate – Company Secretary (2)

At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc):

No Change

At the End of the year - - - -
7. Mr. Sanjay Parikh– Chief Financial Officer (3)

At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc):

No Change

At the End of the year - - - -
8. Mr. Basavraj Loni – Company Secretary (4)

At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc):

No Change

At the End of the year - - - -

Notes:
(1) Resigned as the Chief Financial Officer with effect from 6th June, 2016.
(2) Resigned as the Company Secretary with effect from 6th June, 2016.
(3) Appointed as the Chief Financial Officer with effect from 14th June, 2016.
(4) Appointed as the Company Secretary with effect from 14th June, 2016.
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V. INDEBTEDNESS
  Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits
Total  

Indebtedness
INDEBTEDNESS AT THE BEGINNING  
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
i) Principal Amount – – – –
ii) Interest due but not paid – – – –
iii) Interest accrued but not due – – – –
 Total (i+ii+iii) – – – –
CHANGE IN INDEBTEDNESS  
DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
• Addition – – – –
• Reduction – – – –
 Net Change – – – –
INDEBTEDNESS AT THE END OF  
THE FINANCIAL YEAR
i) Principal Amount – – – –
ii) Interest due but not paid – – – –
iii) Interest accrued but not due – – – –
Total (i+ii+iii) – – – –

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Sl. 
no.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount
Managing Director –  

Mr. Ashutosh Bishnoi 
(Managing Director & 

Chief Executive Officer)

Whole time 
Director Manager

1. Gross salary
a)  Salary as per provisions contained 

in section 17(1) of the Income-Tax 
Act,1961

177.24 – – 177.24

b)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the 
Income-Tax Act, 1961

– – – –

 c)  Profits in lieu of salary under section 
17(3) of the Income-Tax Act, 1961

– – – –

2. Stock Option – – – –
3. Sweat Equity – – – –
4. Commission

- as % of profit
- others, specify

– – – –

Others, please specify – – – –
Total (A) 177.24 – – 177.24(a)

Ceiling as per the Act [Please see note (a)]

B. Remuneration to other directors:
 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Sl. 
no.

Particulars of Remuneration Names of Directors Total Amount

1. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS Mr. Gautam Divan Mr. Sethu Gururajan
 Fee for attending board/  
committee meetings (b)

5.70 5.70 11.40

Commission – – –
Others – – –
Total (1) 5.70 5.70 11.40
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Sl. 
no.

Particulars of Remuneration Names of Directors Total Amount

2. OTHER NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS Mr. V. Ravi
Fee for attending board/ 
committee meetings

– – –

Commission – – –
Others – – –
Total (2) – – –
Total (B) = (1+2) – – 11.40
Total Managerial Remuneration [(A) + (B)] – – 188.60
Overall Ceiling as per the Act [Please see notes]

Notes :
(a)  The Central Government vide its notification dated 12th September, 2016, amended the provisions of Schedule V of 

the Companies Act, 2013, by replacing the existing section II with the new section II.  As per part B of the new section 
II, even if, in any financial year, during the currency of the tenure of a managerial person, a company has no profits or 
its profits are inadequate, still no approval of the Central Government is necessary for payment of remuneration to a 
managerial person, if such managerial person fulfills the criteria mentioned in the said notificiation. There are no specific 
limits for the payment of remuneration to such person. Mr. Ashutosh Bishnoi fulfilled the prescribed criteria and hence the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) recommended to the Board, the revision of the remuneration payable to 
Mr. Ashutosh Bishnoi. The Board accepted the recommendation of the NRC. The Shareholders also approved the revision 
in the remuneration of Mr. Ashutosh Bishnoi. The remuneration paid to Mr. Ashutosh Bishnoi is within the limits fixed by 
the NRC / Board /shareholders.

(b)  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 197 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013, the overall ceiling on the remuneration to 
directors is exclusive of sitting fee paid to directors for attending the meetings of the Board or committees thereof. The 
sitting fees paid to directors is within the limit prescribed therefor under Section 197(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

C.  Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD
                 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Sl.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total
CEO Company Secretary CFO

1. Gross salary -- – -- –
a)  Salary as per provisions contained in 

section 17(1) of the Income-Tax Act,1961
-- -- 58.38 58.38

b)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)  
Income-Tax Act, 1961

-- -- 0.30 0.30

c)  Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 
Income-Tax Act, 1961

-- -- -- --

2. Stock Option -- -- -- --
3. Sweat Equity -- -- -- --
4. Commission

– as % of profit
– others

-- -- -- --

5. Others -- -- -- --
Total -- – 58.68 58.68

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section of the 

Companies Act
Brief

Description
Details of 
Penalty /

Punishment/ 
Compounding 
fees imposed

Authority
[RD/NCLT/ 

COURT]

Appeal made,
if any

(give details)

A. COMPANY

None
 Penalty
 Punishment
 Compounding
B. DIRECTORS

None
 Penalty
 Punishment
 Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

None
 Penalty
 Punishment
 Compounding
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 ANNEXURE III TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended March 31, 2017

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Mahindra Asset Management Company  
Private Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the 
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by 
Mahindra Asset Management Company Private 
Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial 
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us 
a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our 
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company books, 
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also 
the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that 
in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on 31 March, 
2017, complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company for the financial year ended on  
31 March, 2017, according to the relevant and 
applicable provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the 
rules made thereunder, as may be applicable;

(ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 
(‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations 
and Bye-laws framed thereunder; and

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and 
the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment.

Based on the representation made by the Company and 
its officers and our verification of the relevant records 
on test check basis, the Company has adequate 
systems and processes in place for compliance under 
the following law applicable specifically to the Company:

– SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996.

  Other statutes, Acts, laws, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines and Standards etc., as applicable to 
the Company are given below:

 1.  Labour Laws and other incidental laws related 
to employees appointed by the Company 
either on its payroll or on contractual basis 
as related to wages, gratuity, provident fund, 
ESIC, compensation etc.;

 2.  Acts as prescribed under Direct Tax and 
Indirect Tax;

 3. Stamp Acts and Registration Acts;

 4. Labour Welfare Act; and

 5.  Such other Local laws etc. as may be 
applicable.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses of the following:

1.  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India, and

2.  Listing Agreement: The Company is an unlisted 
Company and therefore compliance with listing 
agreement is not applicable.

During the period under review, the Company has 
complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned 
above, to the extent applicable.

We further report that the Board of the Company is duly 
constituted with proper balance of Executive Director, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. 
There were no changes in the composition of the Board 
of Directors during the period under review.

Adequate notice was given to all the Directors to 
schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days 
in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation & deliberations at these meetings.

During the period under review, decisions were 
carried through unanimously and no dissenting views 
were observed, while reviewing the minutes.
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We further report that there are adequate systems 
and processes in the Company commensurate with 
the size and operations of the Company in order to 
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the 
Company has undertaken following significant & 
material corporate events/actions having a bearing 
on the Company’s affairs in  pursuance of the 
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, 
standards, etc.:

(i)  At the Board Meeting held on June 14, 2016, 
inter-alia, the following resolutions were passed:

 (a)  Accepted the resignation of Mr. Rajesh 
Vasudevan as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. 
June 6, 2016;

 (b)  Approved the appointment of Mr. Sanjay 
Parikh as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. June 
14, 2016;

 (c)  Accepted the resignation of Mr. Abhijeet 
Gogate as Company Secretary w.e.f. June 
6, 2016; and

 (d)  Approved the appointment of Mr. Basavraj 
Loni as Company Secretary w.e.f. June 14, 
2016.

(ii)  At the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the 
members held on July 21, 2016, the following 
resolution was passed:

  Increase in Authorised Share Capital of the 
Company from Rs. 76,00,00,000 (Rupees 
Seventy Six Crores) to Rs. 110,00,00,000 
(Rupees One Hundred and Ten Crores), thereby 
altering the Memoradum of Association of the 
Company.

(iii)  At the meeting of Allotment Committee held 
on August 29, 2016, inter-alia, the following  
resolution was passed:

  Allotment of 1,54,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 
10 each on a Right basis.

(iv)  At the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the 
members held on October 17, 2016, inter-alia, 
the following resolutions were passed:

  Revision in the Remuneration of Mr. Ashutosh 
Bishnoi as Managing Director and CEO; and

  Investment of surplus funds upto Rs. 
56,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifty Six Crores) pursuant 
to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(v)  At the meeting of Allotment Committee held on 
March 16, 2017 the following resolution was 
passed:

  Allotment of 1,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 
10 each on a Right basis.

(vi)  During the year under review, the company 
received approval for the following schemes of 
Mahindra Mutural Fund, from the Securities & 
Exchange Board of India (SEBI):

 (a)  Mahindra Liquid Fund (An open-ended liquid 
scheme);

 (b)  Mahindra Mutual Fund Kar Bachat Yojana 
(An open-ended ELSS Scheme investing in 
equity securities);

 (c)   Mahindra Mutual Fund Dhan Sanchay Yojana 
(An open-ended equity scheme investing in 
equity securities, equity derivatives and debt 
securities);

 (d)  Mahindra Mutual Fund Alp Samay Bachat 
Yojana (An open-ended income scheme  
investing in debt securities);

 (e)  Mahindra Mutual Fund Bachat Yojana (An 
open-ended equity scheme investing in equity 
securities); and 

 (f)  Mahindra Mutual Fund Bal Vikas Yojana (An 
open-ended balanced scheme investing in a 
mix of equity and debt securities).

  Out of these Six Schemes, the Company launched 
the schemes mentioned at (a) to (d) above, during 
the year under review.

For M Siroya and Company
Company Secretaries

Mukesh Siroya
Proprietor

 FCS No.: 5682
 CP No.: 4157
Date: 15th April, 2017
Place: Mumbai

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral 
part of this report.
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‘Annexure A’

To,
The Members,
Mahindra Asset Management Company  
Private Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.  Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.  We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to 
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, 
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 
the Company.

4.  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management’s representation about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5.  The compliance of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 
of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of the procedures on test basis.

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For M Siroya and Company
Company Secretaries

Mukesh Siroya
Proprietor

 FCS No.: 5682
 CP No.: 4157
Date: 15th April, 2017
Place: Mumbai
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 ANNEXURE IV TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

Information pursuant to section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption and  

foreign exchange earnings and outgo.

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY-

(i)  the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy. The operations of your Company are not 
energy intensive. However, adequate 
measures have been initiated to reduce 
energy consumption.

(ii)  the steps taken by the company for utilising alternate 
sources of energy.

The operations of your company are 
not energy intensive.

(iii)  the capital investment on energy conservation 
equipments.

Nil

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION-

(i)  the efforts made towards technology absorption. None

(ii)  the benefits derived like product improvement, 
cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution.

Not applicable

(iii)  in case of imported technology (imported during the 
last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year).

 a) the details of the technology imported. None

 b) the year of import. Not applicable

 c)  whether the technology has been fully absorbed. Not applicable

 d)  if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has 
not taken place, and the reasons thereof; and

Not applicable

(iv)  the expenditure incurred on Research and 
Development.

Nil

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO-

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows 
during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the 
year in terms of actual outflows.

There were no foreign exchange 
earnings or outgo during the year 
under consideration.

For and on behalf of the Board

 V. Ravi
 Chairman

Mumbai, April 15, 2017

Annual Report 2016 - 17
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Mahindra Asset Management 
Company Private Limited

REPORT ON THE STANDALONE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.  We have audited the accompanying standalone 

financial statements of Mahindra Asset 
Management Company Private Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as 
at March 31, 2017, and the statements of profit 
and loss and cash flow for the period from April 
1, 2016 to March 31, 2017, and a summary 
of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR 
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.  The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 

for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect 
to the preparation of these standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of  
the financial position, financial performance and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read 
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 (as amended). This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud  
or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
3.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 

these standalone financial statements based on 
our audit.

4.  We have taken into account the provisions of the 
Act, the accounting and auditing standards and 
matters which are required to be included in the 
audit report under the provisions of the Act and 
the Rules made thereunder.

5.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

6.  An audit involves performing procedures to 
obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
the disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to the 
Company’s preparation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of the accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of the accounting 
estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.

7.  We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone 
financial statements.

OPINION
8.  In our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid standalone financial statements 
give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at March 31, 2017, and its 
loss and its cash flows for the period from April 
1, 2016 to March 31, 2017.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND 
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
9.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 

Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 
143 of the Act (the “Order”), and on the basis 
of such checks of the books and records of the 
Company as we considered appropriate and 
according to the information and explanations 
given to us, we give in the Annexure I a statement 
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 
of the Order.

10.  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we 
report that:

 a.  we have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

 b.  in our opinion proper books of account 
as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books;

 c.  the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss and Cash Flow dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of 
account;

 d.  In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as 
amended);

 e.  on the basis of written representations 
received from the directors as on March 
31, 2017 taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2017, from 

being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act.

 f.  With respect to the adequacy of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate 
report in Annexure II.

 g.  With respect to the other matters to be 
included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014(as amended), in our 
opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given  
to us:

  i.  The Company does not have any pending 
litigations.

  ii.  The Company does not have any long-
term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there are any 
material foreseeable losses that need 
provision.

  iii.  The Company has been in existence 
for a period less than seven years 
and hence there is no requirement to 
transfer any amounts to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund.

  iv.  The company has provided requisite 
disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements as to holdings as well as 
dealings in Specified Bank Notes during 
the period from 8th November, 2016 
to 30th December, 2016. Based on 
audit procedures and relying on the 
management representation, we report 
that the disclosures are in accordance 
with books of account maintained by 
the company and as produced by to  
us by the Management. Refer Note  
No. 23.

Annual Report 2016 - 17

For B. K. Khare and Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration Number 105102W

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Partner

Membership No. 044784
Place : Mumbai
Date : April 15, 2017
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Annexure I to the Auditor’s Report
Referred to in paragraph 9 of our report of even date on the standalone financial statements of 
Mahindra Asset Management Company Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2017 

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE:

with the appropriate authorities undisputed 
statutory dues including Provident Fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, 
Sales Tax, Excise Duty, Service Tax, Customs 
Duty, value added tax, and other statutory 
dues applicable to it with the concerned 
authorities.

 (b)  According to the information and explanations 
given to us, there are no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of Provident 
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income 
tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Excise Duty, 
Service Tax, Customs Duty and Value Added 
Tax that were outstanding, at the year-end 
for a period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable.

 (c)  According to the information and 
explanations given to us and records of the 
Company examined by us, there are no dues 
of income-tax, sales tax, service tax, excise 
duty, customs duty and value added tax and 
cess which have not been deposited on 
account of any dispute.

VIII.  On the basis of examination of relevant records 
and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not borrowed any 
money from financial institution, Government or 
bank or debenture holders as at the Balance 
Sheet date.

IX.  On the basis of examination of relevant records 
and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not raised moneys 
by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) and term loans.

X.  On the basis of our examination of the relevant 
records of the Company, carried out in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing practices and 
according to the information and explanations 
given to us, no fraud by the company or any fraud 
on the Company by its officers or employees has 
been noticed or reported during the year.

XI.  On the basis of examination of relevant records 
and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has paid or provided 

I. (a)  The Company has maintained proper 
records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of the fixed 
assets.

 (b)   These fixed assets were physically verified 
by the Management during the year at 
reasonable intervals and discrepancies 
noticed during the verification were not 
material and have been properly dealt with 
in the books of accounts.

 (c)   The Company has no immovable properties 
and hence Clause 3(i)(c) is not applicable to 
the company

II.  On facts, Clause 3(ii) of the Companies (Auditor’s 
Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable to the 
company.

III.  No parties are covered in the register maintained 
under section 189 of Companies Act, 2013 by 
the Company. Therefore, clause 3(iii) (a), (b) & (c) 
of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 
is not applicable to the company.

IV.  In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us the provisions of 
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have 
been complied with. During the year, the Company 
has not provided loan to any of its directors’, 
therefore, provisions of section 185 were not 
applicable during the year.

V.  In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not accepted any deposits from the public. 
Consequently, no order has been passed by the 
Company Law Board or National Company Law 
Commission or Reserve Bank of India or any 
court or any other tribunal on the Company. The 
clause 3(v), therefore is not applicable to the 
company.

VI.  On facts, clause 3(vi) relating to maintenance of 
cost records is not applicable to the company.

VII. (a)  According to the records of the Company and 
information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is generally regular in depositing 

Independent Auditor’s Report
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managerial remuneration in accordance with the 
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions 
of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the 
Companies Act, 2013.

XII.  The Company is not a ‘Nidhi Company’, therefore, 
clause 3(xii) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

XIII.  On the basis of examination of relevant 
records and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, all transactions with 
the related parties are in compliance with 
sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 
where applicable. The Company has disclosed 
the details of transactions with related parties 
in the Financial Statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards.

XIV.  The Company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during the 
year under audit; therefore, clause 3(xiv) of the 
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 is not 
applicable to the company.

XV.  On the basis of examination of relevant records 
and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, in our opinion, the Company has 
not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with them.

XVI.  On the basis of examination of relevant records 
and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, in our opinion, the Company is not 
required to be registered under section 45-IA of 
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of Mahindra Asset Management 
Company Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 
March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the Company for 
the period from April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Company’s management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities 

include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that operate 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to the Company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards 
on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies 

Annexure II to the Independent Auditor’s Report 
of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements of Mahindra Asset Management 
Company Private Limited

Annual Report 2016 - 17

For B. K. Khare and Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration Number 105102W

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Partner

Membership No. 044784
Place : Mumbai
Date : April 15, 2017
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Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls and, both issued 
by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that

(1)  pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company;

(2)  provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of 
the company; and

(3)  provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL 
FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud 
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by ICAI.

Independent Auditor’s Report

For B. K. Khare and Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration Number 105102W

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Partner

Membership No. 044784
Place : Mumbai
Date : April 15, 2017
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Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2017

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.
This is the Balance Sheet referred in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board
For B. K. Khare and Co.  V.Ravi Ashutosh Bishnoi Gautam Divan
Chartered Accountants
FRN :105102W

Chairman Managing Director & 
CEO

Director

Padmini Khare Kaicker  Sethu Gururajan Sanjay Parikh    Basavraj Loni
Partner Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. 044784

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 15, 2017

In Rupees

Particulars
As at March 31

Note No. 2017 2016
I. EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1) Shareholders' funds

a)  Share Capital 1  910,000,000  605,500,000
b)  Reserves and Surplus 2  (249,864,624)  (45,128,976)

 660,135,376  560,371,024
2) Non-current liabilities

a)  Long term provisions 3  4,203,872  612,018
 4,203,872  612,018

3) Current liabilities
a)  Trade payables 4
   i)  Micro and Small Enterprises  -  -
   ii)  Other Trade Payables  23,663,932  1,653,080
b)  Other current liabilities 5  4,392,742  1,737,614
c)  Short term provisions 6  25,443,856  7,958,647

 53,500,530  11,349,341
TOTAL 717,839,778 572,332,383

II. ASSETS
1) Non-current assets

a)  Fixed Assets 7
  i)  Tangible assets  15,832,553  2,896,004
  ii)  Intangible assets  3,975,950  -
b)  Non-current investments 8  490,000,000  -
c)  Long term loans and advances 9  30,735,028  9,464,522

 540,543,531  12,360,526
2) Current assets

a)  Current investments 10  144,778,130  556,966,355
b)  Trade Receivable 11  1,603,700  -
c)  Cash and bank balance 12  411,496  896,363
d)  Short-term loans and advances 13  160,000  -
e)  Other current assets 14  30,342,921  2,109,139

 177,296,247  559,971,857
TOTAL 717,839,778 572,332,383

Summary of significant accounting policies and notes to 
the financial statements

I & II

Annual Report 2016 - 17
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Balance Sheet | Statement of Profit and Loss

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2017

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Statement of Profit & Loss.
This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board
For B. K. Khare and Co.  V.Ravi Ashutosh Bishnoi Gautam Divan
Chartered Accountants
FRN :105102W

Chairman Managing Director & 
CEO

Director

Padmini Khare Kaicker  Sethu Gururajan Sanjay Parikh    Basavraj Loni
Partner Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. 044784

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 15, 2017

In Rupees

Particulars Note No.
Year ended March 31

2017 2016
I. Revenue from operations 15 35,103,155  -
II. Other income 16  53,011,061  11,957,758
III. Total Revenue (I + II)  88,114,216  11,957,758
IV. Expenses:

Employee benefits expense 17 140,108,341 35,699,859
Depreciation and amortisation expense 7  5,232,270 357,518
Other expenses 18  147,509,252  20,402,539
Total expenses  292,849,863  56,459,916

V. Loss before tax (III- IV)  (204,735,648)  (44,502,158)
VI. Tax expense:

1)  Current tax  -  -
2)  Deferred tax  -  -

VII Loss for the year (V - VI)  (204,735,648)  (44,502,158)
VIII. Earnings per equity share (Rupees) : 20

1)  Basic (2.91) (1.35)
2)  Diluted (2.91) (1.35)
Summary of significant accounting policies and notes 
to the financial statements

I & II
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Cash Flow Statement
 for the year ended March 31, 2017

In Rupees

Particulars
Year ended March 31

2017 2016
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before taxes and contingencies  (204,735,648) (44,502,158)
Add/(Less):
Non Cash Expenses :
Depreciation/ Amortisation  5,232,270 357,518
Add: Items considered separately:
Income on investing activities  (31,025,241)  -
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Investment  (21,980,765)  -

 (53,006,006)  -
Operating loss before working capital changes (i)  (252,509,383) (44,144,640)
Add / Less:
(Increase)/Decrease in interest accrued others  (16,818,007) (251,296)
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances  (21,430,506)  -
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Assests  (13,019,477) (3,488,084)

 (51,267,989) (3,739,380)
Add: Increase in Current Liabilities & Provisions  45,743,043 11,944,505
 (ii)  (5,524,947) 8,205,125
Cash used in operations  (i+ii)  (258,034,330) (35,939,514)
Advance taxes paid  -  -
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)  (258,034,330) (35,939,514)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets  (22,144,769) (3,253,522)
Purchase of Investments  (1,028,600,000) (562,466,355)
Sale of Investments  972,768,991 7,480,385
Income received on investments  31,025,241  -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)  (46,950,537)  (558,239,492)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of Equity Shares 304,500,000 595,000,000
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C)  304,500,000 595,000,000
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (A+B+C)  (484,867) 820,993
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT:
Beginning of the period  896,363  75,369
End of the period  411,496 896,363

Examined and found correct.
The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Accounting Standard 3 
(AS-3), “Cash Flow Statements”.

For and on behalf of the Board
For B. K. Khare and Co.  V.Ravi Ashutosh Bishnoi Gautam Divan
Chartered Accountants
FRN :105102W

Chairman Managing Director & 
CEO

Director

Padmini Khare Kaicker  Sethu Gururajan Sanjay Parikh    Basavraj Loni
Partner Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. 044784

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 15, 2017
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company, Mahindra Asset Management Company 
Private Limited (‘the Company’), was incorporated 
under the Companies Act, 1956 on June 20, 2013. 
The company is a subsidiary of Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services Ltd. The Company is incorporated 
to function as an Investment Manager to “Mahindra 
Mutual Fund”. The Company has received a license 
from SEBI on 4th February 2016. The Company 
earned fees from investment management activities 
from July 2016 onwards since the launch of the first 
scheme of Mahindra Mutual Fund in that month. As 
on March 31, 2017, the Company is managing four 
schemes of Mahindra Mutual Fund.

I.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1) Basis of preparation of accounts :
 a)  The financial statements have been prepared 

in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (IGAAP) under the 
historical cost convention as a going concern 
and on accrual basis and in accordance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Accounting Standards notified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

 b)  All assets and liabilities have been classified 
as current and non – current as per the 
Company’s normal operating cycle and 
other criteria set out in the Schedule III of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the 
nature of services and their realisation in 
cash and cash equivalents, the company 
has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 
months for the purpose of current – non 
current classification of assets & liabilities.

2) Use of Estimates :
  The preparation of financial statements requires 

the management to make estimates and 
assumptions considered in the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities (including contingent 
liabilities) as on the date of the financial statements 
and the reported income and expenses during 
the reporting year. Management believes that 
the estimates used in preparation of the financial 
statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual 
results could differ from these estimates. Any 
revision to accounting estimates is recognised 
prospectively in current and future years.

3) Investments :
  Investments held as Long –Term Investments 

are stated at cost comprising of acquisition and 
incidental expenses less permanent diminution in 
value, if any. Investments other than Long Term 
investments are classified as Current Investments 
and valued at cost or fair value whichever is less.

  Provision for diminution in value of investments 
is made if management perceives that there is 
permanent diminution in value of investments 
in accordance with the Accounting Standard on 
‘Accounting for Investments’ (AS 13) notified by 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

4) Segment Reporting :
  The Company has a single reporting segment 

viz investment management/advisory services. 
Accordingly, for the purpose of Accounting 
Standard 17 on segment reporting, the financial 
statements of the Company show the results of 
the Company for this single segment only.

5) Revenue Recognition :
  Investment Management Fees are recognised on 

an accrual basis and are charged to each mutual 
fund scheme in accordance with the terms of the 
Scheme Information Document of each Scheme 
managed by the Company.

  Portfolio Management Fees and Fees for Advisory 
Services will be recognised on an accrual 
basis when the services are rendered and an 
enforceable right to receive the fees has arisen 
in accordance with the terms of the Agreement 
between the Company and its clients.

  Dividend from investments is accounted for as 
income when the right to receive dividend is 
established.

 Interest income is accounted on an accrual basis.

  The difference between the cost of investments 
and the redemption/sale proceeds (net of 
expenses) is recognised in the statement of 
Profit and Loss. For calculation of profit/loss 
on investment, cost is calculated on weighted 
average basis.

Cash Flow Statement & Notes



178 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
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6) Share Issue Expenses
  Expenses incurred in connection with fresh issue 

of share capital is charged to Profit and Loss 
account in the year in which they are incurred.

7) Fixed Assets
  Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition 

(including incidental expenses) less depreciation.

8) Depreciation
  Depreciation on fixed assets is calculated by the 

straight line method at rates determined with 
reference to the useful life of fixed assets and 
in the manner provided for in Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013 except:

  a)  Motor vehicles where useful life is estimated 
at four years as against eight years as 
per Schedule II since the employees to 
whom these vehicles have been allotted in 
accordance with their terms of employment 
are entitled to change their vehicles every 
four years, and

 b)  Fixed assets having value individually less 
than Rs 5,000 are fully depreciated in the 
year of purchase.

  Further, residual value for all assets is considered 
as zero due to the difficulty in estimating the same 
and in the case of motor cars, having regard to 
terms of employment under which these are 
allotted to the employees.

  Accordingly, useful life of assets is estimated as 
follows:

Employee vehicles – 4 Years

Computer – 3 Years

Furniture – 10 Years

Office Equipment 5 Years

Assets costing less than Rs 5,000 < 1 year

  Intangible assets are stated at cost less 
accumulated amortization and impairment loss, 
if any. Intangible assets comprises of computer 
software which is amortized over the estimated 
useful life. The maximum period for such 

amortization is 36 months based on estimates 
of useful life.

9) Employee Benefits
  Retirement Benefits in respect of gratuity at 

retirement/cessation are provided for based on 
valuations, as on the Balance Sheet date, made 
by independent actuaries.

 a) Defined Contribution Plans –
   Company’s contribution paid/payable during 

the year to Provident Fund, Superannuation 
and Labour Welfare Fund, etc are recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 b) Defined Benefit Plan –
   Company’s liabilities towards gratuity and 

leave encashment is determined using 
the Projected Unit Credit Method which 
considers each period of service as giving 
rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement 
and measures each unit separately to build 
up the final obligation. Actuarial gains and 
losses are recognised immediately in the 
statement of Profit and Loss as income 
or expense. Obligation is measured at the 
present value of estimated future cash flow 
using a discount rate that is determined by 
reference to market yields at the Balance 
Sheet date on government bonds where 
the currency and terms of the government 
bonds are consistent with the currency 
and estimated terms of the defined benefit 
obligation.

10) Scheme Related Expenses
  Expenses of schemes of Mahindra Mutual Fund 

in excess of the limits provided by the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India Mutual Fund 
Regulations, 1996 are borne by the Company 
and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

11) Impairment Assets
  The carrying value of assets/cash generating 

units at each Balance Sheet date is reviewed 
for impairment. If any indication of impairment 
exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is 
estimated and impairment is recognised, if the 
carrying amount of these assets exceeds their 
recoverable amount.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes

12) Taxes on Income
  Current tax is determined as the amount of 

tax payable in respect of taxable income for 
the year. Deferred tax is recognised, subject to 
consideration of prudence, on timing differences, 
being the difference between taxable incomes 
and accounting income that originate in one 
period and are capable of reversal in one or more 
subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets arising 
on account of unabsorbed depreciation or carry 
forward of tax losses are recognised only to the 
extent that there is virtual certainty supported 
by convincing evidence that sufficient future 
tax income will be available against which such 
deferred tax assets can be realised.

13) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
 a)  Provision for doubtful debts is made on the 

basis of standard norms and also, where 
required, on actual evaluation.

 b)  Provisions are recognized in accounts in 
respect of present probable obligations, the 
amount of which can be reliably estimated. 
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect 
of possible obligations that arise from past 
events but their existence is confirmed only 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one 
or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the company.

14) Earning Per Share
  Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing 

the net profit or loss for the period attributable 
to equity shareholders by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining 
the Company’s earnings per share is the net 
profit for the period after deducting preference 
dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the 
period. The weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period and for all 
periods presented is adjusted for events, such 
as bonus shares, sub-division of shares, etc 
that have changed the number of outstanding 
equity shares, without corresponding change in 
resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted 
earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the 
period attributable to equity shareholders and the 
weighted average numbers of shares outstanding 
during the period is adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equity shares.

15)  Foreign Exchange Transactions and 
Translations

 a) Initial recognition
   Transactions in foreign currencies are 

recognised at the prevailing exchange rates 
between the reporting currency and the 
foreign currency on the transaction dates.

 b) Conversion
   i.  Foreign currency monetary assets and 

liabilities at the year-end are translated 
at the year-end exchange rates and 
the resultant exchange differences are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

  ii.  Non-monetary items, which are 
measured in terms of historical cost 
denominated in a foreign currency, are 
reported using the exchange rate at the 
date of the transaction. Non-monetary 
items, which are measured at fair value 
or other similar valuation denominated 
in a foreign currency, are translated 
using the exchange rate at the date 
when such value was determined.

 c) Exchange differences
   The Company accounts for exchange 

differences arising on translation/
settlement of foreign currency monetary 
items as below:

  i.  Realised gains and losses on settlement 
of foreign currency transactions are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

  ii.  Foreign currency monetary assets and 
liabilities at the year-end are translated 
at the year – end exchange rate and 
the resultant exchange differences are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss

16) Borrowing Cost
  Borrowing costs that are attributable to the 

acquisition or construction of qualifying assets 
are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. 
A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes 
a substantial period of time to get ready for its 



180 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Annual Report 2016 - 17

intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs 
are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Ancillary expenditure incurred in connection with 
the arrangement of borrowings is amortised over 
the tenure of the respective borrowings

17) Lease
  Lease rentals in respect of assets taken on 

operating lease arrangements are recognised as 
per the terms of the lease.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes

II. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 1 SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Capital :    
11,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each   110,00,00,000 76,00,00,000
(March 2016 : 7,60,00,000 shares)      
Issued Capital :      
9,10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each   91,00,00,000 60,55,00,000
(March 2016 : 6,05,50,000  shares)      
Subscribed and Paid-up Capital :      
9,10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each   91,00,00,000 60,55,00,000
(March 2016 : 6,05,50,000  shares)      
Total   91,00,00,000 60,55,00,000

As at March 31
2017 2016

Number of 
shares

In Rupees Number of 
shares

In Rupees

a)  Reconciliation of the number of shares -    

  Number of equity shares outstanding at the 
beginning of the year

6,05,50,000 60,55,00,000 10,50,000 1,05,00,000

  Add : Fresh allotment of shares during the year: 3,04,50,000 30,45,00,000 5,95,00,000 59,50,00,000

  Less : Shares bought back during the year - - - -

  Number of equity shares outstanding 9,10,00,000 91,00,00,000 6,05,50,000 60,55,00,000
b)  Number of equity shares held by holding 

company or ultimate holding company including 
shares held by its subsidiaries/ associates 

 

  Holding company : Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services Limited (Equity shares of  
Rs. 10/- each)

9,10,00,000 91,00,00,000 6,05,50,000 60,55,00,000

  Percentage of holding (%) 100 100 100 100

c)  Shareholders holding more than 5 percent 
shares :

   

  Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services 
Limited

9,10,00,000 91,00,00,000 6,05,50,000 60,55,00,000

In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 2 RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Surplus :
Balance Loss  as per last Balance Sheet (4,51,28,976) (6,26,818)
Add : Loss  for the current period transferred from Statement of 
Profit & Loss

(20,47,35,648) (4,45,02,158)

Balance Loss carried to Balance Sheet (24,98,64,624) (4,51,28,976)
Less : Allocations & Appropriations : – –
Balance Loss as at the end of the period (24,98,64,624) (4,51,28,976)
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In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 3 LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Surplus :
Provision for employee benefits 42,03,872 6,12,018
Total 42,03,872 6,12,018

In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 4 TRADE PAYABLES
Trade payables for expenses :
Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note No 24) – –
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 2,36,63,932 16,53,080
Total 2,36,63,932 16,53,080

In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 5 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (UNSECURED)
TDS Payable 34,90,068 13,56,306
Profession Tax Payable 42,518 4,000
Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds Payable 7,99,349 3,77,308
Service Tax Payable 4,116 –
Other Current Liabilities 56,691 –
Total 43,92,742 17,37,614

In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 6 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Provision for Employee Benefits 2,54,43,856 79,58,647
Total 2,54,43,856 79,58,647
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In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 8 NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Quoted (at cost) – Non-traded
Debentures :
8.9% NCD Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Ltd. 30,00,00,000 –
8.4% NCD Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Ltd. 17,00,00,000 –
Mutual Fund Investments (Unquoted) : –
Mahindra Kar Bachat Yojana – Direct Growth 50,00,000 –
Mahindra Liquid Fund – Direct Growth 50,00,000 –
Mahindra Dhan Sanchay Yojana - Direct Growth 50,00,000 –
Mahindra ALP Samay Bachat Yojana - Direct Growth 50,00,000
Total 49,00,00,000 –
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 47,00,00,000 –
Market value of quoted investments 47,00,00,000 –
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 2,00,00,000 –
Market value of unquoted investments 2,10,27,816 –

In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 9 LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured, Considered good unless otherwise stated)
Capital Advance 8,72,003 23,12,500
Deposits for office premises / others 35,87,316 15,23,716
Deposit – Others 29,941 2,000
Prepaid Expenses 25,37,625 –
Others – TDS Receivable 37,08,143 1,26,306
Inter-corporate Deposits (Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited) 2,00,00,000 55,00,000
Total 3,07,35,028 94,64,522

In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 10 CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Unquoted (at cost)
Investment in Schemes of Mutual Fund
Mahindra ALP Samay Bachat Yojana - Direct Growth 9,40,00,000
Mahindra Liquid Fund - Direct Growth 5,07,78,130 –
Quoted (at cost)
ICICI Liquid Plan – Regular Growth – 9,07,36,320
Reliance Liquid Fund – Treasury Plan – Regular Growth – 12,82,62,659
Kotak Floater Short Term – Regular Growth – 33,79,67,376
Total 14,47,78,130 55,69,66,355
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Notes

In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 11 TRADE RECEIVABLE
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months – –
Others 16,03,700 –
Total 16,03,700 –

In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 12 CASH AND BANK BALANCE
Balance with Scheduled Banks in Current Accounts 4,11,496 8,96,363
Total 4,11,496 8,96,363

In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 13 SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
 (Unsecured, Considered good unless otherwise stated)
Loan to employee 1,60,000 –
Total 1,60,000 –

In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 14 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Interest accrued on
Non Convertible Debentures (Not due) 1,56,14,631 –
Inter Corporate Deposits (Not due) 14,54,673 2,51,297
Prepaid Expenses 17,88,554 3,40,623
Service Tax Credit 46,44,721 12,84,897
Other Current Assets 68,40,343 2,32,322
Total 3,03,42,921 21,09,139  

In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 15 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Investment Management Fees from Management of  
Mutual Funds (Gross)

4,03,68,628 –

Less: Service Tax 52,65,473 –
Investment Management Fees from Management of  
Mutual Funds (Net)

3,51,03,155 –

Total 3,51,03,155 –
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In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 16 OTHER INCOME
Interest Income
Interest on Inter corporate deposits 18,04,584 2,79,219
Interest on Non Convertible debentures 2,92,20,657 –
Interest on Income tax refund 5,055 –
Dividend Income Mutual Funds – 1,15,62,860
Profit/Premium on Sale/Redemption of  
Current Investment in Mutual Funds

2,19,80,765 1,15,679

Total 5,30,11,061 1,19,57,758

In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 17 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
Salary, Bonus & Incentives 13,36,22,990 3,41,70,921
Company’s Contribution to Provident Fund & other funds 60,34,649 14,89,509
Staff Welfare 4,50,702 39,429
Total 14,01,08,341 3,56,99,859

In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 18 OTHER EXPENSES
Electricity Charges 11,04,557 12,37,170
Rent Office Premises 76,94,601 48,78,796
Insurance 12,01,225 66,821
Legal and Professional Charges 18,04,569 11,97,467
Telephone Expenses 20,47,405 2,98,092
Directors sitting fees 11,47,800 2,40,000
Travelling Expenses 60,50,092 4,39,255
Share Issue Expenses 35,34,500 73,40,000
Audit Fees (Net of service tax)
For Audit 2,26,125 35,175
Tax Audit 25,125 –
Others 75,375 –
General Administration Expenses 36,03,425 2,27,326
Conference & Advertisement 1,34,25,798 83,497
Membership and Subscription 67,62,292 30,28,082
Marketing Expenses 3,15,85,705 –
Postage and Courier 46,92,708 –
Conveyance Expenses 21,93,768 47,134
Printing and Stationery 25,75,790 7,980
Registrar and Transfer Agents Expenses 27,77,540 –
Investor KYC Expenses 12,31,280 –
Distributor Training 1,83,48,908 –
Distributor Commission 2,91,59,184 –
Business Entertainment Expenses 17,32,346 54,496
Staff Training 17,40,440 –
Admin Support Charges 17,21,266 –
Other Expenses 10,47,428 12,21,248
Total 14,75,09,252 20,402,539
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Notes

Note 19 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

i) Commitments
 a)  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed  

on capital account
3,72,750 29,47,500

Total 3,72,750 29,47,500

Note 20  In Accordance with the Accounting Standard 20 on “Earning Per Share “ (EPS) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, the EPS is as follows:

In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

Net Profit/(Loss) attributable to Equity Share Holders (20,47,35,648) (4,45,02,158)
Weighted Average Numbers of Shares (*) 7,03,94,110 3,30,07,313
EPS – ( Basic) (2.91) (1.35)
EPS – ( Diluted) (2.91) (1.35)

(*) The No. of shares outstanding for previous year has been adjusted on account of issue of right shares during the recent 
year as per guidelines of AS - 20.

Note 21 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE AS PER ACCOUNTING STANDARD 18
A)  List of the related parties which have transactions with our Company during the year:

Ultimate Holding Company Mahindra & Mahindra  Ltd
Holding Company Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited
Fellow Subsidiary Companies Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Limited

Mahindra Holidays and Resorts India Ltd
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Mr Ashutosh Bishnoi

B) Related party transactions are as under: 
 Rs. in Lakhs

Nature of transactions

Ultimate/ 
Holding 

Companies

Fellow 
Subsidiary/

Group 
Companies

KMP

Income
Interest Income on Inter Corporate 
Deposits given  (Gross)

Mahindra Rural Housing Finance 
Limited

18.05
(2.79)

Interest Income on Non Convertible 
Debentures (Gross)

Mahindra Rural Housing Finance 
Limited

292.21
(–)

Expenses
Conference Expenses Mahindra Holidays and Resorts 

India Ltd
6.69

(-)

Salary Expense Reimbursement  
from parties

Mahindra and Mahindra Financial 
Services Ltd

-
(9.83)

Employee Benefit reimbursement  
to parties

Mahindra and Mahindra Financial 
Services Ltd

-
(1.89)

Admin Support Charges Mahindra and Mahindra Financial 
Services Ltd

17.10
(-)
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 Rs. in Lakhs

Nature of transactions

Ultimate/ 
Holding 

Companies

Fellow 
Subsidiary/

Group 
Companies

KMP

Distributor Commission Mahindra and Mahindra Financial 
Services Ltd

8.29
(-)

Staff Training
Mahindra and Mahindra Ltd

13.70
(-)

Event expenses
Mahindra and Mahindra Ltd

1.14
(-)

IT Support Charges
Mahindra and Mahindra Ltd

0.80
(-)

Insurance Mahindra and Mahindra Ltd 0.19
(-)

Remuneration to KMP’s Mr Ashutosh Bishnoi 177.25
(52.52)

Purchase of Fixed Assets Mahindra and Mahindra Ltd 12.40
(-)

Mahindra and Mahindra Financial 
Services Ltd

-
(11.35)

Issue of Equity Shares Mahindra and Mahindra Financial 
Services Ltd

3045
(5950)

Balances at the end of the period
Mutual Fund Distributor Commission 
payable

Mahindra and Mahindra Financial 
Services Ltd

2.69
(-)

Admin Support Charges payable Mahindra and Mahindra Financial 
Services Ltd

4.49
(-)

Staff Training Expense Payable Mahindra and Mahindra Ltd 7.19
(-)

IT Support Charges payable Mahindra and Mahindra Ltd 0.84
(-)

Inter Corporate Deposits given (including 
interest accrued but not due)

Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Ltd 214.55
(57.51)

Investment in Non convertible debentures 
(including interest accrued but not due)

Mahindra Rural Housing Finance Ltd 4856.15
(-)

Notes:
i.  Mr Ashutosh Bishnoi has been appointed as Managing Director & CEO of the Company with effect from 12th October 2015.  The remuneration 

was paid within the limit specified as per the Provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and as approved by the shareholders of the 

Company in their meeting held on 17th October 2016.

ii Figures in bracket represent corresponding figures of previous year.
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Notes

Note 22 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
 Defined Benefit Plans - As per Actuarial valuation.

 Rs. in Lakhs

Gratuity (Funded)
Sick leave

 (Non funded)
Privilege Leave
(Non funded)

March 
2017

March 
2016

March 
2017

March 
2016

March 
2017

March 
2016

I. Change in Obligation during 
the year ended March 31, 
2017

1 Present value of obligation as at 
the beginning of the year

1.98 – 0.58 – 3.69 –

2 PBO Transfer from MMFSL for 
the transfer Employees

– 2.14 – – – –

3 Interest cost 0.16 0.07 0.05 0.01 0.30 0.16
4 Current Service Cost 9.68 3.23 2.70 1.23 17.54 11.78
5 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 2.00 (3.46) 0.64 (0.66) 3.61 (8.25)
6 Benefits paid – – – – – –
7 Present Value of Defined 

Benefit obligation at the end of 
the year

13.81 1.98 3.96 0.58 25.14 3.69

II. Change in the Assets during 
the period ending 31st March

1 Fair value of plan assets at the 
beginning of the year

6.50 – – – – –

2 Expected Return on Plan assets 0.52 0.13 – – – –
3 Contributions by employer – 6.50 – – – –
4 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses (0.52) (0.13) – – – –
5 Actual Benefits paid – – – – – –
6 Fund amount to be transferred 

from MMFSL Gratuity Fund
2.14 2.14 – – – –

7 Fair value of plan assets at the 
end of the period

6.50 6.50 – – – –

III. Net asset/(liability) recognised 
in the Balance Sheet as at 
31st March

1 Present Value of Defined Benefit 
obligation as at 31st March

13.81 1.98 3.96 0.58 25.14 3.69

2 Fair value of plan assets as at 
31st March

6.50 6.50 – – – –

3 Funded status (surplus/
(deficit))

(7.31) 4.52 (3.96) (0.58) (25.14) (3.69)

4 Net asset/(liability) as at  
31st March

(7.31) 4.52 (3.96) (0.58) (25.14) (3.69)

IV. Expenses recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss 
Account for the year ending 
31st March

1 Current Service Cost 9.68 3.23 2.70 1.23 17.54 11.78
2 Interest Cost 0.16 0.07 0.05 0.01 0.30 0.16
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 Rs. in Lakhs

Gratuity (Funded)
Sick leave

 (Non funded)
Privilege Leave
(Non funded)

March 
2017

March 
2016

March 
2017

March 
2016

March 
2017

March 
2016

3 Expected Return on Plan assets 0.52 0.13 - - - - 
4 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 2.52 (3.46) 0.64 (0.66) 3.62 (8.25)
5 Fund Amount to be transferred 

from MMFSL Gratuity Fund
2.14 2.14 - -  -  - 

6 Total Expenses 11.83 1.98 3.39 0.58 21.46 3.69
V. Major category of plan assets 

as a percentage of total plan

Funded with LIC 100% 100% - - - - 
VI. Actuarial Assumptions
1 Discount Rate 7.55% 8% 7.55% 8% 7.55% 8%
2 Expected Rate of return on plan 

assets
8% 8% - - - -

3 Rate of Salary increase 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%
4 In-service Mortality Indian 

Assured 
Lives 
Mortality 
(2006-08)
Ultimate

Indian 
Assured 
Lives 
Mortality 
(2006-08)
Ultimate

– – – –

 VII  Experience Adjustments
 Rs. in Lakhs

As at March 31
2017 2016

1 Defined benefit obligations at end of the period 13.81 1.98
2 Plan assets at the end of period 6.50 6.50
3 Funded Status Surplus/ (Deficit) (7.31) 4.52
4 Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (gain)/loss 0.89 (3.46)
5 Experience adjustments on plan assets gain/(loss) (0.52) –

Note 23 Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period 08/11/2016 to 
30/12/2016 as provided in the Table below:-

 Rs. in Lakhs

SBNs
Other 

Denomination notes
Total

Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 NIL NIL NIL
 (+) Permitted receipts NIL NIL NIL
(-) Permitted payments NIL NIL NIL
 (-) Amounts deposited in Banks NIL NIL NIL
 Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 NIL NIL NIL

Note 24 None of the suppliers have submitted their confirmation towards Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises, thus there is no principal or interest dues thereon outstanding to any such supplier at the end 
of accounting year.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes

Note 25 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever found necessary.  As stated in the 
corporate information, the revenues from business operations of the Company started from July 2016 after 
the launch of the first scheme of Mahindra Mutual Fund.  Accordingly, current year figures are not comparable 
with the previous year figures.

Signatures to Significant accounting policies and Notes to the financial statements – I and II

For B. K. Khare and Co. For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
FRN :105102W  V.Ravi Ashutosh Bishnoi Gautam Divan

Chairman Managing Director & CEO Director

Padmini Khare Kaicker  Sethu Gururajan Sanjay Parikh    Basavraj Loni
Partner Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. 044784

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 15, 2017
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Board’s Report to the Shareholders

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Fourth Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts of 
your Company for the year ended March 31, 2017.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS
Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Particulars
For the year ended  

March 31
2017 2016

Income 3.17 –
Less : Finance Costs – –
   Expenditure (23.52) (4.92)
   Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses – –
Total Expenses (23.52) (4.92)
Profit Before Tax (20.35) –
Less : Provision for Tax – –
   Current Tax – –
   Deferred Tax – –
Profit/(Loss) for the year
Profit/(Loss) brought forward from previous year

(20.35)
(7.45)

(4.92)
(2.53)

Transfer to Reserves – –

2. DIVIDEND
  In view of losses incurred by the Company, your 

Directors do not recommend any dividend for the 
year under review.

3. TRANSFER TO RESERVES
  The Company did not transfer any amount to 

reserves in view of the losses incurred by the 
Company during the year under review.

4. OPERATIONS
  Securities and Exchange Board of India vide its 

letter dated February 4, 2016 granted certificate 
of registration to ‘Mahindra Mutual Fund’ (“the 
Fund”). Your Company will be engaged as a 
Trustee to the Fund. Your Company has appointed 
Mahindra Asset Management Company Private 
Limited (`AMC’) as the investment manager for 
the schemes of Mahindra Mutual Fund.

  The AMC received approval for six products 
during the year 2016-17. Of these six products, 
the AMC launched the following four products in 
the market:

 1.  Mahindra Liquid Fund (An open-ended liquid 
scheme);

 2.  Mahindra Kar Bachat Yojana (An open ended 
ELSS scheme investing in equity securities);

 3.  Mahindra Dhan Sanchay Yojana (An open 
ended scheme investing in equity securities, 
equity derivatives and debt securities); and

 4.  Mahindra Alp Samay Bachat Yojana (An open-
ended scheme investing in debt securities)

  In addition to the above schemes, the AMC also 
received approval for Mahindra Badhat Yojana (an 
open-ended scheme investing in equity securities) 
as well as Mahindra Bal Vikaas Yojana (an open-
ended scheme investing in a mix of equity and 
debt securities). The assets under management 
in these four schemes were Rs 2,050 crores 
in the month of March 2017. Of these assets, 
Rs 319 crores were in the two equity schemes. 
The AMC has empanelled more than 4,100 
distributors and opened 37,814 investor 
accounts in these schemes. The AMC managed 
to achieve a market share of 0.1 percent and 
was placed at the 31st rank out of 42 Asset 
Management Companies.

  Your Directors would like to present an overview 
of the Indian Economy with the backdrop of the 
Equity Markets, Fixed Income Markets and Global 
events occurred in the Mutual Fund Industry.

5. INDIAN ECONOMY
  The year 2016-17 was marked by several historic 

economic policy developments.
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  A constitutional amendment paving the way for 
the transformational Goods and Services Tax 
(GST) and withdrawal/demonetisation of specified 
bank notes, affecting 86 percent of the currency 
in circulation, were indeed transformational 
economic events during the year.

  The second advance estimates of GDP released 
by the Central Statistics Office in February 
2017 estimated the real GDP growth (constant 
2011-12 prices) in 2016-17 at 7.10 percent 
(7.90 percent in 2015-2016) and also a sharp 
deceleration in Gross Value Added (GVA) with 
real GVA (at basic prices) growing at 6.70 
percent against 7.80 percent in 2015-2016.

  Inflation measured by CPI remained benign 
averaging around 4.50 percent during the year 
and the exchange rate measured against the 
USD strongly appreciated in the last quarter and 
closed at around 64.85 appreciating by around 
2 percent on a year on year basis. The country 
also witnessed strong FDI flows during the year 
which led to this appreciation.

  The year also saw some strong policy initiatives: 
codification of the institutional arrangement of 
the monetary policy framework with RBI, some 
changes in Bankruptcy Code and a stronger legal 
basis for Aadhar.

6. EQUITY MARKETS
  It was a year of highs: the S&P BSE Sensex ended 

the year with gains of 16.90 percent to close at 
29620 while the NIFTY 50 closed with gains of 
18.50 percent to close at 9173. The S&P BSE 
midcap index rallied much more than the frontline 
indices and closed higher by around 33 percent 
during the year.

  The strong rally was led predominately by metals, 
commodities and energy sectors while the banks 
and financial sectors also had a handsome 
contribution to this rise. The IT services sector 
and the pharmaceutical sectors witnessed a weak 
bias during the year. The year also witnessed 
strong institutional flows with FIIs investing record 
inflows of around INR 55,700 crores.

  India, with her strong macroeconomic 
fundamentals and a stable political economy, 
continues to be a preferred destination for FIIs 
within the emerging market bucket. With retail 
financial savings in the form of mutual fund 
inflows too flowing into the equity markets, the 
equity indices are expected, amidst volatility, to 
remain strong.

7. FIXED INCOME MARKETS
  The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) cut the benchmark 

repo rates by 50 basis points (bps) during the 
financial year. However the RBI, in its February 
2017 monetary policy, shifted its stance to 
“Neutral” from the earlier “Accommodative” bias. 
The twin events of BREXIT and demonetisation 
led to a rally in the benchmark 10 year gilt 
prices and its’ yield touched a low of 6.20 
percent during the financial year. However, as 
the RBI shifted its stance of monetary policy 
(highlighting inflationary biases), the yield of 
the 10 year security edged higher and closed 
at 6.70 percent, lower by around 80 bps for  
the year.

8. GLOBAL EVENTS
  Two Global events dominated the year: Great 

Britain’s exit from the European Union (and the 
event called BREXIT thereafter) and the election 
of Mr Donald Trump as the US President. While 
BREXIT initially caused some sell off in the equity 
markets and drop in bond yields, the markets 
quickly shrugged of the event. Mr Trump’s election 
and his intended policy focus on infrastructure 
development, immigration, healthcare and taxes 
provided a leg-up to the equity markets. The US 
Federal Reserve too raised its Fed Funds target 
rate range by 50 bps during the year and the US 
10 year gilt hardened by around 60 bps to close 
at 2.40 percent.

9.  OVERVIEW OF THE MUTUAL FUND 
INDUSTRY

  The Mutual Fund Industry continued its robust 
growth during FY 2016-17. The Assets under 
Management as on March 31, 2017 were 
Rs 17.54 lakh crores compared to Rs 12.32 
lakh crores as on March 31, 2016. Assets 
grew by 42 percent during the year. Assets 
have grown almost 300 percent over the last 
five years. During these five years, investors 
have reduced their preference for close-
ended schemes and have moved their assets 
into open-ended schemes. The proportion of 
assets in close-ended schemes has declined 
to 10 percent from 23 percent over the last  
five years.

  Net flows into mutual funds during the year were 
Rs 3.43 lakh crores showing a sharp jump of 
255 percent over the previous year. Inflows into 
balanced schemes have grown by 185 percent 
over the last year. Further, inflows into debt and 
liquid schemes also grew substantially over last 
year and accounted for the major increase in net 
inflows over last year.
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  The top ten players lost market share during this 
year. Their combined share of total assets fell to 
74 percent from 79.5 percent last year.

  The Mutual Fund Industry has been showing 
robust growth over the last five years inspite of 
low penetration in terms of number of unique 
household accounts. Therefore, the potential 
for future growth is quite high and the industry 
will continue to attract new households to the 
industry from the smaller towns and cities.

10. SHARE CAPITAL
  During the year under review, the Company has 

increased its Authorised Share Capital from  
Rs. 25,00,000 (Rupees Twenty Five Lakhs) 
divided into 2,50,000 (Two Lakh Fifty Thousand) 
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each to 
Rs. 1,00,00,000 (Rupees One crore) divided 
into 10,00,000 (Ten Lakhs) Equity Shares of  
Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each at the Extra-ordinary 
General Meeting held by the Company on July 
21, 2016.

  During the year under review, the Company allotted 
to existing shareholders on Rights basis 3,50,000 
equity shares of Rs. 10 each aggregating to Rs. 
35,00,000. Consequent upon the allotment of 
the Rights shares, the Company’s paid-up share 
capital as on March 31, 2017 stood at Rs. 
50,00,000 (as against Rs. 15,00,000 as at 
March 31, 2016) comprising of 5,00,000 Equity 
Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up.

  During the year under review, the Company has 
neither issued shares with differential voting 
rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise nor has 
issued any sweat equity. The Company has not 
formulated any Employees’ Stock Option Scheme 
during the year under review. There were no 
Shares having voting rights not exercised directly 
by the employees and for the purchase of which 
or subscription to which loan was given by  
the Company.

  As on March 31, 2017, none of the Directors of 
the Company holds instruments convertible into 
Equity Shares of the Company.

11. DIRECTORS
  The composition of the Board of Directors of 

your Company is in conformity with the provisions of  
the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from 
time to time and as per SEBI (Mutual Fund) 

Regulations, 1996, as amended from time to 
time. As on March 31, 2017, the Company 
has four directors. Mr. Gautam Parekh (DIN: 
00365417), Dr. Narendra Mairpady (DIN: 
00536905) and Mr. Debabrata Bandyopadhyay 
(DIN: 06972463) were appointed as Independent 
Directors of the Company for a period of five 
years with effect from September 21, 2015. 
These Independent Directors shall hold the office 
of directorship for a term of five years and none 
of the Independent Directors are eligible for re-
appointment.

  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 
of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. M. G. 
Bhide (DIN:00001826), Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director of the Company retires 
by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting scheduled to be held on July 14, 
2017 and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

  The Board reviews and approves strategy 
and oversees the actions and results of the 
management to ensure that the long term 
objectives of the enhancing stakeholders’ value 
are met.

  None of the Board of Directors holds directorships 
in more than 10 public companies. None of the 
directors are related to each other.

12. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
  As at the date of this Report, the Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company, as envisaged under the 
provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 
2013, is Mr. Ravi Dayma, Company Secretary.

13.  NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE 
BOARD

  The Board met seven times in Financial Year viz. 
April 13, 2016, June 14, 2016, July 12, 2016, 
September 21, 2016, October 17, 2016, 
December 21, 2016 and January 13, 2017. 
The Board of Directors have passed two Circular 
Resolutions dated June 1, 2016 and November 
14, 2016.

  The names and categories of the Directors of 
the Company, their attendance at the Board 
Meetings held during the Financial Year 2016-
17 and at the last Annual General Meeting 
of the Company held on July 12, 2016 are  
as follows:
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Name Category Number of 
Meetings during 

the Financial Year 
2016-17

Attendance at 
the last AGM 

held on July 
12, 2016

(Yes/No/N.A)Held Attended
Mr. M. G. Bhide Non-

Executive,
Non-
Independent

7 7 Yes

Dr. Narendra 
Mairpady

Non-
Executive, 
Independent

7 7@ Yes

Mr. Debabrata 
Bandyopadhyay

Non-
Executive,
Independent

7 7 Yes

Mr. Gautam 
Parekh

Non-
Executive, 
Independent

7 7 Yes

@ Dr. Narendra Mairpady attended the Board Meeting held on 
December 21, 2016 by means of Video Conference.

14.  DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTORS

  The Company has received declarations from 
each Independent Director of the Company under 
section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
that he/she meets the criteria of independence 
as prescribed under sub-section (6) of Section 
149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

15.  MEETING OF INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTORS

  The Independent Directors met once during the 
year under review. The meeting was conducted 
in an informal manner without the presence 
of the Managing Director, the Non-Executive 
Non-Independent Director and any of the Key 
Managerial Personnel.

16.  COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD
  The Board of Directors of the Company at its 

meeting held on January 12, 2016, constituted 
an Audit Committee and approved the terms of 
reference and the role of the said Committee. 
This Committee was formed in order to comply 
with the requirements prescribed under SEBI 
(Mutual Fund Regulations), 1996 and circulars 
issued thereunder.

  The Audit Committee comprises of Mr. 
Gautam Parekh, Dr. Narendra Mairpady and 
Mr. Debabrata Bandyopadhyay, Independent 
Directors of the Company. The Committee met 
twice during the year viz. October 17, 2016 and 
December 21, 2016. The meetings were well 
attended by all the Members of the Committee.

17.  DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY 
STATEMENT

  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors 
confirm that:

 i.  In the preparation of the annual accounts 
for Financial Year ended March 31, 2017, 
the applicable accounting standards have 
been followed and there are no material 
departures in adoption of these standards;

 ii.  The Directors have selected such accounting 
policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company at March 31, 2017 and of the 
loss of the Company for the year ended on 
that date;

 iii.  The Directors have taken proper and 
sufficient care for the maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting 
fraud and other irregularities;

 iv.  The Directors have prepared the annual 
accounts for year ended March 31, 2017 
on a ‘going concern’ basis;

 v.  The Directors have devised proper systems 
to ensure compliance with provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were 
adequate and operating effectively.

18. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
  Pursuant to sub-section 3(a) of Section 134 and 

sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, 
an extract of the Annual Return as at March 31, 
2017 forms part of this Report and is appended 
as Annexure I.

19. PUBLIC DEPOSITS
  The Company has not accepted any deposits 

from the public or its employees during the year 
under review. No amount on account of principal 
or interest on deposits from the public was 
outstanding as on the date of balance sheet.

20. AUDITORS
  Messrs. B. K. Khare & Co., Chartered 

Accountants [ICAI Firm Registration No. 
105102W], Statutory Auditors of the Company 
hold the office till the conclusion of the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting (AGM) and 
are eligible for re-appointment. Pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, it is 
proposed to appoint Messrs. B. K. Khare & Co., 
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as the Statutory Auditors of the Company from 
the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM till the 
conclusion of the next AGM.

  As required under the provisions of Sections 
139(1) read with Section 141 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Company has received a written 
certificate from Messrs. B. K. Khare & Co., 
Chartered Accountants to their re-appointment, 
and a Certificate to the effect that their re-
appointment, if made, would be in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules framed thereunder and that they 
satisfy the criteria provided in Section 141 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

  There are no qualifications, reservations or 
adverse remarks or disclaimers made by M/s. B. 
K. Khare & Co., Statutory Auditors, in their report.

21.  ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 
FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY

  The Financial Statements of the Company have 
been prepared in accordance with the Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian 
GAAP) and comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
and the relevant provisions of the Act.

22. REPORTING OF FRAUDS
  There are no frauds on or by the Company 

which were required to be reported by the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company to the Central 
Government.

23. CODE OF CONDUCT
  The Board of Directors of the Company had 

adopted Code of Conduct at its meeting held on 
June 14, 2016, for Corporate Governance (“the 
Code”) for its Directors. These Codes enunciate 
the underlying principles governing the conduct 
of the Company’s business and seek to reiterate 
the fundamental precept that good governance 
must and would always be an integral part of 
the Company’s ethos. The Company has for the 
year under review, received declarations under 
the Code from the Board Members, affirming 
compliance with the Code.

24.  PARTICULARS OF LOANS, 
GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
UNDER SECTION 186

  The Company has not advanced any loans, 
provided any guarantees, or made investments 
under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 
during the year under review.

  The Company has not made any loans / 
advances and investments which are required 
to be disclosed in the annual accounts of the 
Company, pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and 
53(f) of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read with 
schedule V applicable to the parent company.

25.  PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR 
ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED 
PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SECTION 
188(1)

  During the year, the Company had not entered 
into any contract/ arrangement / transaction 
with related parties which could be considered 
material. Pursuant to Section 134(3) (h) read 
with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014, there are no transactions to be 
reported under Section 188(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. None of the Non-Executive Directors 
has any pecuniary relationships or transactions 
vis-à-vis the Company.

26.  MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF 
THE COMPANY

  There have been no material changes and 
commitments affecting the financial position of 
the Company which have occurred between the 
end of the financial year of the Company to which 
the financial statements relate and the date of 
the Report.

27.  PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION 
OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, 
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO

  The particulars in respect of conservation 
of energy, technology absorption and foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo, as required under 
Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
are given in Annexure II.

28. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
  The main business of the Company is to act as 

a Trustee to the schemes of Mahindra Mutual 
Fund. The Trustee Company has appointed 
Mahindra Asset Management Company Private 
Limited (AMC) to manage the schemes of 
the Trust such as launching of new schemes, 
marketing and collection of funds, investment 
management of the funds, settlement and 
valuation of securities, risk management, etc. 
Accordingly, the Trustee Company supervises 
the management of the schemes by requesting 
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MIS, Management Reports and Internal Audit 
reports from the AMC. The AMC has put in place 
a risk management policy in order to effectively 
manage the schemes of the Trust. The Trustee 
Company regularly reviews the risk management 
processes of the AMC and gets reports on the 
same from the internal auditor.

29.  INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL 
SYSTEM

  The Company has adequate internal control 
procedures commensurate with its size and 
nature of the business. These business control 
procedures ensure efficient use and protection of 
the resources and compliance with the policies, 
procedures and statutes. A firm of experienced 
Chartered Accountants had carried Internal Audit 
throughout the year. Whenever it is required, the 
systems and procedures are upgraded. During 
the year under review, no material or serious 
observation has been received from the Internal 
Auditors of the Company for inefficiency or 
inadequacy of such controls.

30. SUBSIDIARIES
  The Company does not have any subsidiary as 

on March 31, 2017 or during the Financial Year 
ended on that date.

31.  SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS 
PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

  There are no significant and material orders 
passed by the Regulators / Courts which would 

impact the going concern status of the Company 
and its future operations.

32. GENERAL
  Your Directors state that no disclosure or 

reporting is required in respect of the following 
items as there were no transactions/ events on 
these items during the year under review:

•  There are no employees in the Company 
and hence during the year under review the 
Company has not received any complaint 
under the Sexual Harassment of Women 
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013.

•  Change in the nature of business carried 
out by the Company during the year under 
review.

•  Payment of Remuneration or Commission to 
the Managing Director or the Whole Time 
Director of the Company from any of its 
subsidiaries.

•  Details about the policy developed and 
implemented by the Company on Corporate 
Social Responsibility initiative taken during 
the year.

Registered Office:
“A” Wing, 4th Floor
Mahindra Towers, 570 P B Marg
P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli,
Mumbai - 400018.
CIN: U67100MH2013PTC245464
Tel.: 91 22 6652 6000 Fax: 91 22 2498 4170

Mumbai, April 15, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board

M. G. Bhide
Chairman
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ANNEXURE I TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FORM NO. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
For the year ended on March 31, 2017

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) and Rule 12(1) of the Companies  
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
i) CIN U67100MH2013PTC245464
ii) Registration Date July 10, 2013
iii) Name of the Company Mahindra Trustee Company Private Limited
iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public Limited Company by shares 

(being a subsidiary of a Public Limited Company)
v) Address of the Registered office and contact details 4th Floor, Mahindra Towers, 

A Wing, P. B. Marg, Worli, 
Mumbai - 400018.
Tel.: 91 22 6652 6000 Fax: 91 22 24984170
Email : mfinvestors@mahindra.com
Website : www.mahindramutualfund.com

vi) Whether listed company Yes / No No
vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and 

Transfer Agent, if any
N.A.

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. 
No.

Name and Description of
main products / services

NIC Code of the
Product/ service

% to total turnover of the 
Company

1. Trusteeship 74 98%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sr. 
No

Name and Address of
the Company

CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/
Associate

% of shares
held

Applicable 
Section

1. Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
Gateway Building, Apollo Bunder,  
Mumbai–400 001.

L65990MH1945PLC004558 Ultimate Holding 
Company

100%* Section 2(46)

2. Mahindra & Mahindra Financial 
Services Limited
Mahindra Towers, P K Kurne 
Chowk, Worli, Mumbai–400 018.

L65921MH1991PLC059642 Holding Company 100% Section 2(46)

*  There is no direct shareholding in the Company by Mahindra & Mahindra Limited, the ultimate Holding Company. Shares 
are held through Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited, subsidiary of Mahindra & Mahindra Limited.

IV.  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY)
 i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held  
at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares held  
at the end of the year

% 
Change
during 

the year
Demat Physical Total % of Total

Shares
Demat Physical Total % of Total

Shares
A. PROMOTERS
1. INDIAN
 a) Individual/HUF - - - - - - - - -
 b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
 c) State Govt (s) - - - - - - - - -
 d) Bodies Corporate - 1,50,000 1,50,000 100 - 5,00,000 5,00,000 100 -
 e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
 f) Any Other - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) (1):- - 1,50,000 1,50,000 100 - 5,00,000 5,00,000 100 -
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Category of  
Shareholders No. of Shares held  

at the beginning of the year
No. of Shares held  

at the end of the year

% 
Change
during 

the year
Demat Physical Total % of 

Total
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of
Total

Shares
2. FOREIGN
 a) NRIs - Individuals - - - - - - - - -
 b) Other - Individuals - - - - - - - - -

 c) Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - - -
 d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
 e) Any Other - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) (2):- - - - - - - - - -
Total shareholding of 
Promoter (A) =  
(A) (1) + (A) (2)

- 1,50,000 1,50,000 100 - 5,00,000 5,00,000 100 -

B.  PUBLIC 
SHAREHOLDING

1. INSTITUTIONS
 a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -

 b) Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -
 c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
 d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -
 e)  Venture Capital 

Funds
- - - - - - - - -

 f)  Insurance 
Companies

- - - - - - - - -

 g) FIIs - - - - - - - - -
 h)  Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds
- - - - - - - - -

 i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (B) (1):- - - - - - - - - -
2. NON-INSTITUTIONS
 a) Bodies Corporate
  i) Indian - - - - - - - - -
  ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -
 b) Individuals
  i)  Individual 

shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital  
upto Rs. 1 lakh

  ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital  
in excess of  
Rs. 1 lakh

- - - - - - - - -

 c) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (B) (2):- - - - - - - - - -
Total Public 
Shareholding  
(B) = (B) (1) + (B) (2)

- - - - - - - - -

C  SHARES HELD BY 
CUSTODIAN FOR 
GDRS & ADRS

- - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) - 1,50,000 1,50,000 100 - 5,00,000 5,00,000 100 -

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl.
No.

Shareholder’s
Name

Shareholding  
at the beginning of the year

Shareholding  
at the end of the Year % change

in share 
holding 

during the 
year

No. of
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

% of shares
pledged /

encumbered
to total 
shares

No. of
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

% of shares
pledged /

encumbered
to total 
shares

1. Mahindra & Mahindra Financial 
Services Limited

1,49,998 100 - 4,99,998 100 - -

2. Mahindra & Mahindra Financial 
Services Limited Jointly with  
Mr. M. G. Bhide

1 - - 1 - - -
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Sl.
No.

Shareholder’s
Name

Shareholding  
at the beginning of the year

Shareholding  
at the end of the Year % change

in share 
holding 

during the 
year

No. of
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

% of shares
pledged /

encumbered
to total 
shares

No. of
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

% of shares
pledged /

encumbered
to total 
shares

3. Mahindra & Mahindra Financial 
Services Limited Jointly with Mr. 
R. K. Kulkarni

1 - - 1 - - -

Total 1,50,000 100 - 5,00,000 100 - -

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. 
No.

Particulars

Shareholding  
at the beginning of the year

Cumulative shareholding
during the year

No. of shares
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company

No. of Shares
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company

At the beginning of the year
1. Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited 

(MMFSL)
1,49,998 100 4,99,998 100

2. Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited 
Jointly with Mr. M. G. Bhide

1 – 1 –

3. Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited 
Jointly with Mr. R. K. Kulkarni

1 – 1 –

Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/ 
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc.)

The Company allotted to existing shareholders on Rights 
basis 1,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each aggregating to  
Rs. 10,00,000 on August 29, 2016 and subsequently 
2,50,00 equity shares of Rs. 10 each aggregating to  
Rs. 25,00,000 on November 9, 2016.

At the end of the year 1,50,000 100 5,00,000 100

(iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of  
GDRs and ADRs):   

Sl. 
No.

For each of the Top 10 Shareholders

Shareholding  
at the beginning of the year

Cumulative shareholding  
during the year

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company
1. At the beginning of the year Not Applicable

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc.)

Not Applicable

At the End of the year ( or on the date of 
separation, if separated during the year)

Not Applicable

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. 
No.

For each of the directors and KMP

Shareholding  
at the beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company

No. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company

1. Mr. M.G. Bhide (jointly with Mahindra &  
Mahindra Financial Services Limited)
At the beginning of the year  
(As on April 1, 2016)

1 - 1 -

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc.)

No change
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Sl. 
No.

For each of the directors and KMP

Shareholding  
at the beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company

No. of shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company

At the End of the year (As on March 31, 2017) 1 - 1 -
2. Mr. Gautam Parekh

At the beginning of the year (As on April 1, 2016) - - - -
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc.)

No change

At the End of the year (As on March 31, 2017) - - - -
3. Dr. Narendra Mairpady

At the beginning of the year (As on April 1, 2016) - - - -
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc.)

No change

At the End of the year (As on March 31, 2017) - - - -
4. Mr. Debabrata Bandyopadhyay

At the beginning of the year (As on April 1, 2016) - - - -
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc.)

No Change

At the End of the year (As on March 31, 2017) - - - -
5. Mr. Ravi Dayma

At the beginning of the year (As on April 1, 2016) - - - -
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc.)

No Change

At the End of the year (As on March 31, 2017) - - - -

V. INDEBTEDNESS
  Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Rs. In Lakhs

Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits
Total  

Indebtedness
INDEBTEDNESS AT THE BEGINNING  
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
i) Principal Amount – – – –
ii) Interest due but not paid – – – –
iii) Interest accrued but not due – – – –
 Total (i+ii+iii) – – – –
CHANGE IN INDEBTEDNESS  
DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
• Addition – – – –
• Reduction – – – –
 Net Change – – – –
INDEBTEDNESS AT THE END OF  
THE FINANCIAL YEAR
i) Principal Amount – – – –
ii) Interest due but not paid – – – –
iii) Interest accrued but not due – – – –
Total (i+ii+iii) – – – –
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Sl. 
no. Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/Manager
Total AmountManaging  

Director
Whole time 

Director Manager

1. Gross salary
a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 

of the Income-tax Act,1961
– – – –

b)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961

– – – –

 c)  Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of  
the Income-tax Act, 1961

– – – –

2. Stock Option – – – –
3. Sweat Equity – – – –
4. Commission

- as % of profit
- others

– – – –

5. Others – – – –
Total (A) – – – –
Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors:
 (Rs. In Lakhs)

Sl. 
no. Particulars of Remuneration Names of Directors Total Amount

1. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS Mr. Gautam 
Parekh

Dr. Narendra 
Mairpady

Mr. Debabrata 
Bandyopadhyay

• Fee for attending board/committee meetings 5,10,000 5,10,000 5,10,000 15,30,000
• Commission – – – –
• Others – – – –
Total (1) 5,10,000 5,10,000 5,10,000 15,30,000

2. OTHER NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS Mr. M.G. Bhide
•  Fee for attending board/committee meetings 4,90,000 – – –
• Commission – – – –
• Others – – – –
Total (2) 4,90,000 – – 4,90,000
Total (B) = (1+2) 20,20,000
Total Managerial Remuneration 20,20,000
Overall Ceiling as per the Act The Company has incurred losses and has not yet commenced business 

during the period under review.

C.  Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD:
                 (Rs. In Lakhs)

Sl.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration
Key Managerial Personnel

CEO
Company 
Secretary

CFO Total

1. Gross salary -- – -- –
a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 

of the Income-tax Act,1961
-- -- – –

b)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961

-- -- – –

c)  Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961

-- -- -- --

2. Stock Option -- -- -- --
3. Sweat Equity -- -- -- --
4. Commission

– as % of profit
– others

-- -- -- --

5. Others -- -- -- --
Total -- – – –
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VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section of the 

Companies Act
Brief

Description
Details of 
Penalty /

Punishment/ 
Compounding 
fees imposed

Authority
[RD / NCLT/ 

COURT]

Appeal made,
if any

(give details)

A. COMPANY

None
 Penalty
 Punishment
 Compounding
B. DIRECTORS

None
 Penalty
 Punishment
 Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

None
 Penalty
 Punishment
 Compounding
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 ANNEXURE II TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Information pursuant to section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange 
earnings and outgo

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY -
 (i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;

   The operations of your Company are not energy intensive. However, adequate measures have been 
initiated to reduce energy consumption

 (ii) the steps taken by the company for utilising alternate sources of energy –
 
   The operations of your Company are not energy intensive

 Iiii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipments – Nil

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION -
 (i) the efforts made towards technology absorption – None.

 (ii)  the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution – Not applicable.

 (iii)  in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the 
beginning of the financial year)
a) the details of technology imported
b) the year of import;
c) whether the technology been fully absorbed;
d)  if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken 

place, and the reasons thereof; and

: None

: Not applicable

: Not applicable

: Not applicable

 (iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development – Nil.

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
  There were no foreign exchange earnings or outgo during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board

 M.G. Bhide
 Chairman

Mumbai, April 15, 2017

Annual Report 2016 - 17



205

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 R

ep
or

ts
Fi

na
nc

ia
l S

ta
te

m
en

ts

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
Mahindra Trustee Company Private Limited

REPORT ON THE STANDALONE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.  We have audited the accompanying standalone 

financial statements of Mahindra Trustee 
Company Private Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise the balance sheet as at March 
31, 2017, and the statements of profit and 
loss and cash flow for the period from April 1, 
2016 to March 31, 2017, and a summary 
of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR 
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.  The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 

for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect 
to the preparation of these standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read 
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 (as amended). This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
3.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 

these standalone financial statements based on 
our audit.

4.  We have taken into account the provisions of the 
Act, the accounting and auditing standards and 

matters which are required to be included in the 
audit report under the provisions of the Act and 
the Rules made thereunder.

5.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

6.  An audit involves performing procedures to 
obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
the disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to the 
Company’s preparation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of the accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of the accounting 
estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.

7.  We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone 
financial statements.

OPINION
8.  In our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid standalone financial statements 
give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at March 31, 2017, and its 
loss and its cash flows for the period from April 
1, 2016 to March 31, 2017.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND 
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
9.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 

Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government 

Independent Auditor’s Report



206 

of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 
143 of the Act (the “Order”), and on the basis 
of such checks of the books and records of the 
Company as we considered appropriate and 
according to the information and explanations 
given to us, we give in the Annexure I a statement 
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 
of the Order.

10.  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we 
report that:

 a.  we have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

 b.  in our opinion proper books of account 
as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books;

 c.  the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss and Cash Flow dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of 
account;

 d.  in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as 
amended);

 e.  on the basis of written representations 
received from the directors as on March 
31, 2017 taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2017, from 
being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act.

 f.  with respect to the adequacy of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness 

of such controls, refer to our separate 
report in Annexure II.

 g.  With respect to the other matters to be 
included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014(as amended), in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

  i. The Company has no pending litigation.

  ii.  The Company does not have any long-
term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there are any 
material foreseeable losses that need 
provision.

  iii.  The Company has been in existence 
for a period less than seven years 
and hence there is no requirement to 
transfer any amounts to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund.

  iv.  The company has provided requisite 
disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements as to holdings as well as 
dealings in Specified Bank Notes during 
the period from 8th November, 2016 
to 30th December, 2016. Based on 
audit procedures and relying on the 
management representation, we report 
that the disclosures are in accordance 
with books of account maintained by the 
company and as produced to us by the 
Management. Refer Note No. 15.

For B. K. Khare and Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration Number 105102W

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Place : Mumbai Partner
Date : April 15, 2017 Membership No. 044784

Annual Report 2016 - 17
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Annexure I to the Auditor’s Report
Referred to in paragraph 9 of our report of even date on the standalone financial statements 
of Mahindra Trustee Company Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2017

Annexure to the Auditor’s Report referred to in 
our report of even date:

I.  (a) and (b) The Company does not have any fixed 
assets of its own and hence para 3(I)(a) and 3(I)
(b) are not applicable to the Company.

  (c)  The Company has no immovable properties 
and hence para 3(i)(c) is not applicable to 
the company

II.  On facts, Clause 3(ii) of the Companies (Auditor’s 
Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable to the 
company.

III.  No parties are covered in the register maintained 
under section 189 of Companies Act, 2013 by 
the Company. Therefore, clause 3(iii) (a), (b) & (c) 
of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 
is not applicable to the company.

IV.  In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us the provisions of 
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have 
been complied with. During the year, the Company 
has not provided loan to any of its directors’, 
therefore, provisions of section 185 were not 
applicable during the year.

V.  In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not accepted any deposits from the public. 
Consequently, no order has been passed by the 
Company Law Board or National Company Law 
Commission or Reserve Bank of India or any 
court or any other tribunal on the Company. The 
clause 3(v), therefore is not applicable to the 
company.

VI.  On facts, clause 3(vi) relating to maintenance of 
cost records is not applicable to the company.

VII. (a)  According to the records of the Company 
and information and explanations given 
to us, the Company is generally regular in 
depositing with the appropriate authorities 
undisputed statutory dues including 
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 
Income Tax, Sales Tax,, Excise Duty, Service 
Tax, Customs Duty, value added tax, and 
other statutory dues applicable to it with the 
concerned authorities.

 (b)  According to the information and explanations 
given to us, there are no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of Provident 
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income 
tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Excise Duty, 
Service Tax, Customs Duty and Value Added 
Tax that were outstanding, at the year-end 
for a period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable.

 (c)  According to the records of the company 
and information and explanations given to us 
there are no disputed dues of income tax or 
sales tax or service tax or duty of customs 
or duty of excise or value added tax which 
have not been deposited with the relevant 
authority.

VIII.  On the basis of examination of relevant records 
and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not borrowed any 
money from financial institution, Government or bank 
or debenture holders as at the Balance Sheet date.

IX.  On the basis of examination of relevant records 
and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not raised money 
by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) and term loans.

X.  On the basis of our examination of the relevant 
records of the Company, carried out in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing practices and 
according to the information and explanations 
given to us, no fraud by the company or any fraud 
on the Company by its officers or employees has 
been noticed or reported during the year.

XI.  On the basis of examination of relevant records 
and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has paid or provided 
managerial remuneration in accordance with the 
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions 
of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the 
Companies Act, 2013.

XII.  The Company is not a ‘Nidhi Company’, therefore, 
clause 3(xii) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

XIII.  On the basis of examination of relevant 
records and according to the information and 
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explanations given to us, all transactions with 
the related parties are in compliance with 
sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 
where applicable. The Company has disclosed 
the details of transactions with related parties 
in the Financial Statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards.

XIV.  The Company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during the 
year under audit; therefore, clause 3(xiv) of the 
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 is not 
applicable to the company.

XV.  On the basis of examination of relevant records 
and according to the information and explanations 

given to us, in our opinion, the Company has 
not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with them.

XVI.  On the basis of examination of relevant records 
and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, in our opinion, the Company is not 
required to be registered under section 45-IA of 
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For B. K. Khare and Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration Number 105102W

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Place : Mumbai Partner
Date : April 15, 2017 Membership No. 044784

Annexure II to the Independent Auditor’s Report 
of even date on the standalone Financial Statements of Mahindra Trustee 
Company Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of Mahindra Trustee Company 
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 
2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the Company for the period 
from April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Company’s management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that operate 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to the Company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards 
on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls and, both issued 
by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal 

Annual Report 2016 - 17



S
ta

tu
to

ry
 R

ep
or

ts
Fi

na
nc

ia
l S

ta
te

m
en

ts

209

Independent Auditor’s Report

control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud  
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that

(1)  pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company;

(2)  provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of 
the company; and

(3)  provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL 
FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING
Because of the inherent limitations of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

OPINION
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by ICAI.

For B. K. Khare and Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration Number 105102W

Padmini Khare Kaicker
Place : Mumbai Partner
Date : April 15, 2017 Membership No. 044784
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Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2017

In Rupees

Particulars
As at March 31

Note No. 2017 2016
I. EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1) Shareholders' funds

a) Share Capital 1  5,000,000  1,500,000
b) Reserves and Surplus 2  (2,780,060)  (745,222)

 2,219,940  754,778
2) Non-current liabilities

a) Other Long-term liabilities 3  100,000  100,000
 100,000  100,000

3) Current liabilities
a) Trade payables 4
 (i) Micro and Small Enterprises
 (ii) Other Trade Payables  55,784  39,192
b) Other current liabilities 5  2,070  10,168

 57,854  49,360
Total  2,377,794  904,138

II. ASSETS
1) Current assets

a) Current investments 6  1,706,406
b) Trade Receivable 7  69,246
b) Cash and bank balance 8  254,818  842,217
c) Other current assets 9  347,324  61,921

 2,377,794  904,138
Total  2,377,794  904,138

Summary of significant accounting polices and notes to the 
financial statements

I & II

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.
This is the Balance Sheet  referred in our report of even date.

For B. K. Khare and Co. For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
FRN :105102W M.G.Bhide

Chairman

Padmini Khare Kaicker Narendra Mairpady Gautam Parekh Debabrata Bandyopadhyay Ravi Dayma
Partner Director Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 044784

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 15, 2017
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Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2017

In Rupees

Particulars Note No.
Year ended March 31

2017 2016
I. Revenue from operations 10              310,928 –
II. Other income 11                  6,406 –
III. Total Revenue (I + II)              317,334 –
IV. Expenses:

Other expenses 12           2,352,172              491,880
Total Expenses           2,352,172              491,880

V. Loss before tax (III- IV)         (2,034,838)            (491,880)
VI. Tax expense:

(1) Current tax – –
(2) Deferred tax – –

VII. Loss for the year (V - VI)         (2,034,838)            (491,880)
VIII. Earnings per equity share (Rupees) : 13

(1) Basic                  (6.62)                  (6.14)
(2) Diluted                  (6.62)                  (6.14)
Summary of significant accounting polices and notes to 
the financial statements

I & II

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Statement of Profit & Loss.
This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred in our report of even date.

For B. K. Khare and Co. For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
FRN :105102W M.G.Bhide

Chairman

Padmini Khare Kaicker Narendra Mairpady Gautam Parekh Debabrata Bandyopadhyay Ravi Dayma
Partner Director Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 044784

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 15, 2017

Balance Sheet | Statement of Profit and Loss
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Cash Flow Statement
 for the year ended March 31, 2017

In Rupees
Particulars Year ended March 31

2017 2016
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before taxes and contingencies  (2,034,838)  (491,880)
Add: Items considered separately:
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Investment  (6,406)  -

 (6,406)  -
Operating Loss before working capital changes (I)  (2,041,244)  (491,880)
Add / Less:
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivable  (69,246)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets  (285,403)  (39,531)
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances  -

 (354,649)  (39,531)
Add: Increase in Current Liabilities & Provisions  8,494  24,606

(II)  (346,155)  (14,925)
Cash used in operations (I+II)  (2,387,399)  (506,805)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)  (2,387,399)  (506,805)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Investments  (2,700,000)  -
Sale of Investments  1,000,000  -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)  (1,700,000)  -

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of Equity Shares 3,500,000  1,000,000
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Long Term Liabilities (net)  -  100,000
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C)  3,500,000  1,100,000
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (A+B+C)  (587,399)  593,195

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT:
Beginning of the year  842,217  249,022
End of the year  254,818  842,217

Examined and found correct.
The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Accounting Standard 3 
(AS-3), “Cash Flow Statements”.

For B. K. Khare and Co. For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
FRN :105102W M.G.Bhide

Chairman

Padmini Khare Kaicker Narendra Mairpady Gautam Parekh Debabrata Bandyopadhyay Ravi Dayma
Partner Director Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 044784

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 15, 2017

Annual Report 2016 - 17
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
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Notes

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company, Mahindra Trustee Company Private 
Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated under 
the Companies Act, 1956 on July 10, 2013. The 
company is a subsidiary of Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services Ltd. The company is incorporated 
to function as a Trustee to the Mahindra Mutual 
Fund. The company has been granted a license from 
SEBI. The Company has entered into an Investment 
Management Agreement with Mahindra Asset 
Management Company Private Limited (Investment 
Manager) for managing the schemes of Mahindra 
Mutual Fund. During 2016-17, the Investment 
Manager launched four schemes of Mahindra Mutual 
Fund. Consequently, the Company earned trustee fees 
from these schemes during 2016-17.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES :
1) Basis of preparation of accounts :
 a)  The financial statements have been prepared 

in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (IGAAP) under the 
historical cost convention as a going concern 
and on an accrual basis and in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Accounting Standards notified 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

 b)  All assets and liabilities have been classified 
as current and non – current as per the 
Company’s normal operating cycle and 
other criteria set out in the Schedule III of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the 
nature of services and their realisation in 
cash and cash equivalents, the company 
has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 
months for the purpose of current – non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.

2) Use of Estimates :
  The preparation of financial statements requires 

the management to make estimates and 
assumptions considered in the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities (including contingent 
liabilities) as on the date of the financial statements 
and the reported income and expenses during 
the reporting year. Management believes that 
the estimates used in preparation of the financial 
statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual 

results could differ from these estimates. Any 
revision to accounting estimates is recognised 
prospectively in current and future years.

3) Segment Reporting :
  The Company has a single reporting segment viz 

income from trusteeship services provided to the 
schemes of Mahindra Mutual Fund. Accordingly, 
for the purpose of Accounting Standard 17 on 
segment reporting, the financial statements of 
the Company show the results of the Company 
for this single segment only.

4) Investments :
  Investments held as Long –Term Investments 

are stated at cost comprising of acquisition and 
incidental expenses less permanent diminution in 
value, if any. Investments other than Long Term 
investments are classified as current Investments 
and valued at cost or fair value whichever is less.

  Provision for diminution in value of investments 
is made if management perceives that there is 
permanent diminution in value of investments 
in accordance with the Accounting Standard on 
‘Accounting for Investments’ (AS 13) notified by 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

5) Revenue Recognition :
  Trustee Fees are recognised as revenue when 

the trusteeship services are performed for the 
schemes of Mahindra Mutual Fund.

  Dividend from investments is accounted for as 
an income when the right to receive dividend is 
established.

 Interest income is accounted on an accrual basis.

  The difference between the cost of investments 
and the redemption/sale proceeds (net of 
expenses) is recognised in the statement of 
Profit and Loss. For calculation of profit/loss 
on investment, cost is calculated on weighted 
average basis.

6) Share Issue Expenses :
  Expenses incurred in connection with fresh issue 

of share capital is charged to Profit and Loss 
account in the year in which they are incurred.
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to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
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7) Taxes on Income :
  Current tax is determined as the amount of 

tax payable in respect of taxable income for 
the year. Deferred tax is recognised, subject to 
consideration of prudence, on timing differences, 
being the difference between taxable incomes 
and accounting income that originate in one 
period and are capable of reversal in one or more 
subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets arising 
on account of unabsorbed depreciation or carry 
forward of tax losses are recognised only to the 
extent that there is virtual certainty supported 
by convincing evidence that sufficient future 
tax income will be available against which such 
deferred tax assets can be realised.

8) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
 a)  Provision for doubtful debts is made on the 

basis of standard norms and also, where 
required, on actual evaluation.

 a)  Provisions are recognised in accounts in 
respect of present probable obligations, the 
amount of which can be reliably estimated. 
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect 
of possible obligations that arise from past 

events but their existence is confirmed only 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one 
or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the company.

9) Earnings Per Share
  Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing 

the net profit or loss for the period attributable 
to equity shareholders by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining 
the Company’s earnings per share is the net 
profit for the period after deducting preference 
dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the 
period. The weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period and for all 
periods presented is adjusted for events, such 
as bonus shares, sub-division of shares etc. 
that have changed the number of equity shares 
outstanding, without corresponding change in 
resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted 
earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the 
period attributable to equity shareholders and the 
weighted average numbers of shares outstanding 
during the period is adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equity shares.
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Notes

In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 1 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Capital :
10,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 1,00,00,000 25,00,000
( March 2016 : 2,50,000 shares)
Issued Capital :
5,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 50,00,000 15,00,000
( March 2016 :1,50,000 shares)
Subscribed and Paid-up Capital :
5,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 50,00,000 15,00,000
( March 2016 : 1,50,000 shares)
Total 50,00,000 15,00,000

As at March 31
2017 2016

Number of 
shares

In Rupees Number of 
shares

In Rupees

a)  Reconciliation of the number of shares - 
  Number of equity shares outstanding at the 

beginning of the year
1,50,000 15,00,000 50,000 5,00,000

 Add :Fresh allotment of shares during the year 3,50,000 35,00,000 1,00,000 10,00,000

 Less : Shares bought back during the year

  Number of equity shares outstanding at the 
end of the year

5,00,000 50,00,000 1,50,000 15,00,000

b)  Number of equity shares held by holding 
company or ultimate holding company including 
shares held by its subsidiaries / associates -

  Holding company : Mahindra & Mahindra 
Financial Services Limited (Equity shares of  
Rs. 10/- each)

5,00,000 50,00,000 1,50,000 15,00,000

 Percentage of holding (%) 100 100 100 100

c)  Shareholders holding more than 5 percent 
shares :

  Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services 
Limited

5,00,000 50,00,000 1,50,000 15,00,000

In Rupees
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 2 RESERVES & SURPLUS
Surplus :
Balance Profit  as per last Balance Sheet (7,45,222) (2,53,342)
Add : Profit/(Loss) for the current year transferred from Statement 
of Profit & Loss

(20,34,838) (4,91,880)

Balance Profit carried to Balance Sheet (27,80,060) (7,45,222)
Less : Allocations & Appropriations : – –
Balance as at the end of the period (27,80,060) (7,45,222)
Total (27,80,060) (7,45,222)
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In Rupees 
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 3 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Initial Corpus of  Mahindra Mutual Fund (*) 1,00,000 1,00,000
Total 1,00,000 1,00,000

*  The Initial Corpus is contributed by Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Ltd to Mahindra Trustee Co. Pvt. Ltd. 
towards corpus of Mahindra Mutual Fund

In Rupees 
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 4 TRADE PAYABLES
Trade payables for expenses
Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note No 16) – –
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 55,784 39,192
Total 55,784 39,192

In Rupees 
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 5 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory dues payable
TDS Payable 2,000 10,168
Service Tax Payable 70 –
Total 2,070 10,168

In Rupees 
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 6 CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Unquoted (at cost)
Investment in Schemes of Mutual Fund
Mahindra Liquid Fund Direct Growth 17,06,406 -–
(Market Value Rs 17,46,324)
Total 17,06,406 –

In Rupees 
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 7 TRADE RECEIVABLE
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months – –
Others 69,246 –
Total 69,246 –

In Rupees 
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 8 CASH AND BANK BALANCE
Balance with Scheduled Banks in Current Accounts 2,54,818 8,42,217
Total 2,54,818 8,42,217
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Notes

In Rupees 
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 9 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
TDS Receivable 31,092 –
Service tax credit available 3,16,233 61,921
Total 3,47,325 61,921

In Rupees 
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 10 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Trusteeship fees (Gross) 3,57,567 –
Less: Service Tax 46,639 –
Trusteeship fees (Net) 3,10,928 –
Total 3,10,928 –

 

In Rupees 
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 11 OTHER INCOME
Profit on redemption of current investment 6,406 –
Total 6,406 –

In Rupees 
As at March 31
2017 2016

Note 12 OTHER EXPENSES
Rates and Taxes 21,775 12,000
Directors sitting fees 20,29,700 3,40,000
Bank Charges 327 81
Legal and Professional Fees 56,777 48,588
Filing fees 5,602 6,100
Audit Fees (Net of service tax)
Audit 20,100 20,101
Share Issue Expenses 1,57,000 65,010
Travelling expenses 60,893 –
Total 23,52,174 4,91,880

Note 13  In Accordance with the Accounting Standard on “Earning Per Share “ (AS-20) Issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, the EPS is as follows:

In Rupees 
As at March 31
2017 2016

Net Profit/ (Loss) attributable to Equity Share Holders (20,34,838) (4,91,880)
Weighted Average Numbers of Shares (*) 3,07,397 80,055
EPS – (Basic) (6.62) (6.14)
EPS – (Diluted) (6.62) (6.14)

*  The No. of shares outstanding for previous period has been adjusted on account of issue of rights shares during the 
current period as per guidelines of AS - 20.
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Note 14 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE AS PER ACCOUNTING STANDARD 18
A)  List of the related parties which have transactions with our Company during the year:

Holding Company Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

B) Related party transactions are as under: 
 Rs. in Lakhs

Sr. No. Nature of transactions Holding Company
1. Issue of Equity Shares Mahindra and Mahindra Financial 

Services Ltd
35

(10)

Notes: Figures in bracket represent corresponding figure of previous year.

Note 15 Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period 08/11/2016 to 
30/12/2016 as provided in the Table below:-

 Rs. in Lakhs

SBNs
Other  

Denomination notes
Total

 Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 NIL NIL NIL
 (+) Permitted receipts NIL NIL NIL
 (-) Permitted payments NIL NIL NIL
 (-) Amounts deposited in Banks NIL NIL NIL
 Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 NIL NIL NIL

Note 16 None of the suppliers have submitted their confirmation towards Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises, thus there is no principal or interest dues thereon outstanding to any such supplier at the end 
of accounting year.

Note 17 As stated in the corporate information, the revenues from business operations of the Company started 
from July 2016 after the launch of the first scheme of Mahindra Mutual Fund.  Accordingly, current year figures 
are not comparable with the previous year figures

Signatures to Significant accounting policies and Notes to the financial statements – I and II

For B. K. Khare and Co. For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
FRN :105102W M.G.Bhide

Chairman

Padmini Khare Kaicker Narendra Mairpady Gautam Parekh Debabrata Bandyopadhyay Ravi Dayma
Partner Director Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 044784

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 15, 2017
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